MEETING of the GOVERNING BODY
held in public
Wednesday 28th May 2014 at 1.00pm
The Hall at Marthall, Sandlebridge Lane,
Marthall, Knutsford, WA16 7SB
Chair: Paul Bowen

AGENDA
12:45
Time

13:00

Arrival and refreshments
Agenda
Title / Description
No.

Speaker

Delivery &
Decision

1.

PRELIMINARY BUSINESS

1.1

Welcome & apologies for absence Paul Bowen

Verbal

1.2

Declaration of any interests
relevant to the agenda items
Notes from previous meeting held
in public – March 2014
Chief Officer Report
Jerry Hawker

Verbal

1.3
1.4

Paper attached
For approval

Verbal
For information

13:20

2.

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

2.1

NHS Eastern Cheshire Annual
Report and Accounts 2013 – 2014
 Overview
 Financial Statement
 External Audit Opinion
NHS Eastern Cheshire Financial
Plan 2014/15
Investment in Primary Care
2014 - 2015

2.2
2.3

14:20

Jerry Hawker
Alex Mitchell
Robin Baker
Alex Mitchell

Paper attached
For approval

Paper attached
For approval

Neil Evans

Paper attached
For information

3.

STANDING ITEMS

3.1
3.2

Caring Together Programme
update
Finance Report

Samantha
Nicol
Alex Mitchell

3.3

Assurance Framework

Alex Mitchell

Paper attached
For information

None on this
occasion
Paper attached
For information

15:00

3.4

Sub Committee Minutes / reports
3.4.1 Governance and Audit Committee

Gerry Gray

Paper attached
For information

NHS ECCCG Governing Body Meeting 26 February 2014

3.4.2 Remuneration Committee

Gerry Gray

Verbal
For information

15:10

3.4.3 Clinical Quality and Performance
Committee
3.5
Advisory Committee reports
3.5.1 Locality Management Meeting

James
Milligan

Paper attached

Paul Bowen

Paper attached

For information

For information

3.5.2 Eastern Cheshire HealthVoice

Bill Swann

Paper attached
For information

15:20

4. CLOSING REMARKS

15:30

CLOSE OF MEETING

Paul Bowen

Verbal

DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING:
Wednesday 30th July 2014, Congleton, Venue TBC
Formal Meeting held in public

15:45

Informal Question and Answer session

Following completion of the Governing Body meeting, members of the public are also invited
to attend an informal meeting with the Governing Body members where there will be an
opportunity to raise questions or concerns. Members of the public need not have attended the
Governing Body beforehand and are welcome to attend just for this session.
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MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY held in public
Wednesday 26 March 2014
Poynton Civic Centre

Unconfirmed MINUTES
VOTING MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNING BODY
Dr Paul Bowen
Gill Boston
Dr Mike Clark
Gerry Gray
Jerry Hawker
Dr Jennifer Lawn
Melanie Lyman
Dr James Milligan
Alex Mitchell
Sally Rogers
Dr Julie Sin
Bill Swann
Angela Wales
Duncan Matheson

Executive Chair,
GP McIlvride Medical Centre, Poynton
Lay Member, Patient and Public Involvement
General Practice Representative –
Macclesfield
Lay member, Governance
Chief Officer
General Practice Representative – Knutsford
General Practice Representative –
Congleton and Holmes Chapel
General Practice Representative –
Alderley Edge, Chelford, Handforth, Wilmslow
Chief Finance Officer
Registered Nurse Member
Senior Public Health Representative,
Associate Director of Public Health, Public
Health department, Cheshire East Council
Lay Member, Patient and Public Involvement
General Practice Representative –
Bollington, Disley, Poynton
Secondary Care Doctor Member

PRESENT
PRESENT
PRESENT
PRESENT
PRESENT
PRESENT
PRESENT
PRESENT
PRESENT
PRESENT
PRESENT

PRESENT
PRESENT
PRESENT

IN ATTENDANCE
Hazel Burgess
Matthew Cunningham
Neil Evans
Samantha Nicol
7 Members of the public

Note taker
Corporate Services Manager
Head of Business Management
Caring Together Programme Director

1.

PRELIMINARY BUSINESS

1.1

Welcome and Opening Remarks from Chair
Dr Paul Bowen opened the meeting. He offered a patient story of recent
experience, related to him by a local GP.
On a Friday afternoon, an elderly lady living in her own home asked for a
GP visit for her son, who is her main carer. He was found to be in need of
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admission to hospital. As a result of the need for her to be in a safe place
whilst her main carer was away, and although she was in stable health, the
elderly lady herself ended up in hospital.
Dr Bowen said this highlights the need for forward planning. Next year
there will be a new nationally set requirement for everybody over 75 to
have a named GP. The benefit and value of this will be if the GP helps
each person to make a good plan to cover the most common things that
might happen to change their circumstances; everyone’s plan would need
to be different according to their individual situation. Dr Bowen said that
papers being considered at the meeting today include plans the CCG has
been asked to make for local population. The Governing Body will ensure
the local population has been involved in making these plans otherwise
they will not meet the needs which arise locally.
1.2

Public Speaking Time
No questions had been submitted in advance. There was a reminder for
the members of the public that there would be an opportunity at end of
meeting for an informal question and answer session.

1.3

No Apologies for absence had been received.

1.4

Declaration of any relevant interests on items on the agenda
No new declarations of interest were made on items on the agenda.

1.5

Minutes of the previous meetings
Page 9, item 3.4.1 “…data gathered … will be anonymised …” will be
amended to “… data gathered … will be pseudonymised1 or anonymised”
With this amendment, the minutes of the meeting held in public on
29 January 2014 were agreed as an accurate record.

1.5.1

Matters arising from the Minutes
The Governing Body’s attention was drawn to the information that the
Care.data (“Better Information means better care”)2 project has been
suspended until later in the year until further work has been done.
Chief Officer Briefing
Jerry Hawker said that future Chief Officer Briefings will be structured
around three areas:
1. Reporting on any decisions made at the weekly executive meetings;
operational decisions made within the CCG’s agreed budget
2. Reporting on any decisions made at the bi-monthly Governing Body

1
2

http://www.connectingforhealth.nhs.uk/systemsandservices/pseudo
http://www.nhs.uk/NHSEngland/thenhs/records/healthrecords/Pages/care‐data.aspx
NHS ECCCG Governing Body Meeting held in public 26 March 2014
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meetings held in private
3. National NHS news and any relevant local news
1.6.1

Report on Governing Body Meeting held in private in February
Every other month the Governing Body meets in private for development
and exploratory discussions. When decisions are made at the meetings
these will be reported at the next meeting held in public. At the meeting
held in private in February:








1.6.2

Draft Annual Report and Annual Accounts papers were endorsed.
An alteration to the CCG’s Schemes of Delegation, devolving
authority to the Governance and Audit Committee to formally sign
off the final annual report and accounts, was agreed.
Legal advice had been sought on the approach to re-procurement of
non-obstetric ultrasound services, and the Governing Body
approved the recommendation from the Business Management
team that the Any Qualified Provider3 scheme be used in this case.
This means that non-obstetric ultrasound services will be available
to patients in Eastern Cheshire via a number of different providers.
A paper was presented recommending investment in a new ‘public
service network’4 to improve GP information technology (IT)
systems and electronic communications between health and social
care providers in Eastern Cheshire. The Governing Body was fully
supportive of the principles set out in the paper and acknowledged
that capital funding had been identified. However, the full revenue
implications were not at this stage fully understood and therefore
the Governing Body deferred a decision for three months and
requested that a further paper be taken to the Caring Together
Executive Team for agreement and then brought back to the CCG
Governing Body.
The draft plans on today’s agenda were first brought to the February
meeting; Jerry Hawker stated that this year the CCG is required to
produce at least five separate plans, with considerable investment
of CCG staff time and inevitably some duplication across the
content.

The paper report presented with the agenda had covered: Primary Care
Urgent Response Service; Eastern Cheshire Nursing Home Scheme; CCG
306o stakeholder survey; CCG Consultation on Commissioning Policy
Review; Support from Macmillan Cancer Support. Comments were made
and some questions raised:
Primary Care Urgent Response Service
This service had been run over the winter period, funded by additional
winter pressures money. This type of urgent care service is very much in
line with the Caring Together Programme. Based on clinical evidence and

3
4

http://www.nhs.uk/choiceintheNHS/Yourchoices/any‐qualified‐provider/Pages/aqp.aspx
https://www.gov.uk/public‐services‐network
NHS ECCCG Governing Body Meeting held in public 26 March 2014
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positive patient feedback the Executive Team has agreed the service will
continue for the rest of the year.
There were comments from practice representatives on the value of the
service and it was confirmed that the level of detail available can only
demonstrate the reduction in avoidable hospital admission on the day of
the call to the service, not whether an admission subsequently took place
later on in the month. Data on use of the service is available broken down
by practice and by nursing home, and there is a mixed picture ranging
from no use to significant use. Work will be done to promote the service to
ensure it is being used appropriately and to best advantage by all.
An update on how well the service is operating will be bought back to the
Governing Body in 6 months’ time.
Eastern Cheshire Nursing Home Scheme
The Nursing home scheme began over 13 years ago on a small scale,
originally with GPs employed by East Cheshire NHS Trust. Since its
inception, many more care homes have opened in the area and four years
ago a case was made for expansion of a new scheme, commissioned from
the GP practices. This has led to two different schemes for providing this
service.
The Chief Officer confirmed that the CCG has committed to expand its
successful Nursing Home scheme to cover all care homes across Eastern
Cheshire and to standardise the service.
Having taken extensive legal advice and corresponded with Monitor and
taken due consideration of the range of potential providers able to meet
the needs of our population, the Executive Team has duly concluded the
following:




the existing service specification is to be strengthened to reflect the
focus on coordinated care and the vital aspect of integration with
primary care services
that Expressions of Interest will be sought from prospective providers
based on 17 separate tender lots
the final procurement approach will be determined based on the level
of market response.

Surveys done with staff and patients consistently produce extremely
positive feedback and reports of improved care. The CCG’s website
contains detail of analysis done through the Disley GP practice, showing
dramatic reductions in admissions from a care home.
https://www.easterncheshireccg.nhs.uk/News/Local-GPs-presentacademic-poster-at-National-Conference.htm
Commissioning Policy Review Consultation - Cheshire and
Merseyside
Four local engagement events have taken place. Feedback received has
been uploaded to the CCG’s website in the form of reports from each
NHS ECCCG Governing Body Meeting held in public 26 March 2014
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meeting: (www.easterncheshireccg.nhs.uk/Your-Views/commissioningpolicy-review.htm . The website gives an opportunity to contribute to the
on-line survey and send comments until noon on 7th April.
There will be a report on the feedback received and a recommendation on
the content of the final Commissioning Policy will be presented at a future
Governing Body meeting for decision.
2.

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

2.1

Result of CCG elections
Jerry Hawker summarised the election process for members of the
Governing Body and asked for the Governing Body’s ratification of the
election results for three of the posts.
The Governing Body


Ratified the re-election of Dr Paul Bowen as GP Chair of the
Clinical Commissioning Group with a four-year tenure
beginning in June 2014



Ratified the re-election of Dr Mike Clark as Macclesfield
General Practice Locality Peer Group Representative with a
three-year tenure beginning in May 2014



Ratified the election of Joanne Morton for the position of
Alderley Edge, Chelford, Handforth and Wilmslow General
Practice Locality Peer Group Representative, with a three-year
tenure beginning in May 2014



Noted that a candidate for the position of Congleton and
Holmes Chapel General Practice Locality Peer Group
Representative has not yet been identified

Dr Paul Bowen said that he was grateful to his peers for their support and
for giving him the opportunity to continue as Chair of the CCG for a further
four years. He offered congratulations to Dr Mike Clark on his re-election
to the Governing Body, and was pleased to note the new appointment of
Joanne Morton, Practice Manager of Handforth Health Centre.
Dr Paul Bowen and Jerry Hawker are working with the Congleton and
Holmes Chapel practices to help identify a successor candidate for the
peer group. The CCG Constitution states that there must be a
representative for each of the five general practice peer groups. Any
clinical or management staff member of a general practice is eligible to
stand for election. If a candidate from one of the peer group’s own
practices does not come forward, the Constitution allows for a member of
another general practice in the CCG to be considered. The Congleton and
Holmes Chapel Peer Group is aware of the significance of having
representation on the CCG Governing Body and will be discussing this,

NHS ECCCG Governing Body Meeting held in public 26 March 2014
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along with options for interim cover if necessary, at a meeting on 4th April.
2.2

NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG Two Year Operational Plan 2014-2016
Neil Evans introduced the CCG two year operational plan explaining that it
is one of several which the CCG is required to produce for NHS England,
in a template-based format. Preliminary submissions were made by all
CCGs in February. Subsequently NHS England provided benchmarking
information, which provided CCGs with the opportunity to compare their
submissions with those of their peer group CCGs and consider whether to
make adjustments to baselines and trajectories before submission of their
final plan.
The paper submitted with the agenda includes NHS Eastern Cheshire
CCG’s proforma submission made in February, at which time the CCG
was in early contract negotiations with providers.
Neil Evans outlined the components of the plan and confirmed that
although the basic content of the plan will not change, some refinements
will continue to be made. These will include:


adjustment to the activity projections in the two-year plan to reflect
final 2014/15 contracts



final updates to a number of outcome trajectories in the
commissioning intentions section



final adjustments taking account of all national guidance, which has
been issued since the original submission

The process for deciding the CCG’s commissioning intentions included
consideration of local and national evidence, and a review of where
Eastern Cheshire CCG was performing compared to peer CCGs. The
assessment criteria were developed jointly with Cheshire East Council
Public Health team, and working with Eastern Cheshire HeathVoice, the
CCG identified the high priority areas where there was either a gap in
current service provision, or significant scope for improvement. This
process led to the identification of five programmes of work for next year.
Observing that the proforma format of the plans the CCG is required to
submit to NHS England does not make the information very clear for
members of the public to absorb, Neil Evans said that the plans will be
consolidated into one public-facing document. Members of the public will
be involved in refining the document to ensure the information is presented
in a straightforward and easy-to-read form.
Quality Premium Indicator
There were questions about how the emergency readmissions local
indicator was chosen and which other potential local indicators had been
considered. Neil Evans emphasised that the public had been involved with
identifying an initial list of outcomes and the eventual choice had been
narrowed down to two: the final choice, and ‘people’s physical health being
NHS ECCCG Governing Body Meeting held in public 26 March 2014
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affected by severe mental illness’. Ultimately it was felt that the current
CCG plans were most closely aligned to deliver the emergency
readmission indicator in the first year.
It was clarified that the unit of measurement referred to is taken from the
national patient survey and is ‘per 100,000 patients’.
It was queried whether the trajectory was ambitious enough. Neil Evans
said that compared with 10 peers, the CCG’s trajectories are generally in
the top two or three most ambitious.
Secondary Care Hospital planning assumptions
The plan shows an ambition to see a reduction of 2% in secondary care
activity and it was queried how it was anticipated this would be achieved
and if it might fall even lower. Neil Evans stated that the current rates of
hospital activity are unaffordable. The revised plans will set more
stretching reductions on non-elective (unplanned) activity. There is a
move to more day-case elective surgery, with hospital in-patient stays
decreasing, which will be reflected in in the final submission.
Mental health services
It was queried whether a sufficient level of mental health services had
been commissioned for dementia diagnosis and Improving Access to
Psychological Therapies. Neil Evans said that during this year a new
strategy is being developed and implemented to support delivery of the
measures.
There was a discussion about whether some targets in the five planning
papers contradicted targets in others.
It was queried where the complexities of a new system, with more primary
care intervention and care management would be overseen.
It was recognised that the planning process which the NHS uses to assure
itself does not easily translate all the elements of the Caring Together plan;
however this will be mitigated through the bodies overseeing the
transformation of care locally which are the Caring Together Executive
Board, the CCG Governing Body, and the Cheshire East Health and
Wellbeing Board. It is important that the CCG focuses on how the public is
seeing services evolve in Eastern Cheshire and whether the public,
patients and staff feel the decisions being taking do result in care services
improving.
The Governing Body




Noted and endorsed the approach taken in terms of trajectories in
the two-year plan
Noted and endorsed the adoption of ‘emergency admissions’ as
the local quality premium indicator
Noted and endorsed the approach taken in developing the
commissioning priorities

NHS ECCCG Governing Body Meeting held in public 26 March 2014
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2.3

Approved the submission of the two-year operational plan to NHS
England

NHS Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group Five Year
Strategic Plan 2014-2019
Jerry Hawker said that responding to the statutory requirement to complete
the various plans for NHS England has been a challenging exercise
requiring a lot of work from CCG staff.
The draft five year strategic plan submitted to NHS England again was a
template-based submission. NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has responded
in a concise format setting out the vision, ambitions and scale of change
needed in Eastern Cheshire. The Caring Together Programme is ‘the heart
and soul’ of what the CCG is trying to do and is effectively the CCG’s fiveyear plan. The ambitions of Caring Together are consistent with the seven
‘system objectives’ predetermined by NHS England as shown on the ‘Plan
on a Page’.
All other planning documents have to be consistent with the 5 year
strategic plan. As mentioned during the previous presentation, it is planned
to produce a Prospectus ‘in plain English’ for the local population, setting
out the CCG’s commitment to improve care in Eastern Cheshire over the
next five years, with detail for what is planned for the next 18 months.
Success of the plan will be measured by predetermined metrics.
One measure is ‘managing within our resources’. The CCG is currently
discharging part of its duty in this respect in that it is managing its finances
by not exceeding its resources, but is not delivering on some of the
associated business rules. An aim of the five year plan is that the CCG
will be meeting all its financial duties.
The final technical template version of the five year plan will be
brought back to the Governing Body meeting in June, along with the
completed public-facing Prospectus.
There was a request for clarification of two statements in the plan.
Re System Ambition 2 – it was clarified that this should be ‘reduce the
inequalities in accessing health and social care services’
On page 9 of the plan – ‘wider primary care provided at scale’ – ‘100%
access to clinicians working in primary care’. It is to be specified that this
is intended to mean ’24 hour/7 days per week access to clinicians in
primary care’.
It was acknowledged that social care is means tested, not ‘free at the point
of delivery’ as is healthcare, therefore the ambition to have 24 hour/7 day
per week access to social care is a challenge to be talked through with the
local authority via the Health and Wellbeing Board.
With the clarifications noted above, the Governing Body
NHS ECCCG Governing Body Meeting held in public 26 March 2014
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2.4

Noted the content of the draft Five Year Strategic Plan

The Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board Better Care Fund Plan
The paper for this item was produced to brief the Governing Body
members on the Better Care Fund Plan, setting out a shared vision of
Cheshire East Council, NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG and NHS South
Cheshire CCG for improving outcomes for residents through improving
how health and social care services work together. In addition to
presentation at today’s meeting for comments and approval, the draft
paper has been taken to the Health and Wellbeing Board (25th March),
NHS South Cheshire CCG Governing Body (27th March) and will go to
Cheshire East Cabinet Meeting on 1st April. The final plan must be
submitted on 4th April.
Alex Mitchell gave thanks to Guy Kilminster, Corporate Manager Health
Improvement, Cheshire East Council for producing the paper on behalf of
the partners in the Fund. He reminded the Governing Body that that this
new fund becomes operational on 1 April 2015 and monies will come from
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG’s budget (£11.6 million), NHS South Cheshire
CCG and NHS Vale Royal CCG and Cheshire East Council. Time frames
with integration programmes to allow detailed plans around the schemes
are unaligned but the Better Care Fund submission, giving a general
direction of travel, is due next week. The document is a broad outline, is a
work in progress, and will change over the next 3–4 months.
In light of anecdotal experience of funds for services operated jointly by
health and social care being poorly managed, there were questions about
assurances in place to ensure that funding would be managed
transparently in the future. The Better Care Fund will be under the
accountability of the Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board, of which
both Dr Paul Bowen and Jerry Hawker are members. Use of the fund will
be agreed between all parties and it was noted the importance of agreeing
governance arrangements to ensure transparency in how the fund is used.
Work will be done to agree a risk outcomes framework arrangement to
avoid exposure of risk to any of the partners.
It was commented that criteria for eligibility to access social care services
are that the need has to be ‘critical’ or ‘substantial’, which conflicts with the
ambition of early intervention to avoid people reaching crisis situations.
Social care is means-tested and is not free at point of delivery in the same
way that healthcare is.
Jerry Hawker said that the Better Care Fund offered an opportunity to
explore a different approach to social care, recognising the need to
become comfortable that ‘health money’ could be used for different
purposes to meet the total care needs for an individual.
There was agreement that the Better Care Fund provides an opportunity to
make some changes and some differences.

NHS ECCCG Governing Body Meeting held in public 26 March 2014
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The Governing Body



2.5

Endorsed the general direction of travel of the draft Better Care
Fund Plan for submission, but that further detail on the financial
risks was needed before final support could be given.
Agreed Alex Mitchell to lead for the CCG on the Better Care Fund
on behalf of the Governing Body.

Cheshire East Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy
Guy Kilminster said that the Health and Wellbeing strategy, another
requirement of the Government’s Health and Social Care Act 2012, could
be viewed as “a strong and supportive umbrella to help the CCG on its
journey to meet local priorities and keep them dry as they head there”. The
Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board is charged with putting in place
a strategy to identify issues for local commissioners to address to improve
the health of the local population.
A review has been carried out of the priorities listed in the existing interim
strategy, to align them with the operational plans. A refresh of the
Cheshire East Joint Strategic Needs Assessment has been under way for
six months.
Guy Kilminster summarised the changes which have been made to the
updated draft strategy as a result of;




a peer review of children’s services
issues requiring to be addressed highlighted in the Director of Public
Health’s annual report
priorities set out in the Pioneer programme, Caring Together and
South Cheshire’s ‘Connecting care’ programme.

It was suggested that ’interventions to reduce social isolation and
loneliness’ should be included in all outcome areas as it is not an issue
restricted to the elderly but can be a problem for those in mid life and e.g.
for those with enduring mental health problems and those in marginalized
communities. This was noted.
In Annex 1 – operational plans for the CCGs are awaited and their
commissioning intentions will be included.
Amendments will be incorporated into a paper going to the Health and
Wellbeing Board meeting in May for final endorsement.
With the request that there be inclusion in all three outcome categories of
‘interventions to reduce social isolation and loneliness’,
The Governing Body


Endorsed the draft two-year Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing
Strategy.

NHS ECCCG Governing Body Meeting held in public 26 March 2014
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[There was a 10 minute comfort break]
2.6

Challenged Health Economy
Jerry Hawker summarised the paper and how ‘Eastern Cheshire’ had been
identified as one of 11 health economies with significant challenges where
support from a critical friend and sponsor would be offered to help develop
plans for the health economy to become sustainable successful.
For this purpose, ‘Eastern Cheshire’ includes South Manchester and
Stockport, covering a population of 870,000. When the letter was
received, Tameside was included in the area defined as the local health
economy; it is has not been completely resolved whether this still stands.
The sponsor for the health economy work, appointed by Monitor, has now
been defined as the NHS Trust Development Authority. Subject to
contract, the ‘critical friend’ is likely to be McKinsey & Company and
Carnall Farrar LLP with whom NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG already has a
relationship. It was stressed that the appointments have been made by
Monitor and funding for the 12-week piece of work will be led by Monitor in
partnership with NHS England and the NHS Trust Development Authority.
The work which will be done with the three CCGs and three hospital trusts
over the next 12 weeks will build on the Caring Together work and the
Healthier Together work and will make sure population and activity
mapping has been carried out across the area. This will result in refreshed
5-year plans for all organisations and a shared plan responding to the
needs of the wider population across the area.
Concern was expressed about the number of overlapping initiatives in
which the CCG is having to be involved simultaneously, the resulting
stretching of internal resources, and the potential consequences for the
window of opportunity for consultation on the Caring Together Programme.
Samantha Nicol confirmed that the Caring Together Programme is still on
plan as regards the timescales for formal consultation. Jerry Hawker
stated that the new initiative will be complementary, not competing with
work already in progress and it is not expected that it will impact negatively
on the Pioneer Project or the Better Care Fund, both of which are focussed
on primary / community care. The patient flow in Eastern Cheshire means
there is a need to develop a strong relationship with Stockport and South
Manchester CCGs and look at four hospitals instead of just one. Eastern
Cheshire CCG had already started working with Stockport and South
Manchester on the Healthier Together Programme, which is about how
hospital care will be organised. The ‘challenged economy’ work will
provide assurance by bringing all the various plans into alignment.
The role of ‘the sponsor’ was queried. The NHS Trust Development
Authority (TDA) will be a single point of contact, coordinating the work and
will work in partnership with the organisations involved, ensuring planning
is agreed.

NHS ECCCG Governing Body Meeting held in public 26 March 2014
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Regarding work to be done by the ‘critical friend’ an undertaken has been
given that there will be no duplication of work already done locally. The
basis for payment is unknown as this is Monitor’s responsibility. In the
expectation that the contract will proceed to signature, discussions will be
held next week with McKinsey / Carnall Farrar on the scope of the work
and clarifying that their contracted work on Caring Together will be kept
separate, but the knowledge and data will be drawn upon, providing added
value to the additional new remit.
The CCG has already coordinated a meeting on 27th March of the Chief
Executives and Medical Directors of the Trusts involved in the defined
area, all are very positive about the benefit of aligning visions and it is felt
that all this will only contribute to and enhance existing work programmes.
The Governing Body


Noted the content of the Challenged Economy report and
approved authority for the Chief Officer to continue to act on
behalf of the CCG in the negotiations with NHS England, Monitor
and the NHS Trust Development Authority

3.

STANDING ITEMS

3.1

Caring Together Programme Update
Samantha Nicol, Caring Together Programme Director, summarised the
content of the report under the headings: Communications and
Engagement; Progress against the programme and project plans; Risks;
Progress against Plan on a Page 2013/14
At the February meeting held in private the Governing Body had signed off
the Case for Change document, which will be distributed widely in
approximately 6 weeks’ time. In the interim a smaller leaflet, posing three
simple questions, has been published. It is also available on the website.
This will start engagement with staff and the public and Samantha Nicol
asked that all take copies away and encourage responses.
Re 5.2.3 in the report - the first of three stakeholder events in the preconsultation phase was held on 14th March. Those present were asked to
consider the need for change based on a list of facts, and to consider
quality standards on which the new system will be designed and how it
could be evaluated. A report on the outcome of the discussions will go to
the Care Model Design Groups and the Caring Together Executive Board
to be used in the next stage of the design.
Re 5.6 - Items behind plan remain on schedule and have achieved revised
dates.
Operational changes are part of the Plan on a Page, the CCG’s two year
plan, and are being promoted through the Better Care Fund.
It was observed that Caring Together is already having an operational
NHS ECCCG Governing Body Meeting held in public 26 March 2014
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impact by underpinning decisions being made day to day in the roll out of
services.
Samantha Nicol took questions on the paper, and her verbal report.
It was raised there is a general perception from members of the public
that, regardless of being invited to comment, ”things will happen
regardless”. Generally the public would like to get feedback on what is
happening, hear that their views have been received, if their views are not
acted on, to know the reasons why, and they would like to have the
opportunity to input to plans.
Samantha Nicol said that members of the public are being encouraged to
ring in, or write in, and that although individual replies will not be sent, all
the input will be fed into the design groups and engagement events that
will take place between now and the end of May. The results of the
information gathering will be put on the website listed under themes. She
said there is a lot of momentum behind the pre-consultation informal
engagement at the moment, with a good communications plan behind it,
using local media and social media (Twitter and Facebook). In answer to
questions she said that the response at the Stakeholder event had been
very good.
A request for the Caring Together Risk Register to be included with the
next report was noted.
The Governing Body


3.2

Noted the progress of the Caring Together Programme and Plan
on a Page projects against the agreed timelines and plans

Finance and Performance Report, Month 11 as at 28 February 2014
Alex Mitchell picked out the main points of the financial paper.
He stated there had been varying degrees of success on the Quality
Innovation Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) plan initiatives. Mersey
Internal Audit Agency has been engaged to review processes and will
make recommendations to the Governance and Audit Committee on how
to improve for 2014/15.
The improving position on the CCG’s meeting of the Better Practice
Payment Code has been maintained.
From the point of view of patient, the mild winter has had a positive effect,
with unplanned admissions down on expectations and consequently East
Cheshire Trust having more capacity to increase planned care. This has
meant a reduction in waiting times down to half compared with this time
last year, but has cost the CCG more money than expected (£700,000
more in January and £500,000 more in February). This has been reflected
in the forecast, with reserves set aside against over performance, but the
March figure is an estimate at this stage.
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There is an unresolved issue with invoices from the Local Authority being
submitted for clients on the assumption of their eligibility for Continuing
Healthcare (CHC) where the Learning Disability Pool should have covered
the cost and CHC assessments have not yet taken place. This is in part
due to issues with recruitment of staff with specialist skills to undertake the
assessments. The CCG is working with the local authority to establish the
appropriateness of the invoices.
There were questions on the hospital activity figures and the difference in
cost of unplanned compared to planned care; it was explained this was
due to volume rather than complexity.
Regarding specialist services it was explained that this is the first year of
the new health system and guidance is still emerging on where financial
responsibility lies for some services; as a consequence the contract for
NHS England specialised commissioning services may over-perform
significantly in the inaugural year.
There was a query about the definition of ‘mental health placements’ in
Table 2, Alex Mitchell will obtain this from the Continuing Healthcare
Team.
The Governing Body noted that




3.3

As at 28 February 2014 the CCG was delivering a cumulative
surplus of £181,000
It is expected that the CCG will deliver a £200,000 surplus for the
year, in line with the financial plan
There are a number of risks which could impact on the
achievement of the planned forecast surplus
It is expected that a year end cash balance of less than £200,000
will be delivered

Governing Body Assurance Framework
Alex Mitchell said that the Assurance Framework will provide assurance to
the Governing Body that identified risks to the CCG’s strategic objectives
are being addressed and monitored. Development of the framework will
be an on-going process and the framework will be brought back to the
Governing Body on a regular basis. He stated that the Framework shows
strategic risks only, and indicated that there is an overarching risk around
Caring Together, which has a separate operational risk register.
Gerry Gray said that the Assurance Framework underpins the CCG’s
governance system. The Governance and Audit Committee will review
and add risks to it when considered appropriate, but only the Governing
Body can approve the removal of risks.
The framework, which is still being refined, works as a closed loop, feeding
into the internal audit plan.
Alex Mitchell clarified the risk designated GB A F03 – the CCG has a
statutory duty to balance finances, which it is on track to achieve, but this
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year it will not achieve the wider responsibility of meeting business rules
associated with the duty.
The Governing Body


Noted the strategic risks for the CCG



Were requested to forward any additional risk items to Gerry Gray
or Alex Mitchell



Asked that the assurance framework be presented for review at
each meeting held in public (every two months) for the year 20132014

3.4

Sub-committee Minutes / Reports

3.4.1

Governance and Audit Committee meeting held 26 February 2014
Gerry Gray said that at the Governing Body meeting in February, it had
been agreed to delegate authority to the Governance and Audit Committee
to approve the statutory accounts on 4th June. The accounts in as final a
form as possible, will be brought to the Governing Body meeting in May.
The Governing Body


Noted the minutes of the meeting on 26 February 2014.

3.4.2

Remuneration Committee report
Gerry Gray reported that the next meeting is scheduled for 28th March. It
is planned that there will be four full meetings of the Remuneration
Committee annually.

3.4.3

Clinical Quality and Performance Committee Meeting – January 2014
The Governing Body


noted the summary and the minutes of the meeting of the
Quality and Performance Committee on 15th January 2014

3.5

Advisory Committees – summary reports

3.5.1

ECCCG Locality Management Meeting – 7th March 2014
The Governing Body


3.5.2

noted the discussions at the Locality Management meeting on
7th March 2014

Eastern Cheshire Community HealthVoice Meetings –
December 2013 and January 2014
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Bill Swann said that the group next meets on 28th March and the agenda
covers commissioning intentions, safeguarding in nursing homes, Caring
Together governance, and Healthwatch.
The Governing Body
 noted the reports and the notes of the discussions at the Eastern
Cheshire Community HealthVoice meetings held on
13th December 2013 and 22nd January 2014.
4.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

4.1

Power of Attorney
A query was raised regarding Lasting Power of Attorney whether progress
had been made in ensuring care staff have awareness of training in the
implications of power of attorney. The discussion covered where the
responsibility for this training of might lie, and what part the CCG can play
in communicating with local providers, to ensure the powers of an attorney
are duly observed. The Caring Together community group is working on
this and progress made so far by the CCG includes information being
uploaded to the CCG’s website
https://www.easterncheshireccg.nhs.uk/Links/power-of-attorney.htm
Dr Mike Clark has recently written to all CCG Practice Managers asking
them to make sure their systems show that there is a power of attorney in
place where this has been applied.
The discussion continued into how nationally a review is being conducted
into the mental capacity act and clarification is being sought on what
constitutes deprivation of liberty, particularly following a recent court ruling
on a case which highlighted that current processes and guidance are
insufficient. The local Safeguarding Board is aware of this and will be
discussing the issue at its next meeting. A letter on the subject of the
recent court ruling and its implications will be sent to the Governing Body
members, and a similar letter will be sent to all providers indicating how
the ruling impacts on care. Over the next few weeks a review of a number
of reports of deprivation of liberty will be carried out to sense check how
much local providers understand their responsibilities.
Dr Bowen observed that this is a complex issue and until there is a general
cultural change meaning that training is available and an integral part of
routine development of staff, the CCG is stepping up to the responsibility
of raising awareness where it can.

4.2

Care in NHS hospital compared to private hospital
Sally Rogers asked to make the Governing Body aware of good reports of
patient experience she had recently been personally informed of: patients
having similar operations around the same time under the NHS at two
different hospitals. One went to the Spire Regency Hospital in
Macclesfield and one to Wythenshawe Hospital; both patients had been
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extremely satisfied with their experiences in the hospitals and the quality
care and attention they and their relatives had received from staff.
4.3

Retiring Governing Body Members
Dr Paul Bowen offered thanks to Dr James Milligan and Melanie Lyman, at
the end of their term as members of the Governing Body. Noting that they
have been on the decision making body of the CCG since its inception, he
said he was pleased that the CCG would continue to benefit from their
skills as they continue in an operational capacity.

4.4

There was a request that members of the public observing meetings are
seated where they can see the faces of all the Governing Body members
to maximise the opportunity to hear what is being said.
The meeting closed.
DATE OF NEXT MEETING HELD IN PUBLIC
Wednesday 28 May 1–3 pm at The Hall at Marthall, Sandlebridge
Lane, Marthall, nr Knutsford WA16 7SB
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GOVERNING BODY MEETING
28 May 2014
Report Title

Agenda Item 1.6

Chief Officer Report

Purpose of paper / report
To provide the Governing Body with an update on National, regional and local
developments pertinent to the provision of care in Eastern Cheshire and to
discharging the statutory duties of the CCG.

Key points
Governing Body meeting (in private) – April 2014

 Commissioning of Age Macular Degeneration (AMD) services
Executive Team Update
 Primary Care Proactive Care service
 Medicines Management Investment
 Care Administrator Role
Chief Officer briefing
 Primary Care Co-commissioning
o request for support towards the submission of an expression of interest by the CCG to
take on enhanced powers and responsibility
 NHS England Primary Care Assurance

The Governing Body is asked to:
Approve

Ratify
Endorse

Decide
Note for information

Benefits / value to our population / communities
Improved accessible services for our patients and public

Report Author
Jerry Hawker
Chief Officer

Contributors
Neil Evans
Commissioning Director
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Chie
ef Offic
cer Rep
port
1.

N
NHS Eas
stern Cheshire
C
Clinica
al Com
mmission
ning Grroup (C
CCG)
G
Governing
g Body Meeting (held in
n private
e) – Aprril 2014 – reportt on
decisions
s made

1.1. Commissio
oning of Ag
ge Macula
ar Degenerration (AM
MD) services.
1..1.1. Dr M
Mike Clarkk presented
d a paper on the prroposed re
e-procurem
ment of wett age
maccular dege
eneration ((AMD) serrvices for Eastern C
Cheshire as the cu
urrent
conttract is due
e to end in June 2014
4. He summarised ho
ow the proposal had been
deve
eloped ove
er 12 montths in conju
unction witth local AM
MD service
es and follo
owing
guid
dance from
m the Natio
onal Institu
ute for He
ealth and Care Exce
ellence (NICE),
Royyal College of Ophtha
almologists and extern
nal procure
ement expe
ertise.
1..1.2.

The number o
of patients affected b
by AMD in Eastern Cheshire
C
iss currently over
eople per ye
ear being rreferred intto the
300 with expecctations of an additional 100 pe
servvice in the ffuture.

1..1.3.

The new servvice will be
e fully com
mpliant with
h the latesst best pra
actice guid
dance
inclu
uding the latest rang
ge of NIC
CE-approve
ed drugs a
and will also include
e the
adviice from the Royal College of Ophth
halmologistts on disccontinuatio
on of
treatment (inje
ections) wh
here it is no longer p
providing cllinical bene
efit. Patien
nts no
ger receiving AMD ttreatment will be re
eferred to a loss of vision support
long
servvice.

1..1.4.

The local servvice is currrently comm
missioned from one local priva
ate provide
er. To
mee
et the grow
wing deman
nd for AMD
D services and
a to allow
w patients greater ch
hoice,
n the
the CCG prop
poses to p
procure the
e service from
f
more than one supplier in
futurre.

1..1.5

The
e Governing
g Body:
 endorsed th
he propose
ed approa
ach to proccurement of
o a revise
ed specificcation
and NICE ccomplaint W
Wet Age Re
elated Maccular Degen
neration (A
AMD) service
 noted the a
adoption off the guidance of the Royal College of Ophthalmolo
ogists
egarding a policy of discontinu
uation of trreatment w
when treatm
ment no lo
onger
re
offers impro
ovement in the patien
nt’s conditio
on
ers be required to de
emonstrate
e commitme
ent to provviding
 asked that tthe Provide
en treatment is discon
ntinued
support whe
a
nt of an external
e
procuremen
nt professional to le
ead a
 noted the appointme
obust proce
ess
ro
 agreed that the paperr be taken tto Eastern Cheshire HealthVoicce; and tha
at the
ntroduction of the new service be supporrted with ro
obust communication
ns for
in
patients.
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1.2

CCG Five--year Financial Plan
C
n
1.2.1 The
e Governin
ng Body a
approved tthe propossal to sub
bmit the C
CCG’s five
e-year
financial plan with a defficit for 201
14/15 of £2
2 million which
w
has b
been agree
ed by
NHS
S North / NHS Englland Chesshire Warrington and
d Wirral Arrea Team as a
conttrolled defiicit. It was noted that the subm
mission of tthe plan w
with a deficcit will
1
resu
ult in an E
External Au
udit Section
n 19 referral and tthe likely implicationss are
furth
her scrutinyy from NHS
S England and poten
ntially the p
public and m
media.
1.2.2 The
e Governing
g Body delegated to the Chief Finance Officer
O
the rresubmission of
the 5-year F
Financial P
Plan to NHS Englan
nd, recognizing that the deficcit of
£2 million
m
will remain afte
er minor ad
djustmentss.

2.

Executiv
ve Team Meetings
s - decis
sions ma
ade

2.1

P
Primary Care Proac
ctive Care Service
2
2.1.1
The
e Executive
e Team has provided
d on-going oversight into the de
evelopment and
com
mmissioning
g of the ne
ew Primaryy Care Proa
active Care
e service. T
The service
e is a
key element of the Ca
aring Toge
ether prog
gramme, b
but has re
equired ca
areful
coordination to manage
e the added complexxity arising from the introductio
on by
S England of the new
w National Enhanced
E
or care of p
patients ove
er the
NHS
Service fo
age of 75 yearrs.2
2
2.1.2
Sign
nificant wo
ork is on-g
going with the local GP practtices and with the Local
Med
dical Coun
ncil to fina
alise the service.
s
Further dettails are included in
n the
separate pape
er presente
ed at todayy’s Govern
ning Body on Investm
ment in Priimary
Care services.

2.2

Medicines
M
s Managem
ment
2
2.2.1
At tthe start o
of 2013/14 the CCG entered in
nto an agrreement w
with NHS South
S
Che
eshire CCG
G and NH
HS Vale R
Royal CCG
G to co-ccommission
n at Medicines
Man
nagement service across the three CC
CGs. The service ha
as proven very
succcessful in ensuring effective and consistent presscribing accross the three
CCG
Gs.
2
2.2.2
The
e three CC
CGs have collectivelyy recognised the need to furth
her expand
d the
servvice to imp
prove assurance arou
und NICE prescribing
g, delivery of the 201
14/15
Qua
ality Innova
ation Productivity and Preventiion (QIPP)) initiativess and to fu
urther
deve
elop the P
Prescribing
g Formularry3 used b
by the mem
mber practtices acrosss all
thre
ee CCGs.
2
2.2.3
The
e Executive
e team ap
pproved an
n additiona
al funding of £50K to supporrt the
Med
dicines Management service.

1

http://www
w.audit-commisssion.gov.uk/wp--content/uploadss/2013/07/20130
0717-Auditing-th
he-Accounts-He
ealth-2012-13-v14-FINAL-FOR-PUBLISHIN
NG.pdf Page 8 section 28
2
https://w
www.gov.uk/government/upload
ds/system/upload
ds/attachment_d
data/file/304139
9/Transforming_
_primary_care.pdf
3
http://ww
ww.easternchesh
hireccg.nhs.uk/d
downloads/publiications/medicin
nes-managemen
nt/Local_Health_
_Economy_Form
mulary.pdf
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2.3

Care Adm
C
ministrator Post
2
2.3.1
As part
p
of the 2013/14 P
Primary Ca
are Commissioning for
f Quality and Innovvation
(QU
UIIN) paym
ment, GP practice p
peer group
ps had th
he opportu
unity to su
ubmit
business cases for invvestment in their p
peer group
p area in line with
h the
of the new Neighbourrhood Tea
ams.
deve
elopment o
2
2.3.2
The
e Executive
e team ap
pproved a business case submitted by the BollingtonDisley-Poynton Locality Peer Group for a carre administtrator working on beh
half of
p
in
n the peer group at a cost of £31,000.
£
T
The care ad
dministrato
or will
all practices
support the ma
anagemen
nt of high risk patientss who are in
i and out of hospitall, and
facillitate the
e relationship with
h discharrge liaiso
on, ward sisters and
Multti-Disciplinary Teamss.
2
2.3.3
The
e decision to procee
ed with the
e one-yea
ar pilot refflected the
e quality of
o the
business case and the
e significa
ant effort invested b
by the Bo
ollington-DisleyPoyynton Peer Group.
2
2.3.4
The
e Transform
mation Dire
ectorate ha
as been tassked with ffinalising th
he specificcation
and sharing it with th
he other four Loca
ality peer groups to
o seek fu
urther
expressions off interest in
n the role.

3.

Chief Offficer Brie
efing

3.1

Primary C
P
Care Co-Co
ommission
ning
3
3.1.1
Eng
gland’s 211
1 clinicallyy-led local Clinical C
Commission
ning Group
ps will gett new
pow
wers to imp
prove loca
al health se
ervices un
nder a new
w commisssioning initiative
announced in May by NH
HS England Chief Exxecutive Sim
mon Steve
ens.
3
3.1.2
The
e proposal will mean giving loca
al CCGs g
greater influence ove
er the way NHS
fund
ding is bein
ng invested for their local popu
ulations. As
A well as new
n
mode
els for
prim
mary care, NHS Englland will b
be taking a hard lookk at how CCGs
C
can have
morre impact o
on NHS England’s specialised ccommission
ning activities.
3
3.1.3
The
e first step will
w be to in
nvite those
e CCGs tha
at are intere
ested in an
n expanded
d role
in primary carre to come forward and show how
h
new po
owers wou
uld enable them
to d
drive up the
e quality o
of care, cutt health ine
equalities in primary care, and help
put their local NHS on a sustainable path for the next fivve years an
nd beyond.
3
3.1.4
NHS
S Eastern Cheshire CCG has already ta
aken a ve
ery proactivve approach to
working with N
NHS Engla
and both wiith respectt to improviing quality in primaryy care
and through the
t
Caring
g Togetherr transform
mation programme a
and therefo
ore a
missioning would be a natural progressio
on of the work
movve towardss co-comm
currrently unde
erway.
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3
3.1.5
NHS
S England has writte
en to all CC
CGs in En
ngland with
h details off how to su
ubmit
expressions o
of interest in taking on
n enhance
ed powers a
and respon
nsibilities tto commission prrimary care
e.
com
3
3.1.6
App
plications will
w need to
o describe the additio
onal powerrs and responsibilitie
es the
CCG
G would likke to assum
me. They w
will need to meet a n
number of tests, inclu
uding
show
wing they will help advance
a
ca
are integrattion, raise standardss and cut h
health
ineq
qualities in primary ca
are.
3
3.1.7
App
plications w
will also ne
eed to sho
ow how they will ensure transsparent and
d fair
gove
ernance - with a co
ontinuing o
oversight ro
ole for NH
HS England to safeg
guard
against confliccts of intere
est – all in the contexxt of the CCG’s five-yyear plan ffor its
al NHS servvices.
loca
3
3.1.8
FOR
R APPRO
OVAL: Th
he CCG Governing
G
o approve
e the
Body is asked to
inte
ention of the CCG to
o enter an expressio
on of interrest to NH
HS England, by
Jun
ne 2014, iin taking on enha
anced pow
wers and responsibilities to
o cocom
mmission primary
p
ca
are.
3
3.1.9
FOR
R APPROV
VAL: The CCG Gove
erning Bo
ody is aske
ed to apprrove deleg
gated
auth
hority to the Chief O
Officer to p
progress discussio
d
ns on beh
half of the CCG
with
h the locall Area Tea
am of NHS England.
3
3.1.9
It iss importantt to note that the fin
nal decision
n to proce
eed with prrimary care
e cocom
mmissioning
g would b
be subject to presen
nting a further pape
er to the CCG
Govverning Body and recceiving its a
approval, a
as well as receiving a
approval by
b the
Boa
ard of NHS England.
3.2

Primary C
P
Care Assurrance
3
3.2.1
In March
M
2014
4 NHS Eng
gland prod
duced new guidance4 on primary medical care
funcctions dele
egated to CCGs. Th
he guidance confirm
med the tw
wo main a
areas
dele
egated to C
CCGs; nam
mely:
 arranging off GP Inform
mation Tecchnology se
ervices in ttheir area
 co
ommission
ning of out--of-hours primary med
dical care services
s
fo
or their area
a.
3
3.2.2
NHS
S England Area team
ms are req
quired to a
assure them
mselves th
hat CCGs have
apprropriate arrrangements in place
e for assurring the quality and safety
s
of out-ofhourrs servicess that any conflicts of
o interest have been
n appropria
ately mana
aged,
and that servicces have been procurred approp
priately.
3
3.2.3
CCG
Gs are req
quired to report to N
NHS England regardiing the exxercise of these
t
funcctions.

4

http://www
w.england.nhs.u
uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/03
3/pri-med-care-cccg-14.pdf
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3
3.2.4
In lin
ne with the
e reporting
g guidance
e, NHS Eastern Chesshire CCG
G has subm
mitted
the ffollowing statements
s
to NHS En
ngland:
“The
e Out of H
Hours Servvice in Easstern Chesshire is prrovided byy East Che
eshire
NHS
S Trust. This
T
service
e is monito
ored throug
gh monthly contract q
quality mee
etings
with
h the Proviider. Thiss meeting iis led by tthe CCG C
Clinical Qu
uality Lead
d and
Dire
ector of Nu
ursing, Pe
erformance and Qua
ality Lead from the P
Provider. This
apprroach inclu
udes review of a riskk assessm
ment using data (RAD
DaR) as we
ell as
any complaintss or inciden
nts reporte
ed about the service.””
udit Commiission hass used Easstern Chesshire as on
ne of
‘Durring 2013-14 the Au
theirr review ssites for h
how the ou
ut of hourrs service contract p
performance is
mon
nitored and
d we have a
also complleted their b
benchmarkking surveyy
‘The
e most sig
gnificant isssue highlig
ghted durin
ng the yea
ar has rela
ated to cap
pacity
conccerns caussed by diffficulties reccruiting suffficient perrsonnel to cover all shifts.
s
The Provider h
has assure
ed the Com
mmissionerr of the actitions taken to address this
issu
ue.
‘The
e CCG hass a GP incidents repo
orting systtem establiished, acro
oss all servvices,
whicch allows G
GPs to info
form the CCG of anyy issues wh
which have occurred. The
CCG
G then folllows throu
ugh on the
ese issues in order to improve
e the quallity of
servvices.
‘We are pleassed to rep
port that th
he OOH sservice in Eastern C
Cheshire iss well
arded and the nation
nal patient survey hig
ghlights pe
erformance
e is significcantly
rega
bette
er than the
e national a
average accross all ind
dicators.”

4.

Access to furthe
er inform
mation

4.1

For furthe
er informatiion relating
g to this rep
port contacct:

Name
e
Desig
gnation
Date
Telephone
Email

Jerry Haw
wker
Chief Offiicer
16 May 2014
01625 66
63764
jerry.hawker@nhs.n
net
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Gove
ernance
e
Priorr Committtee Approval / Liink to oth
her Committees
Goverrning Body Meeting h
held in priva
ate – April 2014
Execu
utive Team Meetings April and M
May 2014

CCG Health N
Needs Prriorities a
addresse
ed by this
s report – please
e indicate
e
To pro
otect our citizens from
m harm
To make care more
e integrate
ed & co- 

To pre
event alcoh
hol related harm

To
prevent
prema
aturely

people

dying



ordinated
To ensure
e high qu
uality and effective
mental health servicces are available to 
all
To addre
ess inequa
alities acrross our 
ttowns and villages

CCG 2013/14
4 Annual Plan prrogramm
me of work this rreport is linked tto –
pleas
se indica
ate
Caring
g Togetherr
Q
Quality Imp
provement


Menta
al Health & Alcohol
O
Other

Key IImplications of th
his reporrt – pleas
se indicate
Strategic
C
Consultatio
on & Engag
gement

Financce
E
Equality

Qualityy & Patientt Experiencce
L
Legal





Staff / Workforce
e

CCG Values s
supporte
ed by this
s report – please indicate
e
Valuin
ng People
IInnovation

Workin
ng Togethe
er
Q
Quality

Investting Responsibly





NHS Constitu
ution Values supp
ported by
y this rep
port – ple
ease indicate
Workin
ng togethe
er for patien
nts
Compassio
on

Respe
ect and dignity
Improving lives

Comm
mitment to q
quality of ccare
Everyone counts
c
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This pa
age has been left blan
nk intention
nally

GOVERNING BODY MEETING
28 May 2014
Paper Title

Agenda Item 2.1

NHS Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning
Group Annual Report and Accounts 2013-2014

Purpose of paper / report
This paper introduces to the Governing Body the final draft of first Annual Report and
Accounts of the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG).

Key points


All CCGs are required to publish annually a suite of documents outlining the
performance of the organisation in the previous year. The key elements are:
 Annual Report, including Remuneration Report;
 Statements by the membership, Accountable Officer, including Annual Governance
Statement
 Annual Accounts



The Governing Body is required to review and approval the final draft version and take
into account external audit opinion.

The Governing Body is asked to:
Approve

Ratify
Endorse

Decide
Note for information

Benefits / value to our population / communities
The annual report and accounts is the key way in which CCGs demonstrate their effective
stewardship of public money and discharge their accountability to tax payers.

Report Author
Jerry Hawker
Chief Officer

Contributors
Matthew Cunningham
Corporate Services Manager

Niall O’Gara
Technical Accountant
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NHS Easte
ern Ches
shire Cllinical C
Commis
ssioning
g Group
p Annua
al
Report and
d Accou
unts 2013-2014
4
1.

Executive S
Summary
y

1.1

Clin
nical Comm
missioning Groups (C
CCGs) have
e a statutory duty1 to produce a
an annual report
r
and
d accounts.

1.2

The
e annual re
eport and accounts
a
iss the key way
w in whicch CCGs d
demonstratte their effe
ective
stew
wardship o
of public mo
oney and d
discharge ttheir accou
untability to
o tax payerss.

1.3

The
e annual re
eport and a
accounts iss a single document
d
w
which shou
uld present the story o
of the
CCG’s activitiies during the previous financia
al year end
ding 31st March
M
2014
4. The form
m and
con
ntent of the
e annual re
eport and a
accounts iss directed b
by NHS En
ngland.2 CC
CGs must meet
the requireme
ents of the
e Departme
ent of Hea
alth’s manu
ual for acccounts (MfA
A).3 In practice,
ed by follow
wing NHS England’s annual rep
porting guid
dance (ARG).4
thiss is achieve

1.4







The
e CCG’s an
nnual report and acco
ounts mustt contain:
an annual rep
port
a sttatement o
of the accou
untable offficer’s responsibilitiess
a governance
e statementt
four primary fiinancial sta
atements
notes to the a
accounts
a re
eport and o
opinion from
m an indep
pendent au
uditor

1.5

It iss the respo
onsibility off the CCG’s Accounttable Office
er to prepa
are the annual reporrt and
acccounts.

1.6

In approving
a
tthe annual report and
d accountss, the mem
mbers of the
e Governin
ng Body co
onfirm
thatt they are satisfied they prese
ent the CC
CG’s year in an app
propriate, ccomprehen
nsive,
bala
anced and coherent w
way.

1.7

September 2014 each CCG mu
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al report and
a
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nts to
Beffore 30th S
stakkeholders, including members
m
o
of the public, at an an
nnual gene
eral meeting
g.

2.

Re
ecommen
ndation(s
s)

2.1



The
e Governin
ng Body is a
asked:
note external audit opiniion
prove the fiinal draft fo
or publication
app

1

2
3

Paragraph 17 of Schedule 2 of the Health and Social Care
e Act 2012 (‘the 2012 Act’).

http://ww
ww.england.nh
hs.uk/wp‐conttent/uploads//2013/03/b‐directions‐ccgs.pdf

www.info.do
oh.gov.uk/doh/fiinman.nsf/4db79
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0256728004f9d6b/af01c57de54
465a5480257b7
7c0054c281?Op
penDocument
4
www.englan
nd.nhs.uk/resou
urces/resources--for-ccgs

NHS ECCC
CG Governin
ng Body Mee
eting 28th Mayy 2014

A
Agenda Item 2.1

3.
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mmendattion(s)

3.1

CCGs have a statutoryy duty to produce
p
an
n annual rreport and accounts,, publish itt and
mmunicate its publica
ation to members of th
he public a
and key sta
akeholders.
com

4.

Peer Group
p Area / Town
T
Are
ea Affectted

4.1

All.

5.

Po
opulation Affected
d

5.1

All Eastern Ch
heshire ressidents

6.

Co
ontext

6.1

Thiss is the first Annu
ual Reporrt and Acccounts for NHS Eastern Ch
heshire Clinical
Com
mmissionin
ng Group a
as a statuto
ory NHS bo
ody.

7.

nance
Fin

7.1

The
e Annual R
Report and
d Accountss presents the final vview of the
e CCG’s a
achievemen
nts in
201
13/14.

8.

Qu
uality and
d Patientt Experience

8.1

The
e Annual R
Report and Accounts provides a statement from the CCG on ho
ow it is me
eeting
its d
duties arou
und quality and patien
nt experien
nce.

9.

Co
onsultatio
on and E
Engagement (Public/Patien
nt/Carer/C
Clinical/Sttaff)

9.1

Sta
aff and ourr member practices have been consulte
ed in the p
production of this An
nnual
Rep
port and Acccounts.

10.

Equality

10.1

The
e Annual R
Report and Accounts provides a statementt from the C
CCG on ho
ow it is mee
eting
its P
Public Secctor Duty.

11.

Leg
gal

11.1

The
e Annual R
Report and Accounts provides evidence that addressses a numb
ber of key legal
duties require
ed of the CC
CG.

12.

Co
ommunic
cation

12.1

The
e Annual R
Report and Accounts w
will be pub
blic docume
ents and th
herefore ne
eed to be
presented in a
an accessible format for patientts and care
ers.

12.2

on approva
al of the Go
overning Body, the A
Annual Report and Acccounts willl be formattted
Upo
and
d designed to further improve itss accessibility and rea
adability.

13.

Ba
ackgroun
nd and Options

13.1

CCGs have a statutory requireme
ent to prepare an ann
nual reportt which setts out how
w they
havve discharg
ged their duties in the
e previous financial yyear. NHS England has directed
d that
CCGs must ccomply witth its ARG
G when pre
eparing the
eir annual reports. W
Whilst the ARG
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prescribes the
e contentss of the an
nnual repo
ort, it is forr each CC
CG to decid
de how be
est to
present that in
nformation in order to
o tell the sto
ory of theirr year.
13.2

The
e annual re
eport consists of seve
eral sub-rep
ports:
 M
Member prractices’ inttroduction
 T
The strateg
gic report
 T
The members’ report
 T
The remuneration rep
port

13.3

ctices Intrroduction.. This is an
n independ
dent reportt produced
d collective
ely by
Member Prac
ership of th
he CCG. Th
he contentt of the rep
port is
the GP practicces which make up tthe membe
actices to decide
d
them
mselves.
for the GP pra

13.4

port and m
members’ report. Th
he contentss of these reports arre based on the
Strategic rep
ns 414A, C and D a
and section 416 of the
t
Compa
anies Act 2006
requirements of section
ored to be relevant tto CCGs. T
The strateg
gic report should sta
and alone but can incclude
tailo
sum
mmarised information
i
n cross refferenced to other pa
arts of the annual re
eport. The ARG
setss out the re
equired con
ntent for th
he strategicc report and
d the mem
mbers’ report.

13.5

muneratio
on report. The remun
neration re
eport is a d
disclosure o
of paymen
nts made by
b the
Rem
CCG to all m
members o
of its Gove
erning Bod
dy and ‘council of m
members’ (G
GPs, Clinicians
worrking for tthe CCG). The repo
ort covers everyone who has been a m
member of
o the
Govverning Bo
ody or coun
ncil of mem
mbers durin
ng the finan
ncial year and the prior year, evven if
not for the full period. It is often tthe part off the annua
al report and accoun
nts subjectted to
mosst public sccrutiny.

13.6

The
ere are two
o parts to the remun
neration rep
port. The ffirst, remun
neration co
ommittee report
r
and
d the remu
uneration p
policy, is not subject to audit, a
although th
he auditor does read
d it to
asssess its co
onsistency with othe
er knowled
dge gained
d from the
e audit. Th
he second
d, the
rem
muneration tables, is audited by
b the exte
ernal audito
or and rep
ported on in the aud
ditor’s
report.

13.7

Gov
vernance Statemen
nt. The govvernance sstatement reflects the
e arrangem
ments the CCG
hass put in pla
ace to manage and mitigate th
he risks th
hat it faced
d througho
out the fina
ancial
yea
ar. The govvernance sstatement should givve the read
der a clearr sense of the risks w
which
face
ed the CC
CG and the controlls in place to manage them. Whilst th
he govern
nance
stattement hass been pre
epared by tthe CCG at the end o
of the yearr, it has bee
en built up from
processes designed, run
n and teste
ed througho
out the yea
ar.

13.8

atement off Accounta
able Office
er’s Respo
onsibilities
s. The CCG
G is requirred by statu
ute to
Sta
havve an acco
ountable offficer. The accountab
ble officer is responssible for en
nsuring tha
at the
CCG exercise
es its functtions in a w
way which provides g
good value
e for mone
ey and com
mplies
h its obligations to:
with
 E
Ensure tha
at the regularity and propriety
p
o
of expenditture is disccharged – tthis meanss that
m
money sho
ould only b
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hich the CCG has th
he power to
o spend m
money
o
on
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 K
Keep prope
er accounting recordss
 P
Prepare itss annual acccounts in a
accordance
e with the directions
d
o NHS En
of
ngland
 S
Safeguard the CCG’ss assets.
13.9 The
e accounta
able officer must sig
gn a statement whicch says th
hat to the best of hiis/her
abillities theyy have disscharged these ressponsibilitie
es. This responsibility canno
ot be
dele
egated to a
any other member
m
of the Goverrning Body.
ndependen
nt Audito
or’s Repo
ort. The CCG’s
C
acccounts m
must be a
audited byy an
13.10 In
independentt external auditor w
who is currrently app
pointed byy the Audit Commisssion.
ollowing their work, the auditor signs a fo
ormal reporrt which the
e CCG mu
ust include in its
Fo
an
nnual report and acco
ounts.
13.11 Th
he Financ
cial Statem
ments. Th
he accoun
nts (or financial statements) consist off four
prrimary state
ements:
 A stateme
ent of comp
prehensive
e net expen
nditure
 A stateme
ent of finan
ncial positio
on
 A stateme
ent of chan
nges in taxp
payer’s equity
 A stateme
ent of cash
h flows.
13.12 Th
hese are a
accompanie
ed by note
es to the accounts
a
w
which proviide furtherr informatio
on on
the financial activities o
of the CCG
G. The acco
ounts musst include ccomparative
e figures fo
or the
prrior year (w
where posssible) to sh
how how th
he CCG’s financial p
position hass changed year
on
n year.
13.13 De
etailed guiidance on the form and conte
ent of the accounts is include
ed in the ARG
prrepared by NHS Englland.
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Forr further infformation rrelating to tthis report ccontact:
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Chief Office
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Foreword
It is with great pleasure that I present the Annual Report
and Accounts 2013-2014 for NHS Eastern Cheshire
Clinical Commissioning Group – the first time that we have
published such a report.

Dr Paul Bowen
GP Chair

On the 1st April 2014 we celebrated our first year as a
statutory NHS body. It has been an extremely challenging
but enjoyable year where we have had to navigate through
an ever changing and developing health and care
environment, continue to meet our constitutional and
statutory duties whilst also planning how we intend to
radically transform how health and care is delivered in
Eastern Cheshire so as to meet future need, maintain high
quality services and ensure a financially sustainable health
and care economy.

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 gave added impetus and power to local
clinicians to inform, influence, shape and lead the design of health and care services
so as to best meet the needs of our patients. During the development of the CCG
and over the last year I have continued to be amazed and draw strength and
encouragement from the dedication my collaborators in health – those working in
primary care, secondary care, community care , social care, the third sector and our
public - have given to help work towards achieving this. The vision of the CCG is
“inspiring better health and wellbeing”. I have been inspired. Our partners have been
inspired. Our public have been inspired.
Despite the financial pressures and challenges we face here in Eastern Cheshire, we
have managed our finances successfully and delivered a small but significant
surplus of £204,000 thus achieving our financial duties. These challenges will only
increase over the next five years which is why the CCG and its partners have driven
and supported our Caring Together transformation programme.
The level of change envisaged by the Caring Together programme is not only
required so as to improve the quality of services available to residents of Eastern
Cheshire - but is a key part to enable us to achieve a financial sustainability – not
just for the CCG but for the whole health and care economy in Eastern Cheshire.
This is not going to be easy and it will not be based on short term fixes. Many difficult
decisions will have to be made but those decisions will only be made through being
informed by everyone who is interested in and values having health and wellbeing
services that are the best possible for Eastern Cheshire.
I am proud of the work that the CCG has completed over the last year and this report
demonstrates many of the successes.
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1.

Member Practice Introduction

The member practices of Eastern Cheshire had been very active in helping to shape the
structure and strategy of NHS Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) even
before it came in to being in April 2013. The hearts and minds of the members have been
brought together since 2012/13 through the CCG in shadow format. This has been
challenging and at times difficult, but also rewarding and productive.
There is a local drive to shape care and commissioning for our population. The member
practices are grouped as peer groups around town localities where local priorities can help
shape local strategy as well as steer wider CCG strategic development. This has allowed
practices to have greater influence, as smaller town groups, on local needs and address
inequalities and - through the town representatives to the Governing Body - on wider
strategic issues and oversight.
Through this model of town based care we are better able to review strategic needs and
engage with our neighbourhoods/communities. This has involved wider discussion with
social care, community care, secondary care and third sector organisations as well as
primary care providers. The member practices have a pivotal role in informing these
discussions at practice and neighbourhood levels and it allows engagement of key
individuals working in the neighbourhoods including patients themselves.
In a time of increasing health and social care pressures, the members have seized every
opportunity to engage with and challenge the CCG's commitment to patient care, through
commissioning, whilst embracing the need for change.
Through our CQUIN1 we have encouraged activation and involvement by all member
practices and stakeholders. Members are in a position to be ahead of the game in creating
an environment for proactive care to flourish and be taken forward the principles of
integration effectively and enthusiastically.
A significant part of this work has been at the heart of our Caring Together programme,
which will see us working in a far more integrated and proactive way across our health and
social care economy. Through the Caring Together Programme we have taken the
opportunity, as member practices to, support individuals to manage their health and
wellbeing. This has been a local priority across the CCG, to increase the proportion of
people feeling supported – empowered - to manage their condition and has been achieved
through the embedding of shared decision making and supported self management. Member
practices, through peer groups, have been supportive and active in encouraging local
leadership to make this a reality.
This has only been possible with the hard work of all involved. The ‘empowered person’ is at
the very centre of what we do and all our commissioning efforts would come to nothing if this
were not the case. As member practices we are proud of our strong clinical and patient
(Empowered Person) focus and strive to maintain this moving into a changing and better
future.

General Practice Locality Peer Group Leads
Dr Mike Clark, Macclesfield
Dr Jennifer Lawn, Knutsford
Dr James Milligan, Alderley Edge, Chelford, Handforth and Wilmslow Group
Melanie Lyman, Congleton and Holmes Chapel
Angela Wales, Bollington, Disley and Poynton
1

CQUIN - Commissioning Quality and Innovation
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2.

Strateg
gic Rep
port

The acccounts in this reportt are the ffirst produc
ced by NH
HS Eastern Cheshire Clinical
Commisssioning Grroup (CCG)) as a statuttory body and have be
een prepareed under a direction
d
issued by NHS England (forrmerly NHS
S Commissiioning Boarrd) under thhe National Health
Service
e Act 2006 (as amend
ded). The m
main factors
s likely to affect
a
the fuuture development,
perform
mance and position
p
of our
o businesss are set ou
ut throughou
ut this reporrt.
The CC
CG was esta
ablished an
nd became operational as a statuttory NHS B
Body on the 1st April
2013 fo
ollowing 12 months of operation
o
in
n shadow fo
orm. Previo
ously the poopulation of Eastern
Cheshirre had been
n served by
y the Centra
al and Easte
ern Cheshire Primary C
Care Trust.
The CC
CG was lice
enced with one condit ion related to the appointment off a seconda
ary care
doctor tto the Gove
erning Body
y (Criteria 1
1.3B 14C). The CCG was able too provide evidence
e
that all conditions had been resolved a
and NHS England con
nfirmed thatt the condittion had
been re
esolved and
d closed in July
J
2013.2

2.1

Our membership

NHS Ea
astern Chesshire CCG is a membe
ership organisation ma
ade up of 233 Eastern Cheshire
C
based G
GP practice
es, working within five l ocalities, as
s shown in Figure Onee.

Figure
e One

2

https://ww
ww.easternchesshireccg.nhs.uk
k/Downloads/Ab
bout-Us/2013072
22_EasternChe
eshire_FullAuth%
%20Letter.pdf
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Our five localities, known as General Practice Locality Peer Groups, are:
 Alderley Edge, Chelford, Handforth, and Wilmslow
 Bollington, Disley, and Poynton
 Congleton and Holmes Chapel
 Knutsford
 Macclesfield
The main purpose of the CCG is to commission (buy) the highest quality of health care
services within available funds, and monitor the quality of these services. We are
responsible for commissioning health services to meet all the reasonable requirements of
our local population, with the exception of certain services commissioned directly by NHS
England, health improvement services commissioned by Cheshire East Council, and health
protection and promotion services provided by Public Health England.
Our main commissioning responsibilities include:
 elective hospital care
 rehabilitation care
 urgent and emergency care, including GP Out of Hours and NHS 111
 most community health services
 mental health and learning disability services
 prescribing and medicine optimisation
 emergency and patient transport ambulance services
 NHS continuing healthcare and NHS funded nursing care
We also have the responsibility for commissioning emergency and urgent care services for
the population within our boundaries as well as for commissioning services for any
unregistered patients who live in our area.

Our statutory responsibilities
The CCG’s full statutory responsibilities are detailed within its constitution.3 The main
responsibilities include:
 upholding the NHS Constitution,4 CCG Constitution and governance standards
 quality assurance and quality improvement of commissioned services
 quality improvement of GP services in partnership with NHS England
 safeguarding children and vulnerable adults
 reducing health inequalities
 Public Sector Equality Duty
 public involvement in CCG and promotion of choice
 training, innovation and research
 environmental sustainability
 delivering on relevant areas of the Governments mandate to NHS England and the NHS
England planning guidance ‘Everyone Counts’5
 achieving financial balance
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG is currently meeting its statutory duties.

2.2

Our structure

The CCG currently employs 40 staff who work alongside the clinicians and staff of the 23
practices to commission, plan and monitor health services. At the end of March 2014 NHS
Eastern Cheshire CCG had 26 Female staff which equates to 65% of the workforce and of
3

http://www.easterncheshireccg.nhs.uk/downloads/publications/Strategies/ECCCGConstitution1.3March14.pdf
http://www.nhs.uk/choiceintheNHS/Rightsandpledges/NHSConstitution/Pages/Overview.aspx
5
http://www.england.nhs.uk/everyonecounts/
4
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these 21 were Full Time and five were Part Time. There were also 14 Male staff which
equates to 35% of the workforce and of these nine were Full Time and five were Part Time.
The CCG Governing Body has eight male members, which equates to 57% of the
membership of the Governing Body. There are six female members, which equates to 43%
of the membership of the Governing Body. The CCG has two Very Senior Managers, both
are male.
Throughout 2013/14 staff have been aligned to teams to deliver on the Corporate, Clinical,
Business and Finance functions and requirements of the CCG. The management of the
CCG was structured around these teams. At the latter end of 2013/14 it became necessary
to review and strengthen the CCG Organisation to meet the increasing scale of the
transformation challenge facing the local health economy. These include:
 Caring Together6 – Our local transformation programme for improving care across the
system for the whole population of Eastern Cheshire
 Connecting Care across Cheshire7 – NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG together with its
partner CCG’s in Cheshire and the two Local Authorities were successful in becoming a
national integrated care pioneer - one of only 14 nationally
 Healthier Together8 – The CCG is an associate to the Greater Manchester Healthier
Together transformation programme which is aiming raise standards of hospital care and
integrated care across Manchester
 South Sector Challenged Health Economy – An initiative sponsored by NHS England,
Monitor and the NHS Trust Development Authority to develop plans to support the
transformation of services across Eastern Cheshire, Stockport, South Manchester and
Tameside and Glossop with a particular focus on establishing long term sustainable acute
care
An assessment of the current skill base and capacity of the CCG workforce, has resulted in
the CCG strengthening its core commissioning team and establishing a Transformation
Directorate to support the CCG and the Governing Body in leading and delivering these
substantial transformation programmes.
The CCG, in addition, has developed a successful partnership with McKinsey9 and Carnell
Farrar LLP10 to support its transformation work and contracted with the Cheshire and
Merseyside Commissioning Support Service11 for a limited number of services that have
supported the CCG in the delivery of its objectives and day to day operations.

2.3

Vision and Values

The vision of the CCG “inspiring better health and wellbeing” is a central tenet of its
Constitution. It shapes the direction and behaviour of the CCG, its membership and its staff.
This vision is embedded in all that we do and underpins all of the commissioning and
business decisions that we undertake on behalf of our population. Our way of working is also
guided by and measured against the values and principles of the CCG:

2.4

Values

 valuing people
 working together
 investing responsibly

 innovative
 quality

6

http://www.caringtogether.info
https://www.easterncheshireccg.nhs.uk/About-Us/integration.htm
8
https://healthiertogethergm.nhs.uk/
9
http://www.mckinsey.com
10
http://carnallfarrar.com
11
https://www.cheshiremerseysidecsu.nhs.uk/
7
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2.5






Principles

clinical leadership
local experts in health needs and improving health outcomes
local leadership and community engagement
expertise in local provider relations and quality improvement
local assurance in finance, performance and governance

2.6

Strategic Objectives

Our strategic objectives are:
 to lead the development of a shared vision for the health and social care economy
 to use the knowledge and experience of clinicians and managers to improve care
 to work effectively with our members
 to place patients at the centre of our commissioning decisions
 to commission safe, effective care that continues to improve patient experience
 to continue to develop the effectiveness of the organisation
 to ensure financial sustainability for the health economy

2.7

Working in partnership

The CCG is a major partner with Cheshire East Council and neighbouring CCG’s (such as
NHS South Cheshire CCG) in local (and sub-regional) work to improve both the health of
and the care provided to the population of Eastern Cheshire. Examples include the
successful achievement of submitting and being identified as one of 14 Integrated Care
Pioneer sites within England, development of the Better Care Fund Plan12 and the
development of the Joint Commissioning Board.
The CCG is a statutory member of the Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board, with the
CCG GP Chair being the deputy Chair of the Board. Through its membership of the Health
and Wellbeing Board the CCG is responsible for the production and use of the Cheshire
East Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA).13 The information and priorities identified by
the JSNA inform the commissioning intentions and decisions of the CCG and were
instrumental in helping us to determine our priorities for 2013/14 and for 2014/15. The CCG
has also continued to provided funding to Community Voluntary Services Cheshire East to
undertake engagement work with the voluntary sector to help inform the JSNA through the
qualitative experiences of the this sector.
The CCG, and its partners on the Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board, has also been
responsible for the production of the Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Strategy
2013/14.14 The CCG has influenced and contributes in its day to day operation and strategic
delivery to the priorities of the strategy, which are:
Outcome One – starting and developing well
Children and young people have the best start in life; they and their families or carers are
supported to feel healthy and safe, reach their full potential and are able to feel part of
where they live and involved in the services they receive
Outcome Two – working and living well
Driving out the causes of poor health and wellbeing ensuring that all have the same
opportunities to work and live well and reducing the gap in life expectancy that exists
between different parts of the Borough
Outcome Three – ageing well
Enabling older people to live healthier and more active lives for longer
12

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/better-care-fund
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/jsna
14
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/pdf/Health_and_Wellbeing_Strategy.pdf
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The CCG has encouraged and supported the development of Eastern Cheshire Community
HealthVoice, the public/patient reference group for the CCG and which is a formal advisory
committee to the CCG Governing Body. Members of this group play a proactive part in the
development of CCG policies and strategies, have been instrumental in the prioritisation of
the CCG commissioning intentions and provide public/patient represention on a variety of
CCG meetings and groups, such as the Urgent Care Working Group, Caring Together Care
Model Design Groups.

2.8

Our area

Eastern Cheshire is located in the North West of England and includes towns such as
Macclesfield, Knutsford, Wilmslow, Poynton and Congleton as well as many villages and
rural areas. It has a population of 201,000 and most local people are classed as ‘white
British’. The CCG area has 53% of the population of Cheshire East Borough Council. With
NHS South Cheshire CCG, the two CCG’s are co-terminous with the boundaries of the
Council.
Eastern Cheshire has the fastest ageing population in the North West15 with more than one
in five people being over 65 (Figure Two). This ratio is higher than the national average, and
will become nearer to one in four people by 2021.16 The number of very elderly people is
growing even more rapidly, with a higher estimated average annual growth rate when
compared to England (2.7% vs. 2.3%).

Figure Two

Although deprivation levels in Eastern Cheshire are lower than the national average, 4.5% of
local people live in a Lower Super Output Area (LSOA) that is in the 20% most deprived in
England. People living in these more deprived areas experience worse health than those
living in those that are in the least deprived, and there are some startling differences. For
example, a woman living in Macclesfield Town South LSOA is likely to die almost 13 years
15
16

Cheshire East Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Sep 2012, population projections, 2010
21% vs. 18% 2011, 23 % in 2021, Office for National Statistics
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earlier tthan a wom
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(Figure Three).
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e Three
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2.10

Access to services

In Eastern Cheshire there are 38 Pharmacies, 42 Dentists and 48 Opticians. There is one
District General Hospital in Macclesfield and two community hospitals (Congleton and
Knutsford). The hospitals and community health services (e.g. District Nurses who visit
patients in their homes) are managed by East Cheshire NHS Trust. The population in the
north of the CCG also access hospital services across Greater Manchester. Mental health
services are managed by the Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust.
The proximity of Eastern Cheshire to Greater Manchester provides the Eastern Cheshire
population with significant access and choice of general acute services and access to a
range of specialist care providers. There is already an innovative model of providing
specialist services locally with larger, specialist hospitals like The Christie Hospital NHS
Foundation Trust enabling chemotherapy to be administered at East Cheshire NHS Trust,
and a number of other services such as:
Mid Cheshire Hospitals NHS Foundation
Trust
Ophthalmology
Diabetes
Pathology

University Hospital South Manchester
NHS Foundation Trust
Vascular Services
Oral Surgery
Ear, Nose and Throat

Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust
Neurosurgery
Neurology

Stockport NHS Foundation Trust
Urology
Orthodontics

Some Specialist Paediatric Services are also delivered by Alder Hey Children’s NHS
Foundation Trust Hospital or Central Manchester University Hospitals NHS Foundation
Trust. It is also not unusual for patients to travel to other hospitals like The Christie, or even
further afield for specialist services or access to medical or surgical specialists
The CCG has a commitment to ensuring an active provider market seeking to secure the
highest quality of care whilst recognising the need to ensure local access to services
commensurate with an ageing population.
For the populations of NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG, and the neighbouring NHS South
Cheshire CCG, local authority services, including Children, Families and Adult social care,
are provided in the main by Cheshire East Council.

2.11

Forward view - Transforming Care in Eastern Cheshire

People now live for longer in Eastern Cheshire than they have ever done before which is a
cause for celebration. An ageing population is also a hugely significant challenge because
older people are more likely to develop long term conditions such as diabetes, heart disease
and breathing difficulties, and are more at risk of strokes, cancer and other health problems18
– which all means people tend to need more care and more treatment as they get older.
There are over 2,000 people in nursing homes in Eastern Cheshire, up from 1,500 in 200119
and national data suggests more than half of people aged over 60 have at least one long
term health condition.20 For example, an ageing population means increasing incidence of
18

Karen Barnett, Stewart W Mercer, Michael Norbury, Graham Watt, Sally Wyke, Bruce Guthrie: Epidemiology of
multimorbidity and implications for healthcare, research, and medical education: A cross-sectional study, The Lancet, Volume
380, Issue 9836, Pages 37 - 43, 7 July 2012
19
Communal establishments residents 2001/2011
20
rd
GP practice profiles 2011; DH Long term conditions compendium of information, 3 edition (58%)

12

dementia – there are already 1,545 people in Eastern Cheshire with dementia, a figure set to
double by 203021 – and it is believed that the real scale of this condition could be almost
twice as large as those figures, with up to half of those actually with dementia not diagnosed.
In Eastern Cheshire we also know that around half of hospital expenditure,22 and around half
of spending on adult social care,23 is used for people aged over 65, even though they
represent only one fifth of the population. So it is important to make sure that what money
the CCG receives is spent well.
Over the last 18 months local commissioners and providers have united behind a common
vision and purpose of transforming care services in Eastern Cheshire. This has been driven
by a shared desire to join up care, improve outcomes and our population’s experience of
care whilst responding to increasing clinical and financial sustainability challenges within an
environment of one of the fastest ageing populations in England.
Quite simply, the transformation programme, called Caring Together, is about organisations
and people working together to make care as straightforward and integrated (joined up) as
possible.
Our local clinical, health and social care partners believe that:
 people in Eastern Cheshire deserve services that are high quality and delivered as locally
as possible.
 Patients should sit at the heart of a proactive care system centred on them.
 Carers are one of the most important resources which allow people to be independent
and believe that they need to be supported to provide this care.
 Local people should be supported to take responsibility for their own health as much as
possible.
Over the next five years the Caring Together programme will achieve this vision through the
commissioning of a radical and innovative new care system, built on four environments of
care, and delivered through each of the following elements:
 transformation of primary care (in partnership with NHS England Cheshire Warrington
and Wirral Area Team and our involvement in the Challenge Fund)
 development of a new integrated community care model (whole system partnership in
Eastern Cheshire and aligned to the Connecting Care across Cheshire Pioneer
programme and the Better Care Fund).
 reconfiguration of acute care (in partnership with the Greater Manchester Healthier
Together programme and the “Challenged Economy” initiative)
 a range of productivity initiatives to underpin the transformation programme.
Our ambitions for the future can be summarised as being to:
 increase the number of people having a positive experience of care
 reduce the inequalities in health and social care across Eastern Cheshire
 ensure our citizens access care to the highest standards and are protected from
avoidable harm
 ensure that all those living in Eastern Cheshire should be supported by new, better
integrated community services
 increase the proportion of older people living independently at home and who feel
supported to manage their condition

21

Cheshire East Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Sep 2012 (using data from PANSI, POPPI and QOF - 100% in Cheshire
East (from 2010 to 2030)
Payment by result spend – Hospital Episode Statistics 2012/2013
23
Cheshire East Council social care data (November 2013) and Hospital Episode Statistics 2012/2013
22
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 improve the health-related quality of life of people with one or more long term conditions,
including, mental health conditions
 secure additional years of life for the people of Eastern Cheshire with treatable mental
and physical health conditions.

2.12

Our financial challenge

NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has successfully delivered a small but significant surplus of
£204,000 for its first year of operation whilst working with an historical inherited deficit. In
delivering its surplus for the financial year 2013/14, the CCG adopted an agreed approach
with NHS England of using all of its revenue allocation (income) to cover its expenditure.
The impact of this agreement had two key components: plan to deliver £5.9million QIPP (Quality, Innovation, Productivity & Prevention) savings
in- year in order to achieve planned surplus
 agreement to vary the application of NHS England’s Business Rules which requires each
CCG to set aside 3.5% (equivalent to £7.7million in for NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG) of
their 2013/14 allocation to deliver the following
 1% Surplus (£2.2m)
 2% Non Recurrent Headroom (£4.4m)
 0.5% Contingency (£1.1m)
 agreement to deliver a “balanced” income and expenditure position with a small planned
surplus of £0.2million
During 2013/14, NHS England introduced a new method of allocating money to CCG’s. The
principal adopted in setting the new allocations were based on equity and fairness and took
into account three main factors in healthcare needs: population growth, deprivation and the
impact of an ageing population. This approach starts to address the underlying, historical
deficit which NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG inherited along with the Caring Together
transformation programme.
For 2014/15 NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has been set at an allocation of £1,073 per head
of population (£220.4 million) which is 6.2% below our notional allocation as derived from the
new funding formula of £1,145 per head of population. NHS England has set CCG
allocations for two years which include a differential uplift for those CCG’s who are
significantly below their notional target - known as a “pace of change”. For 2015/16, NHS
Eastern Cheshire CCG’s allocation will increase to £1,098 per head of population (5.2%
below notional target). It is expected that a pace of change will be adopted for 2016-2019 to
enable CCG’s to reach there notional allocations.
Looking forward five years. NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has set its five year financial plan
for 2014 – 2019 which reinforces the challenging position ahead. In recognition of the local
economies financial position, NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has engaged on a system wide
transformation programme called Caring Together.
One of the key aims of this programme is to ensure that Eastern Cheshire has high quality
health and social care services for its population which are financially sustainable for the
future. This is also supported by the Challenged Health Economy work which is aiming to
provide a list of options that deliver sustainable acute (hospital) services across South
Manchester, including the local provider of hospital services in Eastern Cheshire - East
Cheshire NHS Trust.
All of these programmes are being supported both locally and nationally and NHS Eastern
Cheshire CCG is recognised as leading one of the leading transformational programmes in
England.
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In setting the five year financial plan for the CCG, there are two key distinctions to make.
The CCG would have a small but increasing surplus over the five year period on our normal
business activities and crucially living within its financial allocations (Figure Five) if the
2014/15 (one off) programme costs associated with Caring Together are excluded. It is only
after the investment in the Caring Together programme necessary to deliver services that
are financially sustainable with costs of £2.3 million, that the CCG forecasts a loss (deficit) in
2014/15 of £2million. The CCG has to finalise the work which identifies the savings /
efficiencies required to deliver a minimum of £17 million QIPP savings over the five year
period.

Figure Five
£'000
Income
Programme Expenditure
Running Costs
Underlying Surplus
Caring Together
Programme Costs
Underlying Surplus

2014/15

2015/16

225,551
234,895
(220,412) (229,895)
(4,839)
(4,400)
300
600
(2,300)
(2,000)

(200)
400

2016/17

2017/18

2018/19

242,029
246,708
252,116
(237,043) (241,105) (245,235)
(4,386)
(4,372)
(4,359)
600
1,231
2,522

600

1,231

2,522

Finally, with the exception of the planned deficit in 2014/15 only, NHS Eastern Cheshire
CCG has an improving underlying surplus of £300,000, which increases over the five years
to £2,522,000 - which represents 1% of the CCG allocation (as defined by NHS England).
It is therefore the opinion of NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG that the CCG has a financially
stable future, supported by the Caring Together programme, concluding that the CCG is
operating as a going concern.

2.13

Going concern basis

As explained in note one to the financial statements, it remains appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis for preparing the financial statements.

2.14

Key performance indicators

Finance
Delivering a balanced financial position against agreed revenue resource limit
Revenue administration spending not to exceed the resources made available
Ensure that suppliers are paid promptly in accordance with the better payments code
of practice
Other performance indicators are provided throughout this report.

2.15

Our commitment to quality

The NHS defines quality as effectiveness, safety and the provision of an excellent patient
experience. High quality care encompasses all three aspects with equal importance being
placed on each.
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG views quality as the golden thread that runs through everything
that we do. Ensuring the delivery of compassionate, high quality care focused on achieving
positive patient centred and beneficial outcomes is at the very heart of our clinical values. By
establishing a shared understanding of quality and a commitment to place it at the centre of
15

everything we do, the aspiration of high quality of care for all of our commissioned services
will be achieved
We see high quality care as:
“When patients are ill they will receive care that is as safe as we can make it, care that is
based on the best clinical evidence that ensures they have the best outcome and that this
care is delivered in an integrated and holistic way. Patients and their families will be treated
with dignity and respect during the delivery of this care and involved in care decisions.
Patients will have a positive experience of care.”
As a CCG this means we will hold the patient at the centre of everything we do and seek out
and listen to what they are telling us and what they need. We will ensure that the services
we commission for patients are as safe as possible, in line with best practice, in order to
achieve the best reasonable outcomes for these patients and a good patient experience.
The CCG has developed innovative processes to capture feedback from patients (including
views from seldom heard groups), clinicians, the CCG Governing Body Sub-committee – the
Quality and Performance Committee, and Governing Body and ensures that this feedback is
utilised to continuously improve services. This information includes complaints, concerns,
compliments or safeguarding concerns received either directly from service users, from other
NHS commissioners and regulators or from health care professionals involved in
co-ordinating or delivering care.

2.16

Quality Strategy Development

The NHS Constitution sets out the key principles that guide the NHS and the values we
should be working to. This is one of the key documents considered when developing the
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG Quality Strategy, especially in relation to our responsibilities as
NHS staff as we commission care. National guidance sets out the responsibility CCG’s have
in relation to improving quality in primary care. NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG sees this as a
fundamental part of developing care in Eastern Cheshire, in order to achieve the aims of
proactive integrated care, our commissioning strategic priorities, and the NHS Eastern
Cheshire CCG Quality Strategy.
The NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG Quality Strategy describes how NHS Eastern Cheshire
CCG will work to ensure that the services we commission are safe, effective and provide a
positive patient experience.
The Quality Strategy sets the scene in relation to approaches that the CCG will lead on for
ensuring improving quality throughout the patient journey. When developing the strategy
equal consideration was given to:
 local and national quality improvement priorities
 priorities identified within the Cheshire East Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and
Cheshire East JSNA
 safeguarding children
 safeguarding vulnerable adults
 equality, diversity and human rights
 learning from a range of reports including Francis, Winterbourne and Keogh
The Clinical Quality and Performance Committee oversee the implementation of the CCG
quality priorities which are identified in the annual plan.

2.17

Ensuring and improving quality throughout the patient journey

The CCG uses a range of evidence to identify local quality improvement priorities such as
pressure ulcers and serious incidents. The specific objectives and initiatives that underpin
16

this aim are as follows:
 development of a whole health economy approach to prevent and effectively manage
pressure ulcers including a review of the community equipment service
 reduce rates of healthcare acquired infections ( MRSA and C)
 development of all services to ensure high quality “24-7” care
 continued development of services for Military Veterans
 reduce the incidence of falls with a specific focus on those occurring in a hospital setting
 ensuring systems support consistently safe prescribing practice
 development of the Eastern Cheshire prescribing formulary
 working with the academic health science network to increase the number of people
engaging in research
 develop and implement a quality framework for care homes

2.18

Compassionate high quality care

NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG is committed to supporting compassionate and high quality
care as advocated by the Chief Nursing Officer for England through Compassion in
Practice24 - a strategy that aims to achieve excellent health and wellbeing outcomes. It builds
on the existing NHS Constitution and the 6C’s (which details six values):
 Care
 Compassion
 Communication
 Courage
 Competency
 Commitment
Towards demonstrating our commitment we have created a NHS Eastern Cheshire NHS
Staff pledge:
“We will care with compassion, ensuring we communicate effectively, have the necessary
competence to under- stand your health and social care needs and the courage to speak up
for you. We will demonstrate our commitment by working together, combining our
knowledge, skills and expertise to maximise opportunities for innovation and excellence.”
The CCG has committed to developing and embedding the 6C’s in all of its work and has
taken an active role nationally and locally in its promotion, including an innovative scheme to
share best practice between local care homes.

2.19

Working in partnership to improve quality

In order for the NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG Quality Strategy to be successful in delivering
its aims and effective in improving quality of care, NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG must take a
whole systems approach to quality and work in partnership to achieve this. Working in
partnership to develop and support a culture of quality improvement across the whole
healthcare economy in Eastern Cheshire so that it is focused on the needs of patient and
carers is a key priority of the CCG.
Partners include the nursing homes sector where the CCG continues to invest to support
continuous improvement. These initiatives include implementation of an enhanced primary
care services (GP) and the ongoing development of a quality framework for care homes. The
CCG also works in close partnership with NHS England, Care Quality Commission, Cheshire
East Council, NHS Trust Development Agency, Monitor, Healthwatch Cheshire East and
other relevant partners through the Cheshire Warrington and Wirral Quality Surveillance
Group. The Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board also binds the CCG’s and Local
Authority (CEC) into a partnership arrangement, with joint aims and objectives around quality
24

http://www.england.nhs.uk/nursingvision/
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identified through the JSNA and articulated through the joint health and wellbeing strategy.

2.20

Quality premium

The ‘quality premium’25 was established to reward CCGs for improvements in the quality of
the services that they commission and for associated improvements in health outcomes and
reducing health inequalities. The quality premium payment for achieving in 2013/14 will be
invested locally during 2014/15. A summary of the position to date for 2013/14 is shown
below in Figure Six.

Figure Six
National/Local

Measure

Status

National

Emergency Admissions

Achieving

National

Clostridium Difficile

Achieving

National

Friends and Family Test

Achieved

National

Potential Years Life Lost

Awaiting

Local Priority

Readmissions

Local Priority

Primary Mental Health

Achieved

Local Priority

Feeling Supported

Awaiting

2.21

Failing

Safeguarding

The CCG is committed to ensuring that safeguarding is embedded within the organisation
and in the services commissioned from all its providers. However, we also recognise that our
responsibilities extend well beyond our local statutory duties and boundaries and have been
an active member of the Cheshire East Safeguarding hub working with NHS South Cheshire
CCG, Cheshire East Council and Cheshire Police. The CCG Executive Nurse and
safeguarding team have worked closely with the Cheshire East Children’s and Cheshire
East Adult’s safeguarding boards to continuously improve the way we work and ensure
safeguarding policies, frameworks are embedded in everything we do.

2.22

Promoting innovation

The CCG is a founding member of the Greater Manchester Academic Science Research
Network26 and has worked closely with them in their formative year and in ensuring the
network supports active innovation and clinical research across Eastern Cheshire.
The CCG is also part of a European project called “Stop and Go” looking to increase the
innovation, development and implementation of new Assistive Technologies.

2.23

Promoting Education and Training

As a CCG, we have a duty when exercising our functions, to have regard to the need to
promote education and training for our employees (Section 14Z NHS Act 2006). We actively
encourage our staff to attend organisational and personal development opportunities. We
have adopted an annual appraisal system in order to support performance and development
25
26

http://www.england.nhs.uk/ccg-ois/qual-prem/
http://www.gmahsn.org/index.php
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of our staff, which is further underpinned by regular 1-1’s with line managers.

2.24

Progress against agreed targets

Our 2013-2014 Prospectus27 articulated the national and local measures that would
demonstrate how we would be making a difference to improve health and care in Eastern
Cheshire. Our measures included:

National





27% reduction in Clostridium Difficile levels against Department of Health baseline
reduce potential years of lost life by 3.2%
reduce emergency admissions by 5% by 2016, with no increase in 2013/14
100% introduction of Friends and Family Test

Local










reduce by 5% the number of avoidable emergency admissions within 30 days
increase the proportion of people entering Primary Mental Health Services by 15%
increase to 55% the proportion of people feeling supported to manage their condition
achieve a 7.5% reduction in falls and falls related injuries
achieve >80% of appropriate staff to undergo identification and brief advice training so as
to deliver alcohol brief advice to patients
achieve a 30% reduction in the incidence of new pressure ulcers (>grade2)
reduce the proportion of cancers diagnosed through an emergency presentation by 30%
by 2015
reduce by 15% the number of people waiting longer than 28 days to access mental health
services
achieve recurrent financial balance by 2016

NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG is proud of the improvements that have been made in the
period 2013/14 and it is a positive reflection of the commitment of our members and staff to
focus on the need for both short term continuous improvement in the quality and access to
care whilst leading substantial long term transformation programmes.
The CCG recognises that more needs to be done to address those areas where the CCG
has yet to achieve the improvement we have set ourselves. These will become the areas of
additional focus during 2014/15.
Figure Seven indicates the progress we have made to date (March 2014) against these
measures.

27

http://www.easterncheshireccg.nhs.uk/downloads/publications/Strategies/Eastern%20Cheshire%20Prospectus%202013%20-%20FINAL2.pdf

19

Figure Seven
National/Local

Measure

Status

Comments

National

Emergency
Admissions

Achieving

The CCG is on target to
achieve
its
three
year
objective

National

Clostridium Difficile

Achieving

The
CCG
achieved
significant reduction

National

Friends and Family
Test

Achieved

FFT was rolled out to A&E,
Inpatient Wards and Maternity

National

Potential Years Life
Lost

Awaiting

Data not available
September 2014

Local Priority

Readmissions

Failing

Levels did not fall by the 5%
projected
remaining
consistent with the levels in
the previous year

Local Priority

Primary Mental Health

Achieved

15% more people gained
access
to
IAPT28
and
29
CAMHS

Local Priority

Feeling Supported

Awaiting

Data not available until July
2014

Other Local

Pressure Ulcer
Reduction

Failed

The CCG did not see the level
of reduction planned for,
although this may be partially
due to “improved reporting”

Other Local

Falls Reduction
Hospital

Part
Achieved

Although
there
were
reductions in “all falls” and
“falls with harm” the rate of
reduction was lower than
planned in the “falls with
harm” category

Other Local

Emergency
Presentation

Achieving

The CCG is on target to
achieve its 2 year objective

Other Local

IAPT Waiting Times

Failed

Although an improvement was
seen by the end of the year
the CCG still needs to further
reduce treatment waiting time

Other Local

Alcohol
interventions”

Achieved

East Cheshire NHS Trust and
Primary Care trained the
planned clinical staff to deliver
“IBA”30

in

Cancer

“brief

a

until

28

IAPT - Improving Access to Psychological Therapies
CAMHS - Children’s and Adults Mental Health Services
30
IBA - Identification and Brief Advice
29
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2.25

Legislative Requirements

CCG Assurance Framework. The CCG Assurance Framework31 has been established to
ensure that CCG’s are continuing to meet their on-going responsibilities to patients and the
public. The framework sets out how quarterly checkpoints contribute to an annual
assessment focussed on broader measures of organisational health.
Over the past year NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has achieved assurance at each of our
Checkpoint visits from the NHS England Area Team. Figure Eight demonstrates the
outcome of our most recent (Quarter 3 – March 2014) assurance review. This review is
consistent with the feedback from NHS England at the Quarters One and Two Reviews.

Figure Eight
Domain

Checkpoint Achievements / Examples of Good
Three
Practice

Are patients receiving
clinically commissioned
high quality services?
Are patients and the
public actively involved?

Are CCG plans delivering
better
outcomes
for
patients?

Does the CCG have
robust
governance
arrangements?

Are CCG’s working in
partnership with others?

Does the CCG have
strong
and
robust
leadership?
Assured

The CCG has delivered good performance
against the NHS Constitutional standards
Members of Eastern Cheshire Community
HealthVoice have actively been involved in
the
CCG’s
commissioning
intentions
prioritisation process, Urgent Care Working
Group and Caring Together Care Design
Groups
The CCG has successfully implemented a
system to highlight clinical risks associated
with prescribing in primary care which has
led to better prescribing and treatment
outcomes for patients
During 2013/14 the CCG has undertook a
review of governance arrangements in
relation to monitoring quality of service
delivery. The CCG has received assurance
through internal and external audit.
The CCG is leading a whole health and
social care economy programme to improve
care. Caring Together partners include our
public, providers of health and care services
and other commissioners of care (NHS
England and Cheshire East Council).
The CCG is clinically led with clear links from
our member practices into our Governing
Body.

Assured with support

NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG is committed to achieving the continued assurance of NHS
England and actively support and participate in the quarterly checkpoint visits for 2014 –
2015.
Delivering against the NHS Constitution. NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has delivered the
NHS Constitutional targets consistently well across all indicators (Figure Nine). The only
exceptions are:

31

http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2013/05/ccg-af.pdf
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 diagnostics within six weeks where the CCG fell 0.03% below the 99% standard. This dip
in performance was influenced by issues with provision of a community ultrasound
service. The CCG responded promptly to address these issues and sourced additional
capacity to rectify the issue in the short term whilst undertaking a procurement process to
address this in the longer term
 during the year the CCG worked closely with our main provider of services, East Cheshire
NHS Trust, to ensure that improved performance was achieved in both 18 weeks Referral
to Treatment and four hour wait in A&E were achieved. This resulted in a successful full
year performance for the CCG.

Figure Nine
Referral to Treatment Waiting Times
Admitted patients to start treatment
within a maximum of 18 weeks from
referral
Non-admitted patients to start treatment
within a maximum of 18 weeks from
referral
Patients on incomplete non-emergency
pathways (yet to start treatment) should
have been waiting no more than 18
weeks from referral
Diagnostic waiting Times
Patients waiting for a diagnostic test
should have been waiting less than 6
weeks from referral
A & E Waits
Patients should be admitted, transferred
or discharged within 4 hours of their
arrival at an A&E department

Cancer Waits – 2 Week Wait
Maximum two-week wait for first
outpatient appointment for patients
referred urgently with suspected cancer
by a GP
Maximum two-week wait for first
outpatient appointment for patients
referred urgently with breast symptoms
(where
cancer
was
not
initially
suspected)
Cancer Waiting – 31 days
Maximum one month (31-day) wait from
diagnosis to first definitive treatment for
all cancers
Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent
treatment where that treatment is surgery
Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent
treatment where that treatment is an anticancer drug regimen

Target

Performance

90%

91.80%

95%

97.14%

92%

94.56%

Target

Performance

99%

98.97%

95%

95.25%

Target

Performance

93%

97.20%

93%

96.24%

Target

Performance

96%

97.99%

94%

99.46%

98%

100%

Comment

Comment
Awaiting March 2014
data for final end of
year figure

Patients should be
admitted, transferred
or discharged within
four hours of their
arrival at an A&E
department
Comment
Awaiting March 2014
data for final end of
year figure
Awaiting March 2014
data for final end of
year figure

Comment
Awaiting March 2014
data for final end of
year figure
Awaiting March 2014
data for final end of
year figure
Awaiting March 2014
data for final end of
year figure
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Referral to Treatment Waiting Times
Maximum 31-day wait for subsequent
treatment where the treatment is a
course of radiotherapy
Cancer waits – 62 days
Maximum two month (62-day) wait from
urgent GP referral to first definitive
treatment for cancer
Maximum 62-day wait from referral from
an NHS screening service to first
definitive treatment for all cancers
Maximum 62-day wait for first definitive
treatment following a consultant’s
decision to upgrade the priority of the
patient (all cancers)
Category Ambulance Calls
Category A calls resulting in an
emergency response arriving within 8
minutes - Red 1
Category A calls resulting in an
emergency response arriving within 8
minutes - Red 2
Category A calls resulting in an
ambulance arriving at the scene within
19 minutes
Mixed Sex Accommodation Breaches
Minimise Breaches

Cancelled Operations
All patients who have operations
cancelled, on or after the day of
admission (including the day of surgery),
for non-clinical reasons to be offered
another binding date within 28 days, or
the patient’s treatment to be funded at
the time and hospital of the patient’s
choice.
Mental Health
Care Programme Approach (CPA): The
proportion of people under adult mental
illness specialties on CPA who were
followed up within 7 days of discharge
from psychiatric in-patient care during the
period

2.26

Target

Performance

Comment
Awaiting March 2014
data for final end of
year figure
Comment
Awaiting March 2014
data for final end of
year figure
Awaiting March 2014
data for final end of
year figure
Awaiting March 2014
data for final end of
year figure

94%

100%

Target

Performance

85%

86.51%

90%

91.36%

No
standard
set

95.38%

Target

Performance

75%

75.90%

75%

77.40%

Comment
North West
Ambulance Service
(NWAS) Overall
Performance
NWAS Overall
Performance

95%

95.80%

NWAS Overall
Performance

Target

Performance
2

Target

Performance

0

0

Target

Performance

95%

Q1: 96.3%
Q2: 96.6%
Q3: 95.5%

Comment
Awaiting March 2014
data for final end of
year figure
Comment
Awaiting March 2014
data for final end of
year figure

Comment
Awaiting Q4 data for
final end of year
figure

Risk Management and principal risks and uncertainties

NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG adopts an embedded risk management framework, as detailed
in the annual governance statement. On page 46 the Annual Governance Report identifies
the following key risks and uncertainties together with related controls:
 Caring Together Programme - Case for Change
 business information systems
 underlying financial deficit
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 delivery of the operational plan.

2.27

Equality Report

Equality is about creating a fairer society where everyone can participate and has the
opportunity to fulfil their potential. Equality means treating individuals in a way that is
appropriate to their needs, with dignity and worth regardless of their protected
characteristics. Diversity builds on equality and focuses on how individual differences and
their strengths can be valued for the benefit of both society and the individual.
One of the key principles of the NHS Constitution is that 'the NHS provides a comprehensive
service, available to all - irrespective of gender, race, disability, age, sexual orientation,
religion or belief. It has a duty to each and every individual that it serves and must respect
their human rights. At the same time, it has a wider social duty to promote equality through
the services it provides and to pay particular attention to groups or sections of society where
improvements in health and life expectancy are not keeping pace with the rest of the
population'.
This principle is often summarized in terms of:
 equal access to services
 equal treatment
 equal health outcomes
The Health and Social Care Act 201232 states that 'each commissioning group must, in the
exercise of its functions have the regard to the need to:
 reduce inequalities between patients with respect to their ability to access health services
 reduce inequalities between patients with respect to the outcomes achieved for them by
provision of health services
 promote the involvement of patients and their careers in decisions about provision of the
health services to them
 enable patients to make choices with respect to aspects of health services provided to
them'
The CCG is required to pay due regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty33 as defined by the
Equality Act 2010.34 Failure to comply has legal, financial and reputational risks. The key
functions that enable NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG to make informed and equitable
commissioning decisions and monitor the performance of their providers have to
demonstrate the needs of protected groups have been considered in:
 its commissioning and de-commissioning processes
 consultation and engagement processes
 procurement functions
 contract specifications
 quality contract and performance schedules
 governance systems
The CCG recognises and take seriously our responsibilities and duties under the Equality Act
2010. It is committed to making sure equality and diversity is a priority when we plan and
commission local healthcare services.
To do this we work closely with our communities and our partners in health and care to
understand needs and how best to commission the most appropriate services to meet those

32

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/7/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/public-sector-equality-duty
34
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents
33
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needs. We have also commissioned specific work to help us understand further the needs
and health activity of seldom heard groups (Figure Ten).

Figure Ten: Pathways Community Interest Company (CiC)
Eastern Cheshire has an increasing Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) population and as a
CCG it is important that we continue to work closely with our local populations to gain
their views and experiences of local services, so that we can ensure that our
commissioning plans reflect the needs of our population.
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has commissioned Pathways CiC to undertake community
development work with our BME communities to help us understand how our population
access services, and what support is needed to promote positive health and wellbeing.
The role of a Community Development Worker is to ensure that BME communities are
made aware of the health services and to how to access them. They are responsible for
establishing strong communication between service users, service commissioners and
health professionals by gathering patient and carer stories to ensure that services are
accessible and well resourced. They also promote health within BME communities and
strengthen their involvement in the planning and design in services
The communities that Pathways CiC have been working with include Eastern European,
Chinese, Bangladeshi, Afro-Caribbean, African and the travelling community in Eastern
Cheshire.
Further information:
www.easterncheshireccg.nhs.uk/About-Us/equality.htm
All key providers of services commissioned by the CCG, including East Cheshire NHS Trust,
Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust, have undertaken the EDS
assessment and have set equality objectives in accordance with their requirements. The
performance of providers in relation to them meeting the Public Sector Duty is taken into
account through contract monitoring.
As an employer we are committed to ensuring that we have a diverse workforce by providing
fair and equal access to all NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG jobs, including access to career
development and training opportunities for existing and future staff. To do this we aim to
recruit the best talent that we can and remove any barriers to ensure that we have the widest
possible pool of talent to draw from.
As an employer we are also committed to ensuring that our staff have access to and
undertake training around our Public Sector Duty with regards equality and diversity. We
have also ensured that we have robust arrangements in place for staff to report any
occasions where they or their colleagues have been subject to any intentional or
unintentional discrimination in the workplace or when undertaking their duties when
representing the CCG.
The CCG places a high priority on ensuring that it discharges its obligations as a good
corporate citizen and takes into account its responsibilities towards serving and meeting the
needs of our local population, including safeguarding their human rights.
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Equality Objectives. Towards meeting our Specific Duty we are required to prepare an
Equality and Diversity Strategy for the CCG35 and publish equality objectives which are
specific and measurable and which can be updated on an annual basis.
To help set our Equality Objectives we have used the NHS Equality Delivery System (EDS)36
self assessment. NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG commissioned specific support from the
Cheshire and Merseyside Commissioning Support Unit to undertake the EDS assessment on
behalf of the CCG. Our submission of EDS evidence in 201337 resulted in the CCG being
assessed as ‘Developing’ reflecting its status as a relatively new statutory NHS organisation.
Our 2013/2014 equality objectives were:
 to ensure accessibility to services and information
 to develop joint consultation and engagement
 to ensure the equality of opportunity in employment and training provision
 to improve the JSNA to provide a greater understanding of the Eastern Cheshire
population

2.28

Sustainability Report

NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG intends to develop and implement a CCG Sustainability
Development Management Plan which will be put forward early in 2014 for consideration by
the Governing Body. Consideration will be given with regards to how CCG policies and
strategies, such as flexible working, lease car polices and Information and Communication
Technology strategy can contribute towards meeting our sustainability obligations.
As a new organisation, the CCG will work towards ensuring that it meets its obligations
under the Climate Change Act 2008, including the Adaptation Reporting power, and the
Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012.38 This includes establishing mechanisms to embed
social and environmental sustainability across policy development, business planning and in
commissioning. The CCG is also progressing towards setting out its commitments as a
socially responsible employer.
The CCG recognises that its biggest impact can be made with regards to how it
commissions and procure services. The CCG is committed to ensuring that within all of its
commissioning and procurement processes that it will ask all of its providers to ensure that
they are committed to delivering the sustainability agenda, as detailed by NHS England and
the NHS Sustainable Development Unit.39
Meeting the needs of today without compromising the needs of tomorrow is a key driver of
the CCGs major programme of transformative work – the Caring Together Programme. This
programme of change typifies the CCG’s approach to commissioning for sustainable
development in that end goals include saving money, saving resources and benefiting staff
and patients.
We lease our office building from NHS Property Services and our business address is
New Alderley House, Victoria Road, Macclesfield. It is based on the Macclesfield District
General Hospital site which is run by East Cheshire NHS Trust. We currently do not have
access to information such as our utilities usage for 2013/14. Subject to NHS Property
Services being able to provide the necessary information, we hope to publish such data in
our 2014/15 Annual Report and Accounts.

35

36
37

38
39

https://www.easterncheshireccg.nhs.uk/Downloads/Publications/Policies/Business-Conduct/ECCCG_Equality_and_Diversity_Strategy_Aug_2012.pdf

http://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/gov/edc/eds/
https://www.easterncheshireccg.nhs.uk/Downloads/About-Us/Equality/East_Equality_delivery_system_completed_template_2013_Eastern_cheshire.pdfv

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/3/enacted
http://www.sduhealth.org.uk/
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2.29

Strategic Report Self Certification, Accountable Officer

We certify that the Clinical Commissioning Group has complied with the statutory duties laid
down in the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended).
I certify that NHS Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group has incident response
plans in place, which are fully compliant with the NHS Commissioning Board Emergency
Preparedness Framework 2013. The Clinical Commissioning Group regularly reviews and
makes improvements to its major incidence plan, proportionate to its duties/responsibilities
as a category 2 responder, and has a programme for regularly testing this plan, the results of
which are reported to the Governing Body.
The Governing Body is not aware of any relevant audit information that has been withheld
from the Clinical Commissioning Group’s external auditors, and members of the Governing
Body take all necessary steps to make themselves aware of relevant information and to
ensure that this is passed to the external auditors where appropriate.
Signed

_________________________

Jerry Hawker – Chief Officer (Accountable Officer)
Date:
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3.

Members’ Report

This report is prepared by the Governing Body on behalf of the members.

3.1

Our member practices

Figure Eleven includes details of the 23 GP Practices that comprise the membership of NHS
Eastern Cheshire CCG.

Figure Eleven
Locality Peer Group
Alderley Edge, Chelford,
Handforth, Wilmslow
Bollington, Disley, Poynton
Congleton, Holmes Chapel
Knutsford
Macclesfield

3.2

Member Practices
Alderley Edge Medical Practice, Chelford Surgery,
Handforth Health Centre, Kenmore Medical Centre,
Wilmslow Health Centre
Bollington Medical Centre, Mcllvride Medical Practice,
Priorslegh Medical Centre, The School House Surgery
Holmes Chapel Health Centre, Lawton House Surgery,
Meadowside Medical Centre, Readesmoor Group Practice
Annandale Medical Centre, Manchester Road Medical
Centre, Toft Road Surgery
Broken Cross Surgery, Cumberland House, High Street
Surgery, Park Green Surgery, Park Lane Surgery, South
Park Surgery, Vernova Healthcare CIC

Chair and Accountable Officer

For the year 2013/14 the office of GP Chair of the CCG has been held by Dr Paul Bowen
and Chief Officer (Accountable Officer) of the CCG by Jerry Hawker.

3.3

Governing Body

Figure Twelve indicates the composition of the voting members of the Governing Body of
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG for the year 2013/14.

Figure Twelve
Governing Body Member
Dr Paul Bowen
Jerry Hawker
Alex Mitchell
Dr James Milligan
Dr Mike Clark
Dr Jennifer Lawn
Melanie Lyman
Angela Wales
Gill Boston
Bill Swann
Gerry Gray
Sally Rogers
Duncan Matheson
Julie Sin

Position
GP Chair
Chief Officer
Chief Finance Officer
General Practice Locality Peer Group Lead
General Practice Locality Peer Group Lead
General Practice Locality Peer Group Lead
General Practice Locality Peer Group Lead
General Practice Locality Peer Group Lead
Lay Member (Public and Patient Involvement)
Lay Member (Public and Patient Involvement)
Lay Member (Governance and Audit) Deputy Chair
Registered Nurse
Secondary Care Doctor
Consultant in Public Health and Medicine

A biography of each member of the Governing Body can be seen in Appendix One.
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The CCG Governing Body has eight male and six female members. There have been 13
Governing Body meetings during 2013/14, six have been in public and seven have been
informal – all of which have been quorate.
Attendance Record
Name / Date
Paul Bowen
Jerry Hawker
Alex Mitchell
James Milligan
Mike Clark
Angela Wales
Jennifer Lawn
Melanie Lyman
Gerry Gray
Gill Boston
Bill Swann
Sally Rogers
Duncan Matheson
Julie Sin

Attended

Apr

May

Jun

Absent

Meeting held in private

Jul

2013
Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

2014
Feb

Mar

Meeting took place before member was in place
Meeting held in public

The Governing Body is not aware of any relevant audit information that has been withheld
from the Clinical Commissioning Group’s external auditors, and members of the Governing
Body take all necessary steps to make themselves aware of relevant information and to
ensure that this is passed to the external auditors where appropriate.

3.4

Governance and Audit Committee Membership

Figure Thirteen details the composition of the Governance and Audit Committee.

Figure Thirteen
Committee Member Position
(Voting)
Gerry Gray
Gill Boston
Bill Swann
Dr James Milligan
Melanie Lyman

Lay Member for Governance & Audit (Chair)
Lay Member for Public and Patient Involvement
Lay Member for Public and Patient Involvement
General Practice Locality Peer Group Lead (Executive GP for
Business Management Team)
General Practice Locality Peer Group Lead

In attendance

Position

Alex Mitchell
Mike Purdie

Chief Finance Officer
Corporate Governance manager

A biography of each voting member of the Governance and Audit Committee can be seen in
Appendix One.
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3.5

Clinical Quality and Performance Committee Membership

Figure Fourteen details the composition of the Clinical Quality and Performance Committee.

Figure Fourteen
Committee Member Position
(Voting)
Dr James Milligan
Dr Julia Huddart

General Practice Locality Peer Group Lead (Executive GP for
Business Management Team)
Executive GP for Clinical Leadership Team

Duncan Matheson
Andrew Binnie
Jacki Wilkes
Sally Rogers
Neil Evans
Gill Boston

Governing Body Member -Secondary Care Doctor
Quality Performance Manager
Head of Clinical Developments and Health Outcomes
Registered Nurse
Head of Business Management
Lay Member for Public and Patient Involvement

In attendance

Position

Mary Barlow
Debbie Lowe
Anita Mottershead
Andy Wilson

Quality Lead (CSU) – Continuing Health Care and Care Homes
Locality Lead (CSU) – Complaints, Incidents and Concerns
Quality and Performance Analyst
Quality and Performance Analyst

A biography of each voting member of the Clinical Quality and Performance Committee can
be seen in Appendix One.

3.6

Remuneration Committee Membership

Figure Fifteen details the composition of the Remuneration Committee.

Figure Fifteen
Committee
Member Position
(Voting)
Gerry Gray
Gill Boston
Bill Swann
Duncan Matheson
Sally Rogers
Dr Jennifer Lawn
Angela Wales

Lay Member for Governance & Audit (Chair)
Lay Member for Public and Patient Involvement
Lay Member for Public and Patient Involvement
Secondary Care Doctor
Registered Nurse
General Practice Locality Peer Group Lead
General Practice Locality Peer Group Lead

(Non-voting)
(By invitation)

Position

Jerry Hawker
Alex Mitchell
Lisa Kelly

Chief Officer
Chief Finance Officer
CMCSU HR Lead

A biography of each voting member of the Remuneration Committee can be seen in
Appendix One.

3.7

Political and charitable donations

No political or charitable donations were made in the year.

3.8

Events since the year end

No significant events have occurred between the year end and the date of this report that
affect the Clinical Commissioning Group.
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3.9

Likely future developments

Likely future developments are set out throughout the strategic report included within this
annual report.

3.10

Research and development

As a commissioning organisation, we do not carry out research and development activities
ourselves.

3.11

Branches outside UK

We have no branches outside the UK.

3.12

Pension liabilities

Details of pension liabilities are set out in note one and four to the financial statements.

3.13

Sickness absence data

Sickness absence data is set out in note four to the financial statements. This indicates that
the sickness level was below the average for NHS organisations. In 2013/14 there have
been no significant rates of sickness absence which have required managerial intervention.

3.14

External Auditor

The external auditor in the year was Grant Thornton LLP. Fees for external audit services
are set out in note five to the financial statements. These fees relate to the audit of the
financial statements and the provision of a statutory report on value for money. No further
assurance services or other services were provided by external auditors.

3.15

Serious untoward incidents

As identified in the Annual Governance Report on page 45 there have been no serious
untoward incidents in relation to data losses.

3.16

Cost allocation and setting of charges

The Governing Body of NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG can certify that the CCG has complied
with HM Treasury’s guidance on cost allocation and setting of charges for information.

3.17

Complaints and Principles for Remedy

The CCG seeks to resolve and remedy any complaints as quickly as possible. In doing so,
we adhere to the principles set out by the Parliamentary and Health Service Ombudsman.
Good practice with regard to remedies means:
 getting it right
 being customer focused
 being open and accountable
 acting fairly and proportionately
 putting things right
 seeking continuous improvement
These principles are applied to every complaint received.

3.18

Employee consultation

As a relatively small employer based in one office, our Governing Body and Senior
Managers have day to day contact with all of our employees. In addition we systematically
provide information on matters of concern to employees through:
 a weekly Chief Officers briefing
 monthly whole “team brief” meetings
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 sharing of information on CCG intranet and via direct email on matters relating to such
things as development opportunities, fraud awareness’s, employment matters
 use of web based engagement/survey technologies, such as Survey Monkey and
information sharing platforms, such as Twitter, that allows engagement and consultation
of CCG staff and other staff within partner organisations
 regular 1:1’s between staff and managers
Where appropriate, employees views are canvassed prior to key decisions being made and
all employees receive formal letters of notification where any matters influence employment
terms and conditions.

3.19

Disabled employees

As an employer we are committed to ensuring that we have a diverse workforce by providing
fair and equal access to all NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG jobs, including access to career
development and training opportunities for existing and future staff. To do this we aim to
recruit the best talent that we can and remove any barriers to ensure that we have the widest
possible pool of talent to draw from.
The CCG has approved policies where reasonable adjustments to an employees working
conditions due to an identified disability can be approved following agreement between
employee and manager.
As an employer we are also committed to ensuring that our staff have access to and
undertake training around our Public Sector Duty with regards equality and diversity. We
have also ensured that we have robust arrangements in place for staff to report any
occasions where they or their colleagues have been subject to any intentional or
unintentional discrimination in the workplace or when undertaking their duties when
representing the CCG.

3.20

Emergency preparedness, resilience and response

Under guidance issued by NHS England and under the Civil Contingencies Act (2004)
CCG’s are classed as Category Two responders in emergencies. This means that the CCG
must provide reasonable assistance when requested to do so. The CCG is also required to
ensure that day to day health services are maintained by our providers in the event of an
emergency. The CCG is also required to maintain and test a business continuity plan.
The CCG has ensured that our contracts with providers contain relevant emergency
preparedness, resilience and response elements and seek assurance on those providers
fulfilling contractual obligations. This is reported back on a regular basis to NHS England.
The CCG liaises with NHS England through its area team to support it in its role as
co-ordinator of the Emergency resilience and response plan preparedness through the Local
Health Resilience Partnership (LHRP) of which the CCG is a member and of its subcommittees. The CCG also provides a point of escalation for the LHRP should a provider fail
to maintain the capacity required.
The CCG maintains a 24/7 365 day a year on-call rota.
Our self-certification is included in the accounting officer’s statement in the strategic report.
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3.21

Disclosure to Auditors

Each individual who is a member of the Governing Body at the time of the Members’ Report
is approved confirms: so far as the member is aware, that there is no relevant audit
information of which the clinical commissioning group’s external auditor is unaware; and
that the member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a member in order
to make themself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the clinical
commissioning group’s auditor is aware of that information.

Signed on behalf of the members by:

_____________________

Dr Paul Bowen – Chair
Date:

_________________________

Jerry Hawker – Chief Officer
Date:
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4.

Remuneration Report

4.1 Introduction
Section 234B and Schedule 7A of the Companies Act, as interpreted for the public sector,
requires NHS bodies to prepare a Remuneration Report containing information about
directors’ remuneration. The report is in respect of the Senior Managers of the NHS body.
‘Senior Managers’ are defined as: ‘those persons in senior positions having authority or
responsibility for directing or controlling the major activities of the NHS body. This means
those who influence the decisions of the clinical commissioning group as a whole, rather
than the decisions of individual directorates or departments. Such persons will include
advisory and lay members.’
The Remuneration Committee determines remuneration for the CCG Governing Body
members.

4.2 The Remuneration Committee
The terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee were approved by the Governing
Body in March 2013 under the establishment of the CCG Constitution. The membership of
the Remuneration Committee at the date of this report consists of: the Chair of the Audit
Committee and the lay members of the Governing Body as follows:
Chair:
Other members

Gerry Gray – Lay Member for Governance & Audit
Gill Boston – Lay Member for Public and Patient Involvement
Dr Jennifer Lawn – Governing Body Member - General Practice
Locality Lead
Duncan Matheson - Governing Body Member – Secondary Care
Doctor
Sally Rogers – Governing Body Member - Registered Nurse
Bill Swann – Lay Member for Public and Patient Involvement
Angela Wales - Governing Body Member - General Practice Locality
Lead

In the absence of the Committee Chair of the committee a nominated Governing Body
member acts as Chair. The Committee met on three occasions during the year, with
attendance as follows (Figure Sixteen):

Figure Sixteen

Gerry Gray

June
2013
Yes

Meetings
September
2013
Yes

January
2014
Yes

Gill Boston

Yes

Yes

Yes

Sally Rogers

Yes

Yes

Yes

Apols

Apols

Yes

Member

Bill Swann
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4.3

Policy on Remuneration of Senior Managers

Amendments to salary are determined annually by the Remuneration Committee. Senior
Manager performance is monitored through the formal appraisal process, based on
organisational and individual objectives.
As required the committee has access to professional advice from the CCG’s professionally
qualified HR manager and also the CCG legal advisers Hill Dickinson LLP.
In setting policy for current and future years, the committee has access to guidance, best
practice and benchmarking information from NHS Employers, NHS England and
comparative CCGs. Account is also taken of the pay and conditions of service that apply to
other employees in the CCG.

4.4

Senior Managers performance related pay

Currently performance related pay is not an element of Senior managers’ remuneration
package. The Committee is considering options.

4.5

Senior Manager Contracts

Senior Manager (officer) contracts are subject to six months’ notice. Governing Body
members have been appointed to varied fixed terms of office, details of which can be found
on page 36.

4.6

Past Senior Managers

No payments have been made to any past senior managers or for loss of office during
2013/14.

4.7

Pay Multiples

The full time equivalent of the banded remuneration of the highest-paid Senior Manager in
the financial year 2013-14 was £170k to £175k. This was 5.3 times the median remuneration
of the workforce, which was banded £30 - £35k.
In 2013-14 no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest-paid Senior
Manager. The Full time equivalent of banded remuneration across the organisation ranged
from £15-£19k to £170-175k.
For these calculations, remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related
pay, benefits-in-kind. It does not include employer pension contributions and the cash
equivalent transfer value of pensions. It is pro rata the contracted hours and not the actual
amounts paid.

4.8

Duration of contracts, notice periods and termination payments

The Accountable Officer and Chief Finance Officer are employed on contracts of service and
are employees. Executive Governing Body members’ contracts can be terminated by either
party with up to 6 months’ notice. Details of fixed term contracts are set out in section 9
below.
There are no special contractual compensation provisions for the early termination of
Governing Body members’ contracts. Early termination by reason of redundancy or, ‘in the
interests of the efficiency of the service’ is subject to the provisions of the Agenda for
Change NHS Terms and Conditions Handbook.
Employees above the minimum retirement age who themselves request termination by
reason of early retirement, are subject to the normal provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme.
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4.9

Governing Body Members

The majority of members were appointed on fixed terms on dates prior to the existence of
the CCG. For these members, the start date is shown as the first day of the CCG’s
existence. Dates of contracts and unexpired terms of office for the Governing Body members
are as follows (Figure Seventeen):

Figure Seventeen
Name
Dr Paul Bowen
Dr Mike Clark
Jerry Hawker
Alex Mitchell
Duncan Matheson
Dr James Milligan
Angela Wales
Melanie Lyman
Bill Swan
Gerry Gray
Gill Boston
Jennifer Lawn
Dr Julie Sin
Sally Rogers
Joanne Morton

Appointment Start
Date
1st April 2013
1st April 2013
1st April 2013
1st April 2013
1 May 2013
1st April 2013
1st April 2013
1st April 2013
1st April 2013
1st April 2013
1st April 2013
1st April 2013
1st April 2013
1st April 2013
17th May 2014

Appointment End Date
June 2018 (4 year tenure renewed)
May 2017 (3 year tenure renewed)
Permanent Contract
Permanent Contract
30 April 2017
17 May 2014
1 January 2016
17 May 2014
31 August 2016
18 September 2016
28 February 2017
30 September 2015
Nominated member
18 September 2016
31 May 2017
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4.10

Remuneration

Figure Eighteen

Name and
title

2013-14
Taxable
Annual
Long -term
All
Salary and benefits Performance Performance pension
Total
fees
(rounded
related
related
Related
(Bands of
(bands of
to the
bonuses
bonuses
Benefits
£5,000)
£5,000)
nearest
(bands of
(bands of (bands of
£000
£000
£00)
£5,000)
£5,000)
£2,500)
£00
£000
£000
£000

Dr Paul
85 - 89
Bowen Chairman
Dr Mike Clark 35 - 39
Jerry Hawker
120 - 124
– Chief Officer
Alex Mitchell
– Chief
90 - 95
Finance
Officer
Duncan
5 - 10
Matheson
Dr James
30 - 35
Milligan
5-9
Angela Wales
Melanie
15 - 19
Lyman
5 - 10
Bill Swan
5 - 10
Gerry Gray
10 - 14
Gill Boston
Jennifer
15 - 19
Lawn
5 - 10
Dr Julie Sin
20 -25
Sally Rogers

-

-

-

85 – 89
35 - 39

12

120 – 124
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95 – 99

5 - 10
30 - 35
5-9
15 - 19
5 - 10
5 - 10
10 - 14
15 - 19
5- 10
20 -25

As the Clinical Commissioning Group did not exist in the previous year, there is no
comparative table for prior year.
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4.11

Pension disclosures

Figure Nineteen

Real
increase
in
pension
lump
sum at
aged 60
(bands
of
£2,500)
£000

Total
accrued
pension
at age 60
at 31
March
2014
(bands
of
£5,000)
£000

Lump
sum at
age 60
related
to
accrued
pension
at 31
March
2014
(bands
of
£5,000)
£000

5 – 7.5

15 –
17.5

5–9

20 - 24

91

22

69

-

2.5 – 5

15 –
17.5

10 – 14 35 - 39

220

131

89

-

2.5 - 5

10 –
12.5

25 - 29 75 - 79

409

338

70

-

Real
Name and increase
title
in
pension
at age 60
(bands
of
£2,500)
£000

Dr Paul
Bowen*Chairman
Jerry
Hawker –
Chief
Officer
Alex
Mitchell –
Chief
Finance
Officer

Cash
Cash
Real
Equivalent Equivalent increase Employer’s
Transfer Transfer in Cash contribution
Value at Value at Equivalent
to
31 March 31 March Transfer partnership
2014
2013
Value
pension
£000
£000
£000
£00

*Figures for Dr Paul Bowen include changes in benefits that arise from employer’s
contributions funded by the CCG and contributions funded by the Medical Practice in which
Dr Bowen is a partner.
Certain Members do not receive pensionable remuneration therefore there will be no entries
in respect of pensions for certain Members.

4.12

Cash Equivalent Transfer Values

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the
pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits
valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s pension payable
from the scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to
secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member
leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The
pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a
consequence of their membership of the pension scheme. This may be for more than just
their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. The CETV figures and the
other pension details include the value of any pension benefits in another scheme or
arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS pension scheme. They also
include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing
additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs are calculated
within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.
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4.13

Real Increase in CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including
the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or arrangement) and uses
common market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

4.14

Off Payroll engagements

During the year ended 31st March 2014, the CCG had no off-payroll engagements that cost
more than £220 per day and that last longer than six months.

4.15

Biographies of the members

Biographies of the voting members of the Remuneration Committee can be seen in
Appendix One. Details of the specific job titles and membership of committees is set out in
the members report

4.16

Declared interests

Declared interests are published on our website at https://www.easterncheshireccg.nhs.uk/.

Signed

____________________

Jerry Hawker
Chief Officer (Accountable Officer)
Date:
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5.

Statement
of
Responsibilities

Accountable

Officer’s

The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Clinical
Commissioning Group shall have an Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be appointed
by the NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England). NHS England has appointed the Chief
Officer to be the Accountable Officer of the Clinical Commissioning Group.
The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer, including responsibilities for the propriety and
regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable Officer is answerable, for keeping
proper accounting records (which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Clinical Commissioning Group and enable them to ensure that the accounts
comply with the requirements of the Accounts Direction) and for safeguarding the Clinical
Commissioning Group’s assets (and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities), are set out in the Clinical Commissioning
Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter.
Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS England has directed each
Clinical Commissioning Group to prepare for each financial year financial statements in the
form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. The financial statements are
prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Clinical Commissioning Group and of its net expenditure, changes in taxpayers’ equity and
cash flows for the financial year.
In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is required to comply with the
requirements of the Manual for Accounts issued by the Department of Health and in
particular to:
 observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England, including the relevant
accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a
consistent basis;
 make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis;
 state whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Manual for Accounts
issued by the Department of Health have been followed, and disclose and explain any
material departures in the financial statements; and,
 prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set
out in my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable Officer Appointment Letter.
Signed

____________________

Jerry Hawker
Chief Officer (Accountable Officer)
Date:
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6.

Annual Governance Statement

6.1

Introduction and Context

NHS Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is made up of 23 Eastern
Cheshire based GP practices and has a population of over 201,000 residents in the towns of
Alderley Edge, Bollington, Chelford, Congleton, Disley, Handforth, Holmes Chapel,
Knutsford, Macclesfield, Poynton, Wilmslow and the surrounding villages and rural areas.
With our allocation of over £222 million, our main purpose is to ensure for our residents the
availability of and access to high quality health care by commissioning (buying)
appropriate health care services and monitoring the quality of the care which is provided.
We are a major partner leading work to integrate local health and social care services so as
to help improve the health and care experience and outcomes of our population and to
ensure that we continue to have a safe, effective, high quality and financially sustainable
healthcare economy now and in the future. Health and social care spending on residents of
Eastern Cheshire is around £346 million per year. Around a third of this is spent on hospital
care, a thirteenth on GP practices (Primary Care), one sixth on community care, one seventh
on social care, one twentieth on mental health and the rest on other services such as
prescribing and specialist care.
Within Eastern Cheshire there are 42 dentists, 38 pharmacies, 48 opticians and over 56
voluntary and community sector groups, which are all run independently. There is also a
hospital in Macclesfield, community hospitals in Knutsford and Congleton, a mental health
provider providing hospital and community services. Social care services are provided
across a range of sectors including Cheshire East Council and the private and voluntary
sectors. The range of services include 62 residential and nursing care homes, day services,
tenancy schemes with care support, care at home and services focused on recovery and
rehabilitation. In addition, a number of faith and community groups provide a range of lowlevel support and social activities which provide much needed support in local communities.
The main hospital in Eastern Cheshire is in Macclesfield but people also go to Greater
Manchester, Staffordshire and elsewhere in Cheshire for general hospital services General
hospital services include A&E, general medicine, general surgery, local specialist services
such as cancer, renal (kidney), maternity and paediatric (children’s) services and trauma and
orthopaedics.
People in Eastern Cheshire already go further afield to receive treatment by more specialist
services. For example, major trauma (such as road accident injury) is treated by the
University Hospital of South Manchester NHS Trust (UHSM), treatment for hyper acute
stroke is provided by Stockport NHS Foundation Trust, Salford Royal NHS Foundation Trust
and the University Hospital of North Staffordshire NHS Trust (UHNS). Acute myocardial
infarction (heart attack) is treated at UHSM, Central Manchester University Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust (CMFT) and UHNS. The Christie NHS Foundation Trust provides specialist
cancer services in Manchester.

6.2

Authorisation

NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG operated in shadow form prior to 1st April 2013, to allow for the
completion of the licencing process and the establishment of function, systems and
processes prior to taking on its full statutory powers. ECCCG was licenced from 1st April
2013 under provisions enacted in the Health & Social Care Act 2012, which amended the
National Health Service Act 2006. It was licensed with just one condition:
 Governing Body must include nurse and secondary care doctor
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On the 22nd July 2013, NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG received confirmation from NHS
England of full authorisation without conditions following the removal of this one condition
due to appointment to its Governing Body of a Secondary Care Doctor.

6.3

Scope of Responsibility

As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal
control that supports the achievement of NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG policies, aims and
objectives, whilst safeguarding the public funds and assets for which I am personally
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me in Managing Public
Money. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in my CCG Accountable Officer
Appointment Letter.
I am responsible for ensuring that NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG is administered prudently
and economically and that resources are applied efficiently and effectively, safeguarding
financial propriety and regularity.

6.4

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

We are not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code. However, we have
reported on our Corporate Governance arrangements by drawing upon best practice
available, including those aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code we consider to be
relevant to the CCG and best practice.’
For the financial year ending 31st March 2014, and up to the date of signing this statement,
we (NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG) complied with the provisions set out in the Code, and
applied the principles of the Code. It should be recognised that NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG
is at an early stage of development and the expectation is that compliance with Governance
standards are subject to a continuous programme of improvement as the organisation
matures.

6.5

The Clinical Commissioning Group Governance Framework

The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), at paragraph 14L(2)(b) states:
“The main function of the governing body is to ensure that the group has made appropriate
arrangements for ensuring that it complies with such generally accepted principles of good
governance as are relevant to it.”
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG is a clinically led membership organisation made up of 23
practices. The members of NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG are responsible for determining the
governing arrangements for the organisation and are represented on the Governing Body by
elected General Practice Locality Peer Group representatives. The group demonstrates its
accountability to its members, local people, stakeholders and NHS England in a number of
ways, including:
 publishing its constitution
 appointing independent lay members/persons and non-GP clinicians to its Governing
Body
 holding meetings of its Governing Body in public
 publishing a commissioning plan annually
 complying with local authority health and wellbeing overview and scrutiny committee
requirements
 meeting annually in public to publish and present its annual report
 producing externally audited annual accounts
 by being a member of the Cheshire East Health and Wellbeing Board and contributing to
the development of the local Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and local Joint Health
and Wellbeing Plan.
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NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG is accountable for exercising the statutory functions of the
group and may grant authority to act on its behalf to:
 any of its 23 member practices
 its Governing Body
 its employees
 a committee or sub-committee of NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG
The extent of the authority to act of the respective bodies and individuals depends on the
power delegated to them by NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG’s Scheme of Reservation and
Delegation and/or through the Terms of Reference of the:
 Governing Body
 Governing Body sub-committees,
 Executive team
 Joint committees
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG remains accountable for all of its functions, including those it
has delegated. In discharging the functions of the CCG that have been delegated, it’s
Governing Body and its committees, joint committees, sub-committees and individuals:
 comply with NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG’s principle of good governance
 operate in accordance with ECCCG’s Scheme of Reservation and Delegation
 comply with NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG’s Standing Orders
 comply with NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG’s arrangements for discharging its statutory
duties
 where appropriate, ensure the member practices have had the opportunity to contribute
to NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG’s decision making process
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has the following sub-committees which are accountable to the
Governing Body:
 Governance and Audit Committee
 Remuneration Committee
 Quality and Performance Committee
The Terms of Reference for each of these Committees can be found in the CCG
Constitution.
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has three advisory committees to the Governing Body:
 Eastern Cheshire Community HealthVoice
 GP Locality Peer Group/Locality Management Meetings
 Caring Together Executive Board
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has entered into joint arrangements with the following groups:
 NHS Vale Royal and NHS South Cheshire CCGs for the provision of Medicines
Management
 Joint Commissioning Committee comprises representatives from NHS Eastern Cheshire
CCG, representatives from NHS South Cheshire CCG and representatives from Cheshire
East Council.
The performance of the Governing Body, its sub-committees and employed staff is routinely
assessed for their effectiveness both internally and externally. In-house assessment and
appraisal is done through Personal Development Reviews, self appraisal and internal audit.
External audit and appraisal of effectiveness and appropriateness is also provided though
arrangements with organisations such as Grant Thornton LLP and NHS England.
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6.6

The Clinical Commissioning Group Risk Management Framework

NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG’s approach to risk management is contained within its
Integrated Risk Management Strategy and Policy document, which defines the risk
management process, responsibilities and the identification and evaluation of operational
and strategic risks.
The identification of risks is the responsibility of all staff and these risks are captured through
the following points of consolidation:
 through the work of committees where they are standing agenda items
 programme and Project Boards
 Governing Body and Executive Team
 external providers and stakeholders
These risks are captured on the corporate risk log and then evaluated by the Executive
Team, who take a view on the appropriateness of controls, scoring and actions to mitigate
the risks.
The Executive Team is also responsible for the publication of the Governing Body
Assurance Framework, a document which contains a detailed view of risks that may have a
significant impact on the achievement of corporate objectives. Responses to the Assurance
Framework by the Governing Body are managed by the Executive Team who monitor and
report progress.
The Governance and Audit Committee is responsible for maintaining oversight of the risk
management process and reviews the Risk Log and Assurance Framework on a regular
basis.
This committee is also responsible for gaining assurances that adequate
arrangements are in place for countering fraud and reviews the outcomes of counter fraud
work.

6.7

The Clinical Commissioning Group Internal Control Framework

The Governing Body Assurance Framework is designed to facilitate the identification of risks
that would impact the organisations ability to meet its objectives, which are underpinned by
its policies and procedures. The Governing Body reviews the Assurance Framework and
feeds back to the Executive Team, Governance and Audit Committee and other Committees
and Project/Programme boards, where appropriate. The Executive team is then responsible
for facilitating any mitigating actions or update to the risk information.

6.8

Information Governance

NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has implemented an Information Governance (IG) Framework
incorporating key policies and procedures for identifying, improving and embedding IG
issues and improvements. NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has been approved for Stage One
Accredited Safe Haven (ASH) status to allow processing of a limited amount of
pseudonymised data. NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has ensured that all staff and Governing
Body members undertake annual IG training. The Governance and Audit Committee has
responsibility for IG within its Terms of Reference; it meets on a bi-monthly basis and reports
into the Governing Body.
The IG process is supported by key staff roles, including the Corporate Programmes and
Governance Manager (delegated Caldicott Guardian) and Chief Finance Officer (delegated
Senior Information Risk Owner, (SIRO). The Cheshire and Merseyside Commissioning
Support Unit (CSU) provides IG support and works with NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG to
ensure compliance with the IG Strategy. The CSU IG lead attends the Governance and
Audit Committee when required. The scores and evidence for the toolkit are reviewed by the
Governance and Audit Committee prior to reporting to the Governing Body for sign off.
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The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and procedures by which
the NHS handles information about patients and employees, in particular personal
identifiable information. The NHS IG Framework is supported by an IG toolkit and the
annual submission process provides assurances to the clinical commissioning group, other
organisations and to individuals that personal information is dealt with legally, securely,
efficiently and effectively.

6.9

Serious untoward incidents

ECCCG has placed a high importance on ensuring that there are robust information
governance systems and processes in place as well as for incident reporting and
investigation of serious incidents, including those related to data losses. There were no
such incidents in the year.

6.10

Pension Obligations

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control
measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the scheme
regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary,
employer’s contributions and payments into the scheme are in accordance with the scheme
rules, and that member pension scheme records are accurately updated in accordance with
the timescales detailed in the regulations.

6.11

Equality, Diversity and Human Rights Obligations

Control measures are in place to ensure that NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG complies with the
required public sector equality duty set out in the Equality Act 2010. A Lay Member for
Public and Patient Involvement is the Governing Body equality and diversity champion and
the Corporate Services Manager along with myself as Accountable Officer lead on the
responsibility of NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG for discharging the public sector equality duty,
ensuring that:
 Equality and diversity is embedded into NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG’s culture, values,
processes and behaviours
 the CCG publishes information to demonstrate its compliance with the equality duty
 the CCG staff undertake equality and diversity training
 the CCG completes equality analysis where appropriate
 the providers of services that we commission pay due regard to their equality duty and
provide information to the CCG

6.12

Sustainable Development Obligations

ECCCG is developing plans to ensure that it meets its obligations under the Climate Change
Act 2008, including the Adaptation Reporting power, and the Public Services (Social Value)
Act 2012. This includes establishing mechanisms to embed social and environmental
sustainability across policy development, business planning and in commissioning.
We are also progressing towards setting out our commitments as a socially responsible
employer.
Meeting the needs of today without compromising the needs of tomorrow is a key driver of
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG’s major programme of transformative work – the Caring
Together Programme. This programme of change typifies NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG’s
approach to commissioning for sustainable development in that end goals include saving
money, saving resources and benefiting staff and patients.
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6.13

Risk Assessment in Relation to Governance, Risk Management &
Internal Control

The system of internal control and governance within NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG is based
on an on-going risk management process that is embedded in the organisation and
combines the following elements:
 the CCG has a published Integrated Risk Management Strategy and Policy document
that is available to all staff on the CCG’s Intranet. The purpose of this policy is to ensure
that the CCG manages risk in all areas using a systematic and consistent approach.
 the CCG has strengthened its control of risk by ensuring that all risks are reviewed by the
Executive Team on a regular basis, thus ensuring that the level of risk reporting is in line
with expectations and policy, as well as ensuring that adequate and timely mitigating
actions are being undertaken.
 the Assurance framework is the key risk identification tool for the group. It contains the
significant risks to the achievement of the organisation’s objectives as identified by the
Governing Body and staff within the organisation. The Assurance Framework enables
the Governing Body to monitor the effectiveness of controls and governance
arrangements required to minimise the principal risks.

6.14


Significant Risks include:

Caring Together Programme – Case for Change: The Caring Together Programme
represents a significant investment by NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG to realise substantial
benefits. The future viability of the health economy and success of NHS Eastern
Cheshire CCG in meeting its standing financial and other statutory duties is largely
dependent on the success of this programme. This programme therefore represents a
significant strategic, financial and reputational risk to the organisation.

Controls: Caring Together Executive Board includes representation from the Governing
Body. Monthly Programme reports to Governing Body following review and recommendation
from Caring Together Executive Board. Programme plan and governance structure in place
for Caring Together which controls the programme


Business Information Systems: The development of a Business Information System
is critical to support NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG deliver against its financial duties and
responsibilities under contract management. The service is provided by the Cheshire
and Merseyside Commissioning Support Unit (CSU) and has been in development for
circa 18 months. Currently, there is limited information being generated by the system,
i.e., little data from Providers within the Manchester area and as such no robust data
directly available to monitor contracts perform contract query etc. This requires
significant estimates to be used in relation to reporting NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG’s
financial position both year to date and forecast outturn.

Controls: Weekly meetings with the CSU are addressing highlighted issues and monitor
agreed set of deliverables.




NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG’s Underlying Financial Deficit: In agreement with NHS
England, ECCCG has adopted an approach which delivers a balanced underlying
financial position (income v expenditure ) and excludes the need to deliver the business
rules that are outlined by NHS England. This approach has been adopted in delivering
the 2013/14 position, as well as forming the basis on how the 2014-2019 5 year financial
plan was calculated.
In adopting this approach ECCCG has set its 5 year financial plan which has two distinct
components-
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An underlying small surplus in 14/15 of £300k rising to a 1% surplus of £2,522 in
2018/19 for its normal on going activities, which in turn starts to address elements of
the afore mentioned business rules.
Caring Together programme costs have been invested by ECCCG in order to deliver
longer term benefits. This investment equates to £2.3m in 2014/15 and £0.2m in
2015/16.
When combined, this results in a planned deficit for 2014/15 of £2m. In order to
deliver the planned surplus there still remains a significant QIPP challenge of circa
£17m over the next five years which will be partly addresses by reviewing
efficiencies, whilst the majority will be derived from our system transformation
programme called Caring Together.

Controls: the 5 year financial plans have been prepared with the support of NHS England
following close, continual dialogue. The 5 year plans will continually be refreshed following
key events I.e. End of a financial year, Integration of Caring Together assumptions etc which
will enable a continual jp to date long term view. Progress will be monitored via the
Governing Body and Finance Committee which is being created for 2014/


Delivery of the Operational Plan: There are some key performance related risks
attached to the delivery of the Operational Plan. The severity of the risks will vary by
season and resources available, but overall these comprise achievement of measures
against: A&E performance, IAPT, Health Care Acquired Infection (HCAI), 18 weeks,
Cancer Waits and the Quality Premium Measures

Controls: Contract Monitoring across all our main providers. Recovery trajectories are
negotiated and contract notices used to enforce the trajectories. NHS Eastern Cheshire
CCG plans developed to deliver Quality Premium Measures. The Quality and Performance
Committee monitor progress on a monthly basis.

6.15

Review of Economy, Efficiency & Effectiveness of the Use of Resources

NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has had a challenging year and has successfully delivered a
surplus position as agreed with NHS England. This has required us to use our resources to
cover our expenditure and not deliver the business rules. These were defined as good
practice by NHS England for CCG’s, and included:
 need to have 2% of our resources available to spend on one off items
 deliver a surplus of 1%
 include a contingency of 0.5% of our resources
This approach was agreed and supported by the Governing Body as part of the 2013/14
Financial Plan. The progress against this plan has been routinely reported to the Governing
Body via the Finance & Performance reports prepared by our Chief Finance Officer.
We have also embarked on our Caring Together programme which aims to redesign the
Health and Social care system. Its objective is to deliver a long term sustainable future both
in terms of quality and money within the next five years. This is the key Quality, Innovation,
Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) scheme for ECCCG and is due to reach a conclusion
during the summer of 2014. In addition, we have a range of smaller schemes aimed at
ensuring services are being provided efficiently i.e. Prescribing.
We have also used Mersey Internal Audit to provide assurance on a number of areas around
our overall use of resources:
 Core Financial Services which reviewed our financial systems and controls and provided
significant assurance on our systems, whilst outlining 7 medium to low risk
recommendations.
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 Quality, Innovation, Productivity, Performance audit looked at our arrangements to deliver
efficiencies across the economy. Overall, whilst achieving 74% of our plan for year a
number of recommendations were made around strengthening our governance
arrangements.

6.16

Review of the Effectiveness of Governance, Risk Management and
Internal Control

As Accounting Officer I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control within NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG.

6.17

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Governing Body is responsible for the overall governance of the organisation and is
responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control, including
systems and resources for managing all types of risk. The Governing Body has ratified the
various risk based policies through the Governance and Audit Committee. These include
Standards of Business Conduct, Safeguarding Adults and Children, Counter Fraud process
and Information Governance policies as well as reviewing the Integrated Risk Management
Strategy.
Mandatory staff training includes Safeguarding, Counter Fraud, Information Governance as
well as Safety Awareness training. Staff are encouraged to seek, be mindful of and adopt
best practice guidance to minimise and manage risk – both personal and corporate.

6.18

Review of Effectiveness

My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the
CCG’s internal auditors (Mersey Internal Audit Agency (MIAA)) and the executive managers
and clinical leads within the CCG who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework. I have drawn on performance information
available to me.
Following completion of the planned audit work for the financial year for NHS Eastern
Cheshire CCG, the Director of Audit for MIAA issued an independent and objective opinion
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the CCG’s system of risk management, governance
and internal control. Whilst the opinion does not imply that MIAA has reviewed all risks and
assurances relating to the organisation the opinion is substantially derived from the conduct
of risk-based plans generated from a robust and organisation-led Assurance Framework –
and as such it is one component that I have taken into account in making the Annual
Governance Statement.
The Director of Audit concluded that:
 Significant Assurance can be given that that there is a generally sound system of
internal control designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that controls are
generally being applied consistently. However, some weaknesses in the design or
inconsistent application of controls put the achievement of particular objective at risk.
 An Assurance Framework has been established which is designed and operating to
meet the requirements of the Annual Governance Statement and provides reasonable
assurance that there is an effective system of internal control to manage the principal
risks identified by the organisation.
 Assurance across the organisation’s critical business systems include:
Access to services




Significant Assurance in respect of the key controls in
operation within the CCG’s core financial systems
Limited assurance for QIPP but the CCG has plans to
significantly strengthen QIPP governance and delivery
mechanisms
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Transparency and
Governance




Patient Participation
and Customer Service
Informed
Commissioning







An assurance framework has been developed and agreed at
Governing Body
Significant assurance over committee arrangements with
feedback from members being taken forward by the CCG
Systems for engagement and communication with member
practices were found to be operating effectively
Significant assurance in respect of Information Governance
controls and toolkit submission
Data Quality Review achieved significant assurances with
control for improvement progressing

Contribution to Governance, Risk Management and Internal Control
Enhancements:
 insight into the overall governance and authorisation conditions gained from liaison
throughout the year with management
 detailed insight into the overall governance and assurance processes gained from
liaison throughout the year with the Executive Team, Governance and Audit
Committee and early support to facilitate the development of the Assurance
Framework
 involvement with the organisation including regular review of Governing Body papers
 review and advice on the development of the Governance and Audit Committee and
corporate governance documentation
 on-going discussion with lead officers and Lay Members throughout the year
 follow up and support with the development of an Audit Tracker Tool demonstrating
significant progress against recommendations to improve systems and controls
 provision of MIAA briefings and CCG involvement through the MIAA events
programme

During the year MIAA issued the following audit reports with a conclusion of limited
assurance:
 QIPP Review: Limited Assurance. There are weaknesses in the design and or operation
of controls which could have a significant impact on the achievement of the key system,
function of process objectives but should not have a significant impact on the
achievement of organisational objectives.
During the year MIAA issued the no audit reports with a conclusion of no assurance.

6.19

Risks:

Roles and Responsibilities:
 Issue identified: Ownership roles and responsibilities are not clearly understood and or
working effectively. Membership buy-in to plans may not be evident or achieved.
 Risk Rating: High
 Recommendation: We recommend that the CCG define roles and responsibilities and
strategic expectations with regard to the QIPP agenda and plans and provide clarity
through cascading to appropriate stakeholders. This should include member practices.
 Management Response: (Remedial Action Agreed) Agreed, we will have clearly
identified accountable individuals around each Scheme as well as a fully worked up
programme and timescales.
 Responsibility for Action: Chief Finance Officer
 Deadline for Action: 30th April 2014
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QIPP Governance Control Design
 Issue Identified: the CCG does not currently have any overarching governance
arrangements for QIPP, there is no mechanism for regular monitoring and holding
schemes to account for delivery. As the CCG does not have a Finance Committee and
QIPP does not form part of the remit of the Clinical Quality and Performance Committee
there is a reliance on QIPP delivery being scrutinised and monitored at the Executive
Team and/or Governing Body meetings. Lack of transparency, rigour and overall
governance in the QIPP processes
 Risk Rating: High
 Recommendation: the CCG needs to develop a mechanism through which there can be
more regular scrutiny and holding to account for delivery of QIPP either within the current
committee/programme management arrangements or through the development of an
Integrated Finance and Performance Committee.
 Management Response: (Remedial Action Agreed) Transparency has been via the
Governing Body papers. However, we are setting up a Finance Committee and have
already drafted a Terms of Reference with the membership to be finalised. One of its
remits will be the scrutiny of the QIPP agenda.
 Responsibility for Action: Chief Finance Officer
 Deadline for Action: 30th April 2014

6.20

Data Quality

Our Governing Body and Members have received a variety of reports throughout the year
which are based on good quality information that is both transparent and concise. This has
been supported by a number of independent assurance checks via Mersey Internal Audit
which looked at two specific areas, both of which support the reporting through to the
Governing Body and its Members:
 Data Quality. The audit did not identify any high or critical risk areas although ECCCG
has committed to a number of actions to further improve the quality of data we
use. These include development of a data quality policy, revisions to our contracts with
our main business intelligence supplier (CSU) and reviewing the data validation checks
we have in place
 Formal Sub Committee arrangements. The aim was to evaluate arrangements in place
to help ensure each appointed committee fulfills its intended function in providing
assurance to the governing body. Whilst 5 medium risk recommendations were
highlighted, overall it provided a solid basis from which to work from
 Membership Reporting. The overall objective of the review was to evaluate the
mechanisms in place to engage with and communicate to the CCG membership. The
findings highlighted significant assurance.

6.21

Business Critical Models

Within ECCCG we have a number of business models which are used to support the
delivery of our statutory duties. In line with the Macpherson report these models have a
underpinning framework that ensure each model has a responsible owner within the CCG
who ensures the quality assurance process is compliant and appropriate, that model risks,
limitations and major assumptions are understood by users of the model, and the use of the
model outputs is appropriate.

6.22

Data Security

We have submitted a satisfactory level of compliance with the information governance toolkit
assessment.
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6.23

Discharge of Statutory Functions

During establishment, the arrangements put in place by the CCG were developed to ensure
compliance with the all relevant legislation. Legal guidance informed the matters reserved
for Membership Body and Governing Body decision and the scheme of delegation.
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG has reviewed all of the statutory duties and powers conferred
on it by the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) and other associated legislative
and regulations. As a result, I can confirm that the CCG is clear about the legislative
requirements associated with each of the statutory functions for which it is responsible,
including any restrictions on delegation of those functions.
Responsibility for each duty and power has been clearly allocated to a lead Director or
Executive. Directorates have been developed to ensure that their structures provide the
necessary capability and capacity to undertake all of the CCG’s statutory duties and
emerging responsibility for either leading or contributing to the transformation of health and
social care services.

6.24

Conclusion

I would like to thank the role of the Governance and Audit Committee and both Internal and
External Audit in providing assurance and advice around our governance arrangements. In
conclusion I am happy to confirm that no significant control issues have been identified in the
preparation of the 2013/14 Annual Report and Accounts
Signed

____________________

Jerry Hawker
Chief Officer (Accountable Officer)
Date:
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Position
Meeting membership
Biography

Dr Paul Bowen
CCG Chair, Chair of Governing Body
Governing Body
Dr Paul Bowen trained at Nottingham
University, and completed his hospital and
general practice training in Lincolnshire. He
moved to Cheshire in 2004 where he
worked as a GP in Macclesfield, before
becoming a partner at McIlvride Medical
Practice in Poynton in 2006. His special
interests are in diabetes, elderly care and
mental health.
Paul became involved in commissioning in
2007 where he became chair of the local
practice based commissioning group, and
then a member and chair of the PCTs
commissioning executive (formally PEC).
Paul has a passion for patient centred
care, through integrated working across
health and social sectors. His interests also
lie in the use of technology and IT to bring
patients and professionals closer together,
through improved communication and
collaboration.

Name
Position
Meeting membership
Biography

Jerry Hawker
Chief Officer (Accountable Officer)
Governing Body
Jerry joined the NHS in 2005 through the
Department of Health National Gateway to
Leadership scheme and held a wide range
of executive roles in Central and Eastern
Cheshire PCT before joining the CCG.
Prior to joining the NHS, he spent over 15
years in the specialty chemical industry
and latterly running his own business
consultancy company. He graduated as a
Polymer Scientist and holds a corporate
MBA from Babson College, USA.
He is particularly interested in how the
NHS can expand its partnership with the
Voluntary sector and how the use of patient
experiences can underpin continuous
improvement both in clinical outcomes and
the experience communities have of their
local NHS services.
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Alex Mitchell
Chief Finance Officer
Governing Body
Alex started his finance career many years
ago in 1988 with Marks and Spencers and
having developed an interest in this area,
applied for a role within the NHS in 1991.
he has worked in Acute Hospitals,
Community Providers, Primary Care Trust
sand now Clinical Commissioning Groups,
all of which have provided him with a
variety of experience and opportunities.
Alex isa member and fellow of the
Association
of
Chartered Certified
Accountants and feels that by working
within the NHS that he is applying his skills
and energy on behalf of the public.

Name
Position

Meeting membership
Biography

Gerry Gray
Lay Member for Governance and Audit,
Deputy Chair of Governing Body, Chair
of Governance and Audit Committee,
Chair of Remuneration Committee
Governing Body, Governance and Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee
Gerry is a graduate of Liverpool University
and a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of
Management
Accountants.
He
has
extensive experience of international
business having spent more than 30 years
in senior financial roles in blue chip multinational organisations such as Ford Motor
Company,
PriceWaterhouse Coopers,
Courtaulds and Pilkington, including four
years based in the USA.
Gerry is a Trustee of St Ann’s Hospice, and
is Chairman of Community Catalysts,
which is a national charity involved in the
field of micro social enterprise.
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Gill Boston

Position

Lay Member for Public and Patient
Involvement
Governing Body, Governance and Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Clinical and Quality Performance
Committee
Gill works as the programme manager for
The National Care Forum and Voluntary
Organisations Disability Group on the
Department of Health funded Voluntary
Sector Organisations Strategic Partnership
Programme. She is a qualified social
worker and holds and Honours degree in
social studies and an MA in Community
Care. Gill has worked in various
management and monitoring roles for the
Local Authority before moving in to higher
education where she spent the next 13
years as a senior lecturer in health and
social care at the University of Salford
before moving to her current role in
October 2009.

Meeting membership

Biography

Name
Position
Meeting membership

Bill Swan
Lay Member for Public and Patient
Involvement
Governing Body, Governance and Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Clinical and Quality Performance
Committee

Biography
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Sally Rogers
Registered Nurse
Governing Body, Governance and Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Clinical Quality and Performance
Committee
Sally is a registered general nurse who
completed return to practice, nursing at
Manchester University in March 2011. She
worked for 13 years in industry before
returning to the health service eight years
ago leading a regional programme of work
for The National Institute for Mental Health
England around older peoples mental
health.
Passionate about the quality of care we
deliver, particularly to older people,
developing leaders and supporting nurses.
Sally is also an Executive Board member
of the National Association of Primary
Care.

Name
Position
Meeting membership

Biography

Duncan Matheson
Secondary Care Doctor
Governing Body, Governance and Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Clinical and Quality Performance
Committee
Duncan trained as a medical student at
Oxford and St Thomas’ Hospital, London
and qualified as a doctor in 1970. Following
posts in London his surgical training was
mostly in Birmingham and the West
Midlands and he was appointed Consultant
Surgeon in Macclesfield in 1984.
Duncan set up a vascular surgical service
in East Cheshire as well as working across
the breadth of general surgery but as the
nature of surgical services changed so did
his focus and in his latter years was purely
a breast surgeon. Duncan retired as a
consultant in 2010.
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Dr James Milligan
General Practice Locality Peer Group
Lead
Alderley
Edge,
Chelford,
Handforth and Wilmslow
Governing Body, Clinical and Quality
Performance Committee
Dr James Milligan BM BS graduated from
Nottingham University in 1995 and
undertook a variety of hospital posts before
completing GP training in 2001.
He has been partner at Handforth Health
Centre since 2002.

Name
Position
Meeting membership
Biography

Melanie Lyman
General Practice Locality Peer Group
Lead Congleton and Holmes Chapel
Governing Body, Governance and Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee
Melanie worked in General Practice for the
last 32 years, originally training as a
Medical Secretary. She gained a Practice
Management qualification approximately
25 years ago and has been employed as a
Practice Manager working in Eastern
Cheshire for all of this time.
Melanie
has
been
involved
with
commissioning of services for the past
seven years.

Name
Position
Meeting membership
Biography

Dr Mike Clark
General Practice Locality Peer Group
Lead Macclesfield
Governing Body
Dr Mike Clark MB ChB MRCS MRCGP
graduated from Manchester University in
1995.
A GP Partner at High Street Surgery,
Macclesfield since 2005, Mike is a GP with
a specialist interest in Urology, vasectomy
and minor surgery.
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Angela Wales
General Practice Locality Peer Group
Lead Bollington, Disley and Poynton
Governing Body, Governance and Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Angela has worked in Health Service for 39
years initially in secondary care then to
General Practice. She has worked as a
Practice Manager for the past 19 years and
is passionate about the NHS.
During her career she has had a variety of
opportunities working with PCTs, the NHS
Alliance and helping guide practices
through Practice Based Commissioning.
She has experienced fund holding where
practices held their own budgets and has
seen the advantages that practice based
commissioning could achieve - bringing
care closer to home for patients. Whilst this
has now been replaced, the fundamental
ethos remains the same for Clinical
Commissioning Groups.

Name
Position
Meeting membership
Biography

Dr Jennifer Lawn
General Practice Locality Peer Group
Lead Knutsford
Governing Body, Governance and Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Dr Jennifer Lawn MB Chb Manchester has
22 years experience as a partner at Toft
Road Surgery, Knutsford caring for a
representative cross section of the local
population.
I have been Practice Lead attending
locality meeting for many years so have
been involved in the evolution of CCG and
have some understanding of the workings
of the governing body and its advisory
committees
I have good working relationship with
other practices in Knutsford
I am enthusiastic about improving
healthcare in the local community whilst
ensuring efficient use of limited resources.
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Dr Julie Sin
Consultant in Public Health and
Medicine
Governing Body
Julie first joined the NHS over twenty years
ago.
A
graduate
of
Manchester
University her early career spanned the
breadth of hospital care, primary care and
community health giving her invaluable
insights into care across the NHS system.
After completing general practice training in
1994 and further work in reproductive
healthcare she entered the field of public
health medicine. In 2009 she joined Central
and Eastern Cheshire PCT to develop
and lead its healthcare public health
function and was key to the safe
transition of the healthcare public health
function locally during the 2013 reforms.
Combining her breadth of NHS experience
and population medicine, Julie has worked
with the NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG since
its inception, providing advice and support
during its early development through to its
current fully authorised function. Julie's
Governing Body role ensures there is
specific
challenge
to
the
CCG
commissioning strategy so that it has due
regard to health gain, evidence-based
approaches, and population outcomes.

Name
Position
Meeting membership
Biography

Dr Julia Huddart
Executive GP for Clinical Leadership
Team
Clinical Quality and Performance
Committee
Dr Julia Huddart MB ChB DCH DRCOG
MRCGP qualified has been a GP in
Wilmslow since 1983. She has been a
trainer in General Practice for over 15
years and has had 20 years’ experience in
the position of Clinical Assistant Palliative
Care at East Cheshire Hospice.
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Name
Position
Meeting membership
Biography

Neil Evans
Head of Business Management
Clinical Quality and Performance
Committee
Neil joined the NHS in 2008 having
previously worked in a variety of
operational, planning and change roles in
Financial Services. Neil was recruited to
the NHS through a national leadership
development programme and initially
worked in the Acute Sector in both
Operational and Project Management roles
before moving to Central and Eastern PCT
in August 2009. Neil has been involved in
NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG since its
inception.
Jacki Wilkes
Clinical Quality and Performance
Committee
Jacki is a qualified nurse, specialising in
intensive care with experience in
operational management in the acute
sector.
Her
commissioning
experience began in 2006 in North
Staffordshire and later in Eastern Cheshire
where she joined the team to support the
development of clinical commissioning.
Jacki’s interest is in service improvement
and redesign and she is currently
responsible
for
continuous
quality
improvement and joint commissioning.
Current priorities include, quality in care
homes, access to mental health services
and supporting the development of
integrated services such as stroke care
building on the principles underpinning
the Caring Together programme.
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Andrew Binnie
Quality and Performance Manager
Clinical Quality and Performance
Committee
Andrew has been in post since August
2013 and has over ten years’ experience in
the health service, in particular with a
specialty of performance management. In
his previous role at Salford Royal NHS
Foundation
Trust
as
Corporate
Performance manger he was responsible
for all of the Trusts statutory and
mandatory performance returns to the
Department of Health and also specialised
in quality improvement work throughout the
Trust. Prior to this position he worked at
Tameside and Glossop PCT as the
performance manager.
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
for the year ended 31 March 2014

Note
Administration Costs and Programme Expenditure
Gross employee benefits
Other costs
Other operating revenue
Net operating costs before interest
Finance costs
Net operating costs for the financial year

4
5
3

2,117
220,166
(217)
222,066

8

1
222,067

Net operating costs for the financial year including
absorption transfers
Of which:
Administration Costs
Gross employee benefits
Other costs
Other operating revenue
Net administration costs before interest
Programme Expenditure
Gross employee benefits
Other costs
Other operating revenue
Net programme expenditure before interest

2013/14
£000

222,067

5
5
2

1,865
2,647
(15)
4,497

5
5
2

252
217,519
(202)
217,569

Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure
Total comprehensive net expenditure for the year

222,067

The notes on pages 64 to 88 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2014
31 March 2014
Note

£000

Total non-current assets
Current assets:
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provisions
Total current liabilities
Total Assets less Current Liabilities

17
20

341
459
801
801

13

11,927
11,927
(11,127)

Non-current liabilities

-

Total Assets Employed

(11,127)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity
General fund
Total taxpayers' equity:

(11,127)
(11,127)

The financial statements on pages [ ] to [ ] were approved by the Governing Body on
[date] and signed on its behalf by:

Jerry Hawker
Accountable Officer
XX June 2014
The notes on pages 64 to 88 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2014

Note
Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2013-14
Balance at 1 April 2013

General
fund

Other
reserves

Total
reserves

£000

£000

£000

-

-

-

Changes in CCG taxpayers’ equity for 2013-14
Net operating costs for the financial year

(222,067)

-

(222,067)

Net Recognised CCG Expenditure for the Financial Year
Net funding
Balance at 31 March 2014

(222,067)
210,940
(11,127)

-

(222,067)
210,940
(11,127)

The notes on pages 64 to 88 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cashflows
for the year ended 31 March 2014

Note
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net operating costs for the financial year
(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating Activities

(222,067)
(341)
11,927
(210,481)

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Investing Activities

-

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing

(210,481)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net funding received
Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year
Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of
the Financial Year

2013/14
£000

210,940
210,940
12

459

459

The notes on pages 64 to 88 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2014
1
Accounting Policies
NHS England has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning groups
shall meet the accounting requirements of the Manual for Accounts issued by the
Department of Health. Consequently, the following financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Manual for Accounts 2013-14 issued by the Department
of Health. The accounting policies contained in the Manual for Accounts follow
International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and
appropriate to clinical commissioning groups, as determined by HM Treasury, which is
advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board. Where the Manual for Accounts
permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most
appropriate to the particular circumstances of the clinical commissioning group for the
purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted
by the clinical commissioning group are described below. They have been applied
consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.
In accordance with the Directions issued by NHS England comparative information is not
provided in these Financial Statements.
1.1

Going Concern

ECCCG has set its 5 year financial plan for 2014 – 2019 which reinforces the challenging
position ahead. In recognition of the local economies financial position, ECCCG has
engaged on a system wide transformation programme called Caring Together. One of its
key aims is to ensure we have high quality Health & Social Care services for our
population that are financially sustainable for the future. This is also supported by the
Challenged Health Economy work which is aiming to provide a list of options that deliver
sustainable Acute Services across South Manchester, including our local hospital East
Cheshire Trust. All of these programmes are being supported both locally and nationally
and we are recognised as one of the leading transformational programmes.
In setting its 5 year financial plan, there are two key distinctions to make. If we excluded
the 2014/15 (one off) programme costs associated with Caring Together then ECCCG
would be making a small but increasing surplus over the 5 year period and crucially living
within its financial allocations. It is only when we add in the programme costs of £2.3m
that the CCG forecasts a loss (deficit) in 2014/15 of £2m. It is expected that we have to
finalise the work which identifies the savings / efficiencies of the transformed system; and
can be best described as an upfront investment or invest to save initiative.
Finally, with the exception of the 2014/15 planned deficit, ECCCG has an improving
underlying surplus of £300,000 which increases over the 5 years to £ 2,522,000 which
represents 1% of the CCG allocation (as defined by NHS England). Therefore, it is
ECCCG opinion that the CCG has a financially stable future, supported by the Caring
Together programme, concluding that ECCCG is operating as a going concern.
Taking the local and national support from NHS England into consideration, it is
appropriate that these accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis.
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Notes to the financial statements
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1.2

Accounting Convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to
account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets,
inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.
1.3

Acquisitions & Discontinued Operations

Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the public
sector. Activities are considered to be ‘discontinued’ only if they cease entirely. They are
not considered to be ‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector body to
another.
1.4
Movement of Assets within the Department of Health Group
Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of absorption
accounting in line with the Government Financial Reporting Manual, issued by HM
Treasury. The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require retrospective
adoption, so prior year transactions (which have been accounted for under merger
accounting) have not been restated. Absorption accounting requires that entities account
for their transactions in the period in which they took place, with no restatement of
performance required when functions transfer within the public sector. Where assets and
liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure, and is disclosed separately from operating costs.
Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Department of Health Group are
accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly give rise to income and expenditure
entries.
For transfers of assets and liabilities from those NHS bodies that closed on 1 April 2013,
HM Treasury has agreed that a modified absorption approach should be applied. For
these transactions only, gains and losses are recognised in reserves rather than the
Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure.
1.5

Pooled Budgets

Where the clinical commissioning group has entered into a pooled budget arrangement
under Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 the clinical commissioning
group accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure arising from
the activities of the pooled budget, identified in accordance with the pooled budget
agreement.
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If the clinical commissioning group is in a “jointly controlled operation”, the clinical
commissioning group recognises:
The assets the clinical commissioning group controls;
The liabilities the clinical commissioning group incurs;
The expenses the clinical commissioning group incurs; and,
The clinical commissioning group’s share of the income from the
pooled budget activities.
If the clinical commissioning group is involved in a “jointly controlled assets”
arrangement, in addition to the above, the clinical commissioning group recognises:
The clinical commissioning group’s share of the jointly controlled assets
(classified according to the nature of the assets);
The clinical commissioning group’s share of any liabilities incurred
jointly; and,
The clinical commissioning group’s share of the expenses jointly
incurred.
1.6

Critical Accounting Judgements & Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the clinical commissioning group’s accounting policies, management
is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates and the
estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
1.6.1

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see
below) that management has made in the process of applying the clinical commissioning
group’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
Key judgements in the preparation of the financial statements are:
ensuring that appropriate estimates are made for areas of estimation
uncertainty as set out below,
ensuring that appropriate policies are in place for recognising
contractual liabilities,
ensuring that appropriate policies are in place for considering any
claims legal or for continuing health care.
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1.6.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The following are the key estimations that management has made in the process of
applying the clinical commissioning group’s accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
Claims for continuing health care from 1 April 2013 are provided to the
extent that a reasonable estimate can be made for the amount of the
claim and the potential success of any claim. As NHS England has
assumed responsibility for claims received prior to 31 March 2013, the
CCG is responsible only for claims received since that date. The
amount of such claims is not significant.
Data in respect of prescribing costs are usually received two months in
arrears and it is necessary to estimate the amount that will be payable
for the last two months of the year. This estimate is based on a
prescribing spend profile issued by NHS England. The amount
estimated at the year end is £4,943,000.
Partially completed spells are periods of care for which the provider of
those services has not billed their costs. The providers provide an
estimate of the costs that need to be billed and this estimate is checked
to ensure it is reasonable in the light of data in relation to stays. The
amount is agreed between the provider and the CCG. The total
amounted to £918k.
1.7

Revenue

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that,
performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.
Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following
year, that income is deferred.
1.8

Employee Benefits

1.8.1 Short-term Employee Benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which
the service is received from employees, including bonuses earned but not yet taken.
The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is
recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are permitted to carry
forward leave into the following period. As leave is not carried forward, the estimate
amounts to £Nil
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1.8.2 Retirement Benefit Costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions
Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS
employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the
Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a
way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme
assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined
contribution scheme: the cost to the clinical commissioning group of participating in the
scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting
period.
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities
are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is
charged to expenditure at the time the clinical commissioning group commits itself to the
retirement, regardless of the method of payment.
1.9

Other Expenses

Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or
services have been received. They are measured at the fair value of the consideration
payable.
Expenses and liabilities in respect of grants are recognised when the clinical
commissioning group has a present legal or constructive obligation, which occurs when
all of the conditions attached to the payment have been met.
1.10

Government Grants

The value of assets received by means of a government grant are credited directly to
income. Deferred income is recognised only where conditions attached to the grant
preclude immediate recognition of the gain.
1.11

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.
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1.11.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the
inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised in calculating the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as
a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated
and individually assessed as to whether they are operating or finance leases.
1.12

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty
on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3
months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral part of the clinical
commissioning group’s cash management.
1.13

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the clinical
commissioning group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate as follows:
·
·
·
·

Timing of cash flows (0 to 5 years inclusive): Minus 1.90%
Timing of cash flows (6 to 10 years inclusive): Minus 0.65%
Timing of cash flows (over 10 years): Plus 2.20%
All employee early departures: 1.80%
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When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be
measured reliably.
A restructuring provision is recognised when the clinical commissioning group has
developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid expectation
in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or
announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring
provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are
those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated
with on-going activities of the entity.
1.14

Clinical Negligence Costs

The NHS Litigation Authority operates a risk pooling scheme under which the clinical
commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority which
in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure.
Although the NHS Litigation Authority is administratively responsible for all clinical
negligence cases the legal liability remains with the clinical commissioning group.
1.15

Non-clinical Risk Pooling

The clinical commissioning group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the
Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling schemes under which the
clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority
and, in return, receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual
membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are
charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.
1.16

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the clinical commissioning group,
or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that a payment
will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a
payment is remote.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the clinical commissioning group. A contingent
asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present
value.
1.17

Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to
the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade receivables, when the goods or
services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights have expired or the asset has been transferred.
Financial assets are classified into the following categories:
·
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss;
·
Held to maturity investments;
·
Available for sale financial assets; and,
·
Loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.
1.17.1 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts,
and contracts with embedded derivatives whose separate value cannot be ascertained,
are treated as financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at fair
value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in calculating the clinical commissioning
group’s surplus or deficit for the year. The net gain or loss incorporates any interest
earned on the financial asset.
1.17.2 Held to Maturity Assets
Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity, and there is a positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity. After initial recognition, they are held at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest is recognised using the effective
interest method.
1.17.3 Available For Sale Financial Assets
Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated
as available for sale or that do not fall within any of the other three financial asset
classifications. They are measured at fair value with changes in value taken to the
revaluation reserve, with the exception of impairment losses. Accumulated gains or
losses are recycled to surplus/deficit on de-recognition.
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1.17.4 Loans & Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments which are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.
Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.
Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, otherwise
by valuation techniques.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset, to the initial fair value of the financial
asset.
At the end of the reporting period, the clinical commissioning group assesses whether
any financial assets, other than those held at ‘fair value through profit and loss’ are
impaired. Financial assets are impaired and impairment losses recognised if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the asset.
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.
The loss is recognised in expenditure and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through a provision for impairment of receivables.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through expenditure
to the extent that the carrying amount of the receivable at the date of the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
1.18

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the clinical
commissioning group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been
received. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has been discharged,
that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.
Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historical cost. Otherwise,
financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value.
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1.18.1 Financial Guarantee Contract Liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are subsequently measured at the higher of:
·
The premium received (or imputed) for entering into the guarantee less
cumulative amortisation; and,
·
The amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets.
1.18.2 Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
Embedded derivatives that have different risks and characteristics to their host contracts,
and contracts with embedded derivatives whose separate value cannot be ascertained,
are treated as financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. They are held at fair
value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in the clinical commissioning group’s
surplus/deficit. The net gain or loss incorporates any interest payable on the financial
liability.
1.18.3 Other Financial Liabilities
After initial recognition, all other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, except for loans from Department of Health, which are
carried at historic cost. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the life of the asset, to the net carrying amount
of the financial liability. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.
1.19

Value Added Tax

Most of the activities of the clinical commissioning group are outside the scope of VAT
and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on purchases is not recoverable.
Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the
capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is
recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
1.20

Third Party Assets

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not
recognised in the accounts since the clinical commissioning group has no beneficial
interest in them.
1.21

Losses & Special Payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated
when it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are
items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control
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procedures compared with the generality of payments. They are divided into different
categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled.
Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in
expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good
through insurance cover had the clinical commissioning group not been bearing its own
risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal revenue expenditure).
1.22 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been
Adopted
The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require the following Standards
and Interpretations to be applied in 2013-14, all of which are subject to consultation:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

IAS 27: Separate Financial Statements
IAS 28: Investments in Associates & Joint Ventures
IAS 32: Financial Instruments – Presentation (amendment)
IFRS 9: Financial Instruments
IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements
IFRS 11: Joint Arrangements
IFRS 12: Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement

The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the
accounts for 2013-14, were they applied in that year.
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2

Other Operating Revenue

Non-patient care services to other bodies
Other revenue
Total other operating revenue

2013/14
Total

2013/14
Admin

2013/14
Programme

£000

£000

£000

200
17
217

15
15

200
2
202

Admin revenue is revenue received that is not directly attributable to the provision of healthcare
or healthcare services.
Revenue in this note does not include cash received from NHS England, which is drawn down
directly into the bank account of the CCG and credited to the General Fund.

3

Revenue

From rendering of services
Total

2013/14
Total
£000
217
217

2013/14
Admin
£000
15
15

2013/14
Programme
£000
202
202

Revenue is totally from the supply of services. The clinical commissioning group receives
no revenue from the sale of goods.
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4

Employee benefits and staff numbers

4.1 Employee benefits

2013/14
Total

Total
Permanent
Employees

Other

Total

Admin
Permanent
Employees

Other

Total

Programme
Permanent
Employees

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Employee Benefits
Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme
Gross employee benefits expenditure

1,755
138
224
2,117

1,650
138
224
2,012

105
105

1,570
122
173
1,865

1,516
122
173
1,810

54
54

185
16
51
252

135
16
51
202

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2)
Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs

2,117

2,012

105

1,865

1,810

54

252

202

Less: Employee costs capitalised
Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs

2,117

2,012

105

1,865

1,810

54

252

202
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4.2 Average number of people employed
2013/14
Total

Permanently
employed

Other

Number

Number

Number

Total
Of the above:
Number of whole time equivalent people engaged on
capital projects

43

39

4

-

-

-

4.3 Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements
Total Days Lost
Total Staff Years
Average working Days Lost

2013/14
Number
148
0.75
3.7

4.4 Exit packages agreed in the financial year
No exit packages were agreed in the year.

4.5 Pension costs
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. Details
of the benefits payable under these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at
www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/Pensions.
The Scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, GP practices
and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales.
The Scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their
share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities.
Therefore, the Scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to
the clinical commissioning group of participating in the Scheme is taken as equal to the
contributions payable to the Scheme for the accounting period.
The Scheme is subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years (until 2004, every five years)
and an accounting valuation every year. An outline of these follows:
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4.5.1 Full actuarial (funding) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under
the Scheme (taking into account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the
contribution rates to be paid by employers and scheme members. The last such valuation, which
determined current contribution rates was undertaken as at 31 March 2004 and covered the
period from 1 April 1999 to that date. The conclusion from the 2004 valuation was that the
Scheme had accumulated a notional deficit of £3.3 billion against the notional assets as at 31
March 2004.
In order to defray the costs of benefits, employers pay contributions at 14% of Pensionable pay
and most employees had up to April 2008 paid 6%, with manual staff paying 5%.
Following the full actuarial review by the Government Actuary undertaken as at 31 March 2004,
and after consideration of changes to the NHS Pension Scheme taking effect from 1 April 2008,
his Valuation report recommended that employer contributions could continue at the existing rate
of 14% of Pensionable pay, from 1 April 2008, following the introduction of employee
contributions on a tiered scale from 5% up to 8.5% of their Pensionable pay depending on total
earnings. On advice from the scheme actuary, scheme contributions may be varied from time to
time to reflect changes in the scheme’s liabilities.
4.5.2 Accounting valuation
A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of
the reporting period by updating the results of the full actuarial valuation.
Between the full actuarial valuations at a two-year midpoint, a full and detailed member data-set
is provided to the scheme actuary. At this point the assumptions regarding the composition of the
scheme membership are updated to allow the scheme liability to be valued.
The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2011 is based on detailed membership data
as at 31 March 2008 (the latest midpoint) updated to 31 March 2011 with summary global
member and accounting data.
The latest assessment of the liabilities of the Scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report,
which forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Resource Account,
published annually. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website. Copies can
also be obtained from The Stationery Office.
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4.5.3 Scheme Provisions
The NHS Pension Scheme provides defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is
an illustrative guide only, and is not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or
the specific conditions that must be met before these benefits can be obtained:
•

•
•
•

•

•

The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for
the 1995 section and of the best of the last three years pensionable pay for each year of
service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of membership.
Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual
pensions based upon total pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service;
With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual
pension for an additional tax free lump sum, up to a maximum amount permitted under
HM Revenue & Customs rules. This new provision is known as “pension commutation”;
Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions
(Increase) Act 1971, and are based on changes in retail prices in the twelve months
ending 30 September in the previous calendar year;
Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the Scheme
who are permanently incapable of fulfilling their duties effectively through illness or
infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in service, and
five times their annual pension for death after retirement is payable;
For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are
not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is
charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure at the time the clinical
commissioning group commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of
payment; and,
Members can purchase additional service in the Scheme and contribute to money
purchase AVC’s run by the Scheme’s approved providers or by other Free Standing
Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.
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5.

Operating expenses

Gross employee benefits
Employee benefits excluding governing body members
Executive governing body members
Total gross employee benefits

2013/14

2013/14

2013/14

Total
£000

Admin
£000

Programme
£000

1,927
190
2,117

1,675
190
1,865

252
252

Other costs
Services from other CCGs and NHS England
Services from foundation trusts
Services from other NHS trusts
Services from other NHS bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies
Chair and lay membership body and governing body members
Supplies and services – clinical
Supplies and services – general
Consultancy services *
Establishment
Transport
Premises
Audit fees
Prescribing costs
GPMS/APMS and PCTMS
Other professional fees excl. audit
Education and training
Total other costs

1,441
47,986
102,862
59
32,833
225
249
30
1,780
535
9
295
73
30,701
730
338
20
220,166

1,348
36
22
225
30
16
298
3
288
73
299
9
2,647

93
47,986
102,826
59
32,811
249
0
1,764
237
6
7
30,701
730
39
11
217,519

Total operating expenses

222,283

4,512

217,771

*Consultancy costs, £600k of which were funded by NHS England, are in respect of our Caring
Together Programme.
Admin expenditure is expenditure incurred that is not a direct payment for the provision of
healthcare or healthcare services.
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6.1

Better Payment Practice Code

Measure of compliance

2013/14
Number

2013/14
£000

Non-NHS Payables
Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the Year
Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target
Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target

6,036
5,297
87.76%

32,876
27,855
84.73%

NHS Payables
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year
Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target
Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices paid within target

2,020
1,334
66.04%

154,096
141,636
91.91%

The Better Payment Practice Code requires the CCG to aim to pay all valid invoices by the due
date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.

6.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998

2013/14
£000

Amounts included in finance costs from claims made under this legislation
Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation
Total

7

1
1

Income Generation Activities

The clinical commissioning group does not undertake any income generation activities.

8.

Finance costs
2013/14
£000

Interest on late payment of commercial debt
Total finance costs

1
1
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9.

Net gain/(loss) on transfer by absorption
No Gain or loss arose on transfer of assets by absorption.

10.

Operating Leases

10.1

As lessee

10.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense

2013/14

Land
£000
Payments recognised as an expense
Minimum lease payments
Total

Buildings
£000
-

Other
£000

258
258

Total
£000
13
13

10.1.2 Future minimum lease payments

2013/14

Land
£000
Payable:
No later than one year
Between one and five years
After five years
Total

11 Trade and other receivables

Buildings
£000
-

Other
£000

258
258

Total
£000
-

258
258

Current

Non-current

2013/14
£000

2013/14
£000

NHS receivables: Revenue
NHS receivables: Capital
NHS prepayments and accrued income
Non-NHS receivables: Revenue
Non-NHS receivables: Capital
Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income
Provision for the impairment of receivables
VAT
Other receivables
Total

23
74
150
79
10
5
341

Total current and non current

341

Included above:
Prepaid pensions contributions

271
271

-

-

The great majority of trade is with NHS England. As NHS England is funded by Government to
provide funding to clinical commissioning groups to commission services, no credit scoring of
them is considered necessary.
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There are no other receivables that are either past due or impaired.

12

Cash and cash equivalents
2013/14
£000
459
459

Balance at 1 April 2013
Net change in year
Balance at 31 March 2014
Made up of:
Cash with the Government Banking Service
Cash with Commercial banks
Balance at 31 March 2014

152
308
459

Patients’ money held by the clinical commissioning group, not included above

13 Trade and other payables

Current
2013/14
£000

NHS payables: revenue
NHS accruals and deferred income
Non-NHS payables: revenue
Non-NHS accruals and deferred income
Social security costs
Tax
Other payables
Total

240
1,607
1,943
6,890
20
23
1,204
11,927

Total payables (current and non-current)

11,927

Non-current
2013/14
£000
-

Other payables include £32k for outstanding pension contributions at 31 March 2014.

14

Commitments

14.1

Capital commitments
The clinical commissioning group had no capital commitments at 31 March 2014

14.2

Other financial commitments
The clinical commissioning group has not entered into other non-cancellable contracts.
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15

Financial instruments

15.1

Financial risk management

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have
had during the period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.
Because the clinical commissioning group is financed through parliamentary funding, it is not
exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Also, financial instruments play
a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed companies, to
which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The clinical commissioning group has
limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated
by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the clinical
commissioning group in undertaking its activities.
Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters
defined formally within the clinical commissioning group’s standing financial instructions and
policies agreed by the Governing Body. Treasury activity is subject to review by the clinical
commissioning group’s internal auditors.

15.1.1 Currency risk
The clinical commissioning group is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of
transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling based. The clinical commissioning
group has no overseas operations. The clinical commissioning group therefore has low exposure
to currency rate fluctuations.

15.1.2 Interest rate risk
The clinical commissioning group borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to
affordability as confirmed by NHS England. The borrowings are for 1 to 25 years, in line with the
life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the
life of the loan. The clinical commissioning group therefore has low exposure to interest rate
fluctuations.

15.1.3 Credit risk
Because the majority of the clinical commissioning group’s revenue comes parliamentary
funding, the clinical commissioning group has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum
exposures as at the end of the financial year are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in
the trade and other receivables note.

15.1.3 Liquidity risk
The clinical commissioning group is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits
agreed with NHS England, which are financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. The
clinical commissioning group draws down cash to cover expenditure, from NHS England, as the
need arises. The clinical commissioning group is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity
risks.
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15

Financial instruments cont'd

15.2

Financial assets
At ‘fair value
through
profit and
loss’

Loans and
Receivables

Available for
Sale

Total

2013/14
£000

2013/14
£000

2013/14
£000

2013/14
£000

Embedded derivatives
Receivables:
·
NHS
·
Non-NHS
Cash at bank and in hand
Other financial assets
Total at 31 March 2014

15.3

-

-

23
150
459
5
637

Financial liabilities
At ‘fair
value
through
profit and
loss’
2013/14
£000

Payables:
·
NHS
·
Non-NHS
Total at 31 March 2014

16

23
150
459
5
637

-

Other

Total

2013/14
£000

2013/14
£000

1,847
8,834
10,680

1,847
8,834
10,680

Operating segments

The clinical commissioning group considers it has only one segment: commissioning of
healthcare services.
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17

Pooled budgets

The clinical commissioning group has entered into a pooled budget with Cheshire East Council.
The pool is hosted by Cheshire East Council.
Under the arrangement funds are pooled under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 for care
provided to those with Learning difficulties.
Balances in the clinical commissioning group’s Statement of Financial Position that relate to the
pool are £308k in Cash and £308k in pool liabilities are included in payables.
The clinical commissioning group’s and consolidated group’s shares of the income and
expenditure handled by the pooled budget in the financial year were:
2013/14
£000
Income
Expenditure

18

Intra-government and other balances

Current
Non-current
Receivables Receivables
2013/14
£000
Balances with:
·
Other Central Government bodies
·
Local Authorities
Balances with NHS bodies:
·
NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group
·
NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts
Total of balances with NHS bodies:
·
·

3,951

-

Public corporations and trading funds
Bodies external to Government

Total balances at 31 March 2014

2013/14
£000

Current
Payables

Non-current
Payables

2013/14
£000

2013/14
£000

-

-

-

-

97
97

-

1,847
1,847

-

160
84

-

1,704
8,376

-

341

-

11,927

-
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19

Related party transactions

The CCG makes payments to practices for services provided under clinical schemes agreed by
the Governing Body. The following represents the gross costs of those services paid to practices
where a member of the Governing Body exerts significant control over that practice:
Payments
to Related
Party

`

£000

Receipts
from
Related
Party
£000

Amounts Amounts
owed to due from
Related
Related
Party
Party
£000
£000

McIlvride Practice - Dr Paul Bowen - Partner

71

-

-

-

High St Surgery - Dr Mike Clark - Partner

68

-

-

-

Handforth Health Centre - Dr James Milligan - Partner

166

-

-

-

Toft Road Surgery - DR Jennifer Lawn - Partner

106

-

-

-

The
Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year the clinical commissioning
group has had a significant number of material transactions with entities for which the
Department is regarded as the parent Department. For example:
•
•
•
•
•

NHS England;
NHS Foundation Trusts;
NHS Trusts;
NHS Litigation Authority; and,
NHS Business Services Authority.

In addition, the CCG works closely with other NHS Organisations such as NHS Cheshire and
Merseyside Clinical Commissioning Support Unit which provides many of our services and Vale
Royal CCH which hosts or medicines management team. NHS Organisations where the CCG
has had significant transactions above £3m or where we worked closely with those organisations
were:

`

Payments
to Related
Party
£000

NHS England
East Cheshire NHS Trust
Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
University Hospital of South Manchester Foundation Trust
Stockport NHS Foundation Trust
Central Manchester Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
North West Ambulance NHS Trust
Mid Cheshire NHS Foundation Trust
NHS Cheshire and Merseyside Clinical Commissioning Support
Unit
NHS Vale Royal CCG

94,760
13,027
10,776
9,794
6,221
5,821
4,097
1,590
730

Receipts Amounts Amounts
from
owed to due from
Related
Related
Related
Party
Party
Party
£000
£000
£000
210,940
954
3
27
146
35
40
58
-

30

-

-

32

-

The clinical commissioning group has also had a number of material transactions with other
government departments and other central and local government bodies. Most of these
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transactions have been with Cheshire East Local Authority in respect of joint enterprises as set
out in notes 17 and 18.

20

Events after the end of the reporting period

There are no post balance sheet events which will have a material effect on the financial
statements of the clinical commissioning group or consolidated group.

21

Losses and special payments

The clinical commissioning group had no losses and special payments cases.

22 Financial performance targets
Clinical commissioning groups have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).
The clinical commissioning group’s performance against those duties was as follows:
2013/14

2013/14

Target
Actual
Performance Performance
Expenditure not to exceed income
200
204
Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions
Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions
222,271
222,067
Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount
specified in Directions
Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount
specified in Directions
Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the amount
specified in Directions
4,930
4,498

Based on the above, the clinical commissioning group can confirm that it fulfilled its financial duties.

88

This page has been left blank intentionally

GOV
VERNING BO
ODY M
MEETIN
NG
28 M
May 201
14
Repo
ort/
Pape
er Title

Agenda Item 2
2.2

2014
4/15 Fin
nancial Plan

Purpose of pa
aper / rep
port
To s
seek the Governin
ng Body’’s approv
val of N
NHS Easte
ern Ches
shire Clin
nical
Comm
missioning
g Group’s
s (ECCCG’s) 2014/1
15 Financiial Plan as
s year 1 of the 5 Y
Year
Financial Plan.

Key p
points
 EC
CCCG is forrecasting a deficit of £2m
£
for 20
014/15.
 NH
HS England
d and Chesshire, Warrrington and
d Wirral Arrea Team (CWWAT)
(
have agreed a
con
ntrol deficitt of £2m forr 2014/15.
 The
e planned deficit will require Exxternal Aud
dit (Grant T
Thornton U
UK LLP) to a
add a pote
ential
qua
alification ((to be confifirmed) to th
he 2013/14
4 accountss and trigge
er a Section 19 referrral to
the
e Secretaryy of State.
 A 2
2014/15 Fiinancial Pllan which details how
w ECCCG
G will alloca
ate its fund
ding acrosss its
com
mmissioned services and will be
e used to sset the 2014/15 budge
et.

The Governin
G
ng Body is asked
d to:
Approve

Ratify
Endorrse

Deccide
Notte for inform
mation

Bene
efits / value to our population / communitie
es
The re
eport outlines that E
ECCCG iss commissioning a range
r
of sservices on
n behalf o
of its
popula
ation, reco
ognising th
hat in doin
ng so it iss breachin
ng its statu
utory finan
ncial dutiess by
comm
missioning a range off services o
outside of its allocate
ed resourcces, but wiithin an ovverall
envelo
ope as agre
eed with NHS
N
Englan
nd.

Repo
ort Autho
or
Alex Mitchelll
Chief Finance O
Officer

Contributors
Niall O’Gara
Techn
nical Accou
untant

2014
4/15 Fina
ancial P
Plan
1.

E
Executiv
ve Summ
mary

1.1

This reporrt provides an overview for the
T
e Governin
ng Body o
of NHS Ea
astern Che
eshire
C
Clinical
Co
ommission
ning Group
p’s (ECCC
CG’s) revissed 5 Year Financial Plan. The
F
Financial
P
Plan is pa
art of the 2/5
2 Year O
Operationa
al and Stra
ategic Plans and mo
odels
f
forward
the
e predicted
d Income and Expend
diture over the next fivve financia
al years.

1.2

The Finan
T
ncial Plan sets out the key changes ffrom the p
papers su
ubmitted to
o the
G
Governing
nd builds o
on the dettailed
Body (priivate meetting) on 26 Februaryy 2014 an
d
discussion
held durin
ng the Gove
erning Bod
dy meeting on 30 Aprril 2014 (private meetting).

1.3

ECCCG has revised
E
d its Financial Plan ffollowing discussions
d
s with NHS
S England
d and
C
Cheshire,
W
Warrington
n and Wirra
al Area Tea
am (CWWA
AT) as perr the submission on 1 May
2
2014.

1.4

Appendix One de
A
etails the 2014/15 Financial Budget w
which outtlines the key
c
commissio
oned servicces and will
w be used
d to set th
he annual budgets for
f the fina
ancial
y
year.

2.

5 Year Fiinancial Plan Ove
erview

2.1

The revise
T
ed position for ECCC
CG is a sm
maller deficit of £2m ffor 2014/15
5 as detailled in
T
Table
One
e and is su
upported byy the key d
discussionss that have
e occurred
d during the
e last
f
few
weeks.

Table One: NHS
S Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissio
oning Grou
up's (ECCC
CG's) Fina
ancial
Plan S
Summary ffor 2014/15 - 2018/19

Income
Expen
nditure
Underrlying Surp
plus
Caring
g Together Programm
me Costs
Reporrted Positiion

2014/15
£'000s
225,551
(225,251))
300
0
(2,300))
(2,000))

2015/16
6
2016//17
2017
7/18
£'000s
s
£'000
0s
£'00
00s
234,89
95
242,4
429
246
6,708
(234,295) (241,4
429) (245,,477)
60
00
6
600
1
1,231
(200)
40
00
6
600
1
1,231

20
018/19
£''000s
2
252,116
(24
49,594)
2,522
2,522

2.2

Key Discu
K
ussions. A
As a resultt of submittting the initial 5 Yearr Financial Plan on 4 April
14, a number of ame
endments have been
n made to reflect disccussions held
h
over re
ecent
w
weeks
with
h CWWAT.. These ke
ey changess are as folllows:

2.2.1 C
Control Deficit of £2m.
£
CW
WWAT/NHS
S North/N
NHS Engla
and have supported
d our
F
Financial
P
Plan with a planned deficit
d
of £
£2m for 201
14/15. Disscussion re
emains ong
going
a to wheth
as
her this deficit is repa
ayable in fu
uture yearss.
Caring Tog
gether (CT
T) Program
mme Costss. A revie
ew has bee
en underta
aken of the CT
2.2.2 C
p
programme
e costs in light of the
e Challeng
ged Health
h Economyy work, reccognising that a
n
number
off the costs previou
usly identiffied will n
now be shared
s
acrross circa four
c
commissio
oners. The
erefore, the
e costs asssociated w
with consu
ultation, en
ngagement, etc,
h
have
been reduced b
by circa 75%
% to reflecct a 25% exxpected co
ontribution.
2.2.3 Q
Quality, Inn
novation, P
Productivityy & Prevention (QIPP
P). The nett QIPP targ
get of £3.2m for
2
2014/15 exxists and iss considerred a challe
enging targ
get for whiich a numb
ber of sche
emes
h
have been identified. These scchemes are
e aimed at squeezing
g every oun
nce of efficiency
w
whilst the CT
C programme is aim
med at dellivering a ttransformed Health a
and Social Care
ssystem. T
The outcom
mes of CT
T will be m
modelled byy June 2014 and on
nly then wiill the
cchanges be
e reflected
d as future QIPP initia
atives for 2015/16
2
onwards. Ovverall, the Q
QIPP
cchallenge ffor the 5 ye
ears increa
ases to a ne
et £17m byy year 5.
2.3

IImplications. Subm
mitting a 5 Y
Year Financial Plan with
w a deficcit for 2014//15 will ressult in
a number of key im
mplications which the
e Governin
ng Body should be a
aware of w
when
cconsidering
g the recom
mmendatio
ons.

2.3.1 ECCCG’s
E
Constitutiion
2
2.3.1.1

Under E
ECCCG’S Constitutio
on the Governing Bod
dy is requirred to:

E
Ensure its expenditu
ure does not excee
ed the ag
ggregate o
of its
a
allotments for
f the fina
ancial year.

E
Ensure its use of ressource (cap
pital and re
evenue) do
oes not exxceed
th
he amountt specified by NHS En
ngland for the financial year.

T
Take accou
unt of any directions issued byy NHS Eng
gland in resspect
o
of specified
d types of rresource ussed in a fin
nancial yea
ar, to ensurre the
g
group doess not excee
ed an amou
unt specifie
ed by NHS England.

2
2.3.1.2

Althoug
gh this is a breach in terms of the
t first bu
ullet point, we are wo
orking
to advicce and dirrection give
en by CW
WWAT on o
our Financcial Plan fo
or the
year wh
hich includ
des an agrreed maxim
mum deficcit of £2m. Thereforre no
further implication
ns have be
een raised to date oth
her than th
he resubmission
of the F
Financial Plan on 1 M
May 2014.

2.3.2 Control
C
De
eficit
2
2.3.2.1

eeing to a control deficit,
d
cla
arification has
h
been obtained from
In agre
CWWA
AT around how this will work in practice
e for the ccurrent fina
ancial
year. The
T key points are:

E
ECCCG is not allowed
d to exceed the deficcit control to
otal of £2m
m.

E
ECCCG willl aim to red
duce the d
deficit wherre possible.

E
ECCCG willl exceed itts revenue allocation by £2m.

A
Agreement is to be reached
r
on an addittional £2m
m of cash being
b
m
made availa
able to payy providerss.

C
CWWAT ha
as not give
en a view a
as to whetther the £2
2m is repayyable
in
n future ye
ears, although curren
nt practice suggests it is repayyable.
F
For the 5 Y
Year Plan itt has been assumed that the 20
014/15 defficit is
n
not repayab
ble in future
e years.

2.3.3 External
E
A
Audit Referral
2
2.3.3.1

2.4

dit of the 2
2013/14 Accounts, th
he auditorss are
As partt of the exxternal aud
required
d to look forward tto assess any mate
erial issues. Given that
ECCCG
G is posting
g a deficit it will trigge
er the follow
wing action
ns:


A
At a date to be co
onfirmed a Section 19 referra
al of the Audit
C
Commission Act 199
98 to the Secretary of State for any m
matter
w
where it is believed th
hat a decission by a b
body or offficer has le
ed to,
o
or would le
ead to, unlawful exp
penditure, o
or that som
me action by a
b
body or officer has be
een, or wou
uld be, unla
awful and likely to cau
use a
lo
oss or deficciency.



T
The 2013/1
14 Audit O
Opinion is liikely to ha
ave some fform of wo
ording
a
and or q
qualification
n, around
d the Va
alue for Money (V
VFM)
a
assessmen
nt, which would be separate to the o
opinion on
n the
re
emaining a
accounts. This has yet to be confirmed at the po
oint of
w
writing this paper.

2
2014/15
Fiinancial O
Outlook

2.4.1 IIt is recogn
nised that the 2014/15 Financiial Plan is an estima
ate based o
on a numb
ber of
a
assumption
ns. Whilsst a numb
ber of these are fairly certain
n, ie, base
eline contrracts,
p
prescribing
g, running costs, the
e key area of variability is arou
und the exxpected levvel of
c
contract
ovver perform
mance/presssures thatt will arise. This is exxtremely diifficult to prredict
w
with
accurracy and the valuess containe
ed within the
t
Financcial Plan a
are consid
dered
r
reasonable
e when com
mpared to historical in
ncreases.
2.4.2 IIncluded w
within the Financial
F
P
Plan is circca £3.2m o
of net QIPP initiative
es which w
will be
c
challenging
g for ECC
CCG to deliver, but n
needs to sstrive for. Therefore, based on the
i
information
n to date it is reasona
able for EC
CCCG to se
et a deficit position for 2014/15.

3.

2
2014/15
F
Financia
al Budgett

3.1

The 2014/15 Financiial Budget is based on year 1 of ECCCG
T
G’s 5 Yearr Financial Plan
t
that
provid
des detaile
ed analysiss across th
he various areas of expenditurre that EC
CCCG
e
either
commissions o
or incurs on
n behalf of its populattion.

3.2

The Financial Plan h
T
has been set againsst an agree
ed control deficit of £2m (roun
nded)
between E
f
following
d
discussion
ECCCG and CWWAT
T. The fina
al position a
as at May 2014
i a Financcial Plan which
is
w
proje
ects a deficcit of £1,97
78,000 as detailed w
within Appe
endix
O
One.
Thiss would be the maxim
mum deficitt that ECCC
CG could incur, howe
ever throug
ghout
t year EC
the
CCCG will strive to re
educe this deficit as ffar as reaso
onably posssible.

3.3

Underlying
U
ptions
g Assump

3.3.1 T
The 2014/1
15 Financia
al Plan hass been set against the
e following
g key criteriia:
 Confirm
med revenu
ue allocatio
ons (incom
me) for ECC
CCG.
 Provide
er contractts have be
een set on the 2014/1
15 agreed contract vvalues; prim
marily
derived
d from 201
13/14 outturn, adjusted for tarriff deflatio
on and anyy agreed m
minor
amend
dments.
 Prescribing budget set at 20
013/14 outtturn.
 Continuing Healtthcare (CH
HC) and Funded
F
Nu
ursing Carre (FNC) set at 201
13/14
n.
outturn
 Learnin
ng Disabilities (LD) P
Pool budge
et based o
on 2013/14
4 outturn p
plus an ele
ement
for the reassessm
ment of clie
ents againsst CHC.
 Known
n pressuress that are a
arising, alth
hough not clarified att the point of finalisin
ng the
Plan.
 Expectted growth
h in contra
acts (perfo
ormance o
over agree
ed baseline
e contractts) to
reflect either incrreases in complexity
c
y, case mixx or planne
ed contracct amendm
ments.
nes the perrcentage asssumptionss used botth in terms of growth rates
Table Two outlin
djustments to the tarifff used to re
eimburse A
Acute and Non Acute
e providers.
and ad

Table Two
o NHS Eas
stern Cheshire Clinical Comm
missioning
g Group's (ECCCG's
s)
Planning Assumptiions for 20
014/15 - 20
018/19
20
014/15
%
Allocation
me
Programm
Running Costs
C
Acute:
E
Provider Efficiency
Provider In
nflation
Net Positio
on
Non Acute
e:
Provider Efficiency
E
Provider In
nflation
Net Positio
on
Demograp
phic Growth
h
Non Demo
ographic Growth:
Acute
CHC
ng
Prescribin
Other Non Acute

3.4

2015/16
2
%

2016/17
%

2017/18
8
%

2018/1
19
%

3.15%
-0.47%

2.85%
-10.33%

%
4.80%
-0.32%
%

2.30%
%
-0.32%
%

2.00
0%
-0.30
0%

-4.00%
2.60%
-1.40%

-4.00%
2.90%
-1.10%

-4.00%
%
4.40%
%
0.40%
%

-4.00%
%
3.40%
%
-0.60%
%

-4.00
0%
3.30
0%
-0.70
0%

-4.00%
2.60%
-1.40%
0.80%

-4.00%
2.90%
-1.10%
0.80%

-4.00%
%
4.40%
%
0.40%
%
0.80%
%

-4.00%
%
3.40%
%
-0.60%
%
0.80%
%

-4.00
0%
3.30
0%
-0.70
0%
0.80
0%

1.40%
5.00%
6.00%
1.40%

1.40%
5.00%
6.00%
1.40%

1.40%
%
5.00%
%
6.00%
%
1.40%
%

1.40%
%
5.00%
%
6.00%
%
1.40%
%

1.40
0%
5.00
0%
6.00
0%
1.40
0%

Q
Quality,
In
nnovation,, Productiv
vity & Prev
vention.

o achieve the reportted deficit,, ECCCG has to de
eliver efficiencies of circa
3.4.1 IIn order to
£
£3.2m.
Du
uring the pa
ast month, work has been unde
erway to qu
uantify the areas on w
which
Q
QIPP
will b
be focused in order to
o deliver the required level of re
ecurrent savvings.
argets, it iss recognise
ed that invvestment m
may be requ
uired to pro
ovide
3.4.2 IIn setting tthe QIPP ta
c
capacity
or pump prime chang
ges in orde
er to realisse the full savings. T
The investtment
p
plans
are flexible
f
and
d if not utilissed will be offset to re
educe the level of QIPP savingss.

3.4.3 T
The QIPP programme is intended to be m
monitored vvia the Fina
ance Comm
mittee (currrently
b
being
established) an
nd reported
d routinely back to the
e Governin
ng Body.
PP
Gross QIP

3,418,000
£3

Investmen
nt

(£
£350,000)

Net QIPP

£3
3,168,000

3.4.4 IIn identifyiing the QIPP opporttunities, na
ational sou
urces, including Com
mmissionin
ng for
V
Value
paccks have b
been used
d which already highlight thatt ECCCG is, in gen
neral,
r
relatively
e
efficient; however there remain
n some im
mmediate o
opportunities to generate
r
reductions
enditure.
in unnecessary expe
3.4.5 T
The nature
e of the scchemes are
e consistent with our strategic direction tthrough the CT
P
Programm
e. It is thiis program
mme which will delive
er more fun
ndamental changes to
t the
h
health
and social care system a
and genera
ate longer tterm efficie
encies.
3.5

P
Proposed
eas. The following Initiatives are those currently b
being
QIPP Inittiative Are
p
proposed o
on which to
o focus.

3.5.1 Initiative
I
A
Area 1 - Elective Carre (£588k)
3
3.5.1.1

It is re
ecognised that the rates of hospital outpatient referrals vary
significa
antly betwe
een GP practices. The continuation off previous work
benchm
marks pracctice activitty which a
aims to en
ncourage an educattional
program
m to delive
er a consiistent appllication of best pracctice (Indiccative
opportunity £100kk)

3
3.5.1.2

Commisssioning fo
or Value Packs, and local bencchmarking,, highlightss that
levels o
of Gastro Intestinal ((GI) is an area where expend
diture is grreater
than ou
ur peers. A specific focus of tthe opportu
unity is to ensure re
eferral
pathwayys are co
onsistent, as is th
he impact on Endo
oscopy acctivity
(Indicative opportu
unity £416kk).

3
3.5.1.3

ember pracctices have
e highlighte
ed that op
pportunitiess exist for more
Our me
approprriate referra
al and trea
atment patthways in rrelation to Ophthalmo
ology
and ENT (Ear Nosse and Thrroat). Clin
nical teamss are now d
developing
g best
e models (Indicative o
opportunityy £75k).
practice

3
3.5.1.4

The CC
CGs of Che
eshire and Merseysid
de have jo
ointly underrtaken a re
eview
of Commissioning
g Policies. This inclu
udes a revview of nattional evide
ence,
n order tha
at appropriate policie
es are in place to ind
dicate
including NICE, in
ble, or are not routine
ely commisssioned, fo
or our
which trreatments are availab
population (No savvings assu
umed).

3
3.5.1.5

ECCCG
G has seen
n a huge growth
g
in a
activity and expenditu
ure on Wett Age
Related
d Macular D
Degeneratiion (AMD).. Having rreviewed th
he best pra
actice
guidancce, ECCCG
G has developed a n
new servicce specifica
ation which will
help re
educe the average cost of trreatment (Savings
(
a
associated with
mitigatin
ng future g
growth).

3.5.2 Initiative
I
A
Area 2 - Em
mergency Care (£1,5
578k)
3
3.5.2.1

NHS E
England ha
as introduced a ne
ew “Avoiding Hospital Admisssions”
service in Primaryy Care. E
ECCCG ha
as built on
n this to d
develop a more
ng specificcation, alon
ngside the rollout of rrisk profilin
ng processses to
stretchin
help re
educe avo
oidable ad
dmission tto hospita
al (Indicatiive opporttunity
£700k).

3
3.5.2.2

pment of additional communitty based p
pathways for Ambullatory
Develop
Care Sensitive C
Conditions will enable
e more pa
atients to h
have their care
ed outside of a hospiital; for exa
ample Hom
me IV Therapy (Indiccative
delivere
opportunity £431kk).

3
3.5.2.3

ECCCG
G is also working
w
witth our Local Servicess to implement the North
N
West Ambulance Service Pa
athfinder. This allow
ws patients to be care
ed for
mmunity ba
ased servicces where
e it is clinically bestt to do so
o (No
by com
savingss assumed beyond ab
bove).

3
3.5.2.4

ECCCG
G has been participa
ating in the Greater Manchestter (GM) A
Acute
Stroke expansion programm
me which sees patie
ents receivving their h
hyper
e at a specialist ce
entre. To ensure w
we deliver best
acute sstroke care
practice
e across th
he stroke pathway
p
w
we are plan
nning to im
mplement sstroke
early su
upported discharge to
o enable e
earlier disccharge of p
patients intto the
community for reh
habilitation (Savings assumed tto mitigate
e growth in
n cost
M Model im
mplementattion).
from GM

3
3.5.2.5

ECCCG
G is also loo
oking to re
educe lengtths of stay in hospitall which includes
those rresulting ffrom Presssure Sore
es or In H
Hospital Falls
F
(Indiccative
opportunity £361kk). ECCC
CG has de
eveloped a proactive
e care sch
heme
builds upon
n the nation
nal enhancced service
e which willl support earlier
e
which b
discharg
ge of patients.

3.5.3 Initiative
I
A
Area 3 - Prrescribing (£538k)
3
3.5.3.1

ECCCG
G has revie
ewed the Right Care
e Data Paccks as we
ell as identifying
other areas of expenditure w
which are higher tha
an we woulld expect. This
m
expenditurre in the fo
ollowing are
eas:
has ressulted in a ffocus on maximising






Resspiratory (U
Use of Inhaler)
Type 2 Diabetes
Opio
oids
Con
nstipation (Laxative usse)







Anti-Depressa
ants
Dem
mentia Med
dication
Lipid
d Lowering
g Medicatio
on
Ente
eral Feeds
Seccondary Ca
are Procure
ement of Drugs

3.5.4 Initiative
I
A
Area 4 – In
nvestmentt Phasing (£396k)
(
3
3.5.4.1

Contain
ned within
n the Fina
ancial Plan is a b
budget for a numbe
er of
develop
pments equating to £
£1.7m. Th
hese anticip
pated presssures havve not
yet bee
en confirme
ed althoug
gh discussions to datte have ind
dicated tha
at the
investm
ment will not be att the leve
els expeccted, ie, G
GP Inform
mation
Techno
ology Budgets.

3
3.5.4.2

Any slip
ppage or ssavings fro
om finalisin
ng these co
osts will be
e used to offset
o
the QIP
PP target.

3.5.5 Initiative
I
A
Area 5 – R
Running Co
osts (£68k
k)
3
3.5.5.1

3.6

Work iss ongoing to revise the arrang
gements w
with the services currrently
provide
ed by our C
Commissio
oning Supp
port Unit (C
CSU). It iss expected
d that
savingss will be ge
enerated frrom the revview and w
will lead to an undersspend
againstt our runnin
ng cost allo
ocations.

I Year Co
In
ontract Ch
hanges

h guidance from NHS England the
t Financiial Plan wa
as set on th
he CCG inccome
3.6.1 IIn line with
a
allocations
s that have
e been con
nfirmed forr the plann
ning round.. It is acknowledged
d that
a
additional
allocationss will occu
ur throughout the ye
ear and hence chan
nge the an
nnual
b
budget.
3.6.2 A
As at Mayy 2014, the
e following
g changes are anticipated and
d are expe
ected to ha
ave a
n
negative
im
mpact on E
ECCCG of circa £300
0k. This ha
as been bu
uilt into the
e Financial Plan
w an allo
with
ocation of £393k,
£
alth
hough the ffinal impacct will only b
be known later in the
e year
o
once
the values are a
all finalised
d.
3
3.6.2.1

CHC Restitution R
Risk Pool (Reduction in Income of Circa £862k)
As notiffied by NH
HS England
d, every CC
CG is bein
ng topsliced
d in 2014/1
15 so
that it ccan centra
ally create a risk poo
ol that will fund the C
CHC restittution
cases u
up to 31 Ma
arch 2013.

3
3.6.2.2

ECCCG
G Quality P
Premium (In
ncrease in Income off Circa £60
00k)
NHS En
ngland intrroduced a q
quality pre
emium for 2
2013/14 wh
hich identiffied a
potentia
al to receivve £1,027,000 (£5 per head off populatio
on) of addittional
income. This is dependen
nt on our performan
nce againsst a numb
ber of

nationa
al and loca
ally determ
mined measures. W
We are awa
aiting final data
around our Quartter 4 perfo
ormance w
which will b
be used to
o determine
e our
subsequent paym
ment.
3
3.6.2.3

ormation T
Technologyy (IT) Budg
get (Increasse in Incom
me/Expend
diture
GP Info
of £516
6k).
As notiffied by NH
HS England
d, the responsibility fo
or GP IT iss transferring to
CCGs ffrom 1 Ap
pril 2014. The fundiing will cover those costs currrently
being in
ncurred to support GP
P Practicess IT system
ms and netw
works.

4

R
Recomm
mendation
n(s)

4.1

The Goverrning Body is requestted to agree that ECC
T
CCG:
 Sets itss 5 Year F
Financial P
Plan with a maximum
m deficit for 2014/15 of £2m, in
n line
with the
e agreed N
NHS Englan
nd/CWWAT
T control deficit
d
total.
 Continu
ues to man
nage its re
esources w
with the aiim of redu
ucing the d
deficit as fa
ar as
possible
e.
 Notes that
t
the su
ubmission will result in an External Audiit Section 19 referral and
possiblyy some forrm of word
ding and or qualificattion within the 2013/1
14 Accoun
nts on
the VFM
M statemen
nt.
 Approvves the de
etailed 201
14/15 Fina
ancial Bud
dget (being
g year 1 of the 5 Year
Financiial Plan).

5

R
Reasons
s for Recommend
dation(s)

5.1

The recom
T
mmendation
ns are askking the G
Governing B
Body to ag
gree to EC
CCCG’s 5 Year
F
Financial
P
Plan from w
which the 2
2014/15 Fin
nancial Bud
dget can be set.

6.

P
Peer
Gro
oup Area
a / Town A
Area Affe
ected

6.1

T
This
relates to all of NHS
N
Easte
ern Cheshirre’s geogra
aphical are
eas.

7.

P
Populatio
on Affec
cted

7.1

T
This
relates to all of NHS
N
Easte
ern Cheshirre’s popula
ation.

8.

C
Context

8.1

The 5 Yea
T
ar Financiial Plan iss prepared
d by the C
Chief Finance Office
er on beha
alf of
E
ECCCG
ass part of th
he internal and extern
nal planning requirem
ments. The
e Financial Plan
a
also
highlights to th
he Governing Body how it is dischargin
ng its finan
ncial dutie
es for
2
2014/15
to
o ensure the Gove
erning Bod
dy is inforrmed and where ne
ecessary ttakes
a
appropriate
e decisionss concernin
ng ECCCG
G’s financia
al performa
ance.

8.2

The 2014/15 Financial Budget sets out in
T
n detail how
w ECCCG will set itss annual bu
udget
o which itt will be mo
on
onitored thrroughout th
he year.

9.

F
Finance

9.1

R
Refer
to Ap
ppendix O
One.

10.

Q
Quality
a
and Patie
ent Experience

10.1

N applica
Not
able.

11.

C
Consulta
ation and
d Engage
ement (Public/Patient/Care
er/Clinical/Staff)

11.1

N applica
Not
able.

12.

E
Equality

12.1

N applica
Not
able.

13.

L
Legal

13.1

N applica
Not
able.

14.

C
Commun
nication

14.1

Communiccation with
h the publicc and othe
er intereste
ed parties via the pu
ublication o
of the
2
2013/14 An
nnual Report, and 2//5 Year Op
perational and
a Strategic Plans tto be published
iin the onco
oming mon
nths. The 2
2014/15 Financial Bu
udget will b
be publishe
ed as part o
of the
p
public Govverning Bod
dy meeting
g.

15.

B
Backgro
und and Options
s

15.1

N applica
Not
able.

16.

A
Access
tto further informa
ation

16.1

F furtherr informatio
For
on relating tto this repo
ort contact:

Name
e
Desig
gnation
Date
Telephone
Email

17.

G
Glossary
y of Term
ms

CHC
CSU
CT
CWWA
AT
ECCCG
G
FNC
GM
IT
QIPP
VFM

18.

Alex Mitchell
Chief Fina
ance Office
er
21 May 2014
01625 66
63456
Alex.mitchell@nhs.n
net

Con
ntinuing He
ealthcare
Com
mmissionin
ng Support Unit
Caring Togeth
her
Che
eshire, Warrrington an
nd Wirral Arrea Team
NHS
S Eastern Cheshire
C
C
Clinical Com
mmissionin
ng Group
Fun
nded Nursin
ng Care
Greater Manch
hester
echnology
Information Te
ality, Innova
ation, Prod
ductivity an
nd Prevention
Qua
Valu
ue for Money

A
Appendi
ces

Appendices Tab
ble
ndix One
Appen

2014//15 Financcial Budget

Priorr Committtee Approval / Liink to oth
her Committees
Not Ap
pplicable

CCG Health N
Needs Prriorities a
addresse
ed by this
s report – please
e indicate
e
To pro
otect our citizens from
m harm

To make care more
e integrate
ed & coordinated
To ensure
e high qu
uality and effective
mental health servicces are available to
all
To addre
ess inequa
alities acrross our
ttowns and villages

To pre
event alcoh
hol related harm

To pre
event peop
ple dying
prema
aturely

CCG 2013/14
4 Annual Plan prrogramm
me of work this rreport is linked to
t –
pleas
se indica
ate
Caring
g Togetherr
Menta
al Health & Alcohol

Q
Quality Imp
provement
O
Other

Key IImplications of th
his reporrt – pleas
se indicate
Strategic
C
Consultatio
on & Engag
gement

Financce
E
Equality

Qualityy & Patientt Experiencce
Staff / Workforce
e

L
Legal

CCG Values s
supporte
ed by this
s report – please indicate
e
Valuin
ng People
Workin
ng Togethe
er
Investting Responsibly

IInnovation
Q
Quality



NHS Constitu
ution Values supp
ported by
y this rep
port – ple
ease indicate
Workin
ng togethe
er for patien
nts
Respe
ect and dignity
Comm
mitment to q
quality of ccare

Compassio
on
Improving lives
Everyone counts
c
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2014/15
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Table 2

Acute C
Contracts

Table 3

Mental Health Contracts

Table 4

Commu
unity Contrracts

Table 5

Ambula
ance Contrracts

Table 6

Indepen
ndent Secttor Contraccts

Table 7

Local E
Enhanced S
Service Pro
oviders

Table 8

Collabo
orative Com
mmissionin
ng

Table 9

Hospice
es

Table 1
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Analysis of Develo
opment forr 2014/15

Table 1
11

Growth

Table 1
12

nalysis
g Costs An
Running

Table 1
13

Quality,, Innovation, Productivity & Prevvention (QIPP)

Table One:
O
NHS Eastern
E
Che
eshire Clinical Commissioning Group's
G
(EC
CCCG's)
2014/15
5 Financial Summary
£'s

Income
ogramme
Pro
Run
nning Costs
2013/14 Surplus
s b'f
ncome
Sub Tottal - Total In
Expend
diture
Acu
ute Contracts
s
Men
ntal Health Co
ontracts
Com
mmunity Con
ntracts
Am bulance Con
ntracts
ependent Sec
ctor Contractts
Inde
Loc
cal Enhanced
d Services
Collaborative Co
ommissioning
g
spice
Hos
Rea
admissions
Rea
ablement
NCA
As / OATS
Con
ntinuing Healtth Care
NHS
S Funded Ca
are
Lea
arning Disabilities Pool
Prescribing
Loc
cal Delivery Im
mprovement Plan
Dev
velopments
Gro
owth
Antiicipated Conttract Variations
Pro
ogramme Cos
sts - Running
g Costs
Sub Tottal
Running
g Costs
Corrporate
Com
mmissioning
Transformation
nical Support
Clin
Sub Tottal
Sub Tottal - Total Ex
xpenditure
2014/15
5 Income less Expenditu
ure - Net Defficit
Quality, Innovation, Productivity
P
& Prevention (QIPP)
(
5 Net Underlying positio
on - (Surplus
s)
2014/15
Caring Together
T
(CT
T) Programm e
2014/15
5 Final Plann
ned Position
n - Deficit
2014-20
015 Financial Budget: Tab
ble 1 of 13

1,000)
(220,441
(4,907
7,000)
(203
3,000)
(225,551
1,000)

Cos t Per
ead
He
£
£'s
(£
£1,073)
(£24)
(£1)
(£
£1,098)

112,201
1,418
9,451
14,309
7,665
17,867
2,619
6,322
1,265
5,011
5,159
1,845
214
4,060
6,521
466
3,000
2,303
3,000
1,053
7,000
2,167
7,000
8,977
1,000
5,251
9,000
4,729
5,000
31,015
1,000
0,000
1,000
1,731
6,000
6,246
2,824
392
9,018
409
2,000
223,512

£546
£70
£87
£31
£24
£9
£1
£2
£11
£5
£11
£44
£26
£23
£151
£5
£8
£30
£2
£2
£1,088

9,985
2,149
4,704
1,644
9,041
329
3,270
783
4,907
7,000

£10
£8
£2
£4
£24

228,419
9,000

£1,112

8,000
2,868

£14

(3,168
8,000)

(£15)

(300
0,000)

(£1)

2,277
7,807
1,977,807

Table
ef
Re

£11
£10

2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

0
10
11

12

3
13

Table Two: NHS
S Eastern Cheshire Clinical Co
ommissioning Grou
up's
(ECCC
CG's) Acutte Contrac
cts
Acute Contracts
s

Annu
ual
Contrract
£'s
s

Aintree
e Hospital NHSFT
N
Alder Hey
H Childre
esn NHSFT
T
BMI Alexandra
BMI So
outh Chesh
hire
Centra
al Manchestter NHSFT
T
Counte
ess of Chesster Hospittal NHSFT
East Cheshire
C
NH
HS Trust
Mid Ch
heshire Hosspitals NHS
SFT
Pennin
ne Acute NH
HST
Robertt Jones & Agnes
A
Huntt NHSFT
Royal Liverpool
L
B
Broadgreen
n NHST
Salford
d Royal NHSFT
Spire Cheshire
C
Spire Mancheste
M
r
Spire Regency
R
Staffs & SOT Parrtnership NHST
St Hele
ens & Know
wsley NHST
T
Stockp
port NHSFT
T
Universsity Hospita
al of North Staff
S
NHST
T
Universsity Hospita
al of South Mancheste
er NHSFT
Warrin
ngton & Haltton NHSFT
T
Wirral University Hospital
H
NH
HSFT
Wrightington Wigan Leigh NHSFT
N

132
2,559
101,843
4,281
864
69
9,943
6,123
3,857
203
3,174
72,515
5,930
4,135
5,981
456
6,628
284
4,337
319
9,198
971,530
101,192
34
4,995
1,447,252
361,173
79
9,081
10,290
0,866
1,786
6,523
10,847,027
282
2,612
150
0,495
640
0,941

%
0.1%
0.1%
%
0.8%
%
0.1%
%
5.5%
%
0.2%
%
64.6%
%
3.7%
%
0.4%
%
0.3%
%
0.3%
%
0.9%
%
0.1%
%
0.0%
%
1.3%
%
0.3%
%
0.1%
%
9.2%
%
1.6%
%
9.7%
%
0.3%
%
0.1%
%
0.6%
%

112,201,418

100.0%
%

Total
2014-2
2015 Finan
ncial Budge
et: Table 2 of
o 13

Pe
ercentage

HS Eastern
n Cheshire
e Clinical Commissi
C
ioning Gro
oup's
Table Three: NH
CG's) Menttal Health Contracts
s
(ECCC
Mental Health C ontracts

Annu
ual
Contrract

Percentage

Cheshire & Wirra
al MH Partn
nership NHS
SFT
East Cheshire
C
Ho
ousing Con
nsortium
North Staffordshir
S
re Combine
ed Healthca
are NHST
Mental Health Pla
acements -A
Adults
acements -O
Older Peop
ple
Mental Health Pla
Mental Health Pla
acements -S
Specialist
Psycho
ology AS

12,524,000
320,000
74,951
1,100,000
220,000
62,500
8,000

87.5%
2.2%
0.5%
7.7%
1.5%
0.4%
0.1%

Total

14,309,451

100.0%

2014-2
2015 Finan
ncial Budge
et: Table 3 of
o 13
Table Four: NHS
S Eastern Cheshire Clinical
Comm
missioning
g Group's (ECCCG's
(
s) Commun
nity
Contra
acts
Comm
munity Con
ntracts

Annual
Contrac
ct
£'s

Percen
tage

Derby Community
y Healthcarre NHST
East Cheshire
C
NH
HST

132,37
71
17,735,29
94

Total

17,867,66
65 100.0%
%

0.7%
%
99.3%
%
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15 Financia
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Table Five: NHS
S Eastern Cheshire
C
C
Clinical
Co
ommissioning Grou
up's
(ECCC
CG's) Amb
bulance Co
ontracts
Ambulance Con
ntracts

Annu
ual
Contra
act
£'s

centage
Perc

W
Ambu
ulance Serv
vice NHST
North West
North West
W
Ambu
ulance Serv
vice NHST - NHS 111
ERS Medical
M
- Pa
atient Trans
sport

5,852,976
434,6
643
35,000

92.6%
6.9%
0.6%

Total

6,322,619

1
100.0%
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15 Financia
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Table Six:
S
NHS Eastern
E
Ch
heshire Clinical Com
mmissionin
ng Group's
s
(ECCC
CG's) Indep
pendent Sector Con
ntracts
Pe
ercentage Contract Type/
T
Service

Indepe
endent Secttor Contrac
cts

A
Annual
Co
ontract
£'s

Age UK
K Cheshire East
E
Alzheim
mer's Society
y
SM & Boots
B
British Pregnancy
P
A
Advisory
Service
Care UK
K
Changin
ng Faces
Cheshirre East Citiz
zen Advice Bureau
B
Cheshirre East Cros
ssroads
Cheshirre Hospice Education
E
Churches Togetherr in Cheshire
e
Comple
ete Price Ey
yewear
Crossro
oads - Aspe
ergers
Cumberland House
e
Danebrridge
East Ch
heshire Advo
ocacy
East Ch
heshire Cou
uncil
Eyecare
e Medical
Handforrth Lavin Ey
ye Centre
Industria
al Diagnostics Audiolog
gy
Interfac e Medical
InHealth
h Audiology
InHealth
h
IRIS Vis
sion Resource
Maccles
sfield MIND
Manche
ester Surgic al Services
Neurom
muscular Ce
entre
Optome
etry (Cumbe
erland House
e)
Physiottherapy (IHP
PP)
Pathwa
ays CIC
Practice
e Nurse Tra
aining
Project (Oldbury & Cruickshan
nk)
Stroke Association
A
South Yorkshire
Y
Dia
agnostics
Clinic
South Manchester
M
Specsa
avers
The Hea
aring Comp
pany
Ultra Fin
nance
Virgin Macclesfield
M
Visyon Ltd
William Demont Ho
oldings
Wilmslo
ow Larvin Ey
ye Centre
YMCA

101,161
16,863
100,000
16,896
350,000
3,800
17,850
109,419
4,929
7,540
7,143
8,000
46,600
3,312
5,000
18,077
2,6
668,090
19,750
7,143
11,979
7,143
44,012
27,870
40,227
53,579
41,220
4,748
360,175
57,006
3,000
13,000
71,813
7,143
2
205,482
2
250,000
7,143
7,143
2
257,437
9,192
7,143
5,000
8,237

2.0%
0.3%
2.0%
0.3%
7.0%
0.1%
0.4%
2.2%
0.1%
0.2%
0.1%
0.2%
0.9%
0.1%
0.1%
0.4%
53.2%
0.4%
0.1%
0.2%
0.1%
0.9%
0.6%
0.8%
1.1%
0.8%
0.1%
7.2%
1.1%
0.1%
0.3%
1.4%
0.1%
4.1%
5.0%
0.1%
0.1%
5.1%
0.2%
0.1%
0.1%
0.2%

Total

5,011,265

100.0%
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Grant
Grant
Audiology
Family Plan
nning
Ultrasound
Facial Cam
mouflage
Grant
Grant
Grant
Grant
Audiology
Grant
Gynaecolog
gy
Vasectomy
y
Grant
Grant
AMD
Ophthalmo
ology
Audiology
Pain Manag
gement
Audiology
Scans
Grant
Grant
Ophthalmo
ology
Grant
Optometry
Physiothera
apy
Grant
Training
Ophthalmo
ology
Grant
Audiology
Family Plan
nning
Audiology
Audiology
Audiology
Ophthalmo
ology/Urology
y
Audiology
Audiology
Ophthalmo
ology
Grant

HS Easterrn Cheshirre Clinical Commiss
sioning
Table Seven: NH
p's (ECCCG
G's) Locall Enhance
ed Service Providers
s
Group
Local Enhanced
d Service Providers
P

Annand
dale Mediccal Centre
Ashfiellds
Bolling
gton Medica
al
Broken
n Cross Su
urgery
Chelford Surgery
erland Housse Macclessfield
Cumbe
George
e Street
Handfo
orth Medica
al Centre
High Street
S
Mediccal Practice
e Macclesffield
Kenmo
ore Medica
al Centre
Lawton
n House Su
urgery
Manch
hester Road
d Medical Centre
C
McIlvrid
de Medicall Centre
Meado
owside Med
dical Centrre
Park Green
G
Surge
ery
Park Lane House
e Medical Centre
C
Priorslegh Medical Centre
esmoor Gro
oup Practice
Reade
South Park
P
Surge
ery
The He
ealth Centre
e Holmes Chapel
C
The Scchoolhouse
e Surgery
Toft Ro
oad Surgerry
Vernovva
Wilmslow Health Centre
Total
2014-1
15 Financia
al Budget: Table
T
7 of 13
1

An
nnual Pe
ercentage
e
Contract
£'s
68,158
6
9,407
6
65,108
3
38,939
2
23,871
8
80,525
7
79,818
10
00,236
3
33,998
7
71,759
5
51,198
4
45,402
6
62,589
3
36,689
6
69,804
4
41,973
6
68,378
5
58,522
7
76,106
5
55,353
4
48,248
7
75,548
57,727
45
25,803
12

3.7%
%
0.5%
%
3.5%
%
2.1%
%
1.3%
%
4.4%
%
4.3%
%
5.4%
%
1.8%
%
3.9%
%
2.8%
%
2.5%
%
3.4%
%
2.0%
%
3.8%
%
2.3%
%
3.7%
%
3.2%
%
4.1%
%
3.0%
%
2.6%
%
4.1%
%
24.8%
%
6.8%
%

1,84
45,159

100.0%

Table Eight: NH S Eastern
n Cheshire
e Clinical
Comm
missioning
g Group's (ECCCG's
(
s) Collaborrative
Comm
missioning
g
Collab
borative Co
ommissioning

An
nnual Pe
ercentage
Contract
£'s

Cheshire East LA
A

214,060

100.0%
%

Total

214,060

100.0%
%
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15 Financia
al Budget: Table
T
8 of 13
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S Eastern Cheshire Clinical
Table Nine: NHS
missioning
g Group's (ECCCG's
(
s)
Comm
Hospices
Hospices

Annual Percentage
A
e
Co
ontract
£'s

ce East Cheshire
Hospic
Hospic
ce St Anns

43
33,067
3
33,454

92.8%
%
7.2%
%

Total

46
66,521

100.0%
%

15 Financia
al Budget: Table
T
9 of 13
1
2014-1
S Eastern Cheshire
C
C
Clinical
Table Ten: NHS
missioning
g Group's (ECCCG's
(
s) Analysis
s of
Comm
Develo
opment fo
or 2014/15 - to be fina
alised
201
14/15
£
£'s
NHS Merit
M
Mental Health (Blo
ock to PbR
R Contract)
Mental Health - IA
APT Service
es
ormation Te
echnology (Shortfall)
(
GP Info
GP Info
ormation Te
echnology (Depreciat
(
tion)
Primarry Care Pre
emium
NHS Property
P
Se
ervices
Contingency
Total
2014-1
15 Financia
al Budget: Table
T
10 off 13

41,000
4
00,000
50
25
50,000
4
45,000
25
50,000
49,000
34
15
50,000
46,000
14
1,73
31,000

Table Eleven:
E
NHS Eastern Cheshire
C
C
Clinical
Com
mmissioning Group's (ECCCG's)
(
Growth
h
Collabo
orative Com
mmissionin
ng

Popu
ulation
Gro
owth
£
£'s

N
Non
Demog
graphic
Growtth
£'s

Total
Growth
£'s

Acute Contracts
C
Mental Health Conttracts
Commu
unity Contraccts
Continu
uing Healthca
are
Free Nu
ursing Care
Prescribing
Enhancced Servicess
LD Poo
ol

1,014,000
114,000
142,000
72,000
42,000
248,000
9,000
38,000

775,000
1,7
1
199,000
2
249,000
4
448,000
2
263,000
1,5
551,000
16,000
66,000

2,789,00
00
313,00
00
391,00
00
520,00
00
305,00
00
1,799,00
00
25,00
00
104,00
00

Total

1,679,000

4,5
567,000

6,246,00
00
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Table T
Twelve: NHS
S Eastern Ch
heshire Clinical Commis
ssioning Grroup's (ECCC
CG's) Runniing Costs

2014-15
5 Financial B
Budget: Tab
ble 12 of 13
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Table Thirteen: NHS Easttern Chesh
hire Clinical Commis
ssioning Group's
G
CG's) Quallity, Innova
ation, Prod
ductivity & Preventiion (QIPP)
(ECCC
Summ
mary for 20
014/15
Initiativ
ves

Gros
ss QIPP
£'s

Investm
ment
£'s
s

Net QIPP
N
£'s

Electivve Care
Non Elective Care
e
Prescrribing
Investm
ment Phasin
ng
Runnin
ng Costs

638,000
1,728,000
588,000
396,000
68,000

(
(50,000)
(150,000)
(
(50,000)

588,000
0
1,578,000
0
538,000
0
396,000
0
68,000
0

Total

3
3,418,000

(2
250,000)

3,168,000
0

15 Financia
al Budget: Table
T
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GOVERNING BODY MEETING
28 May 2014
Paper Title

Agenda Item 2.3

Investing in Primary Care 2014-15

Purpose of paper / report
This paper provides an update to the Governing Body around the CCG’s
commissioning approach to investment in primary care services.

Key points
 The Investment in primary care is fully aligned to our local plans, both short term and as
part of our longer term Caring Together programme
 The investment is consistent with NHS England’s “A call to action – Transforming Primary
Care” and is also mandated as part of the NHS England “Everyone Counts” planning
guidance
 The CCG has identified schemes compliant with the principles of the guidance and
continues to work to identify additional areas which will support improvement in primary
care services and a continued movement of care from a hospital to a community setting
 The investment is consistent with the initial findings from Caring Together public
engagement and the public response for a priority to be improving access to GP services

The Governing Body is asked to:
Approve
Ratify
Endorse

Decide
Note for information



Benefits / value to our population / communities
Investment in services for patients in a setting which is often their first point of contact with
the health and care system

Report Author
Neil Evans
Head of Business Management

Contributors
Bernadette Bailey
Transformation Manager
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CG Governin
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Investting in Primarry Care
e 2014 - 15
1.

Ex
xecutive
e Summa
ary

1.1

Th
he NHS A
Act 2006 (a
amended by the He
ealth and S
Social Carre Act 201
12)1 gives NHS
En
ngland the
e power to direct a clinical commissioning
g group (CC
CG) to exe
ercise any of its
functions rellating to the
e provision
n of primaryy medical ccare servicces. Curren
ntly CCGs have
a responsibiility to mon
nitor and im
mprove the
e quality o
of Primary Care and the authorrity to
co
ommission services from
f
Prima
ary Care that fall ou
utside the National
N
G
General Me
edical
2
Se
ervices (GM
MS) contra
act.

1.2

Th
his paper provides a
an update to the Govverning Bo
ody around
d the CCG
G’s approach to
investment in Primaryy Care. T
This is bein
ng driven both throu
ugh the cu
urrent grow
wth in
de
emand for primary care service
es, driven by demog
graphic cha
ange and changes to the
se
etting peop
ple are being cared for in. Bo
oth Nation
nal Policy a
and the em
merging Caring
C
To
ogether Cliinical Mode
el support tthe need fo
or greater investment
i
t in this are
ea.

1.3

Fo
or 2014-15
5 National Guidance has been
n issued by NHS En
ngland requiring CCG
Gs to
invest aroun
nd £5 per h
head of pop
pulation in additional services w
which will ssupport Priimary
Ca
are to care
e for the ovver 75s, i.e. circa £ 1m
million in Eastern Che
eshire.

1.4

he CCG ha
as identified a range of scheme
es and is w
working with
h our member practicces to
Th
identify furth
her opporttunities to fulfil this requireme
ent. The initial sche
emes iden
ntified
include:
 Proactive Care serrvice for th
d on a na
he over 75s to build
ational enh
hanced se
ervice
by NHS En
ngland;
included in the GP ccontract forr 2014-15 b
 Urgent Prrimary Carre Service which will respond tto urgent h
home visit requests w
which
would ord
dinarily ofte
en lead to a
an ambulan
nce conveyyance to ho
ospital;
 Nursing H
Home Doctors Service
e to deliverr proactive care for re
esidents;
 A scheme
e to maximise the effe
ective use of medicines.

1.5

Th
he CCG is working w
with NHS E
England to develop b
both short a
and long te
erm contra
actual
op
ptions to recognise the addittional clinical respon
nsibility an
nd workload require
ed to
manage exissting and future
f
workkload increases for prrimary care
e. This wo
ork is integ
gral to
the plans co
ontained within Caring
g Togetherr.

2.

R
Recomme
endation((s)

2.1

Th
he Governing Body iss asked to note for infformation tthe:
 ongoing in
nvestment in servicess provided within prim
mary care
 local and national m
move toward
ds greater investmen
nt requirem
ments in prim
mary care
 CCG plan
ns to devellop a guida
ance policyy for any u
use of incen
ntives for P
Primary Ca
are in
order to fu
urther imprrove the qu
uality of serrvices available to ou
ur populatio
on.

1
2
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3.

R
Reasons ffor Recommenda
ation(s)

3.1

Th
he CCG is fundam
mentally re
edesigning the care model in
n Eastern Cheshire and
co
ontinued de
evelopmen
nt of Primary Care is essential iff we are to
o both achie
eve our existing
qu
uality and financial statutory responsibilities as w
well as to
o achieve the aims and
ob
bjectives off Caring To
ogether.

3.2

To
o provide a
assurance to the Govverning Bo
ody regarding compliance again
nst the 201
14/15
3
Na
ational planning guidance ‘Everryone Coun
nts’.

4.

Pe
eer Grou
up Area / Town Area Affec
cted

4.1

Alll.

5.

Po
opulation Affecte
ed

5.1

Ea
astern Che
eshire patie
ents receivving Primarry Care.

5.2

Th
his paper predomina
ately focuses on se
ervices pro
ovided to our olderr populatio
on, in
pa
articular th
hose patie
ents over 75 years of age a
and those with multtiple long term
co
onditions and comple
ex needs.

5.3

In 2014-15 N
NHS Engla
and introdu
uced a natio
onal “Enha
anced Servvice - Avoid
ding Unpla
anned
4
Ho
ospital Adm
missions” requiring P
Primary Ca
are to provvide additio
onal services to 2% o
of the
po
opulation, w
which equa
ates to justt over 4,000 people.

6.

Context

6.1

Whilst NHS England h
W
has the ma
ain contractting respon
nsibility forr Primary C
Care Servicces a
ra
ange of serrvices are ccommissioned by CC
CGs. Histo
orically thesse were co
ommissione
ed by
Prrimary Ca
are Trustss through “Local E
Enhanced Services””, wherea
as CCGs now
co
ommission through a NHS Stan
ndard Contract. CCG
G expenditure on se
ervices provvided
byy Practicess in 2013-14 was £1.85m. App
pendix One
e shows a list
l of services includ
ded in
co
ontracts accross our 23
3 practicess.

6.2

In addition tto the servvices alread
dy commisssioned fro
om Primaryy Care the
ere is a gro
owing
Practice primarily drive
en by dem
mographic cchanges an
nd moveme
ent of
prressure on General P
acctivity from
m hospital services back
b
to a p
practice ba
ased delivery model. The nee
ed to
ad
dvance thiis direction
n of travel is a keyy area being addresssed throu
ugh the Caring
C
To
ogether Pro
ogramme.

6.3

4-15 NHS England “Everyone
e Counts” Planning Guidance
e3 there was
w
a
In the 2014
equirement for CCGss to comm
mit to invessting £5 pe
er head off registered population in
re
prrimary care
e services for
f the “ove
er 75s”. Th
he actual g
guidance iss indicated below:
36
6.
CCGss will be e
expected to
o support p
practices iin transform
ming the ccare of pattients
ag
ged 75 or older and reducing avoidable admission
ns by provviding fund
ding for pra
actice

3

4

http://www.e
england.nhs.uk//everyonecountss/
http://www.nhsemployers.o
org/~/media/Emp
ployers/Publicattions/Avoiding%
%20unplanned%2
20admissions%
%20guidance%20
02014-15.pdf
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pla
ans to do so. The
ey will be expected to provide
e additiona
al funding to commiission
ad
dditional se
ervices which practicces, individ
dually or co
ollectively, h
have identtified will fu
urther
su
upport the Accountab
ble GP in iimproving quality of ccare for ollder people
e. This fun
nding
sh
hould be att around £
£5 per head
d of popula
ation for ea
ach practicce, which broadly
b
equ
uates
to £50 for p
patients ag
ged 75 an
nd over. Practice plans
p
shou
uld be com
mplementa
ary to
Better Care
e Fund.
iniitiatives thrrough the B
37
7.
In so
ome instan
nces, pracctices may propose that this n
new fundin
ng be use
ed to
co
ommission new gene
eral practicce servicess that go beyond
b
wh
hat is requ
uired in the
e GP
co
ontract and
d the new e
enhanced sservice. W
We will makke arrangem
ments for N
NHS Engla
and to
be
e involved
d under th
hese circu
umstancess in orderr to help identify tthe contra
actual
arrrangements and he
elp provid
de approprriate overrsight and governan
nce. In other
insstances, practices
p
m
may propo
ose that th
his moneyy be invessted in otther comm
munity
se
ervices to secure inttegration w
with primarry care pro
ovision. P
Practices should have
e the
co
onfidence that, wherre these in
nitial invesstment plan
ns successsfully redu
uce emerg
gency
ad
dmissions, it will be p
possible to
o maintain and poten
ntially incre
ease this in
nvestment on a
re
ecurrent basis.
8.
In ad
ddition, CCG
Gs will nee
ed to demo
onstrate ho
ow individu
ual practice
es can havve as
38
much influen
nce as theyy need ove
er the com
mmissioning
g of associiated comm
munity servvices,
co
ommunity nursing, e
especially district nu
ursing, an
nd end off life care,, so that their
Acccountable
e GPs can
n discharge
e their ressponsibilitie
es and so as to enssure that these
t
se
ervices are
e co-ordina
ated with the
t
service
es provided
d by the p
practice itsself and pro
rovide
inttegrated ca
are for patiients.
6.4

f
the additional
a
in
nvestment the CCG needs to either dive
ert money from
In order to fund
emes with a reduced
d “return o
on investme
ent” or gen
nerate savvings from other
exxisting sche
ele
ements of current exxpenditure; for examp
ple by redu
ucing Paym
ment by Re
esults activvity in
a hospital se
etting or ine
efficient pre
escribing e
expenditure
e.

6.5

NH
HS Eastern
n Cheshire
e CCG has developed
d plans to ccomply with the ‘Everryone Counts’
Guidance through inve
estment in the
t followin
ng scheme
es:
ctive Care
e Service: Enhanced
d Service + (£2). Th
he CCG ha
as committted to
6.5.1 Proac
investing £2 per head of population into Prima
ary Care to
o provide a service w
which
expands th
he scope a
and impacct of the national enhanced se
ervice
buildss on and e
(ES) 2014/15 fo
or Avoiding
g Unplanned Hospita
al Admissions. The funding o
of this
servicce will com
me from re
efining and
d building on the non-recurren
nt investme
ent in
prima
ary care w
which had been ma
ade in 201
13-14 to develop
d
m
multi-disciplinary
Neigh
hbourhood Teams.
nced Servvice +
6.5.2 The sservice spe
ecification for the Prroactive Care Servicce – Enhan
nd
has b
been discu
ussed at th
he primaryy care Loca
ality meeting on 2 May 2014
4 and
share
ed with the
e Local Medical Committee (LM
MC) and GP
P practicess. Practices are
now b
being aske
ed to sign up to the P
Proactive Care
C
Service – Enha
anced Servvice +
for im
mplementation during the curren
nt year.
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6.5.3 The P
Proactive C
Care Serviice – Enha
anced Servvice + aims to furthe
er establish
h and
test in
nnovation in proactivve care to co-ordinatte care and
d improve the experience
for the populatio
on of Easte
ern Cheshire who ha
ave the highest risk of increased
d use
of hea
alth service
es especia
ally hospita
al admissions. The se
ervice is targeted at 2
2% or
4,000
0 patients w
who will be
e identified by the use
e of a risk stratificatio
on tool which is
being
g provided by the Che
eshire & Me
erseyside Commissio
oning Supp
port Unit fo
or use
acrosss all GP prractices in Eastern Cheshire.
k require
ements of the servicce are for Primary Care to worrk in their Peer
6.5.4 The key
Group
ps:
 to provide coordinate
ed care fo
for high risk patien
nts by wo
orking with
h the
Ne
eighbourho
ood Team and other sspecialist sstaff
 to build up
pon the timely telephone access as specified in the ES
S by
email addrresses for each pra
actice to support
s
cllinical
esstablishing secure e
co
ommunicattion between primaryy, community, secon
ndary and
d mental h
health
ca
are
 to share the
e list of high risk patients with p
primary, co
ommunity, secondaryy and
mental healtth care
p joint train
ning to sup
pport the ccontinued d
developme
ent of
 to identify and develop
g and care coordinatio
on
joint working
and develop a joint a
approach and
a
training to reducce unnecesssary
 to identify a
ospital activvity and va
ariation in p
primary carre.
ho
6.5.5

Follow
wing on frrom feedb
back from primary care on the
e high levvel of repo
orting
requirred in 2013/14, the CCG has purposelyy kept the reporting to a minim
mum.
Practices are therefore required to demon
nstrate the
eir actions to imple
ement
i
on patient ca
are by sha
aring their learning a
at two
proacctive care and their impact
eventts with clin
nicians fro
om primaryy, commun
nity, secon
ndary, men
ntal health
h and
social care. The
ese events are scheduled for Occtober 2014 and April 2015.

6.5.6

In add
dition, Pee
er Groups a
are required
d to monito
or their perrformance against a rrange
of me
easures w
which inclu
ude the nu
umber of hospital admissions,, readmisssions,
Accid
dent and Emergency attendance and outp
patient app
pointments. Also the
ey are
requirred to workk with colle
eagues in primary,
p
co
ommunity, secondaryy, mental h
health
and ssocial care to ensure their joint w
working is targeted a
at delivering
g more pla
anned
proacctive care in
i the com
mmunity., which
w
will reduce
r
unn
necessary attendances or
admisssions to h
hospital.

6.5.7

The C
CCG also h
has include
ed quality rrequiremen
nts within the 2014/15
5 contractss with
East Cheshire NHS
N
Trustt and Chesshire and W
Wirral Parttnership NHS
N
Found
dation
Trust to align th
his approacch to Proacctive Care.

6.5.8

Urgent Primary
y Care Se
ervice (£1.70). Durin
ng the win
nter of 201
13-14 the CCG
missioned a pilot serrvice from East Che
eshire NHS
S Trust GP
P Out of H
Hours
comm
Team
m. This allo
ows a centtral team to
o respond to urgent h
home visitss at the req
quest
of either a Para
amedic, GP Practice
e, Care Ho
ome or community- based Clin
nician
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where
e it is not possible for
f the reg
gistered GP
P to respo
ond in a “tiimely” wayy e.g.
during
g surgery. In the ab
bsence of tthis service
e the defa
ault option is often to
o take
the pa
atient to an
n A&E depa
artment.
6.5.9 The p
pilot servicce was funded by non-recurren
nt winter prressures fu
unding rece
eived
in De
ecember 2013 from NHS England. Ana
alysis of th
he pilot’s outcomes
o
were
positive, and sh
howed that a positive return on investmentt existed in terms of:
 red
duced amb
bulance con
nveyance
 red
ductions in Accident and
a Emergency atten
ndance and
d hospital a
admissionss
butor to delivery of the NWA
AS (North West
6.5.10 This scheme iss also a kkey contrib
Ambu
ulance Servvice) pathffinder sche
eme to avo
oid unnece
essary para
amedic vissits or
conve
eyances off patients to
o hospital.
he basis of the positivve pilot, the
e CCG hass agreed to
o continue the schem
me for
6.5.11 On th
the cu
urrent finan
ncial year. This will also allow
w time for tthe Caring
g Togetherr care
mode
el design work
w
to be completed
c
in order to
o inform lo
onger term commissio
oning
intenttions.
e Doctors Scheme (NHDS). The
T
CCG already fu
unds enha
anced
6.5.12 Nursing Home
ng Homes from Pracctices £236
6k (£1.15). The sche
eme proacctively
coverr for Nursin
provid
des GP care to home
es rather th
han the mo
ore reactive
e care that would routinely
be offfered by G
GP practicces through their sta
andard Ge
eneral Med
dical Services /
Perso
onal Medical Servicess (GMS/PM
MS) contracct.
6.5.13 During 2014-15
5 the CCG
G has com
mmitted in
nvestment of £223k (£1.09). This
ws the deccision in 2
2013-14 to decommission the NHDS pro
ovided by East
follow
Cheshire Trust as the co
osts and sspecification were ide
entified ass inferior to
o the
me being d
delivered th
hrough a Primary
P
Care Locally Enhanced
d Service (L
LES).
schem
This investment also enssured that any home
es not yet covered b
by any sch
heme
could also receiive cover.
6.6 Pra
actice/Peer Group C
Commissioning Pla
ans. The E
Everyone C
Counts Gu
uidance ob
bliges
the CCG to cconsider th
he service developme
ent plans, to improve
e care for the “over 75s”,
devveloped dirrectly by o
our membe
er GP pra
actices. O
Our membe
er practice
es are currrently
devveloping plans which
h will then need to b
be assesse
ed in termss of value for moneyy and
alig
gnment with CCG strrategy. An
n example of a sche
eme alread
dy approve
ed is where the
Pra
actice Peerr Group co
overing the
e Bollington, Disley a
and Poynto
on practice
es develop
ped a
bussiness case
e, as part o
of the Caring Together Program
mme, reque
esting support to inve
est in
a pilot scheme
e for a “pro
oactive carre scheme”” administrator requirring an inve
estment of £31k
(92p). The CCG
C
Execu
utive Team
m was able
e to suppo
ort this proposal on the basis of
o the
robustness off the busine
ess case a
and consistency with the
t CCG’s strategic direction.
d
abling Primary Care to Undertake A
Additional Work an
nd Increa
ase Efficie
ency.
6.7 Ena
Historically C
Central and
d Eastern Cheshire PCT, alo
ong with many
m
othe
er PCTs, used
entive sche
emes to su
upport possitive chang
ges in prim
mary care practice w
which are a
above
ince
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and
d beyond contractual
c
requireme
ents. It hass been dem
monstrated that the usse of a fina
ancial
mechanism to
o both covver the co
osts to the
e GP practtice of add
ditional wo
ork and pro
ovide
proach to embedding
e
g new
mottivation to change hiistorical prractice is a highly efffective app
wayys of working.
ntral and E
Eastern Ch
heshire PC
CT used a sscheme totalling £4.5
50 per hea
ad of population
6.8 Cen
to fund
f
primarry care in tthis way. A set of sch
hemes would be devveloped ann
nually to de
eliver
the main priorrities in devveloping prrimary care
e services. £3.70 of this fundin
ng transferrred to
the CCG whe
en the PCT
T was disso
olved with the
t remain
nder going to Cheshirre East Council.
me of the funding ha
as been re
etained in specific services wh
hich patien
nts receive
e with
Som
around £3 no
ot directly committed
d. The pro
oposal for this year is to use £2 to fund
d the
Pro
oactive Care Service
e – Enhan
nced Serviice + and £1 to furrther develop a rang
ge of
medicines ma
anagementt improvem
ment schem
mes.
6.9 The
e medicine
es manage
ement imprrovement scheme
s
(£
£1 per hea
ad or popu
ulation) includes
sch
hemes whicch encoura
age change in clinica
al practice, in order to both imp
prove outco
omes
and
d generate
e financial efficiencie
es through optimising
g use of m
medicines.. For exa
ample
und
dertaking a defined set of annua
al health checks,
c
and
d providing
g training, ffor patientss with
respiratory co
onditions le
eads to im
mproved use of inha
alers and sself-manag
gement of their
con
ndition. This not onlyy improvess health outcomes, for the pa
atient, but also delive
ers a
reduction in p
prescribing and hospittal attendance/admission costs.
and future,, growth off activity de
elivered in primary ccare the CC
CG is
6.10 In light of the existing, a
ploring how
w it can use financia
al levers tto build on
n the succcess of scchemes like
e the
exp
medicines ma
anagement approach
h in other areas. Fo
or example
e both ourr local, and
d the
e in Comm
munity and
d Primary Care
national, direction of trravel are tto deliver more care
h in turn will
w reduce expenditure in seco
ondary care
e. In the current
c
nattional
setttings which
prim
mary care
e contract there is no mech
hanism to recognise the add
ditional clinical
responsibility and worklload being
g taken on by primarry care ass practices are funde
ed by
NHS England
d on a “blo
ock funding
g” basis. T
The CCG is thereforre working with both NHS
Eng
gland and Primary Ca
are to identify how to overcome
e this contra
actual restrriction.
6.11 In light of the complexityy of develo
oping a sollution the C
CCG intend
ds develop
ping some early
dance whicch will describe how the CCG ccan balancce the need
d to invest in new Priimary
guid
Carre Servicess with the need to rreduce exp
penditure e
elsewhere, e.g. hosp
pital based care
whiilst effectively addresssing poten
ntial issues around co
ompetition and
a confliccts of intere
est.

7.

nance
Fin

7.1 In 2
2013-14 the CCG dirrectly comm
missioned services to
o a value o
of £1.85m. Existing plans
are within thiss cost enve
elope and any future
e investmen
nt would need to reflect reductiion in
exp
penditure e
elsewhere e
e.g. reducttion in hosspital activitty as a dire
ect result o
of new serrvices
bein
ng delivere
ed by Prima
ary Care.

8.

Qu
uality and
d Patientt Experience
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8.1 Peo
ople with the
t
most ccomplex health
h
prob
blems inclu
uding multtiple long term
t
conditions
report that the
eir care is often provvided by m
many differe
ent service
es and orga
anisations.. This
derstand an
nd difficult for patients to navig
gate their w
way around the
makes it difficcult to und
nts report that there is a lack of
o cocurrent complex health and social care systtem. Patien
and poor co
ommunicattion betwee
en the diffe
erent servicces.
ordination in ttheir care a
8.2

e approacches outlin
ned in thiss paper e
e.g. Proacttive Care, are aimiing to imp
prove
The
com
mmunicatio
on between
n clinicianss and co-orrdinate carre for patients with the greatest level
of rrisk to provvide.

8.3

The
e investme
ent is consistent with
w
the in
nitial findin
ngs from Caring T
Together P
Public
eng
gagement and the public respo
onse for a local prio
ority to be improving
g access to
o GP
servvices

9.

Co
onsultatio
on and E
Engagement (Public/Patien
nt/Carer/C
Clinical/Sttaff)

9.1

Wh
hen implem
menting anyy new servvices the C
CCG would
d consult ussing its no
ormal proce
esses
of e
engagemen
nt.

9.2

e CCG use
es Primaryy Care Loccality and Practice P
Peer Group
p Meetingss to engag
ge on
The
devvelopment of service
es. In addition the CCG will engage o
on proposa
als to inve
est in
prim
mary care w
with the Lo
ocal Medica
al Committtee, who re
epresent GP practicess.

9.3

The
e Caring T
Together Steering Grroup has b
been involvved in desiigning the Proactive Care
ation with our public in
sch
heme. Th
he program
mme is u
undertaking
g extensivve consulta
devveloping the future ca
are models.

9.4

Easst Cheshire
e NHS Trrust and Cheshire
C
an
nd Wirral Partnership NHS Fo
oundation Trust
havve been se
eparately in
nvolved in consultatio
on/negotiattion of a CQ
QUIN (Com
mmissionin
ng for
Qua
ality and In
nnovation payment)
p
fo
or Proactivve Care.

10.

Equality

10.1

Furrther investtment in Prrimary Care
e services is designe
ed to improve access to care an
nd to
enssure equality of accesss to servicces.

11.

Leg
gal

11.1

The
e CCG is ccognisant o
of the poten
ntial conflicct of interesst, whether real or pe
erceived, o
of any
inve
estment de
ecisions relating to prrimary care
e and careffully consid
ders the na
ational guid
dance
on competition and confflicts of inte
erest when
n making a
any decisio
ons on fund
ding for priimary
care, includin
ng seeking
g legal advvice. Whe
ere it is a
appropriate, e.g. Enh
hanced Nu
ursing
Hom
me Doctorr Service, a “competittive procurrement app
proach is ffollowed ra
ather than using
a siingle tende
er waiver a
approach.

12.

Co
ommunic
cation

12.1

The
e CCG will continue to engage
e with the Governing
g Body, our GP Pracctices, clinicians
and
d stakehold
ders in fina
alising the design
d
and specification of invesstment in p
primary carre.
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13.

Ba
ackgroun
nd and Options

13.1

See
e above forr informatio
on around the approa
ach which has
h been taken
t
by th
he CCG.

14.

Ac
ccess to ffurther in
nformatio
on

14.1

Forr further infformation rrelating to tthis report ccontact:

Name
Designation
Date
Telepho
one
Email

N
Neil Evans
H
Head of Bu
usiness Ma
anagementt
2
20/05/2014
4
0
016256634
469
n
neilevans@
@nhs.net

15. Glo
ossary o
of Terms







Primary C
Care – Servvices delive
ered by a G
GP practice
e (or denta
al or optom
metry)
ES (Enha
anced Servvice) - a contract used
d by NHS England to
o contract d
directly witth GP
Practices
LES (Loccal Enhancced Servicce) – a co
ontract hisstorically used by NH
HS Englan
nd to
contract d
directly with
h GP Practtices for a llocally defined service specifica
ation
NES (Nattional Enha
anced Servvice) – a contract historically used by N
NHS Engla
and to
contract d
directly with
h GP Practtices for a n
nationally d
defined serrvice speciification
NHS sta
andard contract
c
– CCGs are m
mandated to use a natio
onally
developed
d/maintaine
ed contra
act for an
ny healthccare service which
h they directly
commission
CQUIN – A quality incentive scheme m
mandated in the NHS
S standard
d contract. The
his scheme
e is 2.5% o
of the total contract va
alue.
value of th

16. Ap
ppendices
Appendix One

L
List of servvices includ
ded in contracts acrosss our 23 p
practices.
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Goverrnance
Prior Committe
C
ee Appro
oval / Lin
nk to othe
er Comm
mittees
Not App
plicable

CCG H
Health Ne
eeds Prio
orities ad
ddressed
d by this report – please indicate
To prote
ect our citizzens from harm
To
o make care more inttegrated & co

To prevvent alcoho
ol related harm



To prevvent people
e dying
prematu
urely



orrdinated
To
o ensure high
h
qualityy and effecttive
m
mental healtth servicess are availa
able to
alll
To
o address inequalities across our
to
owns and vvillages

CCG 2
2013/14 A
Annual P
Plan prog
gramme of
o work tthis report is linke
ed to
Caring Together
T
Qu
uality Improvement

Mental Health & A
Alcohol








Otther

Key Im
mplications of this report – please
e indicate
e
Strategiic
Co
onsultation
n & Engage
ement

Finance
e
Eq
quality

Quality & Patient E
Experience
e
Le
egal




Staff / Workforce
W

CCG V
Values su
upported
d by this report – please indicate
Valuing People
Innovation

Working
g Togetherr
Qu
uality

Investin
ng Responssibly





NHS C
Constituttion Values suppo
orted by this repo
ort – plea
ase indic
cate
Working
g together for patientss
Compassion
n

Respecct and digniity
Im
mproving livves

Committment to qu
uality of care
Evveryone co
ounts
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Appen
ndix One
List of services
s included in conttracts ac
cross ourr 23 prac
ctices
Service
e

Tariff

Tota
al Per Se
ervice

£2.7
73

£3
37,699

NES Near Patien
nt

£22.9
92

£13
37,184

NES M
Multiple Sclerosis

£24.5
50

£3
38,351

Proactive Care C
CCG

£2.0
00

£40
08,612

Prescribing Initia
atives CCG

£1.0
00

£20
04,306

Pre Dia
abetes Che
ecks CCG - Annual Payment

£20.0
00

£4
40,861

Manage
ement of Stable
S
Coe
eliac Patie
ents

£20.0
00

£2
20,431

£102.1
16

£
£2,997

Bloc
ck

£16
69,870

£30
00

£23
36,100

£120.0
00

£8
87,000

LES Intterpractice
e Carpal T
Tunnel Inje
ections

£75.0
00

£15
53,385

LES Ea
ar Suction

£85.0
00

£2
21,250

LES Gy
ynae IUS m
merina coiil

£205.0
00

-

LES Va
asectomy

£300.0
00

£4
40,437

LES Sk
kin Lesion

£103.0
00

£11
14,536

£81.0
00

£7
75,216

Total C
CCG Spen
nd

£1,83
35,754

NES A
Anti-Coagu
ulation Lev
vel 1

LES Initiation off Insulin
LES Ph
helbotomy
y Support
LES Ca
are Home
LES Intterpractice
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urgery

Echoca
ardiograph
hy
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Caring Together Programme Director’s Report

Purpose of report
To provide the Governing Body of NHS Eastern Cheshire CCG with an update on
the progress of the Caring Together Programme against its agreed plan and
significant milestones.

Key points
This report details the:
 communications and engagement update
 summary of progress against the programme plan and project plans
 top three risks
 the Southern Sector Challenged Health Economy Programme
 Caring Together Plan on a Page in 2013/14 to Proactive Care 2014/15

The Governing Body is asked to:
Approve
Ratify
Endorse

Decide
Note for information



Benefits / value to our population / communities
This programme benefits our population and communities by aiming to make care more
integrated and co-ordinated.

Report Author

Samantha Nicol
Caring Together Director
Contributors

Ian Tomlinson, Bernadette Bailey, Alexi Ness, Karen Burton, Tori Bell,
Nikki Hotchin
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Caring Together Programme
Director’s Report
1.

Executive Summary

1.1

This Director’s Report is intended to provide the Governing Body of NHS Eastern
Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) with an update on the progress of
the Caring Together Programme against its agreed plan and significant milestones.
It aims to provide the Governing Body with the required assurance on the progress
and delivery of the programme and the effective utilisation of the resources that the
CCG has allocated to it.

1.2

In addition to reporting against the Caring Together programme plan this report
captures the progress of a number of projects that in the previous financial year
were monitored by the CCGs Leadership Team. These projects are highlighted in
the Proactive Care section of this report.

1.3

This report details the:
 communications and engagement update
 summary of progress against the programme plan and project plans
 top 3 risks
 the South Sector Challenged Health Economy Programme
 Caring Together Plan on a Page in 2013/14 to Proactive Care 2014/15

2.

Recommendation(s)

2.1

The Governing Body is asked to:
 note the progress of the Caring Together Programme and Proactive Care projects
against the agreed timelines and plans

3.

Peer Group Area / Town Area Affected

3.1

All geographic areas of the CCG.

4.

Population affected

4.1

The whole population of Eastern Cheshire

5.

Status Report

5.1

This is a status report of the Caring Together Programme and will include an update
on the following:
 communications and engagement update
 summary of progress against the programme plan and project plans
 top 3 risks
 the South Sector Challenged Health Economy Programme
 Caring Together Plan on a Page in 2013/14 to Proactive Care 2014/15

6.

Communications and Engagement

6.1

A detailed implementation plan for all communications and engagement activities
over the next few months has been developed with the Communications and
Page 2 of 14
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Engagement Group and is available to view on request. It is important to note that
equality and diversity considerations are underpinning all the activity outlined in the
plan as detailed in the separate equality paper.
6.2

Work to date has encompassed:
6.2.1 Join the Conversation Campaign: The campaign drew to a close at the end of
April and generated the following activity – the full report is attached as
Appendix A.
6.2.2 Survey: Generated 111 responses, 87 postal (from leaflet) and 24 online,
summary of results of first two questions as follows, full results in attached
report.
6.2.3 Q: What matters to you most about health and social care? Top 3 responses:
51% - quick access to care services; 44% - expert advice; 43% - knowing
who / which organisation to contact
6.2.4 Q: What one change do you think could be made to the provision of health
and social care? Some of the common themes were:
 Care needs to be joined up
 Access needs to be improved (especially at primary care level)
 Enhanced training to improve quality of service and care at home
 Improved communication and advice
6.2.5 In addition, we received comments and advice from patient representatives
from both the Communications and Engagement Group and the Empowered
Person Group on how to improve future communications materials and
channels which has been incorporated into the plan to date. These results
have been fed back to the Care Model Design Groups and match the
feedback from the first Stakeholder Panel and support the evaluation criteria.
6.2.6 Media: coverage for the campaign to date:
 Print: three press releases drafted which generated 18 press clippings and
achieved a reach or ‘opportunity to see’ of 238,951
 Online: appearing as agreed on a number of partner websites, most visits
were generated via East Cheshire NHS Trust with 664 click throughs
(referrals) to the Caring Together site.
6.2.7 www.caringtogether.info: The following sets out the Caring Together
website activity from 1 March to 9 May 2014 – a detailed report is available on
request:
 183 site visits
 750 visits to the site on 2 May – a possible spike following East Cheshire
NHS Trust survey launch (to be confirmed)
 Average time per visit is five minutes
 Top document downloaded was Join the Conversation leaflet (555
downloads)
Page 3 of 14
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 Top video viewed – Alzheimer’s carer’s story.
6.2.8 Social Media: We increased social media output using infographics,
animated characters and posing a series questions but there has been little
continued dialogue. We expect this to change with care model information
available to give more detail for engagement activity. The majority of
interaction has been via partner channels through staff engagement activities,
and include:.
 Twitter reach for @Caring_together currently stands at 2,467 accounts and
8,682 impressions (number of times delivered to a timeline).
 61% of Caring Together Facebook users are aged 35-54 and 16% are
aged 55+ which challenges the assumption that social media is for the
‘young’
 YouTube channel is well populated and the Caring Together animation is
the most popular accounting for 1,206 views of the total channel views of
1,319.
6.2.9 These findings show that utilising social media and creative content has the
potential for wider reach.
6.2.10 Engagement Activity
 Second Stakeholder Panel: This has been set for the evening of 21 May
in Congleton and to date we have 44 attendees confirmed. The focus of
the evening will be the introduction and testing of the draft care models and
capturing feedback for further refinement
 Targeted Engagement: the next phase of public engagement will assist
the programme with insights gained from the following groups: the new
‘hard to reach’ group of working people plus young people; isolated older
people; new mothers; Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) communities and
people with mental health conditions
 Hard to Reach/Seldom Heard: working extensively with other partner
organisations (Community Voluntary Service, Healthwatch, Cheshire &
Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust, and Cheshire East Council) and
their members/staff to ensure we have engaged with visually impaired
people, those with learning disabilities and hard of hearing for example
 Staff: engagement activities have already taken place within partner
organisations and further plans are being worked up to ensure staff,
including staff sides and trades unions are actively engaged in the care
models debate
 GP members: A programme update is given at the monthly locality
meetings, attended by between 50-70 GP commissioning leads and
practice managers. We are engaging with our GP members via peer group
meetings and utilising the monthly protected learning sessions by linking
the Caring Together programme into the new Transitional Contract
 MP Briefings: A number of MP briefings have taken place over the past
month:
 David Rutley: Jerry Hawker and John Wilbraham met with David on 23
April and 14 May to discuss the programme.
Page 4 of 14

 Fiona Bruce: Sam Nicol met with Fiona on 2 May and gave an
overview and update on the programme. Fiona’s main interest is
around any potential changes to Congleton Hospital.
6.2.11 Media Training: The following individuals have now all received media
training:
 Dr Paul Bowen
 Dr Paddy Kearns
 Dr Ian Hulme
 Dr Jennifer Lawn
 Dr Rob Stead
 Dr Heather Grimbaldeston
 Dr Lisa Clift
 Dr Dave Ward
 Jerry Hawker
 John Wilbraham
 Justin Johnson
 Kath Senior
 Lynn McGill
There are three still to be trained – Dr Jon Barnsley, Dr John Hunter
and Dr Mark Bell.
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7.

Summary and Progress against Plan by group

7.1

The following section sets out the current status of each Care Model Design Group
(CMDG).

7.2

Community Based Care Group
7.2.1 The group has now met ten times and continues to work well together. Two
workshops have been held to develop the care model; the key outputs were
compiled into a draft care model and shared at Checkpoint 3 on 16th April with
other Care Model Design Groups (CMDGs).
7.2.2 The group is progressing with work on the affordability of the model, the enablers
and the implementation plan and focussed on the care model components at the
meeting on 30th April. Members have reviewed the evaluation criteria and
comments are currently being collated.
7.2.3 This group is keen to ensure that it takes account of evidence based practice of
key interventions, but that the model design responds to the local population
needs and is bespoke rather than just a list of other areas’ solutions. The group
has benefitted from additional McKinsey/Carnall Farrar support as part of phase
3 of the contract to ensure the modelling work is as robust as possible.
7.2.4 A Local Specialist Care Task and Finish Group has been established. The initial
focus is to develop the approach and framework for local specialist care and then
test this out in diabetes and cardiology before using with other clinical pathways.
It has been agreed to not test out the framework with dermatology and
respiratory in this first phase of testing.

7.3

Empowered Person Group
7.3.1 The group has met eleven times. The Empowered Person service developments
(interventions) have been drafted and shared at Checkpoint 3 on 16th April 2014.
The Empowered Person components of the Whole System Care Model were
considered at meetings on 17th April and 1st May. The feedback included that
more community engagement and workforce preparation is needed before
cultural transformation, i.e. self-care and signposting.
7.3.2 The group also fed back on the need to balance the development of online tools
with posters/leaflets interventions as a means of communicating. The group
identified the need to determine a mechanism for the use of the Caring Together
champions to prepare them for their role.

7.4

Primary Care Group
7.4.1 The group reviewed the components of the Primary Care model and fed back
their comments. Work is progressing on the affordability of the model for the
next meeting. The primary care model was shared with other CMDGs at
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Che
eckpoint 3 o
on 16th Aprril.
7
7.4.2 The group recceived the first draft of the NHS England
d Transition
nal Framew
work.
The group hass also received an NH
HS England
d baseline survey to complete w
which
cove
ers GP pra
actice workload.
7
7.4.3 A prrogramme of visits to
o all GP prractices ha
as been un
nderway sin
nce April a
and is
due to be com
mpleted by the end of
o May. The
e purpose of the visiits is to en
ngage
the GPs and
d practice managerss in the Caring To
ogether Programme, the
erging prim
mary care m
model and
d also posssible opporrtunities to
o negotiate
e new
eme
conttracting mo
odels with N
NHSE.
7
7.4.4 Engagement ffrom this group con
ntinues to grow and
d memberrs have begun
b
he care mo
odel within their peer groups.
sharring and discussing th
7.5

A
Acute & Specialist G
Group
7
7.5.1 The group me
et on the 30th April and review
wed the d
draft Whole
e System Care
Mod
del and co
omponents. The gro
oup’s workk is aligne
ed with the
e South S
Sector
Cha
allenged He
ealth Econo
omy progra
amme.
7
7.5.2 A Ta
ask and Finish group
p focussed on Urgentt Care hass met three
e times and
d has
deve
eloped a proposed se
et of option
ns.
7
7.5.3 Furtther meetin
ngs of the Mental He
ealth stand
dards grou
up are due
e to take p
place,
with a wider m
membership
p, at the en
nd of May to look at standards in the follo
owing
area
as: Older p
people Psyychiatry, Pssychiatric L
Liaison, Ma
aternal Me
ental Health
h and
Child and Adolescent Me
ental Health Servicess & Transition.

7.6

C
Cultural Transforma
ation Design Group
7
7.6.1 A fin
nal draft off the 2014//15 Cultura
al Transforrmation Wo
ork Plan w
will be signe
ed off
by the Cultura
al Transform
mation Design Group
p on 14th M
May, after which it w
will be
he CMDGs. A numbe
er of collea
agues from across Ea
astern Che
eshire
sharred with th
atten
nded the first day of Advan
ncing Quality Alliancce (AQuA) 12 month
m
lead
dership pro
ogramme on 24th A
April at whicch Paul Plesk was th
he key spe
eaker.
Paul is the Director of th
he NHS Academy
A
fo
or Large Scale
S
Chan
nge and sp
peaks
interrnationally on innovvation in complex
c
o
organisation
ns. Feed
dback from
m the
sesssion was positive.
7
7.6.2 The Caring T
Together Operational
O
l Team re
eceived a briefing frrom a solicitor,
Barrrie Stanho
ope, Senio
or Govern
nance Man
nager (Eq
quality & Diversity) from
Che
eshire & Merseyside Commisssioning S
Support U
Unit on Equality
E
Im
mpact
Asse
essments and will be taking it forw
ward acrosss the Ca
aring Together
prog
gramme ass appropria
ate.
7
7.6.3 A ‘fo
ortnightly ccycle’ of Cultural
C
Tra
ansformation Design
n workstrea
am meetin
ngs is
on-g
going, how
wever full m
membership
p as per th
he Terms o
of Reference continu
ues to
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be cchallenging
g.
7.7

Finance & Estates
s Workstre
eam
ekly meetings have been held to conssider progrress of th
he primaryy and
7.7.1 Wee
com
mmunity carre strategyy as followss:
 Develop
pment of ccare mode
els, identification of ccomponentt elementss and
translation of thosse into cossts is well u
under way. Progresss reports on
n this
work ha
ave been considered at the last three meetings. The aim is to
progresss this workk as far ass possible w
with a view
w to finalisin
e next
ng it in the
two wee
eks, utilisin
ng the expe
ertise of MccKinsey an
nd Carnall Farrar
F
LLP
P.
 Three sscenarios have bee
en presented to asssess afford
dability givven a
propose
ed scale to
o support the new care
c
modell of saving
gs ranging from
30% to 50% and investmen
nts (of £5m
m, £10m an
nd £15m). Further wo
ork is
done to an
nalyse and evidence support fo
or the asssumptions, their
being d
alignme
ent with the care mo
odels and their delive
erability, lo
ook at pote
ential
alternattives to mo
ore costly componen
nts, and to
o complete
e the modelling
work. Itt is intend
ded this wo
ork will be
e brought back to th
he finance
e and
estates workstrea
am next we
eek in final form although aspe
ects of the care
model a
are still und
der develop
pment.
 Site vissits by CC
CG, McKinsey, Coun
ncil and Trust repressentatives took
place at
a Macclesffield, Cong
gleton and
d Knutsford
d to assesss capacityy and
conditio
on of poten
ntial sites fo
or possible co-location of local sservices. Three
T
and five
e locality so
olutions arre being co
onsidered. IT compon
nents have
e also
been identified and costed.
 There is limited time availa
able to com
mplete the care mod
del work. Given
G
eviate the process and
a
proacctively
this, it has been necessaryy to abbre
nts, scenarrios and fin
nancial outcomes for discussion
n with
provide componen
e evolving through th
he CMDG process. There
T
the CMDG rather than these
eration or scrutiny to
o ensure ro
obustness of the fina
ancial
is little time for ite
outcomes and assum
mptions. T
Therefore, tthis detaile
ed work will
w be
model o
part of tthe next ph
hase of the
e programm
me.

7.8

Informattion and Communic
C
ations Tec
chnology (ICT) Grou
up
7.8.1 The group re
eceived a p
presentation on the M
Medical Inoperability G
Gateway (M
MIG),
how
wever it iss not adva
anced eno
ough to de
eliver what is requirred for Ea
astern
Ch
heshire. Th
he group iss looking a
at alternattive integra
ation hubs to supporrt the
carre model. The group
p agreed to
o organise a providerr presentattion day in June
to inform the ICT develo
opment.
7.8.2 The group ha
ave also agreed
a
thatt for the C
Caring Toge
ether mode
el of care to be
here needs to be apprropriate invvestment in
n:
succcessful th
 M
Mapping th
he Informattion Technology (IT) requirements of the m
model of ca
are
 A
Appropriate
e support ffor the new
w system
 IImplementation of the
e chosen ssolution
7.8.3 The group a
agreed tha
at they are
e currently working ttowards a single vie
ew of
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mu
ultiple syste
ems and h
have developed an IC
CT strategic plan on a page to feed
into
o the Carin
ng Togethe
er 5 year Sttrategic Pla
an.
7.8.4 The group arre working up high-le
evel costs tthat have g
grounding in substan
nce to
fee
ed into the affordabilitty model.
7.9

McKinse
ey / Carnalll Farrar
7.9.1 The final pha
ase of the contract has
h been underway in April and May, with
w a
number of McKinsey
M
T
Team
mem
mbers on site
s (Engag
gement Ma
anager and
d two
usiness An
nalysts). T
They have
e worked alongside the Care Model De
esign
Bu
Gro
oup Chairss, Senior P
Project Man
nagers and
d Transform
mation Ma
anagers to bring
the
e care mod
del work to
ogether and
d to suppo
ort the itera
ative process betwee
en the
dessign work and the affordabilityy modelling
g. This phase will co
omplete on
n 21st
Ma
ay 2014.

8.

Risks

8.1

Refineme
ents to the
e risk reg
gister proccess and manageme
ent are ccontinuing, thus
ensuring it is robust and effecctive. Reg
gular comm
munication with Risk Leads is ta
aking
ensure the
e Risk Register is kep
pt up to da
ate and mitigating acctions are being
b
place to e
carried ou
ut.

8.2

A new rissk arose in May. The
ere is a riskk that due to
t negative
e / unmana
aged reactiion to
the publiccation of th
he Caring T
Together 5 Year Stra
ategic Plan
n at the end
d of May / June
would lea
ad to key stakeholde
s
ers not ressponding fa
avourably to the Carring Togeth
her 5
Year Stra
ategic Plan in respectt of organissations 5 Year
Y
Plans.
Mitigating actions: Specific Caring Tog
gether 5 Year
Y
Strate
egic Plan ccommunica
ations
plan bein
ng develop
ped which involves a
aligning ch
hampions w
with politiccians (local and
national), to include
e frequentt one to o
one commu
unications between them; Plan
nning
gramme sta
aff; Support from Carrnell Farrarr and McK
Kinsey
meetings between ssenior prog
ate & Lon
ndon Com
mmunications Agenccy re
to plan strategies; Use of Participa
D
nt of socia
al mobilisa
ation strate
egy; Additiional Execcutive
communiccations; Developmen
Communications exxpertise hass been seccured.

8.3

The risk highlighted
h
above (8.2
2) has mea
ant that the
e following risk has iss no longer in
the top 3 risks. The
ere is a risk that the n
new clinica
al models m
may not be affordable
e or
sustainable for the commissio
oners and/ or the eco
onomy whicch would le
ead to them
m
being un
nworkable.
Mitigatin
ng actions
s: High leve
el assumpttions based
d on low an
nd high savvings from
caring to
ogether mo
odelling sho
ow that an affordable solution iss possible ffor the
commisssioners. De
etailed mod
delling of th
he propose
ed solution when avaiilable is yet to
be underrtaken, and
d will confirrm whether the solution is afford
dable.

8.4

The otherr two top rissks are unchanged frrom last month.
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9.

T
The Soutth Sector Challen
nged Hea
alth Econ
nomy Pro
ogramme
e update
e

9.1

R
Regular South Secto
or Challen
nged Healtth Econom
my (SSCHE) Progra
amme mee
etings
ccontinue. T
The scope
e of the programme has been de
efined and includes th
he analysiss and
a
assessmen
nt of the ba
aseline perrformance and financcial viabilityy of the CC
CGs and Trrusts;
tthe develo
opment of an acute care model and serrvice optio
ons to imp
prove long term
ccommissioning and p
provider via
ability. The
ese options will be evaluated u
using an ag
greed
sset of eva
aluation criteria. The SSCHE
E programme will d
develop a holistic h
health
e
economy strategy
s
that will consistently and cohere
ently inform
m CCG and
d NHS Eng
gland
ccommissioning strate
egic plans across
a
the sector, wh
hich in turn
n will inform
m and supp
port a
ssustainable
e acute p
provider m
market in--line with, NHS En
ngland’s C
Call to Acction,
p
procureme
ent law and
d the NHS C
Constitutio
on.

9.2

T
The progra
amme of w
work to deliiver this sttrategy com
mmenced iin April 2013, and wiill run
u
until the en
nd of June supported
d by McKin
nsey and C
Carnall Farrrar LLP. T
The Progra
amme
iincludes N
NHS Traffo
ord Clinica
al Commisssioning G
Group and
d NHS No
orth Derbyyshire
C
Clinical Co
ommissioning Group.

9.3

T
The SSCH
HE Clinical Board, which
w
is no
ow meetin
ng, is deve
eloping and agreeing
g the
q
quality stan
ndards and
d the co-de
ependencie
es on whicch it will be
e designing
g and propo
osing
sservice mo
odels to the
e Programm
me Board a
at its next m
meeting.

9.4

T
The Progra
amme Boa
ard, which draws tog
gether system leaders, spent time
t
discussing
tthe criteria, against w
which options will be ffiltered, to ensure tha
at they ensured a focu
us on
tthe patient experiencce and quallity.

9.5

IIn preparattion for recceiving and
d discussin
ng service models co
olleagues ffrom acrosss the
S
South Secctor were asked
a
to co
onsider hu
urdle criterria which w
would allow
w it to redu
uce a
p
potentially large num
mber of optiions to a fe
ew to unde
ergo more detailed analysis.
a
T
These
w
were:
 Allows delivery off the agree
ed care mo
odels
 No pre
emises in new location
ns
 Maximum numbe
er of sites p
providing certain servvices
 Propossals will not impact on
n existing p
proposals ffor specialised servicces
 Travel times for ccertain servvices will not be longe
er than a set
s maximu
um

9.6

T
This detaile
ed analysiss would be
e supported
d by the prroposed evvaluation crriteria whicch will
a
allow the C
Caring Tog
gether Boarrd to test in detail the
e list of service mode
el options using
ccriteria devveloped an
nd identify w
which optio
ons are via
able and which, if anyy, are prefe
erred.
T
These could be categ
gorised as::
1
1. Qualityy of care
2
2. Accesss to care
3
3. Afforda
ability and vvalue for m
money
4
4. Deliverrability
5
5. Research and ed
ducation

9.7

F
Further disscussion a
and testing
g of the crriteria will be underttaken throu
ugh the Caring
C
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T
Together C
Clinical Boa
ard.
9.8

A
An initial draft base
eline finan
ncial posittion acrosss all the organisatiions has been
p
presented to the SS
SCHE Prog
gramme B
Board and the forma
at and preliminary fig
gures
problem ha
d
discussed and broad
dly accepte
ed. The exxtent of the
e financial p
as been se
et out
a
and highlig
ghted the case for cchange in respect o
of the conssequential impact on
n the
q
quality of sservices be
eing provide
ed.

9.9

IIt is unde
erstood tha
at further refinemen
nt of the figures iss being u
undertaken and
a
assumption
ns tested w
with the SS
SCHE Fina
ance and Investmentt Group ass well as one to
o
one meetin
ngs with orrganisations.

9.10

A meeting with all the
e CCGs invvolved in S
SSCHE (Ea
astern Che
eshire, Sou
uth Manche
ester,
S
Stockport, Tameside & Glossop
p, Trafford and North Derbyshire
e) reviewed their plan
ns for
iintegrated primary a
and community base
ed service
es and the
eir impact on acute care
m
models.

10.

Caring Together
T
r Plan on a Page iin 2013/1
14 to Proactive Ca
are 2014
4/15

10.1

This secttion reportss on the projects th
hat were p
previously part of th
he CCG Caring
C
Together Annual Plan 2013/1
14, as cap
ptured in tthe Plan on
o a Page
e, and rep
ported
through tthe CCGs Leadersh
hip Team. These prrojects now
w report tthrough Caring
C
Together and have
e fed into and aligne
ed with th
he care model desig
gn groups.. The
collective term being
g used for tthese proje
ects is “Pro
oactive Carre”.

10.2

Caring To
ogether P
Plan on a Page 2013
3/14 - Fina
al Qtr. 4 p
performance The priimary
care repo
orting subm
missions h
have been evaluated
d and theyy show diffferences in
n the
level of cco-ordinated care tha
at has been delivered during th
he year ho
owever all peer
groups have made
e significan
nt progress during tthe year a
and it is ttherefore being
b
recommended that tthe final qu
uarter paym
ment is mad
de in full.
ere has bee
en a delay in the fina
al reporting
g for the Trrusts due tto some off East
10.3 The
Cheshire NHS Trrust final performance
e reports b
being resub
bmitted. Th
he plan is ffor all
the rep
ports to be analysed a
and reporte
ed on by th
he end of May.
M

10.4

Proactive
e Care 2014/15. Building on tthe progre
ess during 2013/14 w
with the Caring
C
Together projects th
hat formed
d part of NH
HS Easterrn Cheshire
e CCG’s P
Plan on a Page;
P
ojects are being co--ordinated under the
e heading of Proactive Care. To
these pro
support th
his, the pro
oject group
ps for risk stratification, neighb
bourhood tteams and selfmanagem
ment suppo
ort are bein
ng combined into on
ne Proactiv
ve Care S
Steering Group
G
that will le
ead and ovversee the ccontinued innovation and imple
ementation of co-ordin
nated
care. Thiss group is m
made up of
o managerrs and clinicians from
m CCG, prim
mary care, East
Cheshire NHS Tru
ust, Chesh
hire and W
Wirral Parttnership F
Foundation Trust (C
CWP),
W
Ambulance Servvice and m
members o
of the
Cheshire East Council (CEC)), North West
he terms off reference
e for this ne
ew group a
are being a
agreed at the first me
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1. Intrroducction
Thiss report sets outt the acttivities unndertaken
n and
associated findings for the ‘Seizzing the O
Opportunity for
Bettter Caree: Join the Conversation’’ engage
ement
cam
mpaign fo
or Caring Together during March –April
–
201
14.
The
e aim of this camp
paign wass to inforrm and in
nvolve
stafff, the ggeneral public
p
and stakehholders in
n the
Evid
dence for Change for
f Caringg Togetherr. As such
h, the
following meechanics and
a activitties were used to in
nform
and
d involve:
bution of 10,000
1
leaaflets, eacch with a tear‐
Distrib
off FREEEPOST su
urvey, to a range of facilities and
a forum
ms (detaileed on page
e 11).
Social media an
nd online broadcastting by Caaring Toge
ether, utillising an online
o
surrvey
and an
n infographic (detailled on pagge 16).

The production and circulation of aan Evidencce for Change videoo – click he
ere.
Press rrelease cirrculation and
a local m
media covverage (detailed on page 19).
The first meeting of Caring Togetheer’s Stakeh
holder Pan
nel was heeld on the 14th Marcch
2014 in
n Macclessfield (detaailed on ppage 24).
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The partner organisations in Caring Together distributed leaflets, briefed staff at
forums and shared the survey through their internal and external channels (detailed
on page 20).
The infographic, video link, survey link and leaflet were distributed via email to nearly
700 contacts on the stakeholder database and around 350 Caring Together
Champions (please note that many of the stakeholder contacts are gateways to other
networks).
In addition, the programme team at Caring Together undertook internal and external
briefings with staff and political stakeholders.
The Report
The following report sets out the detailed activities as sectioned above, with the
insight/findings each activity generated. This is summarised within the Executive Summary.
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2. Executive Summary
This section sets out the executive summary of activities and insight/findings from March‐
April 2014 in regard to the ‘Join the Conversation’ engagement period. Full findings can be
found from page 11.
2.1 Survey Findings
10,000 leaflets with a tear‐off FREEPOST survey were distributed to the following facilities
across Eastern Cheshire:
23 GP surgeries
10 libraries
42 pharmacies
40 Dentists
26 Opticians
6 Women’s Institutes
9 Supermarkets
5 Citizens Advice Bureau
7 Children’s Centres
4 Town Halls
In addition, leaflets were also distributed by the partner organisations to staff and facilities
(detailed on page 20).
The survey was also replicated online and shared through social media and email.
Survey Data
In total, there were 87 postal responses and 24 online responses to the survey. This gives a
total of 111 responses. Although this may appear to be a disappointing sample it should be
noted that the Evidence for Change built upon information that had been circulated in
regard to Caring Together in 2013. Therefore, for many people it didn’t reference any new
information that would proactively stir people into action. In addition, the detailed Case
for Change report was not released, which would have given more context to the campaign
and created more incentive to participate.
However, the sample does contain good
qualitative information with rich insight to further strengthen the Evidence for Change for
Caring Together.
6Produced by Participate Ltd
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The data from question one has been tabulated and is shown below. The rich insight from
questions two and three have been coded for common themes and are tabled in terms of
number of mentions. Please note not all respondents answered all the questions.
Q1. What matters to you most about health and social care?

What matters to you most about
Health & Social Care?
Quick access to care services

51%

Expert Advice

44%

Knowing who/ which organisation to
contact

43%

The provision of home‐based care

33%

Access to round‐the‐clock support

20%

Easy to understand advice

15%
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Sample Base: 105 responses
The findings above infer that the respondents feel quick access to care services was seen as
the most important aspect. However, this is closely followed by expert advice and knowing
who/which organisation to contact.
Q2. What one change do you think could be made to the provision of health and social care
services across Eastern Cheshire?
The full set of coded findings should be viewed on page 13 and reflect insight to date.
Common themes from this insight are:
care needs to be joined up;
access needs to be improved especially at a primary care level;
better use of funding/resources to take out waste and duplication;
quality of service and care at home should be improved through enhanced training of
staff, better education, improved communication and advice.
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There were 13 additional comments which could not be coded as a theme as they
represent individual circumstances. These can be viewed within the Appendices.
Q3. Fi nish the sentence:. . ‘I want health an d so cial care in Eastern Cheshire to. . .. ’
The findings reflect similar themes as to those of Question 2, with the exception of specific
mentions about being treated with compassion and respect in line with the Empowered
Person standards.
The full set of findings should be viewed on page 14.
2.2 Social Media Insight
Summary and Suggestions
In summary, although the social media reach has increased during this period
there has been little dialogue i.e. interaction.
In the main, it has been broadcasting and informing rather than involving.
The majority of the interaction has come from the partner organisations (or staff
of), which infers that more can be done in terms of mobilising the wider
population and key influencers.
For instance, the total Twitter reach for @Caring_together currently stands at
2,467 accounts and 8,682 impressions (number of times delivered to a timeline),
but @NHSECCCG accounted for 8,044 of these impressions.
A lot more could be done in terms of building the Facebook page ‘likes’, but to
achieve this more shareable content needs to be produced i.e. give people
infographics, images/pictures etc.
The age range of Facebook users is an interesting find, as many people assume
social media is for the ‘young’ yet 61% of the Caring_Together users are aged 35‐
54 years old and 16% are aged 55 to 65+ years old.
The YouTube channel is fairly well populated, but by far the most popular video is
the Caring Together animation,accounting for 1,206 views of the total channel
views of 1,319.
This finding would suggest that engaging and creative content is far more popular
and therefore has the potential for a wider reach.
At this stage, we feel we should take these findings as a baseline on which to
build by using the Social Media strategy for Caring Together.
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2.3 Traditional Media Coverage
Print/Online Media
Press releases drafted and issued
Press releases pending
Total number of press clippings
Coverage pending
Total circulation
Editorial Value
Total EAV please spell out

3
1
18
9
238,951
£42,192
£14,064

2.4 Partner Organisations
In Summary
Partner organisations used both hard copy and electronic channels to distribute the
Join the Conversation leaflets and information.
By using internal intranet and infonet systems, in addition to briefings, there was
widespread potential staff reach.
East Cheshire Trust’s activities resulted in it being the top referral point to
www.caringtogether.info accounting for 664 views.
However, feedback from the communications and engagement leads is that without
more detail on how Caring Together could affect them there is little to motivate staff
to get involved.
Therefore, more needs to be done in terms of producing staff specific information
that would engage them directly by making it clear why they should get involved and
how they could benefit from doing so.
2.5 Stakeholder Panel
A total of 62 participants took part in the Stakeholder Panel on the 14th March 2014 in
Macclesfield. This was a full day event which focused upon:
Discussions around the Evidence for Change
Input into the draft quality standards
Co‐development and weighting of the proposed evaluation criteria
Input into the shaping of the engagement and consultation activities
9Produced by Participate Ltd
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The full Stakeholder Panel report has been circulated to the participants and the insight
from it has fed into the Care Model Design Groups to influence the draft care models.
2.6 Online Platform Activity
The following sets out the www.caringtogether.info activity from 1 March 2014 until 9 May
2014:
Site visits – 6,183
Visitors – 303
Peak visits – Over 750 visits in one day on the 2nd May 2014
Average time on site – 5 minutes
Top document download – Join the Conversation leaflet at 555 downloads
Top video download at 38 views – ‘She smiles when I arrive and that made my day’
this is the story of a husband who cares for his wife with Alzheimer’s
Top referral source – www.eastcheshire.nhs.uk at 664 views
Top search terms ‘caring together’
Summary
In summary the online platform could be used more effectively as a dialogue tool. To date
it has been mainly informative, yet its functionality enables discussion forums and sharing
of rich content. We can infer that the leaflet did increase its reach through the site and that
engaging content, such as videos on personal experiences, are the most effective.
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3. Main Findings
The main findings from each of the activities undertaken during the ‘Join the Conversation’
engagement period (March‐April 2014) for Caring Together are detailed below.
3.1 Survey Findings
10,000 leaflets with a tear‐off FREEPOST survey were distributed to the following facilities
across Eastern Cheshire:
23 GP surgeries
10 libraries
42 pharmacies
40 Dentists
26 Opticians
6 Women’s Institutes
9 Supermarkets
5 Citizens Advice Bureau
7 Children’s Centres
4 Town Halls
In addition, leaflets were also distributed by the partner organisations to staff and facilities
(detailed on page 20).
The survey was also replicated online and shared through social media and email.
In addition to standard monitoring information, the survey asked the following three
questions:
1. What matters to you most about health and social care?
1..1
Expert advice
1..2
Quick access to care services
1..3
The provision of home‐based care
1..4
Easy to understand advice
1..5
Knowing who/which organisation to contact
1..6
Access to round‐the‐clock support
2. What one change do you think could be made to the provision of health and
social care services across Eastern Cheshire?
11Produced by Participate Ltd
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3. Finish the sentence:..‘I want health and social care in Eastern Cheshire to....’
Survey Data
In total, there were 87 postal responses and 24 online responses to the survey. This gives a
total of 111 responses. Although this may appear to be a disappointing sample it should be
noted that the Evidence for Change built upon information that had been circulated in
regard to Caring Together in 2013. Therefore, for many people it didn’t reference any new
information that would proactively stir people into action. In addition, the detailed Case
for Change report was not released, which would have given more context to the campaign
and created more incentive to participate.
However, the sample does contain good
qualitative information with rich insight to further strengthen the Evidence for Change for
Caring Together.
The data from question one has been tabulated and is shown below. The rich insight from
questions two and three have been coded for common themes and are tabled in terms of
number of mentions. Please note not all respondents answered all the questions.
Q1. What matters to you most about health and social care?

What matters to you most about
Health & Social Care?
Quick access to care services

51%

Expert Advice

44%

Knowing who/ which organisation to
contact

43%

The provision of home‐based care

33%

Access to round‐the‐clock support

20%

Easy to understand advice

15%
0%

Sample Base: 105 responses
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The findings above infer that the respondents feel quick access to care services was seen as
the most important aspect. However, this is closely followed by expert advice and knowing
who/which organisation to contact.
Q2. What one change do you think could be made to the provision of health and social care
services across Eastern Cheshire?

Key Themes
1

2

3

4
5

6
7
8
9

Base

No.
22

%
22%

20

20%

10

10%

7

7%

6

6%

5
5
5
3

5%
5%
5%
3%

Don’t know, don’t mind, it doesn’t affect me

3

3%

Other

13

13%

Need a co‐ordinated/joined up approach
“Joined up no opportunity to fall through the gap”
“there needs to be better ownership of a patient ‐ a single GP
allocated to an outpatient, and one specialist to an inpatient”
Quicker/easier access to GP/Health Services
“GPs to have surgery at weekend”
“Able to get through first attempt for calls to be answered”
Make best use of limited funding/increase funding
“Stop professional family claimers ‐ benefiting continually”
“Patients to be charged for not keeping appointments”
“Full development of Congleton war memorial hospital”
More Homecare
“Home visit to elderly and time to talk about problems”
Better/targeted quality Services
“Target LTC care to those who need it, not waste it on the stable
cases”
More communication/education on available Services
Advise on healthier lifestyles
More/better health care staff
Give patient the choice to pay for high quality care

All respondents answering question(multi‐coded question) 99

The findings above show that respondents feel that care needs to be joined up; access
needs to be improved especially at a primary care level; there should be better use of
funding/resources to take out waste and duplication; quality of service and care at home
should be improved through enhanced training of staff, better education, improved
communication and advice. There were 13 additional comments which could not be coded
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as a theme as they represent individual circumstances. These can be viewed within the
Appendices.
Q3. Fi nish the sentence:. . ‘I want health an d so cial care in Eastern Cheshire to. . .. ’

I want health and social care in Eastern Cheshire to…….
1

2

3

4

5

6

7
8
9

10
11

Base

No.
19

%
19%

18

18%

14

14%

14

14%

12

12%

9

9%

6

6%

6

6%

5

5%

4
4

4%
4%

Don’t know, don’t mind, it doesn’t affect me

5

5%

Other

6

6%

…provide a high quality service
“Provide optimal quality of care to residents”
“Be the best experience a person needing care could ask for”
…be more accessible, particularly GPs
“Have access to round the clock support”
“To see late evenings and weekend access to GP services.”
…provide care with compassion, empathy and respect
“Treat me with respect and assist me to live as comfortably as medical
conditions allow”
“Deliver what it says it will with compassion”
…be efficient and effective
“Be sustainable, effective and efficient”
“Be based on a rational analysis of what is possible”
…focus on the needs of the individual
“Work for the individual not the system”
“Deliver what is necessary of each individual”
…work together
“Bring together all the information required so that Professionals dealing
with an individual have the necessary data to advise quickly and
efficiently without that individual being passed from pillar to post”
...improve communication/information about services available
“Be open and honest with all that is available”
…provide more home care
“Allow older people to live at home with excellent care 24/7”
…provide a fair service for all
“To give equal access to all ages with equal access to medical care with
no age limit to operations and medicines”
…increase funding
…provide local services

All respondents answering question(multi‐coded question) 100
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The findings above reflect those made for Question 2, with the exception of specific
mentions about being treated with compassion and respect in line with the Empowered
Person standards.
Monitoring Data
The data below shows that a wide range of people completed the survey. It should be
noted that not all of the respondents chose to answer the monitoring questions.

Respondent Profile
Base no.

%

Type of Response:
Postal
On‐line

86
24

78%
22%

Gender:
Male
Female
Did not disclose

83
14
13

75%
13%
12%

Age:
16‐24 years old
25‐34 years old
35‐44 years old
45‐54 years old
55‐64 years old
65‐74 years old
75+ years old
Did not disclose

1
3
2
11
10
19
26
38

1%
3%
2%
10%
9%
17%
24%
35%

Area of Residence:
Macclesfield &Bollington
Congleton
Alderley Edge
Knutsford
Wilmslow
Holmes Chapel
Poynton&Disley
Stoke‐on‐Trent Conurbation
Manchester Conurbation
Did not disclose

36
9
9
9
6
6
6
3
2
24

33%
8%
8%
8%
5%
5%
5%
3%
2%
22%
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3.2 Social Media Findings
The following sets out the broadcasts and reach for the Caring Together social media
channels during March and April 2014.
Twitter
As of 8th May @Caring_together had 259 followers.
This is an increase of 26% since 1st March 2014.
250 outbound posts during the period generated 127 retweets and 36 comments or
replies (178 interactions with @Caring_together posts).
Our buzz monitoring picked up 248 mentions of @Caring_together between 1st
March 2014 and 7th May 2014 (a list of these is in the Appendices).
There have been 84 in bound interactions (comments/replies/likes/retweets) from
Twitter users to @Caring_together.
71 Twitter users engaged (mentions/replies/retweets) @Caring_together during the
period. The top list includes: @nhsecccg (57) @leginge2 (23) @marygbrooks (11)
@EastCheshireNHS (9) @kenclemens (9) @cwpnhs (5).
Most of the posts to date have been about awareness raising and publicity about
Caring Together. There are only a few examples of @Caring_together generating a
dialogue about issues presented within the Case for Change itself.
Total reach for @Caring_together currently stands at 2,467 accounts and 8,682
impressions (number of times delivered to a timeline). @NHSECCCG accounted for
8,044 of these impressions.
Our Klout score is currently 42 (the average is 40). Klout is a measure of influence.
Facebook
As of 8th May Caring Together’s Facebook page had 57 fans
o 81% were female
o 100% are from the United Kingdom.
70 posts were made between 1st March and 7th May 2014
The table below shows the age breakdown of our fans (in numbers)
Age Range
No. Of Users

13‐17
0
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18‐24
1

25‐34
12

35‐44
19

45‐54
16

55‐64
5

65+
4

Join the Conversation Communications & Engagement Report 15.5.14

Only one comment has been received on the Facebook page during the period.
However, Caring Together’s content has generated 4,750 views and generated 230
forms of engagement (118 of which were stories e.g. likes and page posts).
The page also generated a summed total for the period of 1,422 daily active users
(daily users that viewed or clicked on Caring Together’s Facebook content). In other
words it was on their news‐stream as they could see that their friend had ‘liked’
CaringTogether’s post.
YouTube
Total views of our YouTube channel is currently 1,319. We have 5 subscribers.
1,206 views are for the Caring Together animation.
Since the 1st March there have been 301 views of the channel. This accounts to 596
minutes watched.
46% of views come from embedded videos on other websites (mainly
www.caringtogether.info).
Social Media Mediation
We have received one alert concerning inbound comments. This was a spam
Tweet containing a rude word. It was moderated and deleted instantly.
Summary and Suggestions
In summary, although the social media reach has increased during this period
there has been little dialogue i.e. interaction.
In the main, it has been broadcasting and informing rather than involving.
The majority of the interaction has come from the partner organisations (or staff
of), which infers that more can be done in terms of mobilising the wider
population and key influencers.
For instance, the total Twitter reach for @Caring_together currently stands at
2,467 accounts and 8,682 impressions (number of times delivered to a timeline),
but @NHSECCCG accounted for 8,044 of these impressions.
A lot more could be done in terms of building the Facebook page ‘likes’, but to
achieve this more shareable content needs to be produced i.e. give people
infographics, images/pictures etc.
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The age range of Facebook users is an interesting find, as many people assume
social media is for the ‘young’ yet 61% of the Caring_Together users are aged 35‐
54 years old and 16% are aged 55 to 65+ years old.
The YouTube channel is fairly well populated, but by far the Caring Together
animation is the most popular with it accounting for 1,206 views of the total
channel views of 1,319.
This finding would suggest that engaging and creative content is far more popular
and therefore has the potential for a wider reach.
At this stage, we feel we should take these findings as a baseline on which to
build by using the Social Media strategy for Caring Together.
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3.3 Traditional Media Findings
The following sets out the releases and coverage generated in the printed and online media
throughout Eastern Cheshire during March‐April 2014.
Print/Online Media
Press releases drafted and issued
Press releases pending
Total number of press clippings
Coverage pending
Total circulation
Editorial Value
Total EAV

3
1
18
9
238,951
£42,192
£14,064

Coverage Breakdown
Release: Caring Together Launch – Join the Conversation
Alderleyedge.co.uk
Wilmslow.co.uk
South Warrington News
The Chronicle Series (Alsager)
The Chronicle Series (Congleton)
The Chronicle Series (Biddulph)
The Chronicle Series (Sandbach)
Knutsford Guardian
Middlewich Guardian Online
Middlewich Guardian
Macclesfield Express
Wilmslow Express
Release: Caring Together launch ‐ stakeholder event update
Knutsford Guardian
The Chronicle Series (Alsager)
The Chronicle Series (Congleton)
The Chronicle Series (Biddulph)
The Chronicle Series (Sandbach)
Middlewich Guardian.
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3.4 Partner Organisations
The following sets out the activities by the Partner Organisations in terms of generating staff and patient involvement in
the ‘Join the Conversation’ engagement period.
ORGANISATION

CARING TOGETHER LEAFLET DISTRIBUTION
DISTRIBUTION
25 x Sandbach Office (16 left), 25 x Crewe Office (10 left)
25 x Macclesfield Office (20 left), 10 handed out at VCFS Training session,
4 handed out at over 50's Network Meeting 9 handed out at Community
Buildings Network
**In addition both CVSCE and Healthwatch have included links on Tweets,
Newsletters and Website News to promote the opportunity

CVS

Children’s, Families & Adults
Directorate, Cheshire East Council

Library, Municipal Building, The Job Centre, Wellington House, The Swimming
Baths

Cheshire & Wirral Partnership

**Website page & links, Intranet page & links.
East Cheshire staff roadshow, approx. 40 staff attended and took leaflets
away , Featured in CWP Essential, staff newsletter, Several tweets/links to
the site, Via Council of Governors, Via internal cascade plan

East Cheshire Trust

A combination of infonet links, internal staff survey, forums, meetings,
briefings and social media distribution as detailed in the following action log.
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Cheshire & Wirral Partnership
The following feedback was also received from the Cheshire and Wirral Partnership:
Feedback on what you have heard from staff and the number of staff that have
completed the 3 Questions: I (Engagement Lead) purposefully encouraged all staff to
channel their feedback to the Caring Together contact points for consistency and to
save duplication of effort. On several occasions, I’ve fed back ‘staff feeling’ having spent
quite a lot of time talking to staff and asking what they think and what their biggest
gripes / hopes are. I have fed this back into each CT meeting. Just to reiterate, the key
themes remain unchanged and are:
Out of area issues: hospital admits people from out of area ‐ unfamiliar with
services available to those individuals. Community services have role to play in
keeping people out of hospital, however need better knowledge/links with those
local services. People become regular attendees in A&E because not joined up
with community support.
Falling through gaps: unclear pathways for people with complex needs and don’t
fit service criteria – organisations are reluctant to take responsibility. For
example, someone with alcohol acquired brain injury may suffer memory lapses.
Start in A&E for medical detox, don’t know where to go next: GPs can’t do much,
memory clinics focus on over 65s, alcohol services focus on stopping drinking.
Additional complexities if people have also been sectioned.
Age restrictions: People discharged when not 100% well ‘medically fit’ but unable
to properly recuperate without additional support. Over 65s would go to respite
care provided by social services, no resources available for below 65. Transition
between services is also an issue.
Poor systems/technology: need updated equipment that works properly and
quickly, reduce amount of paperwork/electronic systems, joint systems accessible
by all services.
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East Cheshire Trust Activity Log
Date

Action

Reach

7 March

Uploaded press release
Uploaded FAQ
Uploaded leaflet PDF to Trust infonet

Potential 3500 staff
Potential 3500 staff

10 March

Staff newsletter ( digital) communication detailing launch of caring
Together and route to information
Tweets from Caring Together event
Launched staff survey to establish existing awareness of Caring
Together . Due to close Tuesday 25th March 2014

Potential 3500 staff

14 March

17 March
17/19/20
March
18 march
20 March
27 March
20 March
20 March
24 March
26 March
24 March
25 March
27 March
27 ‐ 31 March
26 March
25 March
26 March
3 April
4 April
7 April
9 April
14 April
21 / 28 April

Issued letter to all Senior leaders requesting their support in
cascading information to all staff on Caring Together
Senior leaders Forum presentation and discussion
Implemented trust screensaver
Caring Together drop in session
Trust Public Board paper
Reissued dates for Caring together drop in sessions.
Sent out Senior Leaders Forum links and session details to all Senior
leaders.
Reissued Drop in session dates and call to action details through
Staff matters
Caring Together drop on session
Staff matters
Email communication to all staff drop in session reminder
Email communication to all staff drop in session reminder
Leaflets around Trust sites
Director of Nursing , performance and Quality Podcast encouraging
engagement on Infonet
Staff Engagement questionnaire closed.
Drop in session for staff hosted by CEO
Start the Year event
Drop in session for staff hosted by CEO
Drop in session for staff hosted by CEO
Listening Into Action Staff Event
Staff Matter
Staff Matters
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Unknown
Potential 3500 staff
Respondents to date (
20/3/14 – 245)
Potential of approx 200
45
Potential 3500 staff

Potential 3500 staff
4
Potential 3500 staff
Potential 3500 staff
Potential 3500 staff
Potential 3500 staff (plus
patients)
Potential 3500 staff
427 respondents
7
65
12
12
Potential 3500
Potential 3500
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Please note: during this period, East Cheshire Trust was the top running source as the
referral point to www.caringtogether.info accounting for 664 page views. We are still
awaiting the results of the internal Caring Together awareness survey conducted by the
Trust.
In Summary
Partner organisations used both hard copy and electronic channels to distribute
the Join the Conversation leaflets and information.
By using internal intranet and infonet systems, in addition to briefings, there was
widespread potential staff reach.
East Cheshire Trust’s activities resulted in it being the top referral point to
www.caringtogether.info accounting for 664 views.
However, feedback from the communications and engagement leads is that
without more detail on how Caring Together could affect them there is little to
motivate staff to get involved.
Therefore, more needs to be done in terms of producing staff specific information
that would engage them directly by making it clear why they should get involved
and how they could benefit from doing so.
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3.5 Stakeholder Panel
There were 62 participants in total at the first Stakeholder Panel event held on the 14th
March 2014 in Macclesfield. The following sets out the executive summary from the
exercises and group discussions on the day. The full report has been submitted to the
Stakeholder Panel and to the Care Model Design Groups. Please note not all
participants chose to take part in each exercise.
Pre‐event and post‐event questionnaires
The findings from the pre and post event questionnaires infer that:
The majority of participants felt they knew a lot or a great deal about Caring
Together post deliberation (74% of 47 participants post event compared to 27%
of 59 participants pre event).
The majority of participants agreed or strongly agreed that changes are needed
to health and social care services post deliberation (96% of 48 participants post
event compared to 82% of 60 participants pre event).
The majority of participants agreed or strongly agreed that routine services and
tests should be provided outside of hospital sites (96% of 45 participants post
event compared to 81% of 59 participants pre event).
The quality of health and social care services in Eastern Cheshire were given an
average rating of 5.8 pre event and 6.0 post event (where 1 is poor and 10 is
excellent). This infers that the participants feel there is scope for improvement.
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Findings from Exercise 1 – Evidence for Change
The common themes which have emerged are in line with the key areas for change
already outlined in the ‘Seizing the opportunity for better care’ summary leaflet. This
infers that the participants overall agree with the Evidence for Change.
The most common themes which emerged were a lack of information and poor
communication between services/service users/carers, plus a need for better
integration between services.
These findings strengthen those from previous
engagement exercises as well as those from regional and national evidence. The
findings infer that the participants know there is an abundance of information out
there, but they are unsure on how to access it, and when they do find the right support,
there are barriers in place for staff to be able to share the information.
In terms of accessibility it was felt that ‘a one size fits all’ approach does not work and
that there should be more flexibility to access a wider range of services without always
having to go through a GP. Participants stated that they would prefer a more straight
forward approach that puts the patient at the centre (this in line with the fifth most
common theme of putting the person at the centre of care).
The subsequent themes all centred upon the improved support for the person at the
centre and/or the carer. It was felt that there needs to be more focus on care co‐
ordination to ensure people don’t ‘fall through the gaps’ and that there is the necessary
support in place, especially post an episode or discharge from a hospital. Ensuring early
intervention where possible, through a holistic approach, was seen as a key driver to
help ensure that people who need additional support are highlighted within the
‘system’. Lack of control in decision‐making and ‘not listening’ to carers, were also
highlighted as key areas which need improvement ‐ this was again strengthened
through the following quality standards exercise.
Ensuring consistent quality across services was seen as key by participants, which could
in turn be addressed by common quality standards.
Varying demographic
considerations were also highlighted in terms of age, locality and affluence.
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There were around 30 ‘other’ comments which could not be coded into common
themes as they related to individual experiences. Therefore, it could bias the process to
apply a weighting to these areas in terms of focus for the Caring Together programme.
However, the raw data has been submitted and should be reviewed by the CMDGs
(Care Model Design Groups).
Exercise 2 – Quality Standards
Overall the participants agreed with the proposed quality standards. However, in
addition they also fed in a lot of high quality insight. This has been coded for common
themes which are listed below with more detail in the main Stakeholder Event report:
Empowered Person
Need for joined up working
Improve accessibility of information
Incorporate support/advocates
Involve carers
Ensure information is easy to understand
Give health improvement information
Easy Access
Ensure access for all
Create joined up working
Give clear signposting
Involve carers
Improve/modernise IT systems
Train staff in preparation
Give access to local services
Support for Carers
More support is needed (including financial)
Give respite/breaks
Define what is a carer – paid vs family/close friends
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Need appreciation of carers from professionals
Listen to and empower carers
High Quality Care
Listen to and involve the patient
Focus on staff training and development
Treat people with dignity and respect
Need timely information and signposting
Involve carers
Create joined up working
Need 24/7 support
Integrated Care
Need to work together across all sectors
Confidentiality and security of information needs to be paramount when sharing
information
Offer central co‐ordination
Ensure a person centred approach
Streamline services
Patient/carer to hold their own records
Planned Pathways
Keep patients/carers informed with regular contact
Deliver individualised pathways
Ensure pathways are flexible to change
Develop monitoring and regulation
Offer local services where possible
One stop shop mentality needed
Rapid Response
Ensure joined up working/sharing of information
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Need access to right information and appropriate people
Include 24/7 access
Maximise use of IT
One stop shop mentality
Appropriate Time in Hospital
Work together to join up pathways
Involve patients/carers in planning
Improve GP involvement
Reduce hospital admissions
Community support is needed in one place
Exercise 3 – Evaluation Criteria
Participants were given 100 points and asked to weight them against each criterion,
giving more points to the criteria they felt was most important. A total of 57
participants took part and their points have been aggregated and averaged to give the
findings in the following chart.
The chart below infers that overall the participants feel that quality of care is the most
important factor to consider when evaluating potential changes to services. This is then
followed by how accessible the care is and how deliverable the changes to services are
in the long and short term.
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Options

Exercise 3 ‐ Assessing the Criteria ‐ OVERALL
(Points out of 100)
Strategic Fit

13

Education and Research

12

Deliverability

18

Value for Money

14

Access to Care

18

Quality of Care

26
0

20

40

60

80

100

Average number of points out of 100

Sample Base: 57 Individual Exercises Completed
(Please note there is a rounding error, which is why the total adds up to 101)

In addition, a number of themes emerged from the facilitated discussions around these
findings which can be found on page 26 of the event report.
Exercise 4 – Engagement and Consultation
Through facilitated discussions participants suggested a wide range of groups, channels
of communication and improvements in communication and engagement mechanisms
that should be taken into account in the overall communications and engagement
strategy. These can be found on page 28 of the event report and should feed into
revised timeline of activities.
It is evident that there is a need to involve a wide range and complexity of groups in
the process, and therefore, there needs to be a programme of outreach engagement
undertaken across Eastern Cheshire to give greater opportunities for involvement. In
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addition, it was highlighted that many profiled groups will need proactive or targeted
engagement to ensure they are involved and their insight is capture such as younger
people, working parents etc.
Other Comments and Questions
Participants also had the opportunity to feed questions and other comments into the
event. Overall the themes from these questions have been summarised throughout the
findings and insight from the exercises undertaken. However, a key theme which
emerged was the importance and inclusion of social care in the overall programme of
change for Caring Together.
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3.6 Online Platform Activity
The following sets out the www.caringtogether.info activity from 1 March 2014 until 9
May 2014:
Site visits – 6,183
Visitors – 303
Peak visits – Over 750 visits in one day on the 2nd May 2014
Average time on site – 5 minutes
Top document download – Join the Conversation leaflet at 555 downloads
Top video download at 38 views – ‘She smiles when I arrive and that made my
day’ this is the story of a husband who cares for his wife with Alzheimer’s
Top referral source – www.eastcheshire.nhs.uk at 664 views
Top search terms ‘caring together’
Summary
In summary the online platform could be used more effectively as a dialogue tool. To
date it has been mainly informative, yet its functionality enables discussion forums and
sharing of rich content. We can infer that the leaflet did increase its reach through the
site and that engaging content, such as videos on personal experiences, are the most
effective.
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Governing Body Assurance Framework

Purpose of paper / report
The Governing Body Assurance Framework is a summary of strategic risks that may
have an impact on the achievement of corporate objectives. The purpose of the paper
is to present those risks for review by the Governing Body and assure them that, all
risks are represented, that suitable controls are in place and risks are recorded
appropriately.

Key points
The Governing Body needs to assure themselves of the following
 are all strategic risks represented – are there any missing?
 are risks represented appropriately, is there sufficient information in the framework
document?
 are sufficient management controls in place to manage the risk appropriately?
 should any risks be removed from the framework?

The Governing Body is asked to:
Approve

Ratify
Endorse

Decide
Note for information

Benefits / value to our population / communities
The Governing Body Assurance Framework is a mechanism to ensure that significant
strategic risks to the Group are recognised and managed appropriately, thus minimising any
impact to our population and communities.
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Governing Body Assurance Framework
May 2014
Strategic
Objective
/Aim

Sub Objectives

#

Residual
Risk

Description of Risk

High Performing Staff,
Delivering Quality
Outcomes

Valuing
People

Foster and Maintain Quality
Partnerships with External
Bodies Staff and Groups to
Improve Quality

Working
Together

01

Caring Together Programme – 5 Year Strategic Plan

02
03
04
05
06
07

Designated Doctor for Safeguarding Children

08

Delivery of the Operational Plan

Using Innovation as a Key
to Delivering Excellent
Outcomes.

Innovation

Maintaining and Improving
quality in the services that
we commission.

Quality

Investing
Responsibly

Ensuring Excellent
Outcomes, Delivering
Value for Money
Supporting Providers and
Meeting Financial
Obligations

Delivering
Health Need
Priorities.

Delivering Excellent and
Timely Outcomes from Our
Programme of Work

Low to Medium Risk

Mental Health Capacity
Access to Dermatology
Business Information Systems
CCG Underlying Financial Deficit
QIPP Roles and Responsibilities and Governance

High Risk

Very High Risk

Objective: Working Together
Risk

GBAF 01

Governing Body Assurance Framework
Owner: Sam Nicol

Caring Together Programme – 5 Year Strategic Plan
There is a risk that due to negative/unmanaged reaction to publication of Caring Together
5 Year Strategic Plan at the end of May/June would lead to key stakeholders not
responding favourably to Caring Together 5 Year Strategic Plan

Risk Rating:

Risk History:

Date Last Reviewed: 20/05/2014

Rationale for Current SCORE :

L x C = Level
Initial:

4

5

20

Current:

4

5

20

Appetite:

3

4

12

Initial

20

Current

15

Rationale for RISK APPETITE :

5
01-04-14

0

CONTROLS (What are we currently doing about the risk?)

 Specific Caring Together 5 Year Strategic Plan communications
plan being developed which involves aligning champions with
politicians (local and national), to include frequent one-to-one
communications between them. Planning meetings between
senior programme staff, support from Carnell Farrar and
McKinsey’s to plan strategies. Use of Participate & LCA re:
communications. Development of social mobilisation strategy.
Additional Exec support Communications expertise secured.
ASSURANCES (How do we know if things are having a positive impact?)
 None

Action Detail

Standard risk appetite has been set at 12 and below
MITIGATING ACTIONS (What have we done/what more should we do?

 Communications strategy in development

GAPS IN ASSURANCE (What additional assurances should we seek?
 None identified.

Progress‐to‐Date

Due Date

ACTION
PLAN

Assigned to

Failure to deliver benefits and control the finances of the
programme would have a very significant impact on the
organisation.

Appetite

10

Apr
May
Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar

Opened Date
Target Date
Closure Date

25
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Governing Body Assurance Framework

Risk

GBAF 02

Objective: Quality

Owner: Neil Evans

Designated Doctor for Safeguarding Children: The designated Doctor for Safeguarding
Children is no longer in post and to date the CCG has been unable to recruit a
replacement, which means that the CCG is failing to meet its statutory and non-statutory
duties. • The ultimate accountability for safeguarding sits with the commissioning Chief
Officer of NHS Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group. Any failure to have
systems and processes in place to protect children and adults at risk in the commissioning
process, or by providers of health care that the organisation commissions would result in
failure to meet statutory and non-statutory constitutional and governance requirements.

Risk Rating:

Risk History:
L x C = Level

Initial:

5

5

25

Current:

5

3

15

Appetite:

4

3

12

Opened Date
Target Date
Closure Date

20-05-14
None

25
20
15
10
5
0

Rationale for Current SCORE :

Initial

The likelihood at the time of creating the score is 5 in that the
event has occurred; the impact will increase as time passes.

Current
Appetite
Apr Jun Aug Oct Dec Feb

CONTROLS (What are we currently doing about the risk?)


The Governing Body Lead Nurse is consulting actively with other
CCGs and potential partners to find a suitable replacement.
Update 20/05/2014
 The CCG has approached University Hospital North Staffordshire
to secure a consultant to undertake this process.
ASSURANCES (How do we know if things are having a positive impact?)

 No assurances as yet, although there are potential candidates for
the post.

Action Detail

Rationale for RISK APPETITE :

Standard risk appetite has been set at 12 and below
MITGATING ACTIONS (What have we done/what more should we do?

 CCG is continuing to explore the availability of potential candidates.

GAPS IN ASSURANCE (What additional assurances should we seek?

 None identified

Progress‐to‐Date

Due Date

ACTION
PLAN

Assigned to

Date Last Reviewed: 20/05/2014
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Objective: Quality

Risk

GBAF 03

Governing Body Assurance Framework
Owner: Neil Evans

Mental Health Capacity: Currently in a range of mental health services demand outstrips
capacity significantly. There is a risk that potential patients will not receive treatment and a
solution for the lack of capacity may result in a financial impact on the CCG. As an
example, current recorded risks include CAMHS 16-19 service which lacks capacity to
manage urgent requests for assessment and treatment. There is a risk that future requests
may be rejected.

Risk Rating:

Risk History:
L x C = Level

Initial:

5

5

25

Current:

5

5

25

Appetite:

4

3

12

Opened Date
Target Date
Closure Date

20-05-14
None

25
20
15
10
5
0

Rationale for Current SCORE :

Initial

The actions within controls have yet to be completed;
therefore the service continues to operate at risk.

Current
Appetite
Apr Jun Aug Oct Dec Feb

CONTROLS (What are we currently doing about the risk?)


The CCG has commissioned a GAP assessment to identify the
areas where a Mental Health service lacks capacity.
 The GAP assessment will be used to develop a 5 year strategy to
fill the capacity gaps and improve quality in the service as a
whole.

ASSURANCES (How do we know if things are having a positive impact?)

 No assurances as yet; see controls.

Action Detail

Rationale for RISK APPETITE :

Standard risk appetite has been set at 12 and below
MITGATING ACTIONS (What have we done/what more should we do?

 See controls
 With regard to the specific CAMHS issue: the CCG is writing to the
Cheshire and Wirral Partnership (CWP) giving them notice that they are in
breach of contract and that they must provide a capacity plan to address
this issue. .
GAPS IN ASSURANCE (What additional assurances should we seek?

 See controls

Progress‐to‐Date

Due Date

ACTION
PLAN

Assigned to

Date Last Reviewed: 20/05/2014
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Objective: Working Together
Risk

GBAF 04

Governing Body Assurance Framework
Owner: Neil Evans

Access to Dermatology
East Cheshire Trust has insufficient consultant capacity in Dermatology for some time.
This has been exacerbated by the resignation of the substantive dermatologist at the Trust. Date Last Reviewed: 20/05/2014
ECT has attempted to recruit additional capacity but there is a national shortage of
consultants in this speciality.

Risk Rating:

Risk History:

Rationale for Current SCORE :

L x C = Level
Initial:

5

2

10

Current:

5

4

20

Appetite:

3

4

12

Initial

20

Appetite

10

Rationale for RISK APPETITE :

5
01-04-14

Limited capacity may lead to delays in treatment with a
risk of patient harm and litigation.

Current

15

0
Apr
May
Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar

Opened Date
Target Date
Closure Date

25

CONTROLS (What are we currently doing about the risk?)

 The CCG is arranging a meeting to seek a long term

Standard risk appetite has been set at 12 and below
MITIGATING ACTIONS (What have we done/what more should we do?

 See controls

solution with East Cheshire trust, Vernova and Salford
Royal FT.
ASSURANCES (How do we know if things are having a positive impact?)

 The process continues to seek an appropriate consultant
Action Detail

Progress‐to‐Date

Due Date

ACTION
PLAN

Assigned to

GAPS IN ASSURANCE (What additional assurances should we seek?
 None identified.
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Objective: Investing Responsibly

Owner: Alex Mitchell

Business Information System The development of a Business Information System is critical to
Risk

GBAF 05

Governing Body Assurance Framework

support the CCG deliver against its financial duties and responsibilities under contract management.
The service is provided by the Commissioning Support Unit and has been in development for circa
30 months. Currently, there is limited information being generated by the system i.e. Little data from
Providers within the Manchester area and as such no robust data directly available to monitor
contracts, perform contract query etc. This requires significant estimates to be used in relation to
reporting the CCG financial position both year to date and forecast outturn

Risk Rating:

Risk History:

Rationale for Current SCORE :

L x C = Level
Initial:

4

4

16

Current:

4

3

12

Appetite:

3

4

12

25

Initial

20

Date Last Reviewed: 20/05/2014

The CSU track record of delivery has been poor. The CCG has
agreed improvement plans, but confidence is not high.

Current

15
10

Rationale for RISK APPETITE :

5
10-09-13

Standard risk appetite has been set at 12 and below

0
Apr
May
Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar

Opened Date
Target Date
Closure Date

CONTROLS (What are we currently doing about the risk?)
 The CCG has decided to bring some of the Business Information

processes in-house and as part of the 2014 contract agreement
the CSU have improvement plans in place.
ASSURANCES (How do we know if things are having a positive impact?)

 Delivery of all business information in a routine and timely manner
that covers all contracts; is reconciled and clearly indicates
contract performance

Action Detail

 CCG are bringing some staff in-house to bring greater control over the
process of performance reporting.
 CSU have developed a clear improvement plan to deliver key outputs.
GAPS IN ASSURANCE (What additional assurances should we seek?

 CSU have made some iterative progress to delivery of requirements but are
some way from meeting even the minimum acceptable performance
standards.

Progress‐to‐Date

Due Date

ACTION
PLAN

Assigned to

MITGATING ACTIONS (What have we done/what more should we do?
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Objective: Investing Responsibly

Risk

GBAF 06

Governing Body Assurance Framework
CCG Underlying Financial Deficit: It is expected that the underlying financial deficit of
circa £14m for 2014/15 will result in the CCG not being able to meet its statutory financial
duties. In order to produce a balanced financial position discussions are on-going with the
NHS England Area Team. There are a range of potential implications associated with
achieving a balanced financial position ranging from a reduction / changes to existing
commissioned service, impacting on the progress of the Caring Together programme.

Risk Rating:

Risk History:
L x C = Level

Initial:

5

5

25

Current:

5

5

25

Appetite:

3

4

12

Opened Date
Target Date
Closure Date

20-01-14
None

25
20
15
10
5
0

Current
Appetite
Apr Jun Aug Oct Dec Feb

2014/15 Annual Planning Cycle, including 1st draft of financial
plan due in February 14.

ASSURANCES (How do we know if things are having a positive impact?)

 Completion of financial plans in accordance with the national
Planning timeframes.

ACTION
PLAN

Assigned to
AM/NE

Date Last Reviewed: 05/03/2014

Rationale for Current SCORE :

Initial

CONTROLS (What are we currently doing about the risk?)


Owner: Alex Mitchell

This is a high level risk which will materialise in 2014/15.
The financial deficit is based on the latest planning
guidance, including CCG allocations. In addition, the
CCG will not benefit from £2.2m it received in 13/14 non
recurrently in relation to the CECPCT 12/13 surplus.
Rationale for RISK APPETITE :

Standard risk appetite has been set at 12 and below
MITGATING ACTIONS (What have we done/what more should we do?

 Range of QIPP schemes to be developed to help bridge the financial deficit.
 Annual plan to be discussed with the Governing Body.
 Discussion on-going with NHS England Area Team around financial plans
and potential support.
GAPS IN ASSURANCE (What additional assurances should we seek?

 None

Action Detail
Establish new Finance Committee to be chaired by Governing
Body Member

Progress‐to‐Date

Due Date
01/04/2014
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Governing Body Assurance Framework

Risk

GBAF 07

Objective: Investing Responsibly
MIAA identified risks: QIPP Roles & Responsibilities & Governance Risk: Collaboration
is key to the success of QIPP and it is important that the CCG is able to demonstrate how
it works both internally and with its partners to drive forward the QIPP challenge across the
local health economy. Specific Risk – Ownership, roles and responsibilities are not clearly
understood and/or working effectively. Membership buy-in to plans may not be evident or
achieved. QIPP Governance Risk: – The CCG does not currently have any overarching
governance arrangements for QIPP, there is no mechanism for regular monitoring and
holding schemes to account for delivery. As the CCG does not have a Finance Committee
and QIPP does not form part of the remit of the Clinical Quality and Performance
Committee there is a reliance on QIPP delivery being scrutinised and monitored at the
Leadership Team and / or Governing Body meetings. Recommendation – The CCG
needs to develop a mechanism through which there can be more regular scrutiny and
holding to account for delivery of QIPP either within the current committee/ programme
management arrangements or through the development of an Integrated Finance and
Performance Committee

Risk Rating:

Risk History:
L x C = Level

Initial:

5

5

25

Current:

5

5

25

Appetite:

3

4

12

Opened Date
Target Date
Closure Date

20-05-14
None

25
20
15
10
5
0

Date Last Reviewed: 20/05/2014

Rationale for Current SCORE :

Initial

MIAA have rated this as high risk

Current
Appetite

Rationale for RISK APPETITE :

Standard risk appetite has been set at 12 and below
Apr Jun Aug Oct Dec Feb

CONTROLS (What are we currently doing about the risk?)


Owner: Alex Mitchell

Management Response (Remedial Action Agreed); we will have
clearly identified accountable individuals around each Scheme as
well as a fully worked up programme and timescales.

ASSURANCES (How do we know if things are having a positive impact?)

 Finance committee to keep the finance plan under regular review.

MITGATING ACTIONS (What have we done/what more should we do?

 The CCG is finalising the actions required to deliver the 2014-15 QIPP
plans. These will form part of the CCGs finance plan which will be
monitored by the finance committee.
GAPS IN ASSURANCE (What additional assurances should we seek?

 None identified
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Objective: Delivering Health Need Priorities
Risk

GBAF 08

Governing Body Assurance Framework
Owner: Neil Evans

Delivery of the Operational Plan
There are some key performance related risks attached to the delivery of the operational
plan. The CCG has a range of indicators that it has committed to deliver through the
Operational Plan - this includes the NHS Constitution, "Everyone Counts" guidance and
national and local priority indicators.

Risk Rating:

Risk History:

Rationale for Current SCORE :

L x C = Level
5

5

25

Current:

5

3

15

Appetite:

3

4

12

Opened Date
Target Date
Closure Date

Initial

20

Current

15

Rationale for RISK APPETITE :

5
10-03-14
None

On-going performance challenges relate to 18 week
delivery, HCAI rates through MRSA and delivery of
Access to Primary Mental Health Services and Patients
Feeling Supported to Manage their Long Term Condition

Appetite

10
0
Apr
May
Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar

Initial:

25

Date Last Reviewed: 20/05/2014

CONTROLS (What are we currently doing about the risk?)

 Contract Monitoring across all our main providers. Recovery
trajectories are negotiated and contract notices used to enforce
the trajectories. CCG plans developed to deliver Quality Premium
Measures. Quality and Performance Committee monitor progress
on a monthly basis.
ASSURANCES (How do we know if things are having a positive
impact?)
 A&E Performance: Monthly figures: YTD 95.75, December 2013:
96.66: January 2014: 94.75 February 2014: 95.44
 18 weeks: Feb 14 current monitoring figures show a reduced risk
of breaching 18 weeks.
 IAPT waits are reducing

Standard risk appetite has been set at 12 and below
MITGATING ACTIONS (What have we done/what more should we do?

 CCG has requested that East Cheshire Trust maximises the use of the
private sector to support capacity required for 18 week and A&E
achievement.
 Investment in CWP IAPT and CAMHS services to improve access for our
population
 Full root cause analysis of MRSA cases
GAPS IN ASSURANCE (What additional assurances should we seek?
 Recurrent lack of IAPT capacity against demand requires a long term
solution developing. This is being developed through 2014-15 Operational
Plan
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Governing Body Assurance Framework

ACTION PLAN

Assigned to

 IAPT –
Andrew Binnie
and Tori Bell

Action Detail
 IAPT recovery is being managed through two
approaches. The first is a short term investment in
additional capacity. This commenced in January 2014.
 A commissioning plan for the future capacity of
IAPT/Counselling services is being developed as part of
2014-15 contract

Progress‐to‐Date
 Additional capacity put in place
from January. Wait times are
reducing through February and
March. Audit of patient waiting list
completed.
 Development of costings to meet
demand for current service
completed. An options assessment
is being developed.

Due Date
 April
2014

 June
2014
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GOVERNING BODY MEETING
28 May 2014
Report
Paper Title

Agenda Item 3.4.1

/ Minutes of the Governance & Audit Committee
Meetings Held 30 April 2014 and 12 May 2014

Purpose of paper / report
To provide an overview of the Governance & Audit Committee by the reporting of its
minutes to the Governing Body.

Key points
• The Governance & Audit Committee (GAC) received the Internal Audit Report for 2013/14
stating significant assurance.
• The Anti-Fraud Report for 2013/14 was presented and it was confirmed that no formal
investigations had taken place.
• The GAC agreed the Internal Audit Plan and Anti-Fraud Plan for 2014/15.
• External Audit provided an update on the 2013/14 Audit Plan outlining a potential Section
19 referral to the Secretary of State for the 2014/15 planned deficit.

The Governing Body is asked to:
Approve
Ratify
Endorse

Decide
Note for information



Benefits / value to our population / communities
This provides assurance that NHS Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group
(ECCCG) is discharging its duties in line with good governance and is supporting the
delivery of its visions and objectives.

Report Author
Alex Mitchell
Chief Finance Officer

Contributors
Gerry Gray
Governing Body Lay Member (Governance)

Minutes of the Governance & Audit Committee Meetings
Held 30 April 2014 and 12 May 2014
1.

Executive Summary

1.1

The Governance and Audit Committee (GAC) discussed the Assurance Framework and
were advised of the updates around the identified risks for Caring Together (CT) and
the delivery of the Operational Plan.

1.2

The GAC also received, discussed and approved the following:
•
•

Mersey Internal Audit Agency (MIAA) Internal Audit Plan for 2014/15.
MIAA Anti-Fraud Services Work Plan for 2014/15

1.2.1 MIAA updated the GAC on its progress against its Work Plan and confirmed that
everything was on track.
1.3

In line with the end of the financial year, the GAC were also presented with a range of
reports relating to ECCCG performance for the previous year. These included:
•

•

1.4

MIAA Director of Audit Opinion 2013/14 which stated an overall significant level of
assurance on the controls and processes in place. However, the Internal Audit
report on QIPP highlighted a limited assurance assessment concerning governance,
communication and monitoring. The recommendation of the report will be taken
forward into the new financial year.
MIAA Anti-Fraud Annual Report 2013/14 was presented and stated that no formal
investigations had taken place during the year. The key area of development
arising from the in year staff survey on fraud was around strengthening the whistle
blowing policy.

The GAC meeting held on 12 May 2014 was not quorate due to apologies received and
as such the following items were deferred to the next meeting:
•
•
•
•
•

Integrated Risk Management Strategy
Standards of Business Conduct Policy
Register of Interests Annual Report
Accounting Policies
Draft Annual Governance Statements & Fraud Assurance Statements

2

Recommendation(s)

2.1

The Governing Body is asked to note for information:
• Appendix One; minutes of the GAC meeting held on 30 Apr 14.
• Appendix Two; minutes of the GAC meeting held on 12 May 14.

3

Reasons for recommendation(s)

3.1

The GAC is a sub-committee of the Governing Body and under its Schemes of
Delegation, the Governing Body receives the minutes of the sub-committee.

4

Peer Group Area / Town Area Affected

4.1

Relates to all of NHS Eastern Cheshire geographical areas.

5

Population affected

5.1

Relates to all of NHS Eastern Cheshire population.

6

Context

6.1

The GAC seeks assurance that ECCCG is discharging its duties in line with good
governance and is supporting the delivery of its vision and objectives.

7

Finance

7.1

Not Applicable

8

Quality and Patient Experience

8.1

Related issues reviewed as part of the Assurance Framework.

9

Consultation and Engagement (Public/Patient/Carer/Clinical/Staff)

9.1

Not applicable

10

Equality

10.1

Related issues reviewed as part of the Assurance Framework.

11

Legal

11.1

Not Applicable

12

Communication

12.1 Minutes reported through to the Governing Body and made available via ECCCG’s
website.

13

Background and Options

13.1

Not Applicable

14

Access to further information

14.1

For further information relating to this report contact:

Name
Designation
Date
Telephone
Email

15

Glossary of Terms

CT
ECCCG
GAC
MIAA

16

Alex Mitchell
Chief Finance Officer
23 May 2014
01625 663456
Alex.mitchell@nhs.net

Caring Together
NHS Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group
Governance and Audit Committee
Mersey Internal Audit Agency

Appendices

Appendix One

Minutes ECCCG GAC Meeting 30 April 2014

Appendix Two

Minutes ECCCG GAC Meeting 12 May 2014

Prior Committee Approval / Link to other Committees
Not Applicable

CCG Health Needs Priorities addressed by this report
To protect our citizens from harm
To prevent alcohol related harm

To prevent people dying
prematurely

To make care more integrated & coordinated
To ensure high quality and effective
mental health services are available to
all
To address inequalities across our
towns and villages

CCG 2013/14 Annual Plan programme of work this report is linked to
Caring Together
Mental Health & Alcohol

Quality Improvement
Other

Key Implications of this report
Strategic
Finance
Quality & Patient Experience
Staff / Workforce

Consultation & Engagement
Equality
Legal

CCG Values supported by this report – please indicate
Valuing People
Working Together
Investing Responsibly

Innovation
Quality



NHS Constitution Values supported by this report – please indicate
Working together for patients
Respect and dignity
Commitment to quality of care

Compassion
Improving lives
Everyone counts
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Appendix 1

MINUTES
Chair:

Gerry Gray

Date/Time: 30 April 2014 @ 1.00pm – 2.30pm
Venue:

Board Room 1, New Alderley House, Victoria Road, Macclesfield, SK10 3BL
ECCCG Governance & Audit Committee Meeting

Attendees

Key

Gerry Gray (Chair)

GG

Gill Boston

Title & Organisation

Present


GBo

ECCCG Governing Body Lay Member
(Governance)
ECCCG Governing Body Lay Member

Melanie Lyman

ML

General Practice Representative, ECCCG



James Milligan

JM

Clinical Representative, ECCCG

Bill Swann

BS

Lay Member, ECCCG Patient & Public Involvement



Robin Baker

RB

External Audit Representative



Roger Causer
Suzanne
Crutchley
Matthew Elcock
Anne-marie
Harrop
Jerry Hawker

RC

Counter Fraud

No

SC

Information Governance

No

ME

Counter Fraud



AMH

MIAA Internal Audit Representative



JH

Chief Officer, ECCCG

No

Alex Mitchell

AM



Mike Purdie

MP

Helen Stevenson

HS

Chief Finance Officer, ECCCG
Corporate Programmes & Governance Manager,
ECCCG
External Audit Representative

PP

PA to Chief Finance Officer, ECCCG


Apols

In Attendance




Minute Taker
Philippa Pearce


Action
By

1.0

STANDING ITEMS

1.1

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absences were noted as above. Questions were raised
st

Location:

Board Room 1, 1 Floor West Wing, New Alderley House, Macclesfield

Meeting Date:

30 April 2014

Meeting Title:

ECCCG Governance & Audit Committee

Time:

1.00pm-2.30pm

1 of 10

Completed by:

1 of 10
Philippa Pearce

regarding GAC membership and attendance at meetings. This was
discussed further under Agenda Item 3.7, Any Other Business.
1.2

Declarations of Interest
There were no new declarations of interest.

1.3

Minutes of the Previous Meeting – 26 February 2014
The Minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a true and
accurate record.

1.4

Action Log
The Action Log was discussed with the following updates made:
GAC29 AI2.3 Audit Cte Progress Report
AM to review the action for relevance and to provide an update at the
next GAC.
GAC37 AI2.6 Future Meetings – Timings
Discussed under Agenda Item 3.3 therefore this action was removed
from the Action Log.
GAC39 Information Governance (IG) Training
AM confirmed that all ECCCG staff had successfully completed their IG
training. This action was removed from the Action Log.
GAC40 Lay Member Involvement with GAC Meetings
GG confirmed that he had attended a HealthVoice meeting in order to
discuss governance arrangements and options of representatives of
HealthVoice becoming involved with the GAC. This action was
removed from the Action Log.
GAC44b Accounts Overview
AM advised that he had been provided with a view from ECCCG’s
solicitors, Hill Dickinsons, re restitution regarding Continuing Health
Care (CHC). He had discussed the principles with External Audit and
this has been included in the accounts. AM to forward the
correspondence from the solicitors to RB and HS.
RB noted that ECCCG had taken advice from the solicitors and
reflected the information in the accounts.
GAC45 Assurance Framework
The Assurance Framework had gone through a process of iteration
and would be presented at the Executive Team meeting being held
today, 30 Apr 14. This action was removed from the Action Log.
GAC46 Information Governance (IG) Update
MP confirmed that revised policies had been updated on ECCCG’s
website and that actions arising from the IG Spot Check had been
st

Location:

Board Room 1, 1 Floor West Wing, New Alderley House, Macclesfield

Meeting Date:

30 April 14

Meeting Title:

ECCCG Governance & Audit Committee

Time:

1.00pm – 2.30pm

Completed by:

2 of 10
Philippa Pearce

responded to and carried out. This action was removed from the
Action Log.
GAC47 MIAA Bribery Act GAC Paper
AM advised that this item was ongoing and would be reported back to
a future meeting.
GAC48 NHS England Guidance Updates
This is to be a standing item on the GAC Agenda therefore this action
was removed from the Action Log.
GAC49 NHS Audit Committees – Third Party Assurance Audit
Reports
AM reported that he had requested copies of Third Party Assurance
Audit Reports re ESR and Payroll from the CSU and St Helens &
Knowsley Teaching Hospitals NHS Trust. AM to chase and provide an
update at the next GAC meeting.
GAC50 Annual Report and Accounts Overview
A draft copy of the Annual Accounts is due to be presented to the
Governing Body in May 2014. A GAC meeting had been scheduled for
4 Jun 14 in order to approve ECCCG’s Accounts.
2.0

REGULAR ITEMS

2.1

Assurance Framework
MP explaining that the Assurance Framework had gone through a
process of iteration and would be presented at today’s Executive Team
meeting for review.
MP talked through the refinements made to the document, highlighting
that the main alterations were changes to the project risk update and
Caring Together (CT) programme. He advised that the delivery of the
Operational Plan had now been included in the document. The Public
Service Network (PSN) revenue risk had been removed as the
responsibility for this now lies with the CT programme.
AM advised that a Governing Body meeting had taken place that
morning around the 5 Year Financial Plan. Any changes resulting from
discussions at that meeting will be reflected in the Assurance
Framework and presented at the next Governing Body meeting.

2.2

External Audit Plan 2013/14
RB introduced the External Audit Plan for 2013/14, outlining the
purpose of the Plan, picking out the key issues and discussing what will
happen in the next 4-5 weeks leading to the closure of the accounts.
RB explained that External Audit is required to set out its
understanding of where risks are, and what is being done to mitigate
st

Location:

Board Room 1, 1 Floor West Wing, New Alderley House, Macclesfield

Meeting Date:

30 April 14

Meeting Title:

ECCCG Governance & Audit Committee

Time:

1.00pm – 2.30pm

Completed by:

3 of 10
Philippa Pearce

the risks, in order to make a Value for Money (VFM) conclusion. This
is part of ongoing communication with ECCCG.
The key issues are set out on Page 24 of the Agenda, entitled
“Understanding your Business”. RB drew attention to Item 2, the
financial position. He explained that discussions are ongoing with AM
and JH and that NHS England Area Team is fully appraised of the work
and plans in place to address the situation.
RB advised that ECCCG had submitted its accounts in draft form last
week, showing a £203k surplus which was in line with expectations.
ECCCG is in the process of submitting its Plan for 2014/15 which will
show a deficit. RB explained that ECCCG is in a distressed economy
area which is recognised nationally, and has ambitious plans to
address its deficit.
RB explained that as a result of ECCCG setting a deficit for 2013/14, it
is likely to be a reporting issue for VFM for this year.
RB drew attention to the fact that, as External Auditor for ECCCG, he is
under obligation, if ECCG is about to commit itself to an unlawful
course of action by having a budget in deficit, to report this to the
Secretary of State (SOS) by way of a Section 19 referral. He explained
that there is a set process to go through and that discussions had
commenced. RB will provide a draft copy of the Section 19 referral,
which will subsequently go the SOS and be copied to NHS England.
The 2013/14 Audit will report by exception on VFM. The accounts
opinion is at an early stage and is showing a small surplus. RB noted
that the fact that some of the charges have been accounted for has
been helpful. If any changes result in moving into a deficit, this would
need to be reported but would be discussed with AM in the first
instance. RB advised that, based on discussions, there was nothing of
a matter of concern.
GG questioned, from a legal point of view, if it is considered to be
unlawful to budget/plan for a deficit; acknowledging that it is unlawful to
actually report a deficit. RB advised that it is a potential of unlawful
expenditure which is why there is a set process to go through.
GG requested that the draft referral reflects that the reason for
ECCCG’s deficit is the investment into the CT programme now which
will avoid a deficit in the future. NHS England has supported the
approach by agreeing to a £2m control deficit total and have agreed to
provide additional cash for the CCG.
RB noted that this was helpful and that the position would be reflected
in wider reporting. He agreed to add a commentary but explained that
the formal Section 19 referral is a short letter and suspected that any
additional commentary would be removed.
st

Location:

Board Room 1, 1 Floor West Wing, New Alderley House, Macclesfield

Meeting Date:

30 April 14

Meeting Title:

ECCCG Governance & Audit Committee

Time:

1.00pm – 2.30pm

Completed by:

4 of 10
Philippa Pearce

RB advised that he would proceed with the work as discussed and
report back to the GAC. He noted that the next Governing Body
meeting was scheduled for 28 May 14, followed by an Extra GAC to
Approve the Annual Accounts on 4 Jun 14.
RB noted that work is being carried out on the draft Accounts which the
Governing Body will be asked to approve on 28 May 14. Work is
underway on the draft Annual Report, being led by AM. AM explained
that there had been a timing issue regarding the date of delivery of the
Annual Report and the requirement for some documentation. Work will
be concluded by Wed 7 May 14 and provided to RB on Thurs 8 May
14. AM advised that the procedures will be reviewed and reflected
upon in order to learn lessons from last year.
Action: AM to conclude work re Annual Report by Wed 7 May 14
and provide the information to RB on Thurs 8 May 14.

AM

GG advised that he had been requested to produce a letter giving
assurance on the CCG’s arrangements for the prevention and
detection of fraud and also compliance with laws and regulations and
questioned who this letter should come from. RB explained that
External Audit is required to communicate formally with management,
Chief Finance Officers/Accountable Officers, or those charged with
governance; which is the Governing Body. The Chair of the GAC is
usually treated as a representative of the Governing Body and as such
is requested to produce this letter. AM advised that he has also
responded from the Accountable Officers point of view.
2.3

External Audit 2014/15 Fee Letter
RB formally advised the GAC that External Audit’s fee for 2014/15 is
£60k, explaining that he is required to formally report this to the GAC
for information purposes.

2.4.1

MIAA Director of Audit Opinion
AMH informed the GAC that she is obliged to present the Director of
Audit Opinion, noting that it supports the production of the Annual
Governance Statement. AMH confirmed that ECCCG had received
significant assurance overall.
AMH advised that the report sets out how the conclusion of significant
assurance had been reached. Appendix A sets out the completed
reviews, Appendix B talks through the completion of the Annual
Governance Statement and Appendix C refreshes and supports the
quality statements as Internal Audit providers.
In response to a query, AMH explained that there are four levels of
assurance; no assurance, limited assurance, significant assurance and
full assurance. She explained that in the current changing
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environment, it would be highly unlikely to achieve full assurance.
GG offered his thanks on behalf of the GAC to AM, MP and the finance
team for the work carried out.
Agenda Items 2.4.2 to 2.4.4 were discussed out of sequence but
have been recorded in Agenda Item order for ease of reference.
2.4.2a

MIAA Internal Audit Progress Report Apr 14
MIAA presented the Internal Audit Progress report, advising that it
summarises work completed and concludes the Audit Plan for the year.
AMH advised that a number of reviews had been completed. She
explained that the review is of the systems and processes in place and
not of the performance.
•
•
•
•

QIPP had received Limited Assurance. High risk areas identified
that need to be strengthened and improved are governance,
communications and monitoring.
Committee Arrangements had received Significant Assurance.
Information Governance (IG) had received Significant Assurance.
Data Quality had received Significant Assurance.

AMH confirmed that the report had been completed and that high level
recommendations were recorded in the back of the report.
In response to a question from BS regarding communications issues
identified in the QIPP review, AM advised that, as part of the outcome
of the audit report, he is in the process of establishing a Finance
Committee and is finalising the Terms of Reference (TORs) for it. The
duty of the Finance Committee will be to monitor, deliver and provide
accountability. Part of communications will be to extend to localities
and practices.
2.4.2b

MIAA Anti-Fraud Annual Report 2013/14
ME talked through the report, advising that it is produced on an annual
basis.
ME advised that two important pieces of work had been agreed;
conflicts of interest work and ECCCG’s arrangements for the Bribery
Act.
The conflicts of interest work had been completed with a final report
issued this week; this will be presented at the GAC meeting to be held
on 12 May 14.
The Bribery Act strategy had been presented at the GAC meeting held
in Feb 14 and work is ongoing with AM.
ME reported that all ECCCG staff had completed their Fraud
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Awareness training, and a staff survey had seen a good response rate
of 53. ME talked through the results obtained from the survey which
were detailed in the back of the report.
Areas of concern brought to light by the survey were the impact of
whistle blowing and protection offered. Questions were raised
regarding if the concerns had been raised generally or by a particular
team to assist with appropriately targeting support.
ME advised that there had been no formal investigations this year.
2.4.3a

MIAA Internal Audit Plan 2014/15 Draft
AMH presented the Draft Internal Audit Plan for 2014/15 for approval.
She noted that a previous version had been shared with AM and GG
and that this latest draft reflected changes that they had requested.
The GAC approved the draft Plan.

2.4.3b

MIAA Anti-Fraud Services Workplan 2014/15
ME presented the Anti-Fraud Services Workplan for formal approval.
The GAC approved the Workplan.

2.4.4

MIAA Assurance Framework Review Assignment Report 2013/14
AMH explained that the annual Assurance Framework opinion was
produced as part of the Audit Plan. The report confirms that ECCCG
has an Assurance Framework designed and operating that meets the
necessary requirements and is fit for purpose.
A number of development requirements are listed at the bottom of
page 3 of the report (Page 124 of the Agenda). The Governing Body is
engaged as a whole in ongoing development and review. A
recommendation had been made for further Governing Body sessions
to be held to ensure that the Framework is reviewed and updated.
AMH confirmed that the Assurance framework should be presented to
the Governing Body a minimum of twice a year.
AM informed the GAC that discussions had taken place at the
Governing Body meeting in the morning regarding a board
development programme. He noted that these issues would be
featured in the work plan for the year.

2.5

NHS England Guidance Updates
GG advised that the issue of communications within the NHS had been
raised at a recent Audit Chair Seminar. AM had been tasked with
providing a list of relevant communications at GAC meetings, or earlier
should anything serious arise.
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3.0

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

3.1

Accounting Policies
This item was deferred to the next meeting.

3.2

Declaration of Interests Form – Revised
MP informed the GAC that the Declaration of Interests Form had been
revised as a result of an IG Spot Check undertaken recently.
The form now includes a section for ECCCG’s Chief Finance Officer
(CFO) or Chief Officer (CO) to confirm whether the declaration has
been accepted or declined. Should the declaration be declined, the
reasons are to be detailed on the form which will then be presented at
a formal minuted meeting for discussion.
The GAC agreed that the changes to the form were positive.
NB: It was subsequently confirmed that any declined Declarations of
Interest would be discussed at a GAC meeting. The Declaration of
Interest Form was updated to reflect this.

3.3

GAC Meeting Schedule 2014 v3 Draft
AM advised that the GAC meeting schedule had been revised in order
to link in with existing meetings, eg Remco, where possible.
All were in agreement to accept the revised meeting schedule.

3.4

Data Breach
MP informed the GAC of a data breach that had occurred at a practice.
A solicitor’s report containing patient identifiable data had been posted
using tracked mail but had been lost. This loss had been reported to
the Area Team and through the IG Toolkit.
MP explained that under new arrangements with the devolved IT
budget, NHS England had taken responsibility for IG within practices
from CCGs.
Discussions took place regarding communication of data breaches out
to practices to reinforce the need to maintain a high level of
governance. MP advised that various reports regarding lessons learnt
are produced locally and/or nationally and are distributed to CCGs and
practices.
MP noted that under the Duty of Candour, a patient would be informed
if there had been a data breach relating to their personal information.
AM advised that, further to an incident reported at the last GAC
meeting whereby a work laptop had been stolen from a car outside of
work premises, communications had been sent out to ECCCG staff
st
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members to raise awareness and provide advice with regard to
security.
3.5

Policy Approval Process
AM raised awareness that at the last Policy Review Meeting,
discussions had taken place regarding the policy approval process and
the remit of the Remuneration Committee (Remco).
It had subsequently been clarified that any policy that has an impact on
Terms and Conditions of employment or remuneration will fall under
the responsibility of the Remco. Policies relating to clinical quality and
performance will be the responsibility of the Clinical Quality and
Performance Committee and all other policies will be the responsibility
of the GAC.
The GAC were in agreement to discontinue with the Policy Review
Committee and noted the changes to the policy approval process.
Action: AM to revise the GAC Terms of Reference (TORs) to
reflect the changes to the policy approval process.

AM

3.6

Agree Agenda Items for GAC Meeting on 12 May 14
• Integrated Risk Management strategy & Policy (MP)
• Standards of Business Conduct (MP)
• Register of Interests – Annual Report (MP)
• External Audit – Draft Section 19 referral letter for review (RB)
• External Audit Update – Verbal (RB)
• Accounting Policies (AM)
• Draft Annual Governance Statement

3.7

GAC Membership
Questions had been raised regarding attendance of members,
including JH. It was noted that JH is listed as “GAC non voting, regular
member In Attendance”. AMH advised that Chief Officers as a rule
would attend one meeting per year to discuss the Annual Accounts,
Draft Annual Governance Statement and when the Internal Audit Plan
and Anti-Fraud Plan are presented for approval. It was agreed that JH
should be listed as “By Invitation” rather than “In Attendance”.
Discussions took place regarding changes to the composition of the
GAC as a result of ML and JM stepping down from Governing Body
membership. It was noted that ML attends as a practice representative,
and JM as a GP representative who is a clinician.
AMH advised that the key is to have independence and that this does
not necessarily have to be a Governing Body member.
In response to a question from GG, ML confirmed that she would be in
agreement to remain as a GAC member.
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Actions:
• GAC membership to be updated to reflect that JH is a member
“By Invitation”.
• AM to discuss GAC membership at the Executive Team
meeting and to report back to the GAC.
4.0

DATE, TIME & VENUE OF NEXT MEETINGS

4.1

12 May 2014

10.00am-12.00pm

Mtg Rm A, New Alderley House

4 Jun 2014

10.00am-12.00pm

Mtg Rm C New Alderley House

25 Jun 2014

1.00pm-3.00pm

Mtg Rm A, New Alderley House

4 Aug 2014

10.00am-12.00pm

Mtg Rm A, New Alderley House

AM
AM

Signed:

Print:
Date:
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Appendix 2

MINUTES
Chair:

Alex Mitchell (for Gerry Gray)

Date/Time: 12 May 2014 @ 10.00am – 10.30am
Venue:

Meeting Room A, New Alderley House, Victoria Rd, Macclesfield, SK10 3BL
ECCCG Governance & Audit Committee Meeting

Attendees

Key

Title & Organisation

Present

Gerry Gray (Chair)

GG

Gill Boston

GBo

ECCCG Governing Body Lay Member
(Governance)
ECCCG Governing Body Lay Member

Melanie Lyman

ML

General Practice Representative, ECCCG

James Milligan

JM

Clinical Representative, ECCCG

Apols

Bill Swann

BS

Lay Member, ECCCG Patient & Public Involvement

Apols

Robin Baker

RB

External Audit Representative

No

Roger Causer
Suzanne
Crutchley
Matthew Elcock
Anne-marie
Harrop
Jerry Hawker

RC

Counter Fraud

No

SC

Information Governance

No

ME

Counter Fraud

No

AMH

MIAA Internal Audit Representative



JH

Chief Officer, ECCCG

No

Alex Mitchell

AM



Mike Purdie

MP

Helen Stevenson

HS

Chief Finance Officer, ECCCG
Corporate Programmes & Governance Manager,
ECCCG
External Audit Representative

PP

PA to Chief Finance Officer, ECCCG

Apols
Apols


In Attendance




Minute Taker
Philippa Pearce

1.0

STANDING ITEMS

1.1

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absences were noted as above. AM informed those
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present that the meeting was not quorate and as such any items for
decision or ratification would be deferred to the next meeting.
Agenda items were discussed out of sequence but have been recorded
in agenda order for ease of reference.
1.2

Declarations of Interest
There were no new declarations of interest.

1.3

Minutes of the Previous Meeting – 30 April 2014
Deferred to next meeting.

1.4

Action Log
The Action Log was discussed with the following updates made:
GAC29 AI2.3 Audit Cte Progress Report
It was agreed to remove this action from the Action Log.
GAC44b Accounts Overview
AM had forwarded the correspondence from the solicitors to External
Audit. This action was removed from the Action Log.
GAC47 MIAA Bribery Act GAC Paper
AM advised that this item was ongoing and would be reported back to
a future meeting.
GAC49 NHS Audit Committees – Third Party Assurance Audit
Reports
AM advised that Third Party Assurance Audit Reports had not been
received from the CSU or St Helens & Knowsley Teaching Hospitals
NHS Trust (STHK). HS to confirm if the CSU report is complete. AMH
advised that STHK’s report should be available.
GAC50a Annual Report and Accounts Overview
This is an Agenda Item for the Governing Body meeting in May 2014
and was therefore removed from the Action Log.
GAC51 External Audit Plan 2013/14
Completed therefore removed from the Action Log.
GAC52 Policy Approval Process
AM to revise the GAC Terms of Reference (TORs) to reflect the
changes to the Policy Approval Process.

2.0

REGULAR ITEMS

2.1

NHS England Guidance Updates
Deferred to the next meeting.
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3.0

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

3.1

Accounting Policies
AM advised that the Accounting Policies had been issued to the GAC
on 9 May 14 and noted that they did not contain any changes.
In response to a query from AM, HS gave assurance that the
Accounting Policies would be reviewed as part of the audit and any
issues would be picked up and discussed with the CCG.
This item was deferred to the next meeting for formal approval by the
GAC.

3.2

Integrated Risk Management Strategy & Policy
MP advised that the Integrated Risk Management Strategy and Policy
had previously been presented to the GAC but had gone through a
period of refinement and required formal approval. Qualitative
measures, as used by NHS England, had been incorporated and a risk
form had been included.
This item was deferred to the next meeting for formal approval by the
GAC.

3.3

Standards of Business Conduct
MP explained that the Standards of Business Conduct had been
refined to include comments as received from MIAA.
This item was deferred to the next meeting for formal approval by the
GAC.

3.4

Grant Thornton Fraud Assurance Letters to ECCCG and
Responses from ECCCG:
• Gerry Gray
• Alex Mitchell
HS confirmed that she had received the Fraud Assurance Response
letters from ECCCG and her initial response was that they provided a
good assurance. HS to raise any queries directly with AM or GG.
This item was deferred to the next meeting for formal approval by the
GAC.

3.5

Draft Annual Governance Statement
AM explained that the Draft Annual Governance Statement had been
produced in response to governance arrangements and were
presented for the GAC to have an overview. HS confirmed that this
forms part of the Audit and work had begun to review the statement.
HS provided assurance that no particular concerns had been raised
with regard to the overall content.
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This item was deferred to the next meeting for formal approval by the
GAC.
3.6

Register of Interests – Annual Report
MP presented the Register of Interests – Annual Report and
questioned whether it was in an acceptable format.
All present were in agreement that the format was acceptable. A brief
discussion took place regarding the accuracy of the information. It was
explained that Declaration of Interest form is issued on an annual basis
and the onus is then on each individual to notify the CCG of any
changes to interests declared, or new interests, within 28 days of the
relevant event.
Note: It was subsequently decided to issue an email reminder
regarding Declarations of Interests on a quarterly basis.

3.7

External Audit Update
HS gave an update, advising that External Audit is half way through its
audit and is making good progress. RB is in the process of reviewing
the final Annual Report and is liaising with Niall O’Gara where
appropriate.
Areas being worked on include presentations in accounts, related
parties, remuneration report. The main focus is on year end
provisions, creditors and work around journal testing.
HS advised that the Section 19 referral is in the process of going
through a panel and will take place in 2014/15. She explained that the
Value for Money (VFM) element of the audit would include an
emphasis paragraph explaining the position regarding the Section 19
referral.
Action: HS to clarify the timing of the Section 19 referral.

HS

4.0

DATE, TIME & VENUE OF NEXT MEETINGS
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4 Jun 2014

10.00am-12.00pm

Mtg Rm C New Alderley House

25 Jun 2014

1.00pm-3.00pm

Mtg Rm A, New Alderley House

4 Aug 2014

10.00am-12.00pm

Mtg Rm A, New Alderley House

Signed:

Print:
Date:
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GOVERNING BODY MEETING
28th May 2014
Report Title

Agenda Item 3.4.3

Clinical Quality and Performance Committee
Report May 2014

Purpose of report
This paper seeks to provide the Governing Body with:
 The minutes from the most recent Quality and Performance Committee which in turn
highlights any current concerns in relation to the quality of services being delivered to
our population.
 Assurance with regards actions being taken in relation to these concerns

Key points
 The Committee received an update on positive progress being made in reducing pressure
ulcers across Eastern Cheshire. This included details of support received from Salford
Royal Foundation Trust.
 Actions to address a gap in the statutory role of Designated Safeguarding Doctor for
Children and for a Lead GP were discussed.
 Information regarding concerns about quality in specific care homes was reviewed and
progress addressing these concerns was discussed with actions agreed.
 Draft information about the CCG end of year performance against NHS constitutional
measures was discussed and showed a positive overall position. Of the Quality Premium
Measures the area of poor performance was highlighted as readmissions, this was
especially concerning as the CCG had been unaware of this issue until month 11 due to
problems in data processing by our Commissioning Support Unity
 It was agreed that a full end of year report on performance and quality indicators would
be taken to the June Committee. This would also include CQUIN delivery
 The revised Serious Untoward Incident Policy would be represented to the Committee in
June.
 Processes to assure the committee with regards to monitoring the quality of contracts
where we are “co-commissioners” was discussed and the committee requested
assurance as to how this process worked.
 An internal audit report into data quality was presented which highlighted no serious
actions however a range of low-medium improvements were included and actions to
address these have been assigned.

The Governing Body is asked to:
Approve
Ratify
Endorse

Decide
Note for information
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Minutes of ECCCG Clinical Quality and Performance
Committee held 2nd April 2014
Present

Name

Initials

Dr James Milligan

KM

Executive GP for Business Management Team –
ECCCG - Chair

Gill Boston

GB

Lay Board member (PPI), ECCCG Governing Body
Registered Nurse Board member, ECCCG Governing
Body
Head of Clinical Developments and Health Outcomes
ECCCG

Apologies

In
Attendance





Sally Rogers

SR

Jacki Wilkes

JW

Louise Conway

LC

Quality and Improvements Manager, ECCCG

Neil Evans

NE

Head of Business Management, ECCCG

Anita Mottershead

AM

Quality and Performance Analyst, ECCCG

Moira McGrath

MM

Designated Nurse for Safeguarding Children South
Cheshire CCG



Andy Wilson

AW

Quality and Performance Analyst ECCCG



Debbie Lowe

DL

Locality Lead, Cheshire and Merseyside CSU



Lindsay Ratapana

LR

Adult Safeguarding Clinical Manager, ECCCG

Duncan Matheson

DM

Secondary Care Doctor ECCCG Governing Body



Julia Huddart

JH

Executive GP for Clinical Team, ECCCG



Andrew Binnie

AB

Quality and Performance Manager, ECCCG

Yvonne Gregory

YG

PA to Head of Business Management (Note taker)

Mary Barlow

MB

Clinical Quality, Safeguarding and Performance Lead
Continuing Health Care/Complex Care Services



Jim Britt

JB

Urgent Care Co-ordinator













Action/Date
1
1.1

Welcome, Apologies, Declarations of Interest
Apologies as noted above.

1.2

Declarations of Interest.

2
2.1

2.2

None were declared.
Minutes of Previous Meeting and Matters Arising
3.1.2 Discussions with ECT regarding contaminated MRSA/C Diff
samples. The Committee was advised that due to following the correct
reporting process ECT was showing higher numbers of cases than
other hospitals, who it appears are often reporting only actual
bloodstream infections.
4.2 The Committee was updated regarding whether the CCG had a
strategy for monitoring suicide. Some monitoring work is on-going but
if the CCG wants more than it needs to be specific in its requirements.
In terms of benchmarking the CCG needs to know where they are. It
was suggested we seek benchmarked rates of suicide broken down by
age band

Action: NE to discuss with CEC Public Health to see if this
information is available

nd
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2.3

A discussion regarding transitional care for 16 – 19 year olds was
made and the Committee advised the CCG and ECT had applied to
AQuA to participate in a development programme.

3
3.1

Nursing Home Update on Performance Issues
Safeguarding and Quality Issues Report was provided to the
Committee by Mary Barlow Clinical Quality, Safeguarding and
Performance Lead Continuing Health Care/Complex Care Services
CSU. It was agreed a quarterly report will be provided to the Clinical
Quality and Performance Committee with a monthly update of any
reported issues.
The following is information extracted from the report provided by Mary
Barlow:
MONITORING
CQUIN SCHEMES
The Department of Health (DoH) mandated NHS commissioners to
agree Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) schemes
with providers, including care home service providers, worth 2.5% of
services delivered. The NHS Safety Thermometer is a nationally
mandated CQUIN scheme worth 0.5% or one fifth of the total 2.5%
CQUIN value. Providers are not mandated to comply with CQUIN and
may choose to forego CQUIN payments.
CQUIN DATA
The collection of CQUIN data has been an on-going national scheme
derived in order to provide an incentive to improve quality and
transparency across the care arena. It is a payment framework which is
designed to incentivise providers into achieving goals around the
following quality domains: Effectiveness, Safety, Innovation and
Experience.
The collection of CQUIN data has transferred across from previous
Primary Care Trusts, into the current CMCSU, with a historic poor
response rate. Therefore the CMCSU has undertaken exploratory
work in order to determine what the difficulties are with providers
generating this information; this has led to a pilot scheme working in
partnership with providers in order to determine the difficulties in
providing CQUIN information. Feedback received has led to the
formation of an updated CQUIN request document, analysis of current
information and review of specified completion dates. This work is
currently on-going though has now led to improved working
relationships and an increased response rate in completion and return
of CQUIN data.
SAFETY THERMOMETER
Implementation of the Safety Thermometer became mandatory for all
CHC residential clients from April 1st 2013. Training has been ongoing for all Nursing Care Homes, to enable them to input their data
nd
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effectively. A step by step guide has been produced by the Team and
distributed via email to all providers.
Cheshire and Merseyside Commissioning Support Unit continue to
liaise with each Nursing Home and support the Matrons/Managers with
submission of Safety Thermometer data. However there have been
numerous reports, from a number of providers, with regard to
difficulties experienced when registering and subsequently submitting
the Safety Thermometer data. These are mainly technical issues, and
the providers are being signposted to the Health and Social Care
Information Centre (HSCIC) and they are being addressed by their
helpdesk. In addition to this the response rate from providers has been
very poor, leading to the Clinical Quality Team having to liaise with
colleagues in Contracts and Business Intelligence in order to form an
appropriate action plan, which is currently on-going.
SAFETY THERMOMETER- On-going work: to provide continued
support to all applicable Nursing Homes within the Eastern Cheshire
area, with regard to education, registration and data input, in order to
ensure national mandated targets are met and that the Safety
Thermometer tool is being used to best effect.
DEVELOPMENT OF NURSING HOME CLINICAL DASHBOARD
The team has developed a Nursing Home Clinical Dashboard, in order
to enhance clinical quality and provide transparency in service
provision.
The development of clinical dashboards was a key recommendation in
Lord Darzi’s, Next Stage Review report, as a means to use technology
to improve quality. High standard quality information should be at the
core of performance, as it acts as a driver within clinical teams, in order
to ensure appropriate service provision and best practice. A clinical
dashboard is a tool that aids in providing clinicians with the most
current and pertinent information, in order to inform daily decisions and
promotes quality throughout patient care.
The clinical dashboard tool aims to give clinicians access to valuable
information captured at a local level, in a visual and practical format.
This enables required information to be viewed, highlighting early
warning signs and areas of concern at a glance. The tool can also be
used to compare local information alongside relevant national metrics,
in order to inform best practice guidelines.
Summary
In summary continued support is being given with regard to submission
of CQUIN and Safety Thermometer data. Cheshire and Merseyside
Commissioning Support Unit Continuing Health Care/Complex Care
Services continue to experience an increase in the number of homes
submitting both the Safety Thermometer and CQUIN data. Difficulties
in relation to collecting this data are being resolved and support is
being given to nursing home managers to increase compliance and
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submission.
This will hopefully lead to an increase in submission, which will enable
trend analysis, relating to specific harms and quality indicators. To
date the current received data allows for triggers only, as further data is
required to form a trend analysis. Once monthly data is received
consecutively this will be built upon in order to highlight trends, with
regard to good practice and areas for improvement, this will be
reported on in future reports.
3.2

The Committee agreed that the Home by Home Report was very
useful.

3.3

It was reported that there was currently joint working by commissioners
regarding the following nursing homes:
Rowans; Hazelmere; Clumber House; Weston Park; Hollins Park;

3.4

It was reported that an email account had been provided for nursing
homes to report incidents as they do not have access to StEIS.

3.5

The Committee was advised that Medicine Management had recruited
a Pharmacist for Continuing Health Care. The Committee was advised
preliminary discussions with Medicine Management had taken place to
consider the possibility of developing a six month pilot around medicine
management in nursing homes. As yet nothing has been decided.
Action: Liaison with MMT around the possibility of developing a
pilot relating to medicine management in nursing homes.

3.6

4
4.1

SR/AL
07.05.14

After some discussion the following additional actions were noted:
Action: Information regarding the number of pressure ulcers in
nursing homes will be collated and presented at the May meeting.

MB/JW
07.05.14

Action: The Nursing Home Clinical Dashboard to be provided for
the May meeting which will be focussed more around quality.

MB
07.05.14

Action: The monthly report provided to the Safeguarding
Contracts meeting by CSU will be provided to the Clinical Quality
and Performance Committee meeting.
Dashboard
Eastern Cheshire CCG Performance Dashboard

MB
Monthly

It was reported in relation to the National target the overall
performance by East Cheshire Trust was positive. Performance for
ECT 95.48% for all A & E types against targets of 95%.
4.2

Type 1 performance 94.97% against a target of 95%.

4.3

Mental Health – ECT likely to achieve 15% on baseline for the year.
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It was highlight there was not enough IAPT capacity and ECCCG had
not commissioned Step2/3 and would need to re-tender. The
Committee was advised there was consideration being given to
serving notice on the current IAPT service but this had not yet been
agreed. A paper would need to be submitted to the Governing Body.

4.4

It was agreed that ECCCG would liaise with Stockport CCG regarding
IAPT services as they have received positive feedback regarding
commissioning of mental health services.
SR/Stockport
CCG

Action: ECCCG to liaise with Stockport CCG re IAPT services
4.5

Capacity Issues – Work had been undertaken to analyse specialties
conversion rates for practices. Practices with a high referral rate but
low conversion rate were highlighted. It was suggested this analysis
needs to be performed on surgical specialties.

4.6

QIPP

5

It was reported the process for developing a QIPP plan for 2015 at
CCG level was on-going.
NWAS

GP Referral
Conversion Composite

Following the letter sent to Blackpool CCG regarding the issues
around the ambulance service incident reporting process, Jim Britt
Urgent Care Co-ordinator works across the CCGs, attended the
meeting to advise the Committee.
5.1

It was stated that a common problem with incident reporting is that
information is not available as the sender does not provide it to the
ambulance service and from a 999 call the information does not follow
the patient.

5.2

The Committee was advised of a county wide Clinical Quality Group
that has representation from a clinical lead and a GP from Cheshire
and Wirral and the CCG representative gets formal feedback from the
meeting. However the North West Quality meetings have no clinical
engagement and this is something that needs to be addressed
although changes are imminent as there are key criteria for the use of
clinical input for both services. It was agreed that feedback to
ECCCG Clinical Quality and Performance Committee would be
provided in a couple of months.
Action: JB to feedback to the Committee the progress made of
the area wide Clinical Quality and NW Quality meetings.

5.3

JB
October 14

JB advised that a deep dive is being undertaken by the Task and
Finish Group and ECCCG advised that it would be helpful if the CCGs
analysts could be involved in the process as they would have an
insight into how the data needs to be analysed for it to be meaningful.
Action: NWAS to involve ECCCG Analysts to ensure meaningful
nd
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data analysis.
5.4

JB outlined the Hear and Treat – See and Treat – See and Convey
process and highlighted that the See and Treat area needs help from
providers to get in built confidence in the highly trained/skilled
personnel who could potentially take pressures off A & E
departments.

5.5

Within the new contract there is a frequent caller indicator element
which will enable data to be produced at postcode level to facilitate
trend analysis. JB advised the Task and Finish Group had met once
and he agreed to feedback the Group’s progress in approximately six
months time.

6

JB
October 14

Action: JB to feedback to the Committee in six months the
progress of the Task and Finish Group.
Patient Experience
Friends and Family



7

In-patients responses at 3.3%.
A & E response rate down to 20.7% but still remains high
nationally. ECT has established a working group to address the
roll out of outpatient Friends and Family Test (FFT).
 Maternity response at 52% for February.
 “Net promoter” score 68 which is slightly lower than the national
median.
Patient Safety Incidents (Never Events) or Serious Untoward Incidents
The minutes were accepted by the Committee.
On reflection it was agreed that only issues that need to be escalated
would be brought to the Clinical Quality and Performance Committee.
AB monthly

As required - monthly summary of issues for escalation.
8

Complaints, PALS and Professional Concerns Trend
The opinion was voiced that the minutes of this meeting were not
informative and It was agreed that only issues that required escalation
would be brought to the Clinical Quality and Performance Committee.
As required – monthly summary of issues for escalation.

9

10

11

LC monthly

CQUIN Update
The Committee was advised that by one all CQUINs have been
completed and agreed. The only one outstanding is Pro-active Care
and this is being held up by the delay in the national guidance DES.
Primary Care Quality
Risk Stratification cannot proceed with in-house lists and ECCCG will
organise training for practices. Eclipse live is also being used to look at
queries. The Caring Together Team has undertaken work around Risk
Strategy and will share outcomes when completed.
Update from Quality Surveillance Group (QSG) and Other Commissioners
The QSG meeting was held on the same date therefore there will be an
nd
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update at the May meeting.
AB
07.05.14

Action: Update from April QSG meeting in May.
12
12.1

Pressure Ulcer Reduction Group
The Committee was updated on the remit of the Pressure Ulcer
Reduction Group which is to ensure a wider approach to the prevention
of pressure ulcers as there is a need to be pro-active around
prevention. The Committee was advised that a representative from
Salford Royal will be providing an overview of the process they follow.

12.2

The Committee was asked to receive and endorse the Terms of
Reference for the Pressure Ulcer Reduction Group and it was agreed.

12.3

It was agreed that a quarterly report will be provided to the monthly
ECCCG SUI meeting to show trends. Any issues that require
escalation will then be brought to the Clinical Quality and Performance
Committee.

12.4

The flow chart contained within the Serious Incident Policy relating to
pressure ulcers was questioned and it was agreed that it needs to be
reviewed again with regard to; ‘The CCG Safeguarding Team robustly
review with the Manager and CT Tissue Viability and decision made’;
the policy was not accepted.
Action: AB to be asked to review wording to clarify arrangements
on response to incidents and links to whom is responsible for
completing actions

13
13.1

Children Safeguarding Update
The points raised from the report presented;






No designated doctor – this is a CCG post– Fiona Field to work
across CCGs therefore an interim designated doctor needs
recruiting
Doctor needs to be a practicing Paediatrician
There are risks associated by not having a doctor
There is no named GP across East and South Cheshire CCG area
There is a need for a temporary Lead GP

Action: ECCCG to liaise with ECT with regard to recruitment of a
designated doctor for safeguarding.
13.2

14
14.1

AB
07.05.2014

Safeguarding
Children Quality mee

JM with Rob
Stead
07.05.14

It was confirmed that a contract query letter had been issued to ECT
regarding safeguarding training. The CCG had received a recovery
plan and agreed to close the query.
Adult Safeguarding Update
MCA/DoLS
The Committee was advised that the Serious Incident Policy was left
with Rachael Elliott to review the inclusion of MCA/DoLS in light of the
recent House of Lords Committee report on the insertion of DoLS into
nd
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the Mental Capacity Act 2007 by the Mental Health Act not being fit for
purpose.
14.2

15

16
16.1

17

There was a discussion with regard to unexpected deaths that result in
a Coroner’s case and the need to be clear that there is no duplication
of the Coroner’s process. CSU advised a meeting with ECT had been
arranged and feedback would be forward to NHS England.
Safer Medicine Group Minutes
The minutes of the Safer Medicine Group were presented to the
Committee and no issues were raised.
Any Other Business.
A discussion around Infection Control was held and the Committee
advised there is Strategic Collaboration meeting being hosted by NHS
England. East Cheshire Trust have been notified as it appears more
relevant to providers.
Dates for Future Meetings
07.05.14
Meeting room 4 Second Floor NAH
04.06.14
Meeting room 4 Second Floor NAH
02.07.14
Meeting room 4 Second Floor NAH
06.08.14
Meeting room 4 Second Floor NAH
03.09.14
Meeting room 4 Second Floor NAH
01.10.14
Meeting room 4 Second Floor NAH
05.11.14
Meeting room 4 Second Floor NAH
03.12.14
Meeting room 4 Second Floor NAH

Circulation List
James Milligan (JM)
Julia Huddart (JH
Sally Rogers (SR)
Gillian Boston (GB)
Andrew Binnie (AB)

Lindsay Ratapana (LR)
Neil Evans (NE)
Louise Conway (LC)
Anita Mottershead (AM)
Andy Wilson (AW)

Moira McGrath (MM)
Debbie Lowe (DL)
Jacki Wilkes (JW)
Duncan Matheson (DM)

UPDATED ACTION LOG from March Meeting
Item

Agreed Actions

2.2

Once Deep Dive complete re NWAS information to be shared with
Sally Larvin.
3.1.10 IAPT audit – when completed report to be written and share with
Committee
12
Feedback to May Q & P Committee following presentation being
presented at the April Pressure Sore Reduction Group by Salford
Royal Foundation Trust

Actions by whom
and when required
AM to Sally
On-going
AB
April 2014
AB
07.05.14

ACTION LOG from April Meeting
Item
3.5
3.6

Agreed Actions
Liaison with MMT around the possibility of developing a six pilot
relating to medicine management in nursing homes.
Information regarding the number of pressure ulcers in nursing
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ECCCG Clinical Quality and Performance Committee Meeting held 2 April 2014
Chair: Dr James Milligan

Actions by whom
and when required
SR/AL
JW/MB
Page 8 of 9

4.4
5.2
5.3
5.5
13

homes will be collated and presented at the May meeting.
The Nursing Home Clinical Dashboard to be provided by CSU for
May meeting which will focus more around quality.
The Nursing Home Clinical Dashboard to be provided for the May
meeting which will be focussed more around quality.
The monthly report provided to the Safeguarding Contracts
meeting by CSU will be provided to the Clinical Quality and
Performance Committee meeting.
IAPT Services. ECCCG to liaise with Stockport CCG as they have
a good model and report back at May meeting.
JB to feedback to the Committee the work being undertaken by the
area wide Clinical Quality and NW Quality Meetings.
NWAS to involve ECCCG analysts to ensure meaningful data
analysis re the deep dive by NWAS Task and Finish Group.
JB to feedback to the Committee in six months the progress of the
Task and Finish Group.
ECCCG to liaise with ECT regarding the recruitment of a
designated doctor for safeguarding.

07.05.14
MB
07.05.14
MB
07.05.14
MB
07.05.14
SR/Stockport CCG
JB
October 14
JB/AM/AW
On-going
JB
October 14
JM with Rob Stead
before 07.05.14

15.1
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Minutes of ECCCG Clinical Quality and Performance
Committee held 7th May 2014
Name

Initials

Dr James Milligan

KM

Executive GP for Business Management Team –
ECCCG - Chair

Gill Boston

GB

Lay Board member (PPI), ECCCG Governing Body



Registered Nurse Board member, ECCCG Governing
Body
Head of Clinical Developments and Health Outcomes
ECCCG





Present

Apologies

In
Attendance



Sally Rogers

SR

Jacki Wilkes

JW

Louise Conway

LC

Quality and Improvements Manager, ECCCG

Neil Evans

NE

Head of Business Management, ECCCG

Anita Mottershead

AM

Quality and Performance Analyst, ECCCG

Moira McGrath

MM

Designated Nurse for Safeguarding Children South
Cheshire CCG



Andy Wilson

AW

Quality and Performance Analyst ECCCG

Debbie Lowe

DL

Locality Lead, Cheshire and Merseyside CSU

Lindsay Ratapana

LR

Adult Safeguarding Clinical Manager, ECCCG





Duncan Matheson

DM

Secondary Care Doctor ECCCG Governing Body

Julia Huddart

JH

Executive GP for Clinical Team, ECCCG

Andrew Binnie

AB

Quality and Performance Manager, ECCCG

Yvonne Gregory

YG

PA to Head of Business Management (Note taker)






Mary Barlow

MB

Clinical Quality, Safeguarding and Performance Lead
Continuing Health Care/Complex Care Services



Jim Britt

JB

Urgent Care Co-ordinator




N/A

Action/Date
1
1.1

Welcome, Apologies, Declarations of Interest
Apologies as noted above.

1.2

Declarations of Interest. None were declared.

2
2.1

Minutes of Previous Meeting and Matters Arising
The minutes of the April meeting were accepted as an accurate record
of the meeting. The action log was reviewed with the following noted.

2.2

2.2 Benchmarked rates of suicide broken down by age band. The
Committee was advised that available data had been sent by CEC
Public Health which indicated a small number. Stockport has produced
a Suicide Prevention Strategy which includes Mental Health
Commissioning Intentions in 2011 which will help develop the service.

2.3

3.5

2.4

3.6a Please see item 3.1 for update.

2.5

3.6b

Please see item 3.4 for update.

Please see item 3.2 for update.
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2.6

Item 12 from March Action Log. Feedback following Salford Royal’s
presentation to Pressure Ulcer Reduction Group.
The presentation was well received with a good attendance from ECT
nurses and matrons and it was agreed to email to the Committee the
process Salford use to reduce pressure ulcers.
Action: Copy of Salford Royal pressure ulcer reduction process
to be emailed to members of the Committee.

AB
ASAP

JW advised that pressure ulcers are not just a hospital problem
everyone needs to be aware and the objective of the Group is to stop
Grade 2 ulcers not to progress to Grade 3/4. It was also pointed out
that it was understood at the Pressure Ulcer Reduction Group meeting
that a collective agreement had been reached with the Trust but
unfortunately they had proceeded to devise their own scheme with
nursing input from acute but not district nursing and it was felt it is
important to engage Primary Care to include Occupational Therapists,
Carers and Community Physio.
It is intended to overlay this year’s performance over last year’s and
manage the CCGs expectations through CQUIN and JW advised that a
quarterly report will be provided to the Committee.
Action: Pressure Ulcer Reduction Group to provide Committee
with a quarterly report.
2.7

JW/AB
Quarterly

4.4 IAPT. The Committee was advised the IAPT audit report is only
in note form and will be put into report format for circulation. The new
monitoring template was tabled which will allow data to be analysed
live and will formalise the procedure this was accepted by the
Committee.
JW advised that this work will be undertaken by the new Service
Delivery Manager for Urgent Care and Mental Health when in post.
There was strong agreement that there is a case to undertake
procurement for Primary Care Mental Health Services.

2.8

3
3.1

13
Recruitment of Designated Doctor for Safeguarding. The Chair
advised the Committee that there are two Paediatric Consultants
leaving the Trust and ECT Medical Director is aware of the issues this
presents but there is the possibility that one of the consultants leaving
SR
could continue to do the job whilst in post in North Staffordshire. An
On-going
application has been received for the position of GP Lead.
Nursing Home Update on Performance Issues
The report relating to the number of pressure ulcers recorded in
Nursing Homes was unavailable as MB awaited it from the Tissue
Viability Nurse at ECT. MB advised it should be available towards the
end of week commencing 5th May and would share this with JW. It was
agreed that the report should go to the Pressure Ulcer Reduction
Group with any escalations coming to the Clinical Quality and
Performance Committee.
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The Committee reviewed the local authority report re nursing homes
with areas for concern. The Committee was advised the report
provided initially goes to the Safeguarding and Contract meeting. The
Committee voiced concerns that the public are not aware of the
information contained within it. It was advised that the CQC uploads
information relating to nursing homes on the website, but they need the
approval of the provider which delays reports being made public and
which are potentially out of date.
A discussion took place regarding the Social Domiciliary Care
Agencies monitored by CQC Social Care and how commissioning of
these agencies is not robust as issues have been raised in the past
regarding risk.
CHC/Complex Care Services representative advised there was no
tracking mechanism in place for reporting issues in nursing homes and
work around reporting needs to be done. It was pointed out that work
was being undertaken with Social Care and Continuing Health
Care/Complex Care Services to ensure a more robust rationale behind
criteria which needs to be less subjective.
Noted: It was agreed the format of the report was good with clear
information provided which would be improved by adding the
author and an extra column for dates actions completed.

MB

The Committee confirmed their remit was to offer support if there is a
need to escalate high level concerns regarding nursing homes.
It was agreed ECCCG would work with CSU to produce a tracking
system for nursing homes under review.
Action: ECCCG and CSU to work on providing a tracking system
for nursing homes under review.
3.3

The Dashboard template was presented to the Committee and were
advised this will be completed monthly with a short overview report. It
was agreed ECCCG would have input into the presentation of data.

3.4

MMT Six Month Pilot re Nursing Homes. The Committee was updated
via email from Andrea Lunt as attached.
Action: ECCCG to liaise with MMT.

AM/MB
On-going

Agenda item 3.4
UPDATE FROM ANDR

LC/AL
04.06.14

4
4.1

CCG Dashboard
Action: It was agreed the Dashboard will be emailed with the
minutes.

4.1.1

Action: Formal end of year report to be produced to bring to the AB
Committee in June for review and then it will go to the Governing 04.06.14
Body.

4.1.1.2

Action: Produce a quarterly report for presentation October.
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4.1.1.3

Emergency Admissions: Achieving by more than 20% with a target
reduction of 5% by 2016.

4.1.1.4

CDiff: Target of 62 with a total of 42 over the complete period the
national measure is 27% reduction in CDiff levels.

4.1.1.5

Negative Response: This will be managed by CQUIN for 2014-15
which will include Friends and Family Test, GP Primary Care Friends
and Family Test but as yet no guidance has been received of the
process.

4.1.1.6

Potential Life Lost: Reduced by 3.2%.

4.1.1.7

The Committee was advised that the Cancer and End of Life Care
Commissioning Manager will be undertaking work regarding cancer
staging in upper and lower GI and respiratory which will support
Practice Nurses to try and prevent patients late presentation in
patients.

4.1.1.8

Readmissions: Whilst there has been a 5% reduction the CCG are
not achieving target just flat lining. The Committee was advised that
CSU had reported that data recording was incorrect this means the
CCG will not get the Quality Premium payment but intends to appeal.

4.1.1.9

Managed Conditions: Patient’s feeling supported with LTC a target of
55% with achievement at 53.5%. The opinion was that if Practice
Nurses ask the patient at the end of the consultation if they feel
supported this would help achieve the targets.

4.1.1.10

Falls: Achieve 7.5% reduction in hospital but whilst falls are down
falls with harm are up. It was agreed to send out the definition to the
Committee members.
Action: Email the full definition of falls to Committee members.

4.1.1.11

Pressure Ulcers: The target for 30% reduction in new incidents of
Grade 3 pressure ulcers will not be achieved. There has been some
improvement and will be managed by CQUIN this year.

4.1.1.12

Cancer Diagnosed by Emergency Presentation: There has been a
reduction in the number of patients diagnosed via emergency
presentation this year compared to last. However the number of
diagnoses is above the reduction target of 30% for this year and by
2015.

4.1.1.13

Primary Care Mental Health: The target for the number of people
waiting longer than 28 days to access mental health services is to
reduce by 15% this has been achieved in quarter four. This will be
reviewed again.
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4.1.2

Diagnostic Report: The Committee was advised that data is available
by provider but it had been bundled so now needs to unbundle to see
each provider’s performance. ECT achieved 98.33%.
AB with NE
ASAP

Action: Liaise internally for clarification and update.
4.2

ECT Performance Dashboard

4.2.1

18 Weeks: It was stated as unconfirmed figures. Backlog of 207 with
a plan of 190, diagnostics at 99% which is just under. Admissions by
specialty – an agreement reached to fail Ophthalmology and ECT
confirmed three Saturdays will be used in May to get the backlog
down.
Cardiology failed at specialty level.
General Surgery will fail in May to clear backlog.
Non-admitted admissions; there were two specialty level fails (one
cardiology and one oral surgery). There is a concern that one patient
is close to 52 weeks and information suggests that the reason behind
this is that the Tertiary Centre lost the patient’s records and they now
have been given an appointment in June which will definitely breach
52 weeks.
Action: AB/AM to monitor ECT action plans through weekly 18
week meeting with Trust.

AB/AM
28.05.14

The Committee was informed that an email went out to GPs re oral
that the service had been switched from Wythenshawe from ECT and
it was suggested that perhaps getting feedback on the quality of the
service from the GPs would be a good idea.
4.2.2

A & E: Delivered for the year.

4.2.3

QIPP: As no briefing had taken place regarding QIPP therefore could
not be discussed, but in was confirmed that LC would lead on QIPP
and there needs to be a monitoring tool devised.
Action: Review the four programmes and produce a report for
June meeting and use the Committee to monitor the progress.

4.2.4

LC/NE
04.06.14

ECT SQS Report: This is the end of year report and it clearly
indicates the problems ECT are experiencing with regard to patient
corresponded this needs to be managed to ensure improvement.
Action: SQS report patient correspondence on the June ECT
Quality Review Meeting agenda.
Action: Quality Analyst to request data by specialities.
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5

NWAS
A description of the deep dive being undertaken was explained to the
Committee. ECCCG is represented on the NWAS County Area
Commissioning Group and it was felt it was informative to understand
what work is being undertaken and asked if she could be supplied
with information once the data was available. The Head of Clinical
Development and Outcomes requested to be kept updated on the
progress.
Action: Quality Analyst to supply data to JH once deep dive
completed.
Non-medical Prescribing
The Committee agreed that the documentation provided re NMP was
not relevant to the meeting. The Committee was advised this came
out of an item from the Quality Leads meeting.

6

7
7.1

7.2

8
8.1

8.2

9

10
10.1

AM/JH
ASAP

JM
Action: MMT to be emailed to clarify and feedback at June
Complete
meeting.
Patient Safety Incidents (Never Events) or Serious Untoward Incidents
AB – monthly
As required - monthly summary of issues for escalation none
presented.
The Committee was advised that the revised SUI Policy is not yet
complete. The Policy was sent to CSU for their input.
Action: Revised SUI policy to go to SUI meeting 14.05.14 for
agreement and then will be presented at the June meeting for
ratification.
Complaints, PALS and Professional Concerns Trend
As required – monthly summary of issues for escalation none
presented.

AB
04.06.14
LC - monthly

Complaints and Concerns ToR. Is with the CSU at present and will
be presented at the Complaints and Concerns meeting for approval.
It was agreed there needs to be a backup Chair for this meeting and it
was proposed and agreed that JH would take the role on when
needed.
CQUIN Update
The Committee was informed CQUINs had been signed off with the
exception of Pro-active Care. JW to produce a CQUIN pack when all
is completed.
Action: CQUIN pack to be prepared to present at a June
meeting.
Primary Care Quality
The Committee was informed that work was being undertaken by the
Quality Improvement Manger and the Quality Analysts to improve
outcomes which includes physical health checks for mental health
patients, COPD, Diabetes, Heart Failure which needs to be
communicated to GPs, IT programmes and how to use the current
systems better, Dementia which does not include disabilities which
needs to be included,
th

ECCCG Clinical Quality and Performance Committee Meeting held 7 May 2014
Chair: Dr James Milligan

JW
04.06.14

Page 6 of 9

10.2

11
11.1

11.2

12
12.1

12.2
13
13.1
13.2

Risk Profiling: The Committee was advised that the CCG were ‘in a
good place’ after the hard work put in by the Quality Analysts with all
practices having two working usernames and logins. It was noted
S&VR do not have anything in place.
Update from Quality Surveillance Group (QSG) and Other Commissioners
AB
Action: The minutes of the April QSG would be sent to the
07.05.14
Chair.
A discussion took place regarding how we as associates monitor the
quality of the providers. The Committee was advised this would be
done through the Quality Leads meetings. It was pointed out that the
use of DATIX was important.
Action: Internal liaison undertaken to determine the process of
monitoring quality from providers, ECCCG are associates with,
and liaise with the Head of Clinical Development and Outcomes.

AB – NE
ASAP

Action: Illustration of what the process is to be completed and
presented at the June meeting.
Pressure Ulcer Reduction Group
There were no escalations to discuss from the Pressure Ulcer
Reduction Group.

JW
04.06.14

The Terms of Reference for the Pressure Ulcer Reduction Group
were ratified by the Committee.
Quality Leads
The minutes were reviewed and no comments noted.
It was agreed that there needs to be a meeting with MMT to discuss
aspects of quality around:
-

NPSA systems
MHRA systems
Non-medical Prescribers
YG
ASAP

Action: Arrange meeting with MMT to discuss the above.
14
14.1
15

16
16.1

16.2

Adult Safeguarding Update
The report from the Adult Safeguarding Lead was presented with the
agenda and any comments will be sent to the Lead post meeting.
Safer Medicine Group Minutes
The minutes of the Safer Medicine Group were presented to the
Committee and no issues were raised.
Any Other Business.
MIAA Data Quality Review: The Committee was advised that the
report received from MIAA indicated that the quality of data provided
by the CCG was good. It did highlight there is work that needs to be
done around processes.
Letter re Mortality Outlier: This was presented for information to the
Committee and it was highlighted no data was provided with the
letter. CQC have advised they do not need to take any further action
th
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in this area.
16.3

SHMI: The trend indicated still a little over baseline but it is still
creeping up.
Dates for Future Meetings
04.06.14
Meeting room A NAH
02.07.14
Meeting room A NAH
06.08.14
Meeting room A NAH
03.09.14
Meeting room A NAH
01.10.14
Meeting room A NAH
05.11.14
Meeting room A NAH
03.12.14
Meeting room A NAH

17

Circulation List
James Milligan (JM)
Julia Huddart (JH
Sally Rogers (SR)
Gillian Boston (GB)
Andrew Binnie (AB)

Lindsay Ratapana (LR)
Neil Evans (NE)
Louise Conway (LC)
Anita Mottershead (AM)
Andy Wilson (AW)

Moira McGrath (MM)
Debbie Lowe (DL)
Jacki Wilkes (JW)
Duncan Matheson (DM)

ON-GOING ACTIONS
Item

Agreed Actions
Once Deep Dive complete re NWAS information to be shared with
Sally Larvin.
IAPT audit – when completed report to be written and share with
Committee
IAPT Services. ECCCG to liaise with Stockport CCG as they have
a good model and report back at May meeting.
JB to feedback to the Committee the work being undertaken by the
area wide Clinical Quality and NW Quality Meetings.
NWAS to involve ECCCG analysts to ensure meaningful data
analysis re the deep dive by NWAS Task and Finish Group.
JB to feedback to the Committee in six months the progress of the
Task and Finish Group.

Actions by whom
and when required
AM to Sally
On-going
AB
April 2014
SR/Stockport CCG
on going
JB
October 14
JB/AM/AW
On-going
JB
October 14

ACTION LOG FROM MAY MEETING
Item

Agreed Actions

2.6

Copy of presentation from Salford Royal re pressure ulcer
reduction process circulated to Committee members.
Pressure Ulcer Reduction Group to provide Committee with a
quarterly report
Nursing Homes. ECCCG and CSU to produce a tracking system
for nursing homes under review.
MMT six month pilot re nursing homes. Update for June meeting.

3.1

Actions by whom
and when required
AB
ASAP
JW/AB

4.1.1

CCG Dashboard. Formal end of year report to be produced for
June meeting.

AM/MB started – on
going
LC/AL
04.06.14
AB
04.06.14

4.1.1.2

CCG Dashboard. Quarterly report to be provided to the October
meeting.

AB
October

3.4

th
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4.1.1.10 Definition of Falls to be emailed to Committee members
4.1.2
Diagnostic Report. CCG internal liaison for clarification on
unbundling information for each provider.
4.2.1
18 Weeks. Action: AB/AM to monitor ECT action plans through
weekly 18 week meeting with Trust.
4.2.3
QIPP. Review the four programmes produce a report and use the
Committee to monitor the progress.
4.2.4
ECT SQS Report. Problems with patient correspondence needs
monitoring and for the ECT Service Quality Review meeting.
Quality analyst to request data by specialties.
5
6
7.2

9
11.2

13.2

NWAS. Deep dive data re NWAS be provided when completed to
JH.
Non-medical Prescribing. MMT to be contacted re documentation
provided for the meeting.
Patient Safety (Never Events) SUIs. Revised SUI policy to go to
May SUI meeting for agreement then to June Clinical Quality and
Performance Committee for ratification.
CQUIN update. CQUIN pack to be produced and presented
when completed.
Update from QSG meeting. Internal liaison undertaken to
determine the process of monitoring quality from providers,
ECCCG are associates with, and liaise with the Head of Clinical
Development and Outcomes.
Illustration of what the process is re monitoring quality to be
completed and presented at June meeting.
Pressure Ulcer Reduction Group. Arrange meeting to discuss
MPSA systems, MHRA systems and Non-medical prescribers
with MMT.

th

ECCCG Clinical Quality and Performance Committee Meeting held 7 May 2014
Chair: Dr James Milligan

AB with minutes
AB – NE
ASAP
AB/AM
28.05.14
LC/NE
04.06.14
AB – YG
21.05.14
AM/AB
21.05.14
AM – JH
On-going
JM/JK
Complete
AB
04.06.14
JW
04.06.14
AB-NE
ASAP

JW
04.06.14
JM
To be arranged by
YG
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GOVERNING BODY MEETING
28th May 2014
Report Title

Agenda Item 3.4.3

Clinical Quality and Performance Committee
Report May 2014

Appendices:

Summary of National Indicators

Dashboard

NHS ECCC
CG Governin
ng Body Mee
eting 28th Mayy 2014

Ag
genda Item 3.4.3

National Measures
 Emergency Admissions: There has been reduction in 2013/2014 of 3.46% from
2012/2013 with this reduction above trajectory to achieve the 5% reduction by
2015/2016.
 Clostridium Difficile: There have been 47 cases of Clostridium Difficile recorded for
Eastern Cheshire CCG in 2013/2014 against a target of no more than 66 cases. The
CCG achieved the 27% reduction.
 Friends and Family Test: East Cheshire Trust commenced roll out of FFT to Maternity
in line with the national timetable. The trust has also achieved the CQUIN
requirements to improve the response rates for A&E and Inpatient FFT.
 Potential Years of Lost Life: The 2013 figure will be released in September 2014 so
current performance is unknown.
Local Priority Measures
 Readmissions: The CCG has failed to achieve the target of a 5% reduction of
readmissions for patients whose original admission had been to East Cheshire Trust.
 Improving Access to Primary Mental Health: The CCG has achieved the target of
increasing the number of patients entering Primary Mental Health by 15% in
2013/2014.
 Feeling Supported to Manager Long Term Condition: The target is for 55% of patients
who respond on the GP survey as having a long term condition to feel supported.
The autumn figure was up to 53.5% and the results of the Spring survey will be
available in July 2014.
Other Local Measures
 Falls: The number of falls happening in East Cheshire Trust has reduced below the
target requirement of 7.5%. Whilst there was a reduction in falls with harm this has
not met the 7.5% target.
 Pressure Ulcers: There has been an increase in the number of new pressure ulcers
and the 30% reduction has not been achieved. However this is largely down to better
reporting of Pressure Ulcers.
 Mental Health Waiting Times: The reduction in the number of patients waiting more
than 28 days to access treatment has increased in 2013/2014 hence the reduction
target was not met. There was improved performance in Quarter 4 mainly down to
the IAPT recovery plan.
 Emergency Presentation of Cancer: There has been a reduction in the number of
cases of Cancer being diagnosed via an emergency presentation. The CCG is on
course to achieve the 30% reduction by 2014/2015.
 IBA Training: The 80% target of appropriate staff to undergo IBA training was met.

NATIONAL MEASURES
Emergency Admissions
5% Reduction by 2016 with
no increase in 2013/2014.

Clostridium Difficile
27% Reduction in Clostridium
Difficile Levels.

Friends & Family Test
100% Introduction of Friends
& Family Test.

Potential Years of Lost Life
Reduce potential years of lost
life by 3.2%.

LOCAL PRIORITY MEASURES
Readmissions
5% Reduction the number of Emergency
Readmissions within 30 days.

Primary Mental Health
Increase the proportion of people
entering Primary Mental Health services
by 15%.

Supported to Manage Condition
Increase to 55% the proportion of
people feeling supported to manage
their condition.

OTHER LOCAL MEASURES
Falls
Achieve a 7.5% reduction in falls and
falls related injuries in hospital.

Cancer diagnosed by Emergency
Presentation
Reduce the proportion of cancers diagnosed through
an emergency presentation by 30% by 2015.

Alcohol Training
Achieve >80% of appropriate staff to undergo
identification and brief advice training so as to
deliver alcohol brief to patients.

Mental Health Waiting Times
Reduce by 15% the number of people
waiting longer than 28 days to access
mental health services.

Pressure Ulcers
Achieve a 30% reduction in the
incidence of new pressure ulcers
(>grade 2).
Financial Balance
Achieve recurrent financial balance by
2016.

LEGEND
Achieving Target by more
than 20%

Achieving Target

Not achieving target by
<5%

Not achieving target by
>5%

Current Performance not
available

GOVERNING BODY MEETING
28 May 2014
Report Title

Agenda Item 3.5.1

Minutes of the Locality Management Meeting
2nd May 2014

Purpose of report
To provide an overview of the May 2014 Locality Management Meeting by the
reporting of its minutes to the Governing Body.

Key points
 the focus of the May 2014 meeting was discussion around the successes of the
Clinical Commissioning Group over the last year, prescribing and proactive care
services

The Governing Body is asked to:
Approve
Ratify
Endorse

Decide
Note for information



Benefits / value to our population / communities
This regular meeting provides an opportunity for member practices to inform the Clinical
Commissioning Group of local issues relating to their patients and for the Clinical
Commissioning Group to inform its member practices of issues (local/national) pertinent
to their practice and patients.

Report Author
Matthew Cunningham
Corporate Services Manager

Contributors
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1.2

T
The focus of the May 2014 me
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on around the successes of the
C
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bing and proactive ca
are services.

1.3

U
Updates we
ere given rregarding:
 Changess at NHS E
England
 Re procu
urement off Wet Age--Related Macular Deg
generation (AMD) Se
ervice
 CCG Fin
nance Update
 The Easstern Chesh
hire Caring
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dministrato
or role
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2.1
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3.
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3.1

T
The Localitty Management Meetting is a fo
ormal advissory committee of the
e Governing
B
Body and under
u
its Scheme of D
Delegation
n the Goverrning Bodyy receives tthe minute
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o
of the advissory comm
mittee.

4.

P
Peer Gro
oup Area / Town Area
A
Affe
ected

4.1

R
Relates to all of NHS Eastern Cheshire
C
ge
eographica
al areas.

5.

P
Populatio
on affectted

5.1

R
Relates to all of NHS Eastern Cheshire
C
po
opulation.

6.

A
Access tto furtherr informa
ation

6.1

F
For further information relating tto this repo
ort contact:

Name
Designation
Date
Teleph
hone
Email

Cunningha
am
Matthew C
Corporate
e Services Manager
21 March 2014
01625 663339
matthew.ccunningham
m@nhs.ne
et
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LOCALITY MANAGEMENT MEETING
Friday 02nd May 2014
The Hall at Marthall, Chelford

NOTES

Practice

GP / Exec

Practice Manager /
other practice rep

Alderley Edge, George St Practice

-

-

Annandale Medical Centre

Dr Geraint Allen

Janet Loynton
Helen Whitworth

-

Lesley Barrett

Handforth Health Centre

Dr James Milligan

Janet Tildsley
Helen Bianchi, Practice
Pharmacist
Joanne Morton

High Street Surgery, Macclesfield

Dr Mike Clark

-

Bollington Medical Centre
Broken Cross Surgery, Macclesfield
Chelford Surgery
Cumberland House, Macclesfield

Holmes Chapel Health Centre

Dean Grice

Kenmore Health Centre, Wilmslow

Dr Julia Huddart

Lynne Garner

Lawton House Surgery, Congleton

Dr Katherine Saville

Melanie Lyman

McIlvride Medical Centre, Poynton

Dr A Coley

Helen Coley

Dr S Reeves

Joan Carpenter

Manchester Rd Medical Centre,
Knutsford
Meadowside Medical Centre,
Congleton
Park Green Surgery, Macclesfield

Dr Ian Hulme

Chris White

Dr Graham Duce

-

Park Lane Surgery, Macclesfield

Dr Louise Hastings

Chris Campbell-Kelly

Priorslegh Medical Centre, Poynton

Dr David Ward

-

Readesmoor Group Practice

Dr Stuart Thomas

Nia George

Schoolhouse Surgery, Disley

Dr Andrew Maurice

Jill Hampson

South Park Surgery, Macclesfield

Dr David Cragg

-

Toft Road Surgery, Knutsford

Dr Jenny Lawn

Margaret Thornborrow

Vernova CIC

-

Justin Johnson

LMM/DaP/Page 1 of 5

Dr Stephanie Pearl
Dr Ahmed

Wilmslow Health Centre

Debbie Ollier

IN ATTENDANCE
Whole Meeting
Part Meeting
Part Meeting

Dr Paul Bowen
Alex Mitchell
Sam Nicol

Whole meeting

Jacki Wilkes

Part Meeting
Whole Meeting
Whole meeting
Whole Meeting
Whole Meeting
Part Meeting
Whole Meeting
Part Meeting
Whole Meeting

Neil Evans
Alexi Ness
Bernadette Bailey
Andrew Wilson
Jane Miller
Sally Larvin
Louise Conway
Andrew Binnie
Joanne Hughes

Chairman, ECCCG
Finance Director
Director of Integrated Care Programme
Head of Clinical Development & Health
Outcomes
Head of Business Management
Clinical Project Manager
Service Delivery Manager
Quality Analyst
Clinical Project Manager
Contract Manager
Quality Improvement Manager
Quality & Performance Manager
PA (Minute taker)

COPIES TO
EC CCG Management Team

1

MEETING BUSINESS

1.1 Apologies for Absence
Jerry Hawker, Dr Ian Collyer, Angela Wales, Isobel Chetwood.

1.2 Declaration of interests
None noted.

1.3 Matters arising from Previous meeting

Minutes from the previous meeting were taken as an accurate record. All outstanding actions have
been completed.
The following updates were given:
Community Matrons were in the process of transferring to their new working pattern. Any issues contact
Ann Mariott- ECT.
Cardiology – A Locum is in place within the Trust. Currently using a range of Consultants from North
Staffordshire and South Manchester to assist in clearing waiting lists.
Nursing Home – Bids are now in with a number of expressions of interest. The CCG will now work
through them.
An issue was raised around the Geriatrician, Christine Davison not carrying out home visits. PB
requested any particular examples to be emailed in so that they can be noted at the next Contract
meeting.

2

2
2.1

CCG Update
Chief Officers Update
The CCG is now a year old.
From 2nd June, on an interim basis, Alison Tonge is taking up the role of Area Director for NHS
England Cheshire Warrington and Wirral Area Team.
A large amount of work has been carried out around the configuration of the South Sector,
which may have an impact on the hospital. A report is due in 8 weeks.
The Challenge Fund bid failed.
Wet AMD Services
This service ceases in June 2014. A re-procurement paper was presented to the Governing
Body in May 2014 and passed.
Currently 321 patients per year go through the service costing circa £2m over 2 years it is
expected that this will increase to 100 + additional patients per year, costing circa £3.7m. It is
felt that there would not be adequate capacity with 1 provider. Implementing these guidelines,
and the new tariffs, could reduce this expenditure to £2.7M.
In order to avoid the same issues with procurement of the NOUS service, we have brought in
some external procurement support to work on this project. The RCoOphth. guidelines also, for
the first time, recommend criteria for Discontinuation of Treatment- which we will expect
providers to comply with.
In response to question from JL- we will expect any provider to continue providing/signpost
patients for on-going support, in relation to Low Vision Services (LVS subcontracted to
Macclesfield Eye Society by current provider)
Risk Stratification
The IT network paper was submitted to the Governing Body 2 months ago. This was put on
hold but following this an opportunity has arisen for the CCG to work in partnership with the LA
to gain a better value network service for health and social care.
MMT
Executive Team approved additional funding for MMT.

2.2
Finance Update
Within the guidance the CCG must out of their total funding have a surplus of 3%. We cannot
deliver the 3% and will be using all 100% of income to deliver.
As the CCG are investing a considerable amount of money, over £2m, to ensure the Caring
Together programme is at a set stage it was the view of the Governing Body that to try and
deliver all our services and meet those costs was too much within our allocation. It was
agreed to have a controlled deficit of £2m. There will be no deficit planned for future years.
This deficit will be referred to the Secretary of State as a planned breach and they will take a
view point. This may attract further scrutiny. NHS England has complete support and
confidence in our Caring Together programme.
This year – planned to deliver surplus £200k, hit £203k subject to audit which is currently being
carried out.

3

3

Caring Together
The challenged health economy work has started including Healthier Together and both of these are
now aligned around our boundaries.
At the end of June will have a 5 year strategic plan which all partners would have signed up to. CCG’s 5
year commissioning plan will come. Will be contributing to a pre-consultation business case being
developed for the whole of the South Sector and possibly Healthier Together.
A new care model was put together following a Checkpoint event where all 4 groups came together and
shared work.
A Task & Finish Group led by Jacki Wilkes is starting to look at what urgent care may look like. Care
Co-ordination and single point of access service still needs work on.

4

Workshop
Presentations followed on key pieces of work:
CCG Achievements - Jacki Wilkes
Jacki Wilkes looked back on what the CCG had achieved over the last year.
Prescribing: - Graham Duce
Final Sign off is required by the Governing Body for the prescribing LES, a structure is in place. Datix
reports are being reviewed by the CCG.
Pro-active Care – Neil Evans
All LESs have been pulled by NHS England the CCG felt they were good value for money and that
patients would want them they have been added to new contracts for each practice. The group seemed
happy with this approach.
Bernadette Bailey (BB) presented to the group around the new Administrator role. A business case has
been worked up (BB to email out to group following this meeting). Helen Coley explained to the group
how the position came about and that it is an extremely valuable role.
Feedback to BB any ideas/concerns over the Administrator role.

5

Feedback from Peer Groups
PB thanked James Milligan and Melanie Lyman for all their hard work.
Alderley Edge/Chelford/Handforth
No update.
Bollington/Disley/Poynton
No update
Knutsford
Sorting out paperwork for NT and primary care redesign. Discussed nursing homes.
Congleton & Holmes Chapel
Discussion around the Nursing Home Enhanced scheme took place.
Macclesfield
Discussion around the function of the peer group. The group used business intelligence to see where
they are and how they are doing and this can help inform on their position.

6

Any Other Business
None noted.

4

5
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Eastern Cheshire
Community HealthVoice
Minutes 16

th

Friday 28 March 2014
Poynton Civic Centre, off Park Lane, Poynton, SK12 1RB
Name

Present:

Roger Farbrother - Chair
Alison Davenport
Andrew Blain
Archie Watt
Barrie Towse
Bill Swann
Charlotte Peters-Rock
Chris Campbell-Kelly
Chris Godfrey
Cyril Towse
David Jary
Diane Walton
Dominic Anderson
Eileen Talbot
Gill Barber
Helen Davies
Jacquie Grinham
Jo-Ann Clutton
Jo Hawkins
John Adams
Jo Rose
Ken Singer
Laura Perkin
Linda Gill
Loreen Chickwira
Marcus Tarrant
Mike Heale
Patrick Heywood
Tim Barlow
Trevor Lerman
Tony Firth
Veronica Phillips
Yvonne Singer
In attendance
Dawn Wayne (note taker)
Paul Bowen
Rebecca Patel
Matthew Cunningham
Lindsay Ratapana
Gerry Gray
Phil Johnston

√

RF
AD
AB
AW
BT
BS
CP
CC
CG
CT
DJ
DW
DA
ET
GB
HD
JG
JC
JHa
JA
JR
KS
LP
LG
LC
MT
MH
PH
TB
TL
TF
VP
YS

Carer’s Reference Group
Cheshire Centre for Independent Living
Kenmore PPG
Chelford PPG

Toft Road PPG Knutsford
VISYON
Policy & Development Manager, Age UK
Senior Voice for Macclesfield
Senior Voice for Macclesfield
Comms & Marketing Officer Healthwatch CE
Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB)
Patient Experience Lead, CWW Area Team
The Alzheimer’s Society Support Service Manager
Action for Sick Children
Annandale PPG
38o
Making Space
Deafness Support Network
Pathways CIC
3LCare
Chair Mental Health Forum Macclesfield
Chair Toft Road PPG
Chelford PPG
Handforth Health Centre Patient Panel Chair
Holmes Chapel Patient Panel Chair
3L Care
Bollington PPG

DW
PB
RP
MC
LR
GG
PJ

NHS Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning
GroupEC Clinical Commissioning Group GP Chair
NHS
NHS Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning
G G PEastern
Group Cheshire Clinical Commissioning
NHS
Group
Safeguarding Adults Designated Nurse ECCCG
Governing Body Lay Member for Governance
Project Manager, Healthwatch Cheshire East

Carer’s Reference Group/Lay Member CCG Governing Body

Cheshire Area for Cheshire Action
Practice Manager Park Lane Surgery
Toft Road Surgery Patient Participation Group
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√
√
√
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√
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√
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√
√
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√
√
√
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Item
Apologies were received as noted above.

Action
s

Welcome and introductions
The Chair welcomed the group.
Minutes of the last meeting
The minutes of the last meeting were accepted as an accurate record.
Commissioning intentions and HealthVoice
Andrew Blain reported back to HealthVoice members following the first meeting of the
Commissioning Intentions subgroup held on 27th February 2014. The report was
reviewed and noted. A status report on the work of the Urgent Care Group was also
tabled for information.
The members requested that the CCG feed back to the Health & Wellbeing board that,
although the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment is an improvement on last year, it still
contains too many acronyms/jargon and is very hard to decipher.
Rebecca, on behalf of the CCG, passed on thanks to the members who were taking part
in the Commissioning Intentions work.
Safeguarding and Nursing Homes
The Chair introduced Lindsay Ratapana, CCG Adult Safeguarding Manager, who gave
the group an overview of her role. She explained that the number of over 65’s in
Cheshire (both East and South) had increased between 2001 and 2011 by 26% and this
figure would grow by another 26% in the next 20 years. This figure equated to over 4000
care beds. There are currently 105 nursing and residential homes in the region which
are overseen by the CCG, Community Services, Local Authority (LA), Care Quality
Commission (CQC), Police, Fire and GP Practices working together to ensure the quality
of care and safety of the residents and staff is maintained. The CCG has a joint health
and social care contract with the majority of homes. It is important to make sure homes
are meeting essential standards. Improvement notices can be served on a home if these
standards are not being met. CQC updates are received on a weekly basis by the Local
Authority and disseminated to the CCG.
A question was asked regarding the overall number of residents who have some form of
dementia. LR advised that she did not have the figures with her but they could be
forwarded on.
Action: LR to obtain figures from Local Authority and send to RP for distribution.
The question was raised at to whether, if someone is sectioned under 13.6 Mental
Health Act, they would be offered a place in a residential home. LR replied that a
separate department within the Local Authority deals with all Mental Health applications
so it is possible they would be admitted depending on individual circumstances.
A question was asked regarding people with mental illness being placed into police cells
and what the CCG was doing to increase beds for people with Mental Health issues.
PB advised that people had to be put in a place of safety. There is a pilot scheme in
Warrington Local Authority where a Mental Health Nurse Assessor attends the police
station to make an early assessment of the individual’s needs. This pilot seems to have
had positive results so far and when the final results are known this may be rolled out
across the rest of Cheshire.
It was stated that it would be very unlikely to catch anyone in the act of abusing a
resident so what can the authorities do to encourage members of staff, Doctors, nurses
etc. to report any form of abuse?
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LR/RP

LR responded that the CCG has a well-publicized whistleblowing policy and other
organisations and nursing homes have a similar obligation to adhere to their own
whistleblowing policies. However, anyone can report concerns directly to the CQC or
complaints from staff or family members can be raised with the Local Authority via their
website or helpline number:
http://www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/social_care_and_health/adult_social_care/vulnerable_a
dults.aspx
0300 123 5010 (8.30am to 5pm Monday to Thursday, 8.30am to 4.30pm Friday)
0300 123 5022 (all other times including bank holidays)
If an initial investigation warrants it, the safeguarding team will then go into the home to
discuss the issues with the Manager. Adult safeguarding training is being rolled out to all
homes throughout the region to proactively train staff in good practice. Old cases are
reviewed so that mistakes are not repeated.
A question was raised about how much influence commissioners have on the behavior
of staff in the homes. PB responded that the CCG can have an influence on the culture
of the home. The introduction of 1 GP for 1 home will help to develop relationships with
staff and families to assess and address the needs of the residents.
A question was asked about how closely the Safeguarding team work with Healthwatch
and whether appointments were made to go into homes. LR advised that Healthwatch is
represented on the multi-agency Adult Safeguarding Board and that all visits to homes
are unannounced.
Standards of Care were discussed with specific reference to a home in Congleton and
the process was explained if homes are not meeting these standards. A ESS standard
of care is a contractual arrangement with Care Quality Commission. If the home is not
meeting the national standards, it is given warning notices then the Local Authority
safeguarding unit is called in. The home can then be served with a default of contract
notice which prevents admission of new residents. New legislation will hold people to
account for ineffective practice at the front line. CQC have just reviewed their website
http://www.cqc.org.uk/ to make it easier for the public to contact them with concerns.
The CCG Chair expressed his support for and faith in the Adult Safeguarding Manager
doing all she can to protect residents in the care homes in Eastern and South Cheshire
but explained that she cannot be responsible for the whole system. The CCG
endeavors to make things better for the patients within its scope but it is in partnership
with other organisations. The CCG publicly expresses confidence in Lindsay and what
she is doing to address the safeguarding issues raised.
A further question was asked regarding the a wide variance in the standards of care in
different homes, how can patients and carers find out what the minimum standards of
care are? LR explained that each home should provide residents with details of their
standards of care and what patients can expect from the home and staff.
HealthVoice members asked how they could raise the profile of the concerns expressed
by some of its members?
The Vice Chair advised that, in future, it would be better for members with individual
concerns to address the Chair and Vice Chair outside the meeting to agree what action
should be taken and whether a more general discussion would be of benefit to the
group.
Caring Together Programme Update
Sam Nicol, Director of the Caring Together Programme, advised the members about a
new leaflet which had just been launched requesting feed back into the Caring Together
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Programme. All members were asked to take a copy/copies and promote the launch
within their own community. Results from the questionnaire will be assessed by the
stakeholder group and will help to inform next steps.
The members were also informed that Care Model Design groups were now meeting
regularly to design the new infrastructure and outputs from these would be presented at
the May meeting.
A question was asked about timescales for putting the detail into the new care models.
SN replied that we are now in the pre-consultation phase and we need to decide what
we are consulting on. Community detail should be available in April/May, hospital detail
in May/June. The formal consultation will start in June, with the final details available in
Autumn/Winter 2014.
Governance & Audit: Patient Representation
The Chair introduced Gerry Gray, Lay Member on the CCG Governing Body with a
responsibility for Governance, to the members. GG gave the group some background to
his career and his involvement with the CCG; he attends Governing Body meetings as a
Lay Member, chairs the Governance and Audit Committee and chairs the Remuneration
Committee. Governance includes evaluating and mitigating risks which may impact on
the CCG not delivering on its strategic and economic objectives.
A question was asked in relation to minimising waste of resources and ensuring effective
use of resources in the future. GG responded that work is constantly being done to
achieve value for money in all areas of the CCG. The Caring Together Programme is
geared up to maximising what can be done with limited resources.
One member requested an example of the most important issue the Lay member was
currently working on and why. Gerry answered that the Caring Together programme
was one of the most significant risks as it underpins all the work of the CCG. Any
transformation process is always risky and this one crosses several CCG’s and Local
Authorities and also includes the tertiary sector and other organisations.
The
Governance and Audit Committee regularly reviews the risks and takes action where
necessary. The Governing Body needs to be given assurance that the risks they are
accountable for are being managed.
GG responded to a question regarding his autonomy within the organisation by
reassuring the members that he is totally independent, his duty is to the statutory body
and he provides robust challenge to the executive team of the CCG. He advised that the
external auditors, Grant Thornton, are independent of the CCG as are the internal
auditors, Mersey Internal Audit Agency.
Healthwatch Cheshire East
Phil Johnston introduced himself. He advised that Healthwatch, commissioned by the
Local Authority, had been in existence since April 2013 and was a subsection of
Healthwatch England, the national body. Healthwatch has a seat on the local Health
and Wellbeing Board and has connections with major health partners including CCGs,
NHS Trusts, and Local Authorities.
Healthwatch can provide another conduit for HealthVoice members to get their voices
heard about health issues in the local area. It is important to promote the things that are
going well, the challenge is to find some good things to say to influence services. The
Healthwatch website is: http://healthwatchcheshireeast.co.uk/. Healthwatch are keen to
receive case studies to illustrate both good and bad practice. Healthwatch has a small
but important role to play as it can be difficult for organisations to get information from
local people who are sometimes reluctant to complain or give negative feedback.
A question was asked regarding funding and whether the money transferred from
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Cheshire East was shown in the accounts. PJ replied that nationally some funds have
still not transferred but in Cheshire East they have received what was due and all
monies will be accounted in the annual report which is out in June. None of the money
has been taken by the consortium except to fund work specifically for Healthwatch.
Healthwatch review ‘quality of life’ in homes in the Cheshire East locality (not quality of
care). The Care Quality Commission meets monthly with Healthwatch and will take
queries from residents or members of the public back to them.
Healthwatch is eager to work with community networks and requested any members
with links into these to get in touch via the website. PJ gave an example of where
Healthwatch involvement had influenced national policy when the care.data issue (opt
out of GP patient information being made available to a wider network of health
professionals) was raised nationally which forced a 6 month delay to bring awareness to
the public prior to implementation.
One member asked what Healthwatch was doing to change the culture of service
providers with regard to complaints systems which currently appear ineffective. PJ
advised that the current systems are often very complicated and this question had been
escalated to Healthwatch England. A national review of complaints has recently been
completed which will be forwarded to members. One of the most important drivers was
evidence from patients and carers which could be used to change systems.
Action: RP to send out Healthwatch England information regarding national
review of complaints system

RP

Another question raised was whether Healthwatch visited Nursing homes. PJ advised
that currently no visits were made to homes but there was a training programme in place
for volunteers which should be completed in May. All homes had been contacted
regarding ‘quality of life’; the results of which would be reported back to the first
Healthwatch Board Meeting in public.
Tenure of Chair
The Chair declared his willingness to continue in the role. Due to time restraints it was
felt that this item should be deferred to the next meeting to allow any other interested
parties the opportunity to put themselves forward.
Any other business
Trevor Lerman raised the issue of HealthVoice becoming more proactive and dynamic
and advised that he felt it was time to revisit the demographics of the group. It was
necessary for the group to hold the CCG to account more often than is currently
happening.
Action: RP to note for next meeting agenda. Also to reduce the number of items
to enable time to discuss properly.
The Chair thanked all the contributors and attendees and closed the meeting.
Date and time of next meeting
Friday 23rd May 2014
10am – 12pm

New Life Church,

Congleton CW12 4EY
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